
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. bepartment ofState Case No. F'-:2010-04163 Dbc No. C05137404 Date: 01/03/2013 __ ,. 

L13,!, Rosemary C 
.ii _.J 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

[RE. LE.ASEO.> i·N···PA. RT i3TI 
~l;)_D·CP,B5,B3 D.9DFGI 

Deeks, Ashley S 
Thursday, May 27, 2010 11 :04 AM 
Baumert, Kevin A; Guarin, Marc F; Jacobson, Linda 

Cc: 
Sub)eGt: 

Dolan, JoAnn: Reisser, Wesley J; Perina, Alexandra H: Pomper, Stephen E 
RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

Looping In AP for the Israeli angle and SP for the blockade angle, based on his Georgia work. 
~ .. ·~•-- ... _,_ .. _ •·-' ·• ·n-·•-··-• •·••w ••-·• ···-••• 

From: Baumert, Kevin A 
Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 10:53 AM 
To: Deeks, Ashley S; Guarin, Marc F; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Reisser, Wesley J 
Subject: FW: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

---·----~------···-------
----· .•..• ____ .. ____ _ 

Thanks, 
Kevin 

From: Reisser, Wesley J 
Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 10:36 AM 
To: Baumert, Kevin A 
cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, !Ian A; Scarlatelll, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

.-------· --- ··- -- . -------­··· ~- -----. ---
KevlnJ--

1-·· 
---------· 

~---......... .. .. ---· ··--··- ..... - .. · .... - ....... 
Wes 

From: Baumert, Kevin A 
Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2010 3:41 PM [ReviE:WAIJTHo~!:i:Y:. sliaron fl.timaci,-sjiniorRevlBWii~ 
To: Reisser, Wesley J 
cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, !Ian A; Scarlatelli, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C 
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 1-· -----· ..... _ .......... ___ .. ---~--,---·--· ··-·-----····-·---- ------,., ·-----

------· ·---... T----- - . ---· . ---.. 
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Thanks, 
Ke'1in 

-- ........ _ ..... --..... ~··-·- ___ ,_,_., ···~-·-··--· ···- , ... __ .,.., ., .... ,._ . ., ....... -·--··-- ···-~- --··- .. . 
From: Reisser, Wesley J 
Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 3:00 PM 
To: Baumert, Kevin A 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, !Ian A; Scariatelll, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C 

,_ _ __,ubject1-FWr-Israet-Nav~!Tf'reecGa---~------------------~-----~-----~-----!---

B5 

-- ________ .. ______ .. _ .. __________ .. _ I 
Thanks! 
Wes 

F~o~:l.~~:~"=:==~:r-- ··---------- ----- ·-· ... - _________ .. ------63 
Sent:_w_~da.Y,J:1i!y 26, 2010 11 :06 AM DOD-CP 
To:l ___ ." _____ J Sievers, Marc J; Levin, Jan; Burnett, David R; Boron, Desiree A; Parker, Andrew C; Greene, Elisa; 
Burgess, Richard J; Chere, John E 
Cc: Reisser, Wesley J; Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

------···~-~---------

B3 DODFGI 

B3 
DOD-CP 

i:ro;,,~l_,,~,.,...- --=-1 
Sent: we<Jnesday;May 26, 2010 5:51 PM B3 DOD-CP ______ _ 
To: __ Sl~yers, Marc J; Levin, Jan; Burnett, David R; Baron, Desiree A; Parker, Andrew C; Greene, Elisa;I. _____ . -·-1 
~: _____ J 
Cc: Reisser, Wesley J; Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 
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83 
. 1.- 000-CP 

'-----·· -------·?··--·--·--- ····--·--
---·-------------------~----m-h-·P----~-~-··~ - ---· 

From: Reisser, Wesley J 
--1--ci..,.,..,.,n""•:"·.,•-~~nesday;-Ma~Gr™~&-l>M .. . . 83 000-CP 

To: Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Goldberger, Thomas H; Holmstrom, Toao c; Slndl~we,il.ebeeea-~ti,,..__---lf..-c.-­
Rlchter, Kim B; Lop;1tklewlcz, Viktoria; Bernier-Toth, Michelle; Mendel, Teresa S; Sievers, Marc J; Levi~. Jan; Burnett, .. 
gavld R;_~~ron, Desirei:.AJ Adams, Julie D; Parker, Andrew C; Greene, Elisa; Zeroubavely, Sandra S;j . . ... J 
l _ . ----····=:J Waters, John R; Rogan, Thomas G; Towry, Debra J; Hananla, Vera V; lfJ~lnfeJ_q, Nill C 
Lewis, Glenn K; Beran, Sarah; Greengrass, Sara D; Kaplan, Dean; Walker, C.arolee B; Ffnver, Frank J;C.. ] 
Manring, Nicholas J; Tyson, Paul H; Maggi, Robert W; Frederick, Jeffrey D; Falls, Eric G; Reed, Julia G; Davison, Kees c; 
Ogle, Karen L; Keen, Daniel G; Howard, Jeremiah "Jerry"; Parra, Yolanda A; Dilworth, Alison E; Osman, /\many A; Netos, 
Eleftherios E; Taylor, Victoria J; Riley, Robert J; Dayton, Win (Istanbul); Marsh, Denise M; Baily, Jess L; Tomlinson, 
Christina (Istanbul); Abeyta, Susan K (Istanbul); Gisvold, Lisa C (Istanbul); Parker, Andrew C; Silliman, Douglas A; 
Rosenstock, Matthew S 
Subject: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

(SBU) Courtesy Embassy Tel Aviv, a message on how the navy Intends to handle this: 

"The Israel Navy has expressed to me that they intend ta respond to this situotion aspeaceful as possible; however they 
have been directed by the GOI to prevent the vessels from arriving In Gaza. Their intention Is to ensure the ships arrive In 
AshrJorJ, process the individuals to be deported and de/Iver any legitimate humanitorian aide to Gaw via land. It should 
be noted, that GOI has made It clear that although they have directed a peaceful response, those participating are 
viewed as individuals deliberately attempting to provoke the Israel Navy and appropriate act/an to prevent arrival In 
Gaza w/11 be taken." 

Wesley J. Reisser, Ph.D. 
Desk Officer· NENIPA 
Office of Israel & Palestinian Affairs 
Phone (202) 647 ·2647 
Fax (202) 736-4461 

l'nis messego Is UNCLASSIF!EQISBV according lo the definitions provided by E.O. 12956. 
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L.aw, Ros11mary c fRELEA. seo tNPAR'fi33-i:ioi:i.cP,B3j 
,;;;;,;,;,:.;;.;.;;.;;.;;;.;;;;;;;,""'"-~19_~-0f~f,B5,B6 -·-- ........ :! 
From: Goldberger, ihomas. H 
Sent: Monday, May31, 2010 11 :46 AM 
To: Cunningham, James B 
Cc: Jacobson, Linda 
Subjec1: RE: L comments dn MFA flotilla briefing> 

r . . . 
L_ ____ . -- -··--- ----·- .. ··-----·- ··-- ------ ··-----·-- -- ---------

-----Original Message----­
From: Jacobson, Linda 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:43 AM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

-----·-------·-----

Original Message ·---­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
Sent: Mon May 31 11:39:39 2010 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

[. -----_ ·--~-----. 

-----Original Message----­
From: Baumert, Kevin A 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM 

------···--------

--------·-«·----·--.. ----------·- ____ _.! 

To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Doran, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

r·-_· - --·· -----•~--.... ,.._--. ··-·· 
.. ~---·-··--·- . . -----------i 

---···-··-· ···-··---···-- .. --- ··------ ____ _J 
Original Message 

From: Jacobson, Linda 
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas S; Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
Sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 2010 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

.... ·---···· -------······-·····-···-----·-·· -·----· 
Original Message 

From: Baumert, Kevin A rREVIEWAUTHORITY s_ii..... Ah d-5·-. -Ff~ L........ . ......... _· ._· ___ ll_r.on ma _,_ ... ~'!~qi:_~Y.•.e>_V_~ 
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- - ............. ,... 

,...._. UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No, F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05137427 Date: 01/03/2013 --"'I 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, 
Li~da; Perina, Alexandra H 

"' Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 2010 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

__ ,.,.- .... -----· -------- ·------------------- ------ ··-------·· ·---·------·----------~- .. -~----·-·-

Kevin 
L/OES 

····· Original Message ····· 
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, 
Linda 
Sent: Mon May 31 10:50:27 2010 
Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

[.
- _, _____________ ,, ________ _,_ 

. ---------- _, ____ ··------ ----

---····~-~--- _ __ , ---------------

- _=.J, 
-····Original Message----­
From: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subject: Re: l comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Sent from my BlackBerry 

····· Original Message ····· 
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 

- --------- ··------- . ·-------·-----. --·---~- ....... ____ _ __ J 
To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly, 
Maura; Schlicher, Ronald l; 'Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov> 
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010 
Subject: FW: l comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

·····Original Message-·-·· 
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Casa No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05137427-Data: 01/03/2013 --.. 

Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

• 
83 DOD-CP 
83 DODFGI 

'" I Miiny-of the detai;~ ~~l.ei'ecf~~v-~: afreii~~ ~een iirovi;~ -~~a orn~;-:e~~s. -specTI'~~ -~i~hlighEJ 
- Ongoing Operation 
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 

i---~--~'Mi%MA\/~ARMJl.llY1' __ d in art between 1700L and 1800L 
All ships will be in port by-Tafertoaay 

- 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed 
- 30 Civilians Wounded 

10 IOF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds 
- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 

Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law 
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) 

83 DOD-CP 
... __] 

-----Original Message-----
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J.; 
Parker, Andrew C; G.CU.~~:J_ason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, 
John R; [_ ........ _ .. , ______ ,,_] Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Je~B3 DOD-CP 
0 
Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Oshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard 
from me, but Just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from Gen. 
l._., _ __::::~ .. : .... J who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. 86 

[~.:.:_-_=}reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met 8 
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. 
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. 
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the 
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions taken were 
in self-defense. 

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14·15 "maybe more". He said all injured 
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some 
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, 
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries 
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Gaza as 
promptly as possible. 

Earlier this morning c::._:::~...::.:.:.Jmade the following calls/contacts: 
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--Turkish FM and MoD['_:-.:_:J Erakat, Fayyad, and Huss~in al Sheikh c:::=.:J He felt the 
calls. w the Turks given the sit~ation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he 
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discuss.ed extent to which levels of 
rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for security 
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this wHl be affected by status of 
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. 

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 

-----Original Message----­
From: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM 

86 

To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew c; 
<.ir.~!J!h_]ason B; NEA-IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; c=-~-=-.. 83 DOD-CP 

[. ______ ]Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly; Maura; Feltman, 
Jeffrey D 
Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's 
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships 
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to AShdod, has told cogat that 
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is 
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have spoken to 
Davotuglu this am. 
Sent from my BlackBerry 

···-- Original Message ----­
From: Levin, Jan 
To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew 
C;. .. Gr.ub.p, Jason B; NEA·IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; [- ....... 83 DOD-CP 
[ ___ ...... J Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, 
Jeffrey D 
Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing 
,----...... . . .... -·--·---83 DODFGI 
I 
L.--.···· .. __ .. _____ ..... ----------........ 1 

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively 
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take, 
-· Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all 
injuries occurred on this ship. 
--[~~~::~.~___Jtold Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders a83 DODFGI 
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from ID.F boarding party, 
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to 
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict 
between Israel· and Hamas. 

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on thi~ issue, thank 
you. 
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• 
Law, Rosemary C f~~eAs-eoTJii PART 6'3" ooo..cP ,83 J 

,;;F;;;ro;,;m;,::.,;.;,;;.;;;;;;;,;,;-.;.,.. _ _,~~~~~~~trnasH·- ______ j 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 8:55 AM 
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Dolan. JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Knopf, Payton L; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Connelly, 

Maura 
i----ssu~e•G«c-~~-~-~4A~E~:~Ml!"F_-~A~flo':"_t~l_ll~a~br~ie~li~ng~--~~~~~-~~~~--~~~~~~~--~-~1---1 

[::~~-:-=·-------._:_-_:=.==:~----. 

-----Original Message----­
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 8:48 AM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Knopf, Payton L; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B 
Subject:. Re: MFA flotilla briefing 
··-··------------·--···- - ... . .. . . . . . . ----------------· 

Jon 

--·-- Original Message ----­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 

..... , ... _, ____ , ___ ----------~------·-----· 

Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 
Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

L .. - ·-····--···--·------·--·----·-··---·--· ·:·:~·-·--···-··· :--~] 

BS 

95 

85 

- - - -- Ori i:_n~l.. Me_s_~~S.'! ..... · --·· 
From: -·1 93 000-CP 
To: cunmng am, ames-s;'Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason 6; NEA-IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, GreBory M; Waters, 
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara 

i_O_e.!'lJ~.tl~mj; Burgess, Richard J; Murphy, Michael P; Pica, Tolan M; Levin, Jan; [===93 000-CP 

'5ent: Mon ~ay 31 08:08:22 2010 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

.......... ---~·- .. -.-· .. ·-·· .. ---- _ ... 
L _____________ -. - - . ·- . -··--·- ··- ··-. . . . ... ··----· -·--·· -
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. 

- Ongoing Operation [REViEV\IAUTHORITY: Sharon_Ariiiiac(~ri!(ir Reviawetl 
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 
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- All ships will be in port by later today 
- 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed 
- 30 Civilians Wounded 
• 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds 
- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 
• Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law 
because of intent by flotilla to broach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) 

-· ·------------ ·----·--
83 000-CP 

------ - ~--·-------·~--- - - -- .. 

'-----·----·--------····· -----' 

-----Original Message····· 
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, 

I 

John R; [=-·--·--~~-:::-=J Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Je193 DOD-CP 
D 
Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard 
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from c··1 86 

c---~~:::..:.._ ___ ._ .... J who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. ··--··· 

~--]reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met 86 
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

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all injured 
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some 
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, 
they will need to ro the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries 
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Gaza as 
promptly as possible. 

Earlier th.is morning! ________ ... =:Jmade the following calls/contacts: B6 
--Turkish FM and MoD1_ ____ I Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh[__ ····1 He felt the 
calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly -rs-l:r~ogan and how he 
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of 
rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for security 
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by status of 
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. 

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 
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-----Original Message----­
Frdto: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM 
To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; 
Gr:LJ!lp_,_Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; [ 83 DOD-GP 
L ..... ~Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura;--Fefi"iiiii"ri, 
Jeffrey D 
Cc: 'Dennis B. Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@Mho.eop.gov' 

Our Cons.ular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's 
available. UN had been approached be CbGAT last Week to help in forwarding cargo from ships 
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that 
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

----- Original Message ----­
From: Levin, Jan 
To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B.; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew 

'
~_J .. lirubJ, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; C-83 DOD-GP 

[ Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura;l'eltman, · 
J ef-t'i"ey D ' 
Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing 

---- ·--· ···---------
83 DODFGI 

----------·-· _., ____ _ ___ J 

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively 
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. 
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all 
injuries occurred on this ship. 
-- C:~·-··-- ___ ]told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders a83 DODFGI 
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. 
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. · 
-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to 
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict 
between Israel and Hamas. 

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank 
you. 
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i 

Law, Rosemary C 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Dolan, JoAnn 
Thursday, May 27, 201 O 2:02 PM 
Jacobson, Linda 
FW: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

~[r __ "=····~= .... -= .... ·-~· .... ·=---~== .... = ...... = ..... = ........ =._.= __ ~=;;;;;;---~~··~· .... :;::; .. ·;;;::;;;::;;;::;;;::=== .... = ..... =~.-.~':::::~_ •• _=-~-=1l~BS.,~-
........ -------- ----··-"-·-.. --.. -----1-.. ---
From: Baumert, Kevin A : 
Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 1:40 PM 1[ 
To: Reisser, Wesley J 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, Ilan A; Scarlatelli, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H; Netos, Eiettherlos 
E , 
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza I 

------.................. , ... ,. _______ .............. ··----.. ---·-··· ·------·--.. ---................... J _______ _ 

Thanks, 
Kevin 

. 

I 
I 
I 

I 
.. ------·-------------·------.. ----·----------··- ........ " .......... - ..... ---· ........... ---r--· .. -· 
From: Reisser, Wesley J 1 

sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 12:37 PM I 
To: Baumert, Kevin A j 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, !Ian A; Scarlatelli, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H; Netos, Efftherlos 

E BS· 
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 83 DOD-CP 

I 
« --~-" 0 '°AO•A•••··~··-··-~ .. --·••••>•••• 0 ''"'"' -·-·-••'•• _,_,J_,,,,., 

I 
From: Baumert, Kevin A I 
Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 11:15 AM , 
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Reisser, Wesley J I 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, !Ian A; Scarlatelll, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H; Netos, El~ftherlos 
E ' 
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza I 

=~----= -~--= =~cc _ ,j __ ~---------
From: Baumert, Kevin A I 
sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 ll:OO AM I 
To: Reisser, Wesley J I 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, !Ian A; Scarlatelll, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H; Netos, El~ftherlos 

E I 
subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza l~!=YIE:lf\' AUTHORlTY:~ __ s_~a.Jon ·Ahrna~Ls~nior Revleweq 1 

~ I 
I 
I 
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------ ···---..... ------..... --·---· ---·-------- .. _______ ....... __________ L _____ .... 

····----········-------· --------· --····-·-·---·---------

Thanks, 
Kevin 

! 

I 
I 

.... ·----.. ---·-·------·--·····--------· .. ----·--·--- -·--·-·-·- ----··----~-------

From: Reisser, Wesley J I 
Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 10:56 AM I 
To: Baumert, Kevin A ! 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, !Ian A; Scarlatelll, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H; Netos, E/ertherlos 
E I 

subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

'---------.- ·------ ----- .... --··---- . 
Wes 

-------------·~-~~-- .. ----------------~--·~-.. ~ . ......,. ____ . -
From: Reisser, Wesley J 
Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 10:36 AM 
To: Baumert, Kevin A 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, !Ian A; Scarlate\11, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

Wes 

i 
I 

I 

.•.• __ .. ., ___ -~ ··--- ---~-~·-·--... , ............. "'''>"·•----·----····--.------. -~ --·-·· ·- ···--· ··- ·-·· --- ·---~------·--- ., _______ !-
From: Baumert, Kevin A 
sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 3:41 PM I 
To: Reisser, Wesley J I 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, !Ian A; Scarlatelll, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C I 
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza ! 
----------- ·-· ------------------·-----------------·--- -"··------··' --------

. ----··-- ... _ ........ - ... -------·------···-·-----·-·"·----- -1 ·· ----
n I 

Kevin 

B5 
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From: Reisser, Wesley J 
···-··- ·-··-·-· ·- . ---1 

Sen't: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 3:00 PM 
To: Baumert, Kevin A 
cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, llan A; Scarlatelll, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C 
Subject: FW: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

I 

---·-----·-·.--·-··---·----- .. ---··-----.·----·--------~-----·-·--···-~--------"'-'. ----------<'---~ 

·-·-•• •···•·-----.-- ··-·-·----··•• -·~··---···•-··----··· • ----•••N ••• -.-------·--···••.-1••• • •• ·····-~ 

Thanks! 
'\/lies 1 

85 

- ·-·------- ____ .. ________ - ____ ,. _ __L ___ ,_. 
From[.:.:_:_ ..... :.::=:J ' 83 DOD-CP 
Seit: WednE!§P!lY,May ~6, 2010 11 :06 AM I 
To: .......... ·-·----···· . ievers, Ma~ J; Levin, Jan; Burnett, David R; Baron, Desiree A; Parker, Andrew C; Greqne, Ellsa; 
Burgess, Richard J; Chere, John E 1 

I Cc: Reisser, Wesley J; Goldberger, Thomas H 1 

Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 1 

I· C __ · .......... ____ ... _ ---·· ... ==~~~-· .. ·-·] 83 DODFGI 

v fl,_,_, . ---.--............ ---~ I 
83 DOD-CP 

i 
I 

~ ............... _____ --- I 
- . ---- ·- -----~-------------- ----·----~·-··--·· - ------- ··i ·-· ·-··· 

From:!· ... ----·-· ·-1 I 83 DOD-CP 
Sent: \iveanesaay, May 26,·2010 5:51 PM J 
To: Sievers, Marc J; Levin, Jan; Burnett, David R; Baron, Desiree A; Parker, Andrew C; Greene, Elisa; Burgess, !flchard J; : 
Chere, John E . 1 

Cc: Reisser, Wesley J; Goldberger, Thomas H I 
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza , i 

83 
DODFGI" r----- .... -------- ·---...... -... ·----.. -·--·- -------- -· .. ---- L 

[

-" - _~·~~=-~_-~-- ~~--.... ~z=----~ ~~---'~•=-=~"~==~o - . . -- · ~=-·~-=] 
----~ -------- ······--····· --- ·-----·--------·--- ····--~--, ·--~·---·· ··--
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I 
I 83 DOD-GP 

------- .. ¥·-· . I 
~~---··-••P--•••-------~ ..... ••·•• I 
----------------------- --- __________ ......... ---!------
From: Reisser, Wesley J . i 
sent: Wednesday, May 261 2010 5:06 PM I 
To: Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Goldberger, Thomas H; Holmstrom, Todd C; Slndle, James M; Struwe, RetJecea L; 
Richter, Kim B; Lopatklewlcz, Vlktorla; aernler-Toth, Michelle; Mendel, Teresa S; Sievers, Marc J; Levln,l2)}L~~-fu~1:t, 
David R; 13aron, Desiree A; Adams, Julie D; Parker, Andrew C; Greene, Elisa; Zeroubavely, Sandra S;f ·· ·] 

- - -- BUrgess, Rlchard--JpGile~oll!lJ':· waters. John R; Rog.an., Thomas G; Towry, Debra J; Hananla, Ver V: Weinfeld, Nll!J.i 
Lewis, Glenn K; Beran, SarahJ-Greengrass, 5ara O; Kap1an,-uea .. ; .. _ ke1, €a1ole~HA'~1e~i;~f~r~an~k~J~:....):-r~:;;;;~;";--~~,.JJ,~~J.J0~~J Manring, Nicholas J; Tyson, Paul H; Maggi, Robert W; Frederick, Jeffrey D; Falls, Eric G; Reed, Julia G;i'>avison;jl<ees c; · ·- .

1 

Ogle, Karen L; Keen, Daniel G; Howard, Jeremiah "Jerr/"i Parra, Yolanda A; Diiworth, Alison E; Osman, Amany A; Netos, 
Eleftherlos E; Taylor, Victoria J; Riley, Robert J; Dayton, Win (Istanbul); Marsh, Denise M; Baily, Jess L; Tomllnsf,n, 
Christina (Istanbul); Abeyta, Susan K {Istanbul); Gisvold, Lisa C (Istanbul); Parker, Andrew C; Siiiiman, Douglas IA; 
Rosenstock, Matthew S 
Subject: Israel Navy on Free Gaza I 
(SBU) Courtesy Embassy Tel Aviv, a message on how the navy intends to handle this: I 
"The Israel Navy has expressed to me that they In tend to respond to this situation as peaceful as poss Ible; howJver they 
have been directed by the GO/ to prevent the vessels from arriving in Gaza. Their intention is to ensure the shipJ arrive /n 
Ashdod, process the Individuals to be deported and deliver any legitimate humanitarian aide to Gaza via land. it should 
be noted, that GO/ hos made it clear that although they have directed a peaceful response, those participating ~re 
viewed as Individuals deliberately attempting to provoke the Israel Navy and appropriate action to prevent orrlya/ In 
Gazo will be taken." 1 

Wesley J. Reisser, Ph.D. 
Desk Otticer • NENIPA 
Office of Israel & Palestinian Affairs 
Phone (202) 647-2647 
Fax (202) 736·4461 

Thi~ message Is UNCLASSIFIEOJafilJ according to the dafinitions provldod by E.O. 12956. 
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I 

Law. Rosemarv C 

From: 
sent: 

Dolan, JoAnn , 

To: 
Monday, May 31, 2010 2:52 PM \ 
Schwartz, Jonathan B; Guarin, Marc F; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A: Heiljlemann, 
ihomas B; Pamper, Stephen E , 

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; 'pomper_andersen@hotmail.com'; McLeod, Ma<y 
IUSUNl: Donoohue, Joan E; Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H I 

· Subject: RE:L comments on MFA flotilla oriefing> 1 

Israeli Briefing excerpts I circulated earlier say interaction occurred 70NM out. 
not familiar with Interim Agreement full text with further links to annexes is at 
http://www.mfa.gov.il/MFA/Peace+Process/Guide+to+the+Peace+Process/THE+ISRAELI­
PALESTINIAN+INTERIM+AGREEMENT.htm 

-----Original Message----­
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:40 PM 

I 
Fo~·those 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
i 
I 

To: Guarin, Marc F; Perina, Alexandra H; Goldberger, Thomas HJ Baumert, 
Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 

Kevin A; Jaco~son, 

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; 'pomper_andersen@hotmail.com'; 
McLeod, Mary (USUN); Donoghue, Joan E 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

' Pomper, Stephery E; 

r------------------------------·----------------·- -···---··--"'------

--------------·--- -·------·----·--------·---------··---···-···--""·· 
- - - - -Original Message·-[1'fE\llEVifAUTHoifrfYi siiilron-Ahmad~-se'nior"'Review 
From: Guarin, Marc F --- ........ ~.'.'.?.!! 

i 
I Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2 .. : 34 PM 

To: Schwartz, )onathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A;I 
)acobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn [ 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; 'pomper_andersen@hotmail.com'; Pamper, Stephe~ E 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> I 
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-··-·-·--·. ·-·------·--.... ·-·-······----~·-·---·-.··--· . ------------------ --·------~----

- ...................... __ . _____________ .........) 

I 
Marc 

-----original Message----­
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 

T 

I 
I 
' 
I sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:02 PM 

To: Perina, Alexandra HJ Goldberger, 
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 

Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Hei~emann, 

CC: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; 'pomper_andersen@hotmail.com'; 
Guarin, Marc F 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

I 
Pamper, Stephe1 E; 

I 
I 

------·--·--·--------------------.. ---------------------·----·---------------------..! 
jon I 

I 
-----Original Message----- 1 
From: Perina, Alexandra H ! 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM I 
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; He~nemann, 

Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; 'pomper_andersen@hotmail.com'; Pomper, Stepherl E; 
Guarin, Marc F 1 

I Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
_______________ , ____ ···--· __________ ,, __________ ----------------------- - .... ---- ______ i__ __ _ 

~----·-·---- -- -·-·------------· 
60 
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I 

C ___ _ 
.... ·-·""~·-.. -·----·--··--- ·~----------·-- ··--··-~· .. --···--------·--~----

---····--·"·--··--·----.---] ··-··Original Message·--·· 1 
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 1 

----~-""~·=c~~ .. '---,,.. -1.,, .... _ ...... 1' Sent. hvuucr1 -,-,-,g_, -, . _ 
'fo: Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, 1numas-s; vo;..·~· ·, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H I 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J ! 
Subject: RE: l. comments on MFA flotilla briefing> \ l-------- -- -----
---- ------· ________ ... ._. ---·--------------····--··-'•··· ·---------~,--_, 

--·--Original Message····· 
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 

I 

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM 
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 

Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; 
I 

oodn, 

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla 

[-. -~-~:~~-----· --.... - .......... -

·----Original Message····­
From: Baumert, Kevin A 
Sent: Monday, May 31, i010 11:34 AM 

briefing> 

I 

....... --·-----~. 

·---~] I 

To; Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; !Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> ........... --·--·Ji 

------ ---- I 

----- Original Message 
From: Jacobson, Linda 
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
Sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 2010 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

I 
B;\ Dolan, 

I r------·· 
L-------~·-··"-

., ________ · __ / 
Original Message 

From: Baumert, Kevin A 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; 
Linda; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
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sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 2010 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
----· -···~·----· . .----------- ____ ,_ . ., ___ ,,_ 

Date: 01104/2013 

i 
I 
I 
' '"•• ""'"•""•r-·-

--·-----· -·---------- ------ ------·-- ··---~·--·-···-- ......... -.--------· ·····--------~···-- ·····------

Kevin 
L/OES 

1 

; 
----- Original Message -··-­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Schwartz, Jonathan a; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; 
Linda 

Jacobsdn, 

! 
sent: Mon May 31 10:50:27 2010 
Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

I 
I 
' 

---·· .. --. - I 

------ . ··--------------------.. - ····--·----........... _____ J 
-----Original Message····· 
From: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subject: Re: L comments on.MFA flotilla briefing> 

-·sent from my BlackBerry 
__ . ______ ,,, .. , _____ _ 

-·--- Original Message ---·· 

·----·-····--·------------

I 
I LJ 

From: Goldberger, Thomas H I 
To: Cunningham, James BJ Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Con~elly 1 
Maura; Schlicher, Ronald LJ 'Oaniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eo~.gov> 

Cc: Holmstrom, Todd c; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn I 

Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010 · I 
Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

See below from Jonathan pls. 

--···Original Message···-­
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, 
Thomas B 

JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; 
I 

Hei~emann, 
I 

Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

62 

i 
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05135621 Date: 0110412013 

StateDept004183 

B5 



UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05135621 Date: 01104/2013 
I 

Jon 

----- Original Message ···-­
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B 
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sent: Mon May 31 09:05:16 2010 
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

···-··· .... _.,,~ .. ··--·· 
Jon 

··--··--····· ... , 
--··· Original Message --··· 
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 
Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

I 

B; Knopf, Payton L 
I 
I 

[_~~- . -·-... __ --·· .. --....... _-· ......... -----~_-___ ........ -.... --~--:~·-.... _---~=--I __ -I 
I 

·••·• original Message ••••· J 

From:[=--=--· J 83 DOD-CP 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Ma~~ J; 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wate~s, 

I 
85 
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John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara 
2-~r.usa]lem); Burgess, Richard J; Murphy, Michael P; Pica, Tolan M; Levin, Jan; [ ··:~. ,··:"J 
··--·· I 83 DOD-GP 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 I 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

I 
I 
I 

E I 
I 
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I 

Ongoing Operation 
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 

M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between l700L and l800L 
All ships will be in port by later today 

- 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed 
30 C1vi11ans "\'!Oun •. -

; 

10 IDF wounded ti> include 1 serious and-1 wi-th- "medium" wounds , 
- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled l 

Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Llw 
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) , 

-·=--.. ~~----- ----~-·--...... _··· __ :~~--=-·~ 
83 DOD-CP 

I 
I 

[ ____ ._ __ 

·----Original Message----­
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM I 
To: Cunningham, James 6; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marie J; 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, J_ason 6; NEA·IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, 
John R;[~---=:--=·_::::=:=J Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, pef93 DOD-CP 
D . 
Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' ! 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

.
This ma_y largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have ~eard 
f_~o~-~•1., __ b\jt_just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is fromJ.--::::J 86 

L... .... _::--] who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. r ... ~ 

[=]reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, thJy met 
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fir4. 
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, ,etc. 
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of t~e 
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions takel were 
in self-defense. 

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla l4-1S "maybe more". He said all inj~red 
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter, He said ships coming into Ashdod (some 
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. ~here, 
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countr~es 
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Ga~a as 
promptly as possible. , 

' 
Earlier this morning E'" . . .. "]made the following calls/contacts: I 86 
--Turkish FM and MOD ...... =:) Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh f'-·-·-_l ... He feltl the 
calls w the Turks giveii'"'tlie situation were OK, but the concern clearly isl ... - ... _Jand lhow he 
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels ff 

M I 
I 

I 
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Law. Rosemarv c 
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Sent: 
TO: 
Cc: 

Monday, May 31, 201011:46AM 
Cunningham, James 6 
Jacobson, Linda 

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

[ 
""'' --·-. ,,, __ ,,.. ...... ..... """""""" 

___________ ,, ____ ,,,,_,, __ ..... ,, ___ ,, _____________ ........... -~ _ _] 
-----Original Message···-· 
From: Jacobson, Linda 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:43 AM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

[
--~---------_ .... _-_ ... " ________ .. ,,_ ..... ____ ,,,,_ .. ,, ... ____ .. --------'-----.! 

-··------ ----·-··-"·------ .. -----·-----·- ----------------~~·-------------' 

----- Original Message ----- I 
From: Goldberger, Thoma~ H 1 

To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolrn, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
Sent: Mon May 31 11:39:39 2010 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

c~: -__ .. ___ ~: ___ -. ~:. ___ .. _____ · .... ---·----.-__ ·_ ·-_-__ ... __ ,, ___ :~ .. -~J 
-----Original Massaga----­
From: Baumert, Kevin A 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM 
To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 

H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> j ,- .. ··---.. .-·---···----... - ... ,, ___ ,,_ .. ___ ·.·_--. ··---···--· 

l_ -- ··-·--- ·--- ------· ·-------- . ·--·--------·----·" -----
---·- Original Message ----­
From: Jacobson, Linda 
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B Dol~n, 

JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc·, Aswad, Evelyn M 
Sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 2010 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> [ __ --_-_,, ____ --- ""-.-... --·~-·--.... _--.-.. -___ ---·-. ___ :::-.. _:~=~-.~---·~··· -==-- .J 

----· Original Message --·-­
From: Baumert, Kevin A 

[REVIEW 1;ufffoR1'fY: Sharon Aiirti~d, senl~rf{_eviawa~ 
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To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Ja obso.n, 
Lirtda; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 2010 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

r-··---------- -------·-----·--·--------------

----------...... _. _________ _ 
Kevin 
L/OES 

original Message ----­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 

............... ___________ _ 

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobs>n, 
Linda 
sent: Mon May 31 10:50:27 2010 
Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> c .. -··--
···--Original Message-·-·­
From: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> l: -. .. ................ _, ___________ .......................................... ''"] 

··--- .. -· .. ······-·---------Sent from my BlackBerry 

----· Original Message ----­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 

! 

To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Con elly, 
· Maura; Schlicher, Aonald L; 'Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc. eop. gov' <Daniel .. B. _shapiro@nsc .eo >.gov> 

Cc: Holmstrom, Tadd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010 
Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

See below from Jonathan pls. 

--····Original Message--·-­
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
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cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; He• nemann, 
Th~as B 

• Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

Jon 

····- Original Message --··­
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B 
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn 
sent: Mon May 31 09: 05: 16 2010 l 
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

-----·-·------··---.. ·------·-'···-----·--------···-------------'------------·------ -------·-

Jon 

··--- Original Message ----­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 
Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

[
--.-... -.- --.---- - . --.. ·-·-·-----· .. ___ ..... ______:... ..... ·-----·------ - - .... -.-.1 

- - ..... '°'-"''-....,_........_,__===-==--.....,,-.----=>.-..... ...-.,~=.-~--=--·--"" ,--~~~~~'""-'"=~'- -·=· ---

B5 

85 

B5 

- - - - - QrJ.RiJl...ftLJ').!1.ss~~ • --
From: L.. . ... ______ j B3 DOD-CP 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Ma'c J; 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason BJ NEA-lPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wat•rs, 
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Ma_l!f-2.J_~.e.:U:man, Jeffrey o; Rudman, 1ara 
c~usaym); Burgess, Richard J; Murphy, Michael P; L ..... J Levin, Jan; [ ___ 1_ .... 83 DOD-CP 

l7 
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------· ··-·----

Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Sped ic Hig il83 DODFGI 

- Ongoing Operation 
- T •.• ~ <h< "' '" Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
- M/V MAVI MA.RMARA expected in port between 1700L anaTS~~ 
- All ships will be in port by later today 
- 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed 
- 30 Civilians Wounded 
- 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds 
- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 
- Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International L~w 
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) 

....------···------------· . -·---------···.--------~--.. -·------·-·'-- ··----------
!---~--·--···~ .... --··-------,-·· -----··-----··--····--·--·-"'-----
1---~l ________ ·----·-

··----- --- · - ------r I 
83 DOD-GP 

-----Original Message----­
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 

To: Cunnin.gham,. James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Mac J;. . 
sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM f 
Parker, .t\ndrew _(; __ !;r!!il.h .. J.ason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wat rs, 
John R;[ :::J Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Je83 DOD-GP, 
0 ----------· --·---· . 

I Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Oshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have ,1eard 
from Ill~> -~-~-!_1!!st to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from [. ____ _J c= ___ =:J who also spoke with the UN' s Serry, among others, this am. 

[_~.-:::_]reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, th y met 
with wlfot he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fir • 
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. 
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of t e 
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions take were 
in self-defense. 

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more", He said all inj red 
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (s me 
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he an~ others will meet the ships. I There, 
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries 
ra'pidly and/or detain; IO the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Ga a as 
promptly as possible. 

Earlier this morning L_· . -·=:Jmade the following calls/contacts: 
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--Turkish FM and MoD ~-·J Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh [.:_::.:-~:-:-::-J He fel th"' 86 
cal~s w the rurks givente situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he 
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of 
rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for secur ty 
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by status f 
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. 

10,~_seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 

--·--Original Message----­
From; Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM 
To: Levin, Jan; Operations center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew ~ . 
Grubb,_Jason BJ NEA•IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; [ -= --83 DOD-GP 
[: ________ ] Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F >ltman, 
Jeffrey D 
Cc: 'Oennis_B ._Ross@nsc .eop .gov•; • Dshapi.ro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon •S it's 
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo fro~ sh~ps 
in Ashdod. serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat t11at 
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is 
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have S>Oken to 
Davotuglu this am, 
Sent from my BlackBerry 

-----original Message ---·· 
From: Levin, Jan 
To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker Andrew 
C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA·IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; [- -----1 
[ ________ J Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F' 1 tn93 DOD-CP 
Jeffrey D 
Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing 

MFA DG Vossi Gal and IDF Col. Assaf Orion, Dir. Of Dept of Strategic Coordination, br efed 
foreign ambassadors at 12:30 local time today. 

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proa tively 
to Embassies as IOs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured wi l b~ 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. 
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. AS far as is currently known, all 
injuries occurred on this ship. 
-- Col. Orion told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarde>s and 
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding p~rty. 
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
·• Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal righ to 
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed onfUct 
between Israel and Hamas. I 

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issu~, thank 
you. 

1 

I 
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Law Rosemarv c 
1~~~~~1~.~~PART 03.~~o:~p;~~J 

From: Goldberger. Thomas. H 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 201 o 8:55 AM 
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Dolan, JoAnn: Jacobson, Linda 
cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Knopf, Payton L; Baumerl, Kevin A; Heinemann, Tt1omas B; Cbnnelly, 

Maura 
~~r---·~sliuIB~~JeIBcEt:~--~~~.~.i>Af·~.,cll.~·ellll&l>AefiA1;!F~-~--~~--~~~--~~-~-----ccl-~ 

[ -------" --------·-.. " ~·-~ ------···~-----·-----, 

·---··----··--"---·--···· ........ ___________ __J 
-·---original Message····· 
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

·~·"--·- ....... ______ ~ ··----··-·------------··-·--------·- -----~----- -·-·--

Jon 

····· Original Message ····• 
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Dolen, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 
Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

BS 

85 

BS 

- - - -- [Qr_i,g~n.a.l . .M~~;rn~.-:.
1
- ---

From: ___ . _ 83 DOD-CP 
To: Cunningham, James 8; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Ma •c J ;. 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason 8; NEA·IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Watirs, 
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman_,,Jeffrey D; Rudman. ~ara 

~1.e~U'!.~Jem); Burgess, Richard J; Murphy, Michael P; [_ _____ ·-·--~ .. .J Levin, Jan; [ __ 1·] ,93 DOD-GP 

Sent: Mon May 31 08: 08: 22 2010 . 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

L_ ..... -:.· __ _:_~~---- ·--- ·-----===-- - ____ ··-~~--··------=--~~=.:::.s3DOD-CP 
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Hig 1193 DODFGI 

- Ongoing Operation 
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 

fR···E:v .. 1ew AUTHoRnv.: ·ah'aron-iitiitiaci·, senior] 39 
[R.,vi~~~r _.. .. __ ... __ _j 
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All ships will be in port by later today 
- lB-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed 

30 Civilians wounded 
10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds 

- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 
- Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International LJw 
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) 
----- ------------- -=- ...... -.,,·~-----···-. -- ---- ---.-... ., .. -.--------- _,.,,. ______ '" __ .. ~----- ·--·-

-----Original Message-----
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM 

·· ·s3 DOD-GP 

.. 

To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Mac J; 
Parker, ,Andrew._c;__§_rubb, Jason B; NEA·IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wat rs, 
John R;L.... ...---· . ) Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Je83 DOD-GP 
D 
cc: • Dennis_B ._Ross@nsc. eop. gov•; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others. have eard 
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from Gen. 
Dangot, the COGAT, who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. 

Dangot reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, th y met 
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fir • 
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. 
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of t~e 
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions takef were 
in self-defense. I 

current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14·15 "maybe more". He said all injf' red 
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (s me 
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, 
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries 
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Gaia as 
promptly as possible. 

Earlier this morning he andJ";=1ade the following calls/contacts: 
--Turkish FM and MoDf..._._, ffik'at, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh L-.. -_.-=:J.-~ fie fel the_ 86 
calls w the Turks given tne situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he 
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

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it,) 
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----·Original Message···-­
Fro~: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM 

"· To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, An_dr_ew_ ~; 

Grubb, Jason 6; NEA-IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;I_ -· ---·-=:::J 
[-·-----····IAmodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F~ltrB3 DOD-GP 
Jeffrey D 
rro •~---« B. Rossli>lnsc.eop,gov'; 'Dshapirolilwho.eop.gov' 
subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's 
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo fro~ ships 
in Ashdod-. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat tnat 
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

---·- Original Message ···-· 
From: Levin, Jan 

': 

' , 

To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Park~!'. Andrew 
Cj Grubb, Jason B; NEA·IPA-OL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; [ .. _ .. · --··1 :.· 

I "]Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusal.em); Connelly, Maura; ilitmari~ ... 
Jeffrey 0 
Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing 

MFA DG Yossi Gal and IDF Col. Assaf Orion, Dir, Of Dept of Strategic Coordination, br'efed 
foreign ambassadors at 12:30 local time today. 

Highlights - I.dentifi-cation of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proartively 
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured wi l be 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. 
-· Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all 
injuries occurred on this ship, i 
-- Col. Orion told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared fOr boarde s and 
were armed, Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding p rty, 
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar, Activists also had knives. 
-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal righ to 
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed crnfljct 
between Israel and Hamas. 

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issur
1 

, t~ank 
you. 

I 
I 
I 
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[RELE. iiseo IN PARTa3 DOO-CP,Ei3] 
Law, Rosemarv C l!>C>l?fQl,86'86··- -------

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subfect: 

McLeod, Mary (USUN) 
Monday, May 31, 2010 10:20 AM 
Jacobson, Linda 
Re: MFA flotllla briefing 

Have a safe flight! I'm sure we'll be in touch over the coming days. 

----- Original Message ----­
From: Jacobson, Linda 
To: McLeod, Mary (USUN) 
Sent: Mon May 31 10:07:18 2010 
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

Fyi, I am in Israel en route to airport so will be out of commission. 

----· Original Message ····­
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Knopf, Payton L; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:47:48 2010 

I . I 

I 
l 

Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing ' . ---·-··-· ....... _ ... .l 

-----·----··---~ .. -- - - - ··-·-------·--- -·---~--·-·------------·-·--·------------------------- . 

Jon 

••••• Original Message -··-­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Dolan, )oAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 
Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

B; Knbpf, Payton L j 
, ' I c ___ .. ---- --~--.~==~ .... -... --- -:-~------.. - -----~---~ 

85 

85 

·---- Qr.idnal .. M~~sage ..... i j 
From: L . .J 83 DOD-CP 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, larc J; I 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Witer~, 

John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Ma!!f.2.L. fl)lt~i!.L,Jeffrey D; Ruqman.. Mar'. a. , 
.U~rus~em); Burgess, Richard J; Murphy, Michael P; [_ ..... _____ _J Levin, Jan;[ ______ .. _83 DOD-CP 

~;;;;t":-·MJn May 31 08: 08: 22 2010 [~iiii1~~.ll..!!!l:l9.R1,Y:-·stiiironAhrii.a~, senior Re\'.:i~~ · I 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 
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_J__ - I 
r-- ---- -------- ---- ------- -- ------ -- ---------- ------ s'3 ooo-cP 
Many ·Of-the detafis briefed have"a.lready-ileen provided via-otfier r11eans.------spedffc----Rrgn193 oOOFGI 

- Ongoing Operation 
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and-1800L 
- All ships will be in port by later today 

....... _1;i ...... .!1.; ,,. • .;,...1--1., nr Killed 
- 30 Civilians wounded 
- 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds 
- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 
- Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International 
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) 

~----------- .. --------- --------- --------- -------------------- -----------

Law I 
, I ' ----~----·· 

;B3 000-CP 
---·-·· ·-·---·--- ··--------- ---·---·. --·-··----·-•·-'· _________ .. ---

--------- ---------------- --- l 

-----Original Message----- : I 
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) j 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM ' 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, 'r arc !j; i 
Parker, An!J.r.~~- ~-;- Gru~.b, _Jason B; NEA-IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; W tersi, : 
bohn R;L __ __ __ ] Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltmaf, JEB3 poo-CP 

Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' ' 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others hal/1 heard 
from me, but jyst to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is frc m[_J 

[~-.:--:=:---------------- .--::J who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. 
' I 

1---- j reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, ·-hey jne~ 
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live f re. : I 
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instrument , ett. I 
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some o~ the · I 

. I 

in self-defense. '1 
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions ta en w~rl 

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all i~jure;d 
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (som~ 
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the shipsj T~er~, 
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home coun'rie~ I 
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into :c aza fas l 
promptly as possible. I 

, I 
Earlier this morning L -- _ J made the following calls/contacts:--· __ · I 
-·Turkish FM and MoD _:_J Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh[ . .=J. He -f' lt tlhe 
calls w the Turks given.the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan q dhow ~e 
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which leve s o~ 
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I rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for sect rity 
covperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by statui of 
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. 

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 

-----Original Message----­
From: Cunningham, James B 
Sent:· Monday, ··May 31, ·2010 1:38 PM 
To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, And ~..J;;....'._ 

Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John' R; L J 

[--n I Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Felt~B3 DOD-CP 
Jeffrey D ' I 
Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdo. d to get info on amcits as soo1 as :it 'js 
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo f om sihi~s 

in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that; ~ 

assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is , 
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have spo~n o 
Davotuglu this am. 
Sent from my BlackBerry 

-----Original Message ----­
From: Levin, Jan 
To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Park r, Plndrlew 
c;._Grub.b, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa;. Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; L ----- --·-- J 
[ ___ ::J Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura;·rFeltimaf 
Jeffrey O • . ' . Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 ' I 
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing ·1 : I 
MFA DG Yossi Gal and IDF Col. Assaf Orion, Dir. Of Dept of Strategic Coordination, ~rie~ed f 
foreign ambassadors at 12:30 local time today. I 
Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out p~• acti~eiL· 
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured 1111 ~e-r 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation, unclear how long this will take I 
•• Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently know , a~l 

injuries occurred on this ship. 
-- Col. Orion told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boar ers ~nc 
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from !OF boarding par~y. 
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Attivists also had knives. 
-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal r1 
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed 
between Israel and Hamas, 

ht tp 
con~lidt 

i 
Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this is ue, th,nk 
you. . 

1 
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• 
Law. Rose.marv C 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Have a safe flight! 

McLeod, Mary (USUN) 
Monday, May 31, 2010 10:20 AM 
Jacobson, Linda 
Re: MFA flotilla briefing 

I'm sure we'll be in touch over the coming days. 

•·••· Original Message ··-·· 
From: Jacobson, Linda 
To: Mcleod, Mary (USUN) 
Sent: Mon May 31 10:07:18 2010 
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

Fyi, I am in Israel en route to airport so will be out of commission. 

·---· Original Message -···­
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

: I 
, I 
: 
.. l 

. ----· ·-----.... ---:-T --------··-----· ---··--- ··----·---· ----- ... ----··· 
Jon 

··-·· Original Message --··· 
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knbpf, Payton L 
sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 

I ! . I : 

B5 

Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

[~--- "'""~ ~ ..... H=:_ ·=-.--- -~=--~- ----~ ····~ " 
From: [: __ ~~:-· . .:.::J B3 DOD-CP 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers,. arc J; I 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-XPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; W ter~, 
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Ma'!':!U Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman Ma~a ; 

.. (Jerusalem); Burgess, Richard J; Murphy, Michael P; C .. ~-=-=:=]Levin, Jan; [==-=:B3 DOD-CP 

~Mo~ May 31 0a:0a:22 2010 f~i:vlEWAYTl:l.2.l'!~T'(::_ shai()r1_Ahma~~senio·r-~evie_'!'!~~ : l 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing , I 
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

_____ ""_N_1A "'-'--"1"--- - J -~" Tr'\4ul'l.orl nl"I lt.f1lod 

- 30 Civilians wounded 
- 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds ' . 
. Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled I 
- Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law 
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) I 

---------··--•UoM-·------~- .. ---------------'--

. »--···----------

·····Original Message----- : I 
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) ' 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM , : J 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, arc .j; I 
Parker, Andr~'!..S.J (j.r._µ~~-'--].ason B; NEA·IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; W ,tersJ, ! 
John R;C J Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltm<1t, J183 DOD-CP 
D . I 
Cc: 'Dennis_e._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' ' 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others hav< hea;rd 
_fr.o!"_ll1e,_,_~ut just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is fr• m[--J 
[ _ ...... ., ..... =1 who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. - ...... -

' ' 
J I reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, jhey metj 
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live f re." I 
Military who boarded were attacked with ~nives, sharpened metal and wood instrument , ett. j 
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some oli the · 
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions ta en w~rE 
in self-defense. . .

1 

. 

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14•15 "maybe more". He said all i~jure;d 
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some 
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the shipsj T~er~, 
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countrie~ I 
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into 'aza las I 
promptly as possible. , I 
Earlier this morning L m ••• I made the following calls/contacts: ' I 
--Turkish FM and MoD cm· j; Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al SheikhL .. _ I· He fl lt tjhe 
calls w the Turks given tJie situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan a d how ~e 
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which leve s o~ 
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I 
rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for sec1 rity 
codperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by statu of 
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. 

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 

-----Original Message----­
From: Cunnin2ham, James B 
sent i · Monday, May 31, :1010 1: 38 PM 
To: Levin; Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, And!'l1W .. Q.'._ 
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John' R; 1 

L__:_:_ .. ] Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; 1'elt}iB3 DOD-OP 
Jeffrey D ' 
cc: 'Oennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Oshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soo1 as :it 'Js 
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo f1 om s~i~s 
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat tha~ ~ 
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is , 
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have spo~en o 
Davotuglu this am. . 
Sent from my BlackBerry j 

I 

----· Original Message ----- I 
From: Levin, Jan . 1 

To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Park x .•. P)ndrlew 
C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA·IPA·Dl; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; [. ____ J 
C::-::.::J Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura;·1Fe1tiila~, 
Jel'frey D · 1 

Sent: Mon May 31 13: 20: 31 2010 ' ' ' i 
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing j 
MFA OG Yossi Gal and IDF Col. Assaf Orion, Dir. Of Dept of Strategic Coordination, · rieiled ~ 

foreign ambassadors at 12: 30 local time today. . ! . 
Highlights · Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out p~ acti~eiJv 
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured ill pe-r 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. unclear how long this will take I 
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently know , aljl 
injuries occurred on this ship. 
-- Col. Orion told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boar ers :an< 
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding part~. 
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Aotivists also had knives. 
-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal ri1 ht to 
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed con~11dt 
between Israel and Hamas. . j 

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this is ue, t.· hJnk 
you. I 
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Law, Rosemarv C 

From: 
sent: 

[RELEASED it-iPART 63 OOD~CP,B6;1fa l 
i!?_9._[)F<3_1. _____ ······· -------·---- j 

Pamper, Stephen E 
Thursday, May 27, 2010 2:13 PM 

To: 
Cc: 
subject: 

Jacobson, Linda; Deeks, Ashley S; Baumert, Kevin A; Guarin, Marc F; Heinemann,. homas B 
Dolan, JoAnn; Reisser, Wesley J; Perina, Al.axandra H; Meier, Michael w 
RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

Jane Dalton worked extensively on the blockade law Issues surroundinS Georgia; it would be worth locating these flies 
for general knowledge (Kevin maybe you have some of the papers?) though It's not clear that questions about >Ur view 
of the legality of Israel's blockade are necessarily going to come up here (let's hope not). 

---- -.. ~-· ··- -~---~·--- ···---------------- -----·------·--~--·- . ··-- ·-- ~. -··· 
From: Jacobson, Linda 
Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 2:05 PM 
To: Deeks, Ashley 5; Baumert, Kevin A; Guarin, Marc F; Heinemann, Thomas B 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Reisser, Wesley J; Perina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E 
subject: Re: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

C~.:-===-:..=~: .=:::::=Jlsrael's positiJon Is th_~!J!._is ~e_d !_n_8i_~J!lct w_ fja~!J!!-~'s !!21!~.11E~~ al Gaza's] 
.'!!.~!!lime borders are_ ac~ of self-defen~(l. 

{_ - ------ ---------- -- - - ........ .! - - --

------------------------·-------------+---
From: Deeks, Ashley S 
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Guarin, Marc F; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Reisser, Wesley J; Perina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E 
Sent: Thu May 27 11:04:23 2010 
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

Looping In AP for the Israeli angle and SP for the blockade angle, based on his Georgia work. 

·------ ------------------------·----------~·-·-- ---- -· ··-
ftom: Baumert, Kevin A 
Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 10:53 AM 
To: Deeks, Ashley 5; Guarin, Marc F; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Reisser, Wesley J 
Subject: FW: Israel Navy on Free Gaza I . ·---· -··--·- .. --·- -·---·-· ·--- . ···----·--
··---·---.-...... :.-··. ·----.--.. - . ..:..:·:·····-.. ·----_-- ·--·--·-:-.. -··:.:· --.. -.. _ ... :····· ····-·-.. =:.:::::.· ·:·-.-J .. . 

-·------- ·------·-····----. ------· -·----······ ---------- ··.--···---··-· 
Thanks, 
Kevin 

~--·-·-· ··········--·--- -------·······----- ·~~= 

~1::11'11:\'J i:l.l!JHORli:'f: ~~aron All_mad_,!l..".".~~Revl_~ 

----~----1 

- ·--. ····-·--------·-----------------·-------------------· f.·-·-· .. 
From: Reisser, Wesley J 
Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 10:36 AM 
To: Baumert, Kevin A 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, !Ian A; Scar\atelli, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 
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Kevin -v:'.er~re_ s!~~-tryl~g tog~~ ~o~firmatl~~.from Greece_~n _th_~ 2 shi"._".: ~hey __ ~~ yachts a~d.may actually be t.s:. . . \ 
.!~!~'ere~ 

. L_ ........... _ .... --.. ·-- ----- . ............ . ..... -.. . . 
Wes 

-·~·-·- . ----------·-------··------·---------~ -·-·- ... 
From: Baumert, Kevin A 

-- 5entt VVt:UOe:suay, 1•1ay ~v, .... .., ... .., _,, '"' 11·1 

To: Reisser, Wesley J 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, Ilan A; Scarlatelll, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C 
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

Wes - it is definitely worth pursuing more factual Information as to which vessels are actually dolnB what. I sui pect they 
are not US flagged vessels, and might not even be Greek flagged (may just be Greek owned, but who knows). 

~""'"""'f"--·---------------·~-----~----·-----------.~-·~·~ Thanks, 
Kevin 

·~ .... -- --·h·--·--------------------------·---- ------- - .. 
From: Reisser, Wesley J 
Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 3:00 PM 
To: Baumert, Kevin A 
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, !Ian A; Scarlatelll, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C 
Subject: FW: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

Kevin -We have a whole bunch of ships headed towards Gaza right now to "break the Israeli blockade." The Is aeli Navy 
will probably interdict them this weekend, board the ships, haul them to port and deport all of the foreign natipnals 
!they did this last summer). However, we have a slight hitch this time In that two of the boats, after leaving Gn ece, are 
now supposedly flying American flags rather than Greek ones. Embassy Athens is looking Into this to find out o the 
boats are registered in Greece or the U.S. 
The Israeli Embassy has contacted us about this, and they have been contacted by the Greek Ambassador here who has 

[~ '"'" '"'~ '" "'"' ~:·~"··~· ... ,. "~'" ~· ''""' "'" "'"' .. ~~-" ",, .. ' ""~J 
n. 

Thanks! 
Wes 
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83 DODFGI 

I 
83 DOD-CP 

F~o~;r·-· -··· -- -=-=i - ___ ,... ~---~..., ......... ~- .... 
Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 5:51 PM r .... __ 
r:°:~ ~levers~ Mjrc J; Levin, Jan; Burnett, David R; Baron, Desiree A; Parker, Andrew C; Greene, Elisa; _ . -· --.. J 
Cc: Reisser, Wesli;y,J;,§o/dberg~r,.Thomas H =r 
Subject: RE:C._____ =1 83 DODFGI [ ___ ~~=-- · -~~-= · · .... .... ·-·---.. -· -·==~- .. --- , -~:_5oo~G11 L __ -.. :: ___ -- ----- -·· -~,----~~--~~----- ... ---=-~--~- .. -- -·----J . ~5 

,RL ..... --...... ---------~ 
83 000-CP 

From: Reisser, Wesley J 
Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 5:06 PM 
To: Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Goldberger, Thomas H; Holmstrom, Todd C; Slndle, James M; Strowe, Rebbeca L; 
Richter, Kim B; Lopatklewlcz, Vlktorla; 6ernler·Toth, Michelle; Mendel, Teresa 5; Sievers, Marc J; Levin, Jan; __ \l.\\!hett, 
[)!'Y)~..ll:i~!!!~•-[Je_slree A; Adams, Julie D; Parker, Andrew C; Greene, Elisa; Zeroubavely, Sandra S;L..... · 83 DOD-CP 

[ ___ .. .., --·---. I '"'=:J Waters, John R; Rogan, Thomas G; Towry, Debra l; Hananla, Vera v; Welnt41d, Nill I; 
Lewis, Glenn K; Beran, Sariili;G'feengrass, Sara D; Kaplan, Dean; Walker, carolee B; Flnver, Frank J; I , .. _] 
Manring, Nlcholas J; Tyson, Paul H; Maggi, Robert W; Frederick, Jeffrey D; Falls, Eric G; Reed, Julia G; Davison, Kees C; 
Ogle, Karen Li Keen, Daniel G; Howard, Jeremiah "Jerry"; Parra, Yolanda A; Diiworth, Alison E; Osman, Amany, ; Netos, 
Eleftherfos E; Taylor, Victoria J; Riley, RobertJ; Dayton, Win (Istanbul); Marsh, Denise M; Bally, Jess L; Tomlinson, 
Christina (Istanbul); Abeyta, Susan K (Istanbul); Glsvold, Lisa. C (Istanbul); Parker, Andrew Ci Silliman, Douglas ,; 
Rosenstock, Matthew 5 
Subject: Israel Navy on Free Gaza 

(SBUI Courtesy Embassy Tel Aviv, a message on how the navy intends to handle this: 

"The Israel Navy has expressed to me that they intend to respond to this situation os peaceful as possible; how< ver they 
have been directed by the GOI to prevent the vessels from arriving In Gaza. Their intention Is to ensure the ship, arrive In 
Ashdod, process the Individuals to be deported and deliver any legitimate humanitarian aide to Gaza via land. t should 
be noted, that GO/ has made it clear that although they have directed a peaceful response, those participating re 
viewed as Individuals deliberately attempting to provoke the Israel Navy and appropriate action to prevent arr/ al In 
Gaw w/11 be taken." 

Wesley./. Rei.1wer, Ph.D. 
Desk Officer - NENIPA 
Office ot Israel & Palestinian Affairs 
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Pp9n~ (202) 647-2647 
Fax (202) 736-4461 

This massage ts UNClASS!E!EDbCJBU accordlng to tho doflnMons provldetl by E.O. 12958. 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 
Monday, May 31, 2010 S:14AM 
Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B 
FW: MFA flotilla briefing 
Legal Aspects.nnt 

-··---·---· ··--·------- -----~ --,--- .. 85 

L ... _ .... _____ ,,.,, ·------····---·---------·------···-·----- ---.------- -- ·- -~---~----' 

-·-··Or~g!~a!_ Messa&".::.:-· 
From: L .... _______ ... _ _] 83 DOD·CP 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:08 PM 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; 
Parker, Andrew c; Grubb, Jason B; NEA·IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wat~rs, 
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, •1ara 

[O .. ~r..~~=.Jm); c==--=~ ___ =i Murphy, Michael P; I -::--===i Levin, Jan; I ]B3 DOD-CP 

Subject: RE: MFA flotilla .~~iefin~-- ...... _________ _ _ _J 
c==~ . __ .. ..:::_ __ ...... . ... ---- ... . ...... ____ - -----. ... .. _____ B3 DOD-CP 

Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means, Specific Higo1B3 DODFGI 

· Ongoing Operation 
· Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
· M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 
· All ships will be in port by later today 
• 10·14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed 
· 30 Civilians Wounded 
· 10 1DF wound~d to include l serious and l with "medium" wounds 
• Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 
- Interaction occurred approx 7@ NM from coastline. IDF confident in International L~w 
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) 

-------- ------· --------- . -------·-,. ________ ., ----------------------··-··----- ,_ ____ _ 
I 

I 
<--·-_-~r==-------- ··- -----~~-=---- ---:~~----- -- ---- -. --~----- ----------- -· ---------------- ·s3 DOD-GP 

___ .. -·-"-'""---------~ 

i 
(R~YIEW_ALlfHORITY:~ Sharo11A_hmael, Senl.?r Re~~,,,~~ 

····-Or ginal Message·-··- · 
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM 
To: Cunningham, James 8; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, M<rc J; 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA·IPA-OL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wa1ers, 
John R; [---:::.:_: :~:=~-__]Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, JEB3 000-CP 
D 
Cc: 'Oennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapira@Hho.eop.gov' 
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Su~~ect: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

I. This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have eard 

[
.r:om_Jll!l . ..._bJ.IJ;__iJlS.lto assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from r- . j 

who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. ...• _ .. ,.. ·····--· 

86 
66 

[_ !reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, th 'Y met 86 
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. 

t--+---M·'ic"~'~'f',y-w··lle-beal"deG--were attacked ~·ith k~ives,. sharpened metal and "'Ond lnstr11---•< -•­
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of tie 
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions take1 were 
in self-defense. 

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all inj ~red 
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (s~me 

reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There,· 
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countr es 
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Ga•a as 
promptly as possible, 

Earlier this morning C---~===:J made the following calls/contacts: 86 
--Turkish FM and MoD [·---- J Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh r··--1. Hefel the 
calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearIY-1s-·ordogan and how he 
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of 
rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for secur ty 
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by status ~f 

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
To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew ~; 

Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory MJ Waters, John R; r..... ---) 
l::=:::.] Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; FeTtl83 000-CP 
Jeffrey D 
Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's 
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo fron ships 
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that 
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is 
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have S>oken to 
Davotuglu this am. 
Sent from my BlackBerry 

---·- Original Message ----­
From: Levin, Jan 
To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Park,!!r, Andrew 
!:~ ... Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa.; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; 1 ••• -- ·-::=J 
L_._-:=\ Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F~ltmaii,. 

Jeffrey D 
Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing 
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Highlights Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proa tively 
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured wi l be 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. 
•• Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all 

r ~DJU.ries ~5.'!.!'~=~ .o~-~h~~-~~~P.:_"-~ ... 
I 'A A" Mo.d Mo"mora '"""e nr0 "ared for boarde"'• ·-· 

were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. 
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
·· Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal righ. to 
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed cbnflict 
between Israel and Hamas. 

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issu~, thank 
you. 
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Law RQ$emar c 
From: 
sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

REL.EASED IN PA-R'fEfa-ooo-ci>,83 
DODfGl,BG,96 

Pomper, Stephen E 
Monday, May31, 2010 1:02 PM 
Jacobson, Linda; Perina, Alexandra H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas 
Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J:C.:.... · _ .... -=::.:::::.· .... ]Guarin, Mar F; B6 

'" 

Donoghue, Joan E 
r------srru111&ecct::-------1'rirnt;llcmmnen~ITTllM¥lilmlltailriefin1,.,,,---------------1-----+--11e---

[-----. - ... __ ·-~------·-........ _ ..... ________ .. _ .... ·-=---~~-~----... _ .. _ ...... __ -----"---c-

-·--- Original Message ••••• 
From: Jacobson, Linda 
To: Perina, Alexandra H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin Aj 
Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn ... ._ ___ _ 
Cc1.M.l'!filL....Ell~!Y!l M; Sulll,v:~nl David J; C. ·-·- .... ...:.:=.--! C ....... ,., .. ____ , ...... .,. ,.

1
. Pamper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F 

Sent: .. on May ol 1L:58:15 L0 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

••••• Original Message 
From: Perina, Alexandra H 

86 

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; He nemann, 

85' 

Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn ... ------·--
cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; r--- B6 r--·····- .. ----_---·· ----------"]; Pamper, Stephen e·; ·Guarin~-Marc F 
Sent: Moif-Mlfy 31 12:s>:.35 2010 
subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

·----~·-~·······--··-

--·-·-·---- ""' --- --------- . ··----~-" ·-·----· .. -------
l[f0:~i,J_AUT_1:i9RiTy::stiilio'!Ahmiid,Serilorj{e~iewe~ ·----T ----
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- -'- - -Original Message-·- - -
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:17 PM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

'---------·---·"·----"----------··· --------------- ............ _____ , ....... --~-~ 
·----Original Message----­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM 
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; DOl<n, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

[----------------~------==-·:-~-~---___ --··--_· =~ --. ---·----~------. '] 
-----Original Message----­
From: Baumert, Kevin A 
sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM 
To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

----- Original Message ·-·-­
From: Jacobson, Linda 
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 2010 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

L ______ -.. -- -----------·_---.. _----_---_--_-_._-_ ~=-~-----~--~-~--------:.=-------------... ----- ..... ----J 
....... Original Message ----­
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

- "" ··-·------~~-- - ·-. 

-------,1 ------·---·----
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--- .. . . ·--- . --· ------ ... ..... ...... ..... .. I . --- -

Kevin 
L/OES 

·---- original Message ----­
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

r--· ~----- ·-----------·---·-· -----------·-·-----·-··-.. --- ..... .----- .... ,. --···-·--· 

l ... -----·- ------·-------------- ·~·-----·------ -------"·--·--·-~-~ 
-----original Message-·--­
From: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
»•-----···~----------------.. ---·---·--···----.---- .. ---···---~--- ---------- -· ... --- -------~ 

----- Original Message ----­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; ConJ'lelly, 
Maura; Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc. eop. gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.ec 1.gov > 
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan BJ Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn 
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
Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; H<inemann, 
Thomas B 
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 
Tom.\ ·::;_·_· :;-:-::.--=:::c:c=:: .. =::=....~·c·~=---~~----·~-.z.-.. 

!_ ....... 
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...... _.-............ .. ..... ...... .. .......... ----·--.. ··· ... l. ----.• 

··--·------ ... ·------------·--·· ·---~----------------------. ···----·-···---------- .. ·-"'. ·····---·--- ____ _, 

Jon 

----- original Message ····­
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
To: Perina, Alexandra HJ Heinemann, Thomas B 
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sent: Mon May 31 09:05:16 2010 
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

.. Alexandra/'f.()ITl __ :A_r:e_either o.:f: ... y_ou in a positio_~_t_o ... ~s_s_ist L/OES? r .............. _________ .............. . 

·------ ··------------------------------ - .. --·--------.-- --·--····-···---------~----' 
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

............. ________ ...... ---··· .......... ----------··· ...... -- .. -·----- -----------· 

85 

85 

85 

----- Oril!ind. Mes.s.aRe. -----
From:[ __ .. __ .] 83 DOD-CP 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Ma"c J; 
Parker, Andrew CJ Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wat~rs, 

John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltm~n, ___ JeHrey D; Ru~_man.,_ ara 
~-~=~-s~lr>; Burgess, Richard J; Murphy, Michael P; I .... ::J Levin, Jan; I =i, 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 [ 

Subject: RE: ~~A flotilla~~iefing ... ··---·· ···--·- .... ···--
[. - ··--···- . 83 DOD-CP 

Many of the·d~tiins brief;d have already ... be-en p.rovlded via other means-.' Specific .. Higtifi93 DODFGI 

.. Ongoing Operation 
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
" M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between l700L and 1800L 

35 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141747 Date: 01/04/2013 

StateDept004211 



UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010·04163 Doc No. C05141747 Date:-61/04/2013 

All ships will be in port by later today 
i~-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed 
30 Civilians wounded 
10 IDF wounded to include l serious and l with "medium" wounds 

• Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 
• Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International L< w 
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) 

-----·-·.,----·-----·~--··-------- ·-----

-----·-···----·---··-· 

·····Original Message-----
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Ma 
Parker, ,8l!Qr.ew..J:.;__§r.ybjl,. Jason B; NEA·IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wat 
John R; L....... . ... J Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, 
D 
Cc: • Oennis_B. _Ross@nsc, eop. gov'; 'Dshapiro@who, eop. gov• 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

JB3 DOD-CP 

c J j 
rs, 
Jeffrey 

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have >eard 
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from Gen. 
Dangot, the COGAT, who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. 

Dangot reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, th!y met 
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fir~. 
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. 
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the 
soldiers were stabbed and slashed, Made clear situation was one in which actions take1 were 
in self-defense. 

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all inj Jred 
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (sJme 
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others wHl meet the ships. There, 
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countr'es 
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Ga,a as 
promptly as possible. 

Earlier this morning he and Barak made the following calls/contacts: 
··Turkish FM and MoD (Barak); Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh (Dangot). Hefel~ the 
calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he 
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
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---~·Original Message·---­
From: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM 
To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, An~'-'re"'w,_,,_,_______, 

,§.tub.b,_pson B; NEA-tPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; [ . I 
L_ .. ,.J Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F< ltrrB3 DOD-CP 
Jeffrey D 
Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: Re: rirM HOL~u.a , ·- _ ·u 

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon is it• s 
available. UN had been approached be CDGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo fror ships 
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat t at 
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is 
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have s oken to 
Davotuglu this am. 
Sent from my BlackBerry 

---·· Original Message -···· 
From: Levin, Jan 
To: operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker Andrew 
C· Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; r- ......... - ·1 
~:-~-~] Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F ltman;· 
Jeffrey D 
Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing 

MFA DG Yossi Gal and IDF Col. Assaf Orion, Dir. Of Dept of Strategic Coordination, br efed 
foreign ambassadors at 12:30 local time today. 

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proa tively 
to Embassies as IDs are done, with locat.ion and status of citizens. The uninjured wi 1 be 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. 
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all 
injuries occurred on this ship. 
-- Col. Orion told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarde s and 
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF .boarding P• rty. 
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
·- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal righ to 
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed c nflict 
between Israel and Hamas. 

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issu , thank 
you. 
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(RELEASED IN !'_ART 1.4(B),~ OOO.CP,B1,B5,1.4(D),1.4@j] 

Bowers, Allyson M _. "\ ~ -
From: Slndle, James M 
Sent: Monday, May 31, ?.010 1 :35 PM 

NEA-SEMEP-DL; NEA-IPA-DL; Gr~.~,,!~~.Q~ B; Levin, Jan !<.;.Sievers, Marc J; Greene, Elisa 
B; Parker, A~drew.Q; [. _____ .. .. .... __ .... _:.:::J 83 DOD-CP 

To: 

Subject: 
Allachmenls: 

FW: Recent JReportlng on Israel/Gaza 
8_Hour_Up afe_310600_MAY10_CLEAR.doc; Free Gaza Flotilla 5x6 - 31May10.doc . 

Thi$ is what has been reported to the CJCS fromj' _I Nothing really new from our own reporting. 

-From:[- = " ...... 

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010·~12~:=s9=pM"~------­
To: Slndle, James M 
Subjects Recen(_.~eportlng on Israel/Gaza 

C/ass/ffcat/on:SECRET//NOFORN 
Jim, 

[ Enclosef and below Is What we have. 

311400MAY10 
Israel: [Source:D 

(U) Gaza Freedom Flotilla Situation Update: The latest reports on Israel's seizure of the Gaza Freedom 
Flotilla indicate at least nine dead and up to 80 wounded, with all of the casualties on the Turkish flagged ship 
MAVI MARMARA. A press statement from the Israeli Defense Minister expressed regret over the injuries, but 
placed blame on the organizers and participants of the Freedom Flotilla. The statement further indicated 
passengers on the MA VJ MARMARA. resisted with clubs, knives, and possible small arms and "violence 
encountered necessitated acts of self defense." Video of the raid on the MAVI MARMARA shows an lsraeli 
soldier being assaulted by people on the ship. Israel has said they will conduct a full investigation. Prime 
Minister Netanyahu of Israel has canceled a meeting with President Obama to deal with the aftermath of the 
event. Condemnation of the raid has been widespread. All European Union member countries have summoned 
their respective lsrneli ambassadors to explain what happened and China has publicly condemned Israel, as have 
most Muslim majority countries. The govenunent of Turkey has canceled upcoming military exercises with 
Israel, the Turkish prime minister has ended a trip to Latin America early, and more than 10,000 demonstrators 
are on the streets in Istanbul. The Turkish govcnunent has called meetings of both the United Nations Security 
Council and NATO to discuss the event. Two American citizens were reportedly aboard the MAVI 
MARMARA and one was reportedly injured. Former U.S. ambassador Edward Peck, also reportedly with the 
flotilla, was reported to be on a flight back to the U.S. according to a statement on his website. 
Comment: While there are indications of violent resistance by passengers on the MA VI MARMARA, reaction 
to the event around the world has been very critical of Israel. The prevailing response is the use of force was 
disproportionate. Israel is likely to experience a great deal of international pressure over the next several weeks 
and threats to the U.S. could increase as well due to U.S. support oflsrael. 

301400MAY10 
Israel: 

[REVIE\11/ AUTHORl_TY: ·s~riAhmad,_ SenlorReViewfill 

[Source:[=:=J 
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(S/INF) Counter-Flotilla Salls to "Free Gaza from Bliruag": According to press rep1>rts, a small fleet 1>f 
\ pri~ately-owned Israeli boats will sail from Ashdod iind Heriliya, Israeli coastal cities south and north of Tel 

"' Aviv, respeetivcly, to meet the Free Gaza Flqtilla that has rendemoused off th11 coast of Cyprus en route on its 
humanitarian mission to deliver aid to Gaza. The counter•de!llonstration ls sponsored by the Los Angeles-based 
StandWithUs organization. Crews have reportedly decorated !heir boats with "Free Gaza from !-lamas" 
bllllneTI!. Comment: According to the Free Gaza website, the Free Gt1Z11 Flotilla of six ships departed 
international waters in the vicinity of Cyprus at pl-57...nn...1ClMw thev rstlmateJheii -· '.It • "" .. 

___ _,

1

0- 1'>··-'"'0cl~md 09152_:: L__ _ 

«6_Hour_Update_310600_MAY10_CLEAR.doc:>> «Free Gaza Flotilla 5x8 - 31May10.doc» B1 
1.4(8) 
1.4(C) 
1.4(0) 
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Bowers, All~on M 

From: 
S..nt: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subjoct: 

Attachments: 

!RELEASED IN FULQ 

Schwedt. Miriam L 
Wednesday, June 23. 2010 8:39 AM 
NEA-IPA-DL 
NEA-Slaff-Assistants-DL 
F\N: Blue Border - Summary of Conclusions of the Restricled Principals Committee MeeUng 
on the Flotilla (SES 201011051) CONFIDEl-iTIAL 
201011051 

-----Original Message----­
From: Reaves, Stacey A 
Sent: Wednesday, June 23, 2010 8:02 AM 
To: TTL-NEA 
Cc: TTL-5; TTL-D-L; TTL-D-S; TTL-P; TTL-I; TTL-SP; TTL-INR; TTL-EUR; TTL-IO; TTL-L; TTL-PM; 
TTL-SSEMEP; TTL-USUN-W; SES_4; Sarkis, Saadia E 
Subject: Blue Border - Summary of Conclusions of the Restricted Principals Committee Moeting 
on the Flotilla (SES 201011051) CONFIDENTIAL 

!REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon llJ1m~d. Senior Reviewed 
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C18750660 Date: 0111512013 

Bowers, Allyson M 

from: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Categories: 

Kumar, Prem G.[PKumar@nss.eop.sgov.gov] 
Wednesday .h!ly06 2011 7"07 PM 83 DOD-CP 
I ==1 
RE: FREEDOM FLOTILLA II" GAZA AID CONVOY UPDATE -6 JUL (SECRET) [SECRET, 
Record] 

Working (RELEASED IN PART !13 DOD.CP,131, 1.4(D)i 

+Rian Harris (Director for Aegean Affairs at NSC) 

(REVIEW AUTHORITY: Shar<>11J"l11Tl~d, Senior Reviewer! 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163_ Doc No. C18750660 Date: 0111512013 
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u l"CLASSI Fl ED U.S. Department of State Case l"o. F-2U1U-U41 bj Uoc No. c 1b 1 ::iuoou ua1e: u 11 1 :01.<u1 J 

B3 DOD-CPl 

I -
~Suoject.; ~REEDOM F[()'T!OJl~n="~G~m~~AI~D~c~omovoPDA.TE - 6 JUL (SECRET) 

Classification: SECRET 
Caveat<;: NOFORN 

Good morning J2 -

1 A(D) 
B1 

(U) The intern.Jtional "Freedom Flotilla II (FF2) - Stay Human· will Include at least 1 O ships, at least two of which aro 
cargo bo<Jts carrying aid, while the rest are passenger ships carrying hundreds of peoplo, among them, politicians, MEPs, 
writers. religious faith representatives, people of artS and culture and activists. Press releases indicates many TV crews 
will be also on board (CNN, NBC, Al-Jazaera, et al} as well as journalists sent by various world media and newspapero. 
"Stay Human· was selected in honor of 36-year old Italian pro-Palestinian activist Vi~orio Arrigoni, who was killed 14 Apr 
2011 a~er being kidnapped in Gaza City by Salaflst radl02ls. 

SITREP follows: 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. DBpartment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C18750660 Date: 0111512013 
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C18750660 Date: 01/15/2013 

I - . - . . --1 
L . -~~~ 

While there Is conflicting open source reporting suggesting two FF2 ships are underway, there Is no conflrrr1 .4(0) 
that any of the FF2 participants ar" en route to Gaza. 81 

(S//OCrll_N_F .___ 
1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

1. 
8. 
9. 
10. 

11. 
12. 
13. 
14. 

2. 

~-~=·==============-=-=-=================================~_J 
(S) Note (1 >C 
(SI/NF) Note (2): 

·----------··-·-- -----

(U) Political Developments: 

- (U) On 6 Jul, the Palestinian news agency WAFA reported that some 40 organizations have confirmed their participation 
in the "Welcome to Palestine" campaign to be carried out between 8-16 Jul. Activists from around the world, though 
mainly from Europe, plan to land at Ben Gurion International Airport to tour Jerusalem, Ramallah, Bethlehem, and the 
Jordan Valley. 
Assessment: lsr~el's Foreign Ministry, Aviation Authority, Internal Security Ministry, police, and Prime Minister's 
Office are expecting some 500 activists and are preparing for the pro-Palestinian fly-in. An Israeli Public Security 
Ministry official states that activists identified at the airport as seeking provocation will not be allowed in Israel 
and will be sent back to their countries. Those who riot at the airport or refuse to head back will be transferred to 
a special airport facility or turned over to the Prison Service. (Press, 6 Jul) 

3 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C18750660 Date: 01/15/2013 
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C18750660 Date: 01/15/2013 

- (U) On 5 Jul, Israeli intelligence indicates a group of Arabs, of unknown origin, is attempting to travel from Jordan to 
Turkey in order to procure a boat in order to join the Gaza flotilla. (USDAO Ankara 051243Z Jul) 

- (U) On 4 Jul, MN TAHRIR, sponsored by the Canadian Boat to Gaza, attempted to depart Crete but was intercepted by 
the Hellenic Coast Guard and forced to relum to port. (Press, OSJNT) 1.4(D) 

81 
- (U) On 1 Jul, MN AUDACITY OF HOPE, sponsored by the US Boat to Gaza, attempted to depart Piraeus, Greece out 
was stopped by the Hellenic Coast Guard and forced to return lo port. (Press, OSINT) 

S.l!~J;!-_J_QJ.JJ;A.91'!.~} lsraell Defense Forctil1'.lfl 

(S) Nearest US Navy Forces 

-[ _______ ~ 

V/R, Larry 

83 DOD-GP 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C18750660 Date: 01/15/2013 
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-· 
UNCLASSIFIED U_S_ Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C18750660 Date: 01/15/2013 

Attachment Classification: SECRET 
Attachment Caveats: NOFORN 
Classification: SECRET 
Caveats: NOFORN 

5 
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Cl8750540 . 

. ·.-CON-. -A·· D-EN-Tl111111AL--~.-~EPAl!l'!:r!!!·.~M.~!@;,fi!!~!!!· ·~!!!,:r~·i·E ~------· 
EXECUTIVE SECRETARIAT 

Acmo~: NEA 

INFO COPIES TO: 

v"s 
~ D(L) 

_v' D(S) 

-/F 
_v P 

M 

7~ 
G 
R 
c 

~A 
~/SJ.I> 
~ INR 

USAID 

/sn:s 
S!ES·EX 

x S!ES-IA 
SIES-IRM 
SIES-0 

)( SIES.CR 
S!ES.S 

AF 

YEAP EUR 
NEA 
SCA 
WHA 

201011051 
SIES --------
OATE. __ 6_~-~~~~_lf_22_A_s1_56 

A MCC S!GHFSI 
CA MED S/GPI 
CPR M/PRI S/GWI 
DGHR M/WHL S/NKP 
DRl OBO S/OCR 
OS OES S/BANAC 

ECA ~IG ~ECC 
EEB PM - SISEMEI' 
FSi PRM SISRAP 
H RM S/SRGIA 
llP S/CIEA SISRMC 

l/"'INL SICRS SIUSSES 

- 10 SICT ~/WCI 
IRM s/EEE _ USUNIW 

V~N SIEENI VCI 
S!GAC G/STAS 
S/GC GITIP 

SUBJECT: SUMMARY OF CONCLUSIONS OF THE RESTRICTED PRINCIPALS 
.COMMITTEE MEETING ON THE FLOTILLA -- 6/3/10 

COPY ADVANCED TO: 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

MEMORANDUM FOR: 

XX • APPROPRIATE HANDLING 

FOR YOUR INFORMATION 

REMARKS: 

OTHER 
l'i\EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewea 

DATE DUE IN SIES: ______ _ 

CONFIDENTIAL 

AUTHORIZEDBY: SAADIA SARKIS 
SIES-S, ROOM 7241 
~: 7..S590 
FAX: 7-2283 

A COPY OF THIS TASKER SHOULD ACCOMPANY YOUR RESPONSE 
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,Jf\11-10-.::;t).L·> .l.J.• . ..:•-' '-''~~ .... ·-~·-·-' -

LJ[;~CLA::::i01f-lt::LJ U.:::J, Ueparunern UI .:'.)lcllt:! Wd:::O~ l'lV. r-Lv 1v-v-r 11..1-..1 uv'-' 1>1v '-'Vv '"-'-''"''-'"-' '-''-'•··-· v ,. 

Law, Rosemary C 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 
Subject: 

[R€'~'"'N eARi.•.'i I 
Baumert, Kevin A II 

Wednesday, June 02, 2010 4:14 PM 
1 Dolan, JoAnn; Pomper. Stephen E; Townley, Stoph8n G: Guarin, Marc F: Perina. Alexandra 

H: Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H: Gorove, Katherine M; Sullivan, David J 
1 

Harris, Robert K: Jacobson, Linda 
RE: PC on Flotilla Thursday evening 

I've p•ssed this to USCG, which needs to be involved in the first bullet since it Is a US flagged vessel. 

-- -------- ----------- ---- ----------------- - I __ 
From: Dolan, JoAnn 1 
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 3:41 PM 
To: Pamper, Stephen E; Townley, Stephen G; Guarin, Marc F: Baumert, Kevin A; Penna, Alexandra H; Aswad, Evelyn ; 
Banos, Mariano H; Gorove, Katherine M; Sullivan, David J 
Cc: Harris, Robert K; Jacobson, Linda I 
Subject: PC on Flotilla Thursday evening 1 

Israel Desk has just called to alert us thot NSC is scheduling ;J PC for Thursday evening to which S plans to atterid. Wh le 
a_genda is still being worked out it apparently includes. such items as: 

I BS 

,, __ I 
,------- . . I I 

Apparently the L has been casked to NSC/Legal and Desk assumed that we were I BS 
already workinE with them I and was looking for a-point of contact to help them prepared the annotated agenda far s I 
Has J·nyonc else heard about this and can\ gi"'·e Jeff Giauque a point of contact on that issue. It sounds like 3n l/HRR1 
and L/UNA task in preparation for HCR, but cannot be sure. 

I 

[REVIEW AUlHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewe~ 

20 

___ UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of Stale Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05129928 Date: 0111512013 
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141580 Date: 01/15/2013 
I 

l;lw, Rosemary C 

!RELEASED INI 
[PARTB5 __ 

I 
From: 
Sent: 

Knopf, Payton L ' I 
Thursday, June 03, 2010 2:10 PM · 

To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Hof, Frederic C; Sindle, James M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; He tmstr<l>m, I 
Todd C; Jacobson, Linda 

Subject: RE: Condensed version of the State paper for the PC 

I 

Have we seen th~~~~~er-~------ -----------------------_J __ ~- -
From: Goldberger, Thomas H I · 
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 2:06 PM I 
To: Hof, Frederic C; Sindle, James M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Holmstrom, Todd C; Knopf, Payton L; Jacobson, Li~da 
Subject: FW: Condensed version of the State paper for the PC I 

--------------·-----··-·--!· 
From: Kumar, Prem G.(mailto:Prem_G._Kumar@nss.eop.gov] 
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 2:02 PM . I 
To: Bass, Warren; Mustafa, Herro K.; Goldberger, Thomas H; Lynn, Eric av OSD POUCY; alan.sims@js.pent gon.1)1il; ' 
Antonietti, Patrick M av OSD POUCY I 
Subject: Condensed version of the State paper for the PC 

I 

[REVIEWAIJ!HORITY: Sharon A~mad, Seniorf'!ll~iewe!j I j 
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141580 Date: 01/15/2013 
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141580 Date: 01/15/2013 
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@ELEASED IN PART B1,B3 DOD-CP,1.4(C),Bi'JI 

Bowers, Allyson M 

From: 
Sent: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Categories: 

Info Office: 

MRN: 

Date/DTG: 

From: 

Action: 

SMART Core [svcSMARTHBTSRctSPrec@state.sgov.gov] 
Wednesday, July 06, 2011 2;38 PM 
Doutrich, Jack T; Sachar, Alon; Eilis, Colin C; Pickett, Margarita; Rubinstein, Aniel J; Jimenez, 
Elizabeth 
(U) CONSUMER llR EVALUATION/OIC-<l21 

Archival 

SECRET//NOFORN 
Sensitive 

POLITICAL 

C ___ = _____ :__ ___ ~_ ____ J 
Jul 06, 2011/061738ZJUL11 
_ ... _ .... ----·--------------, 

~----·--- ___J 

83 DOD-CP 

5471S NELLIS AFB NV ROUTINE; 970SS ALTUS AFB OKI/IN// ROUTINE; ACC CTIG 
LANGLEY AFB. VN/DOXD// ROUTINE; AFIM AMHS BOLLING AFB DC ROUTINE; AFIOC 

LACKLAND AFB TX ROUTINE; AFNORTH A2 TYNDALL AFB FU/IN// ROUTINE', ANCHORY 
FT GEORGE G MEADE MD ROUTINE; APL JHU LAUREL MD//STILO// ROUTINE; CDR 
USEUCOM INTEL VAIHINGEN GE//ECJ22-P-M// ROUTINE; CDR USTRANSCOM INTEL 
CELL SCOTT AFB IL ROUTINE', CDR3DSFGA FT BRAGG NC//AOSO-SFT-SB// ROUTINE; 

CDRUSAREUR DCSINT HEIDELBERG GE ROUTINE; CIA WASHINGTON 

DC//PWSTAFF/JR// ROUTINE; COGARD INTELCOORDCEN WASHINGTON DC ROUTINE; 

COGARD MIFC PAC ALAMEDA CA ROUTINE; COMJSOC FT BRAGG NC//J2-CMD// 

ROUTINE; COMMARFORCOM ROUTINE; COMPACFL T PEARL HARBOR HI ROUTINE; 

COMSEVENTHFL T ROUTINE; COMSOCCENT INTEL MACDILL AFB FL ROUTINE; 

COMUSFL TFORCOM NORFOLK VA ROUTINE; COMUSMARCENT INTEL MACDILL AFB 

FL ROUTINE; COMUSNAVCENT ROUTINE; CTF 50 ROUTINE; CTF 56 ROUTINE', CTF 561 

ROUTINE; CTF 67 ROUTINE; CTF 69 ROUTINE; DA-AMHS WASHINGTON DC//INTEU/ 
ROUTINE; DEPT OF ENERGY WASHINGTON DC//IN-1// ROUTINE; DEPT OF HOMELAND 

SECURITY WASHINGTON DC ROUTINE; DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION WASHINGTON 
DC ROUTINE; DEPT OF TREASURY WASHINGTON DC//INTEU/ ROUTINE; DIRJIATF 
SOUTH J2 ROUTINE[ . - ~-----===-==--- .--=:J DIRNSA FT 
GEORGE G MEADE MD//S5121/ ROUTINE; DNI WASHINGTON DC ROUTINE; DNI WATCH 

ROUTINE; FM NATIONAL HQ WASHINGTON DC//ACl-100// ROUTINE; FORSCOM ACE 
FT MCPHERSON GA ROUTINE; HOMELAND SECURITY CENTER WASHINGTON DC 
ROUTINE; HQ AF ISR AGENCY LACKLAND AFB TX//IOC// ROUTINE; HQ AFOSI 

ANDREWS AFB MD ROUTINE; HQ AFTAC PATRICK AFB FL ROUTINE; HQ NORAD 
USNORTHCOM INTEL PETERSON AFB CO ROUTINE; INTEL FACILITY SOUTHEAST 

SECTOR TYNDALL AFB FL ROUTINE; JAG MOLESWORTH JCDX RAF MOLESWORTH 

UK ROUTINE; JAG MOLESWORTH RAF MOLESWORTH UK ROUTINE; JIATF SOUTH 
INTEL KEY WEST FL ROUTINE; JIATF WEST ROUTINE', JIOWC SAN ANTONIO TX1/J521/ 
ROUTINE; JWAC DAHLGREN VA ROUTINE; MARCORINTACT QUANTICO VA ROUTINE; 

NASIC WRIGHT PATTERSON AFB OH ROUTINE; NATIONAL DRUG INTELLIGENCE 

CENTER JOHNSTOWN PA ROUTINE; NAVCENT INTEL MANAMA BA ROUTINE; 

NAVEODTECHDIV INDIAIN HEAD MD ROUTINE; NAVOCEANO STENNIS SPACE 
CENTER MS ROUTINE; NAVSTKAIRWARCEN FALLON NV ROUTINE; NGA WASHINGTON 
DC ROUTINE; NGIC INTEL OPS CHARLOTTESVILLE VA ROUTINE; NORAD-



StateDept04227

Captions: 

Reference: 

Subject: 

USNORTHCOM J2 PETERSON AFB CO ROUTINE; NRG WASHINGTON DC ROUTINE", 

PACOM IDHS HONOLULU HI ROUTINE; PACOM JIOC HONOLULU Hl//SVU/ ROUTINE; 

WASHDC, SECSTATE//INRIDC// ROUTINE; SR JOIC NAPLES IT ROUTINE; STILO 
PATUXENT RIVER MD//STILO// ROUTINE", UDITDUSAREUR HEIDELBERG GE ROUTINE", 

US CUSTOMS AND BORDER PROTECTION WASHINGTON DC ROUTINE; US SECRET 

SERVICE WASHINGTON DC//SAIC// ROUTINE; US SURVEY DIV SHAPE BE ROUTINE; 

USAREUR ACE DARMSTADT GE ROUTINE; USARPAC INTEL FT_§HAFTf.RJ:!lf?.OUTINE; 

USCENTCOM INTEL GEN MACDILL AFB FU/CCJ2// ROUTINE;[ ]81 
[ -=]ROUTINE; USSOCOM INTEL MACDILL AFB FL ROUTINE; USSS CRIMlNA!j .4(C) 
INVESTIGATIVE DIVISION WASHINGTON DC ROUTINE; USSTRATCOM INTEL 
DIRECTORATE OFFUTT AFB NE//OP322// ROUTINE; UTAIS RAMSTEIN AB GEJ/INAAT// 
ROUTINE 

1 

Sen~\'e,_N_O_F_O_~R~N----~~~~:=---------~~--~---_-:-- ---~----~~_] 
(U) CONSUMER llR EVALUATION/OIC-621 B3 DOD-CP 

S E C R E T //NOFORN 
QQQQ 
SERIAL: (Ul[_ _ ____ } 83 DOD-CP 

COUNTRY: (U) GREECE (GRC); ISRAEL (JSR); SIERRA LEONE (SLE). 
SUBJ: (U). CONSUMER llR EVALUATION/OIC-621 
REF: (GIL Jocallorr;Pictures;-Current 
Activity and Possible Schedule for Possible Gaza Freedom Flotilla II 

l~-~---------1 

fE ~-~-= ~-- -~ ---

1 
I -_ -----_--===1 

2 

83 DOD-CP 

B3 DOD-CP 

1.4(C) 
81 

81 
1.4(C) 

1.4(C) 
B1 

B3 DOD-CP 

B1 
1.4(C) 
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VALUE:(U)B-Higf\/alue =~=:------- -- _ _J 
EVALNME: (UL . ____j 
PRODUSE: (U//FOUO) A - Update Database, B - Confirm analytical 
judgment, D - Oral Briefing, F - Support Law Enforcement 

(..JlSillKLlll\QllOR_ ______ ·-----·--· ···--1 
' . ·-----··- -··------·-·--·J 

DRV FROM: MULTIPLE SOURCES. 

OECL: 25X1-human. 

Derived from: 
Declassify on: 
Attachments: 

Action Post: 
Dissemination Rule: 

MULTIPLE SOURCES 

25X1-human 

metadata.dat 

OIS_POLITICAL 

SECRETllNOFORN 
Sensitive 

3 

1.4(C) 
B6 

86 

B3 DOD-CP 



StateDept04229

C18750898 

i§ELEASED IN PART B3 ooo-ei3 

Law, Rosemary C 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Fyi 

From:L mm] 

Levin, Jan 
Saturday, June 05, 2010 10:12 AM 
Gaza Flotilla Monitoring Group 
Fw: Rachel Corrie Boarding 

To: CUnningham, James B 
Cc: Sievers, Marc J; Levin, Jan; Grubb, Jason a;L __ 
Sent: Sat Jun 05 16:55:13 2010 
Subjed:: Rachel Corrie Boarding 

Sir, 

Rachel Corrie boarding as reported by YNET: 

Takeover ended In S. minutes 

83 DOD-CP 

·--~ 

Rori B<an-Ylahal rr.poris fmrn ti. Reid: t/'tlll dap aft•r bloOdJl raid i:m &.ilill'lmr.I, NrlV)' ll"Vft paai:•ful tall.90V'ffr at~; ffll'lltl!& comhll1 »01d!N11 Diie part In quid\ raid gn Rachel Cl)l'rie, 
ngtiters l:loard ship wLr;g rope 1&dden 
~Bm-Y".stlal 

~~ll!l.10.11.161lsrael News 
Just five minutes- this is the estimated time it took Israel's Navy to commandeer the Rachel Corrie Ship en route to the 
Gaza Strip. 
The m:l got1a1!Mlrr.ly'<'ifl ll\eVl!SAI ~ 2'3 llllleil wnt otthe Gull !.hote, rlgtlton flu~ ci' hi nrnl~ ~~Iha difp. ~ ChWMajor General Eie:rer M.!lm rotelWd !hi di~ IJI slafl"s 
ll!llJlov;I~~ llwlDJl~r:lllldalsWl!:l'ddsohCDUdlwliflDal'eiuaWhlW9Kal:l~~lbll~ 

Tho OWlll&opanib'I W(l9. heaided b')l 1'111 ~d "'1lel"s n'ibak' boalflool. ~!he iK:lud raid Oii tie lhip...-a led IJ)'tM ~ ci' Iha Aoiila t3 aimrn&ndcl Wiil ~A.. 

The dildSkr1 rn. laMi IW'llr lhe ¥l!sKtl wzi tlBMl'I JV<iol'IY et 12 pm. Mien n bKame dBlll 1'1"4 fte ship tlad no ~letltian all ~ ~ ria Na¥y"11 ~ lll!ld tum ID ti' AJ.:hded pOlt tor a, ~­

The~~ -.a '1formoddlcHtNJ~ Mlllbolrrd ltl!l 8'at:>Jrt1Af """iii~ l;iof.<MdtdflNI w:lrQ rorea.11nt1 l't;;t""IOf' m,f)lldldperwtlnel on IM r.Hp Iii bahlP<llil ~-

4 forn.lt fl;htto't 
Tha~"'P<lel~bh~MN!d1111ln\!lll'tllcn1DotfvlW!lettl~.He~lhe1t~GIK!~llal'llonlilodtiP'~!feCll."""""Nf~wallDdb-JIONa.y.~.TJ»~ 
~hwirnl$sllb::rilb10h .... _.wel ~~p;ilftll~~-..ebaerl~h Ratt>olc.om. r.lruFrK1af.~l!lls*tio.tt-.cllliplor,.adlnGIS4!ltheoper.alO'lblql&d.Joie:it. 

Sluidl bllbs 12:'30, tMI ~Ooe!s ~lt'l8 Rlll:helCQ'rio Clilll')'ln;'~211t.o:fl0atmlion. ~ rDlll'ttomat. ~~to ltd! lllll'f1°' IPlid211180Jlll)rutlff. Ill chal'lj8 iii wamg p<Jltl f'ld-..el!. 111• 
hrllales...,. bro!'ltrtl:'l 50 '181.~~ ~Vie~ ontxJard. ndudrlg: Nobel Prim LflJ~ llai'Bad .,...n.. 
lhl N...,., ~- cro bCltd a fteltbrinl$Sle ball Blorlg 1Y11ti F'lolillll 13'ri ~cl'"8 lie operdon.. Thll ~~Iha f;tllp l$'lg ~ ~ .tlhoulfildng .,...,rosislin;.a. ~ lt>drdemilnd:S 
ID Die~. arK1 ll':l:PUnid lh6Y ~ behll met. 

Tho~ laakdlolitl'Mllllrlullll:J, M1tr ~ M boeod Iha dl.!p JoOSS'le~al' NWJ'f>otlflll bit~ tl'Omlll)l lf!okinea. Thll~ hlahtQhl8d IN~ bltweei'I~ on [li)ardllloll Man--. 
...tiopl:alwled 111W:tai'ol and"'1111 ctWI., Oldefloonsar lllw.arod Ra(lial Cer11e ~Thi! N....,. aeld fie ~ed:ivbb....,.. pan.d .a~ ull", INt ril&de do flllll ~ f'dr po!lllc;;I ~e. Nlteby 
~..,,.ldlldci'Vdilrllc:lt<;h, 

fEVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewei 
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Cl8750896 
fELEASED IN PART B3 DOD-CP,B3 DODFGl.BEI 

law, Rosemary; C 

From: Levin, Jan 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Saturday, June 05, 2010 5:04 AM 
Gaza Flotilla Monitoring Group 
Fw: Rachel Corrie 

---~-'2inal Me. ssa.e.L=,---
From: _._J 
To: -·-----!·-Sievers, 
Sent: Sat Jun 05 11:36:46 2010 
Subject: Re: Rachel Corrie 

83 DOD-GP 
Marc Jj Palm, Robert H; Levin, Jan; Grubb, Jason B 

--~----::Jthat·RC is "making circles" ·in the·Jlfeil ·and still insistingB13>[Jl9[jpGI 
~G-a_z_a-.-~IDF is not going to allow RC into Gaza. No lDF boarding yet. 

From: ~l 
----~r· ·n_a·!LJ!· Message -----

To: __ -~Tsievers, 
Sent: Sat Jun 05 10:57:14 2010 
Subject: Re: Rachel Corrie 

83 DOD-GP 
Marc J; Palm, Robert H; Levin, Jan; Grubb, Jason B 

RC approx 25 miles from coast. Have r"-"'"-"'-........ , ,.,_ rejected multiple requests to dock at Ashdod Port. 

83 DOD-GP 

l 
----- QriginalMessage 
From: [ -1 
To: I j ·51'.evers, 
Schlereth,.Frank G 
Sent: Sat Jun 05 08:54:09 2010 
Subject: Re: Rachel Corrie 

83 DOD-GP 
Marc J; Palm, Robert H; Levin, Jan; Grubb, Jason B; 

r::::::-=---·-----i1ic continu±ng·to ·refuse· to· head to Astrdod·;·E)(p·ett additional ·ster>~j'b~f:GI 
vessel make port in Ashdod. --··- --1 
----· Drjp;nal Messaee -----
From:I -r 
To: Sievers, Marc J;r=·

1 
-

Sent: Sat Jun 05 08:29:36 2010 
Subject: Rachel Corrie 

IRl!:"!E~V~l~EW:"!':"~A~U~T!:'H:"!O:"!R:"!l~TY,.,..: '""'s""ha_r_o_n_A"'h'"m-a°'d-, '"s-en·i·o-r"'R_e_v.,.ie·w-e""'~ 

83 DOD-GP 

83 DOD-GP 
86 
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B3DODFGI 

~-------__, .. Sayiiig--RC still has not been boarded and negotiations with crew 
continue to convince thE!lll to proceed to Ashdad. I !the message that RC will 
not be allowed into Gaza. RC is about 55 miles out and expect her to reach land around noon 
today. 

2 
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Bowers, AllY$On !YI 

From: Sindlo, James M 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Thursday, June 23, 2011 9:14 AM 
NEA-IPA-DL; ElJR·SE·DL 
NEA-ELA-DL 
FW: "FREEDOM FLOTILLA II" GK/.A AID CONVOY (SITREP #1) (SECRET) 
Free Gaza II Flotilla Update_23 Jun 2011.ppt 

High Importance: 

Categories: Working 
!RELEASED IN PART 83 Dl,'.>0.CP,B1 ,B$,1.4CPJ 

FYSA ... 

---··----·· .. -------
V/R, 
Jim Slndle 

This document is SECRET//NOFORN when separated from SECRET//NOFORN attaclunent(s). 
Sensitivity: Sensitive 
ClasslfiC11tlon: SECRETl/NOFORN 
Derived From: DSCG 05·1 (b), (d) 
Declassify On: 2021 /06/23 

!REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer! 

iss 

:~ .4(0) 
$1! 

1 

From:! 83 DOD-CP 

.. , .. ___________ _ ----· .... ·--·--···· .... 

StateDepto04232 
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-._..,_.,..v.,..,...-r---r-------r - - • · · ----------·~·-···------··---···--·----•• 

Subject: "FREEDOM FLOTILl.J\ II" Gf(lA AID CONVOY (SITREP #1) (SECRET) 

Classification: SECRET 
Caveats: NOFORN 

2 

··53 DOD-CP 
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1.4(0) 
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. AttadunentClassification: SECRET//REL TO USA, GBR 
Classification: SECRET 
Caveats: NOFORN 

4 
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!RELEASED IN PART 1.4(B),B3 DOD.CP,B1,1.4(0),B7(Cj 
Bowers, Allyson M 

:~~~: 1;~;::aay;;~.·;~;~~:~r;r·-··==:J 83 DOD-GP 
To: Doulrlch, Jacki; NEA·IPA-DL; EUR-SE·DL; Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Zurcher, Kenneth M; 

Cc: 
EU!.S,_Qolln C ... ···-·-·· .. ------··. ___ ·-······. .... . --·---. ---· ..•. 

Subject: 

CLASSIFICATION: 
CAVEATS: NOFORN 
REL TO: NONE 

SECRET 

Jack/David/Matt -

·~ .4(D) 
El·1 

~---------·----··--·-·····-·······-·-----

BJ DOD-GP 

ll§EVIEW AUTHOR.ITV: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviowea 
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I' 

-----original Message----­
From: Doutrich, Jack T [mailto:DoutrichJT@state.sgov.gov] .B.3 DOD-CP 

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2011 11:39 AM . 
. TDLNEA:Cil!A."DLL EUR:.SbDL : . Masilko •• .Jlar.bara J .. (USUN1.L.Zuccher. .• ..Kenneth . .M:J:i lts.......c:a.Un .. L ..... _ 

Subject: FW( ·Greece e·ans ilepii'rtiire of Flotilla Vesseis "to "iiaia; "(jf{e.rs.to Deliver Aid - . -- . 

Jack OOutrich 

Political Officer 

NE A/IPA 

(202) 647-4132 

Sensitivity: 

Sensitive 

Classification: 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Derived From: 

Derived from previous message in thread. 

Declassify On: 

2021/07/06 

from: 

SMART Core 

Sent: 

z 

StateDept004237 
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Wednesday, July 06, 2011 06:13:54 

To: 

Mar1:in, Leah A (Athens) 

Cc: 

ATHENS-SMARTS; JERUSALEM-SMARTS; MILAN-SMARTS; SMARTS, Reykjavik; Valletta, SMARTS; GENEVA, 
SMARTS; BAKU·SMARTS; SOFIA-SMARTS; NICOSIA, SMARTS; TBILISI, SMARTS; BARCELONA, SMARTS; OSLO· 
SMARTS; Stockholm-SMARTS; BELGRADE-SMARTS; Dushanbe, SMARTS; VILNIUS, SMARTS; VATICAN, 
SMARTS; THEHAGUE·SMARTS; USNATO, SMARTSJ YEREVAN•SMARTS; PODGORICA, SMARTS; SKOPJE, SMARTS; 
MOSCOW·SMARTSJ WARSAW-SMARTS; ANKARA-SMARTS; TALLINN, SMARTS; Sarajevo, SMARTS; PARIS•SMARTS; 
BERN, SMARTS; UNVIE·SMARTS; LISBON, SMARTS) DUBLIN, SMARTS; Tashkent, SMARTS; BRUSSELS­
SMARTS; OSCE·SMARTS; ISTANBUL, SMARTS; BUDAPEST-SMARTS; FRANKFURT, SMARTS; ZAGREB·SMARTS; 
LJUBLJANA-SMARTS; MADRID-SMARTS; KYIV-SMARTS; Ottawa-Smarts; HELSINKI-SMARTS; ASTANA·SMARTSJ 
TiranaSMARTS; Bishkek, SMARTS; LONDON-SMARTS; BRATISLAVA-SMARTS; PRAGUE, SMARTS; HAMBURG· 
SMARTS; Riga, SMARTS; USEU·SMARTS; ROME, SMARTS; KRAKOW-SMARTS; BERLIN-SMARTS; LUXEMBOURG· 
SMARTS; NAPLES, SMARTS; Copenhagen-SMARTS; MUNICH-SMARTS; CHISINAU-SMARTS; Pristina, SMARTS; 

f~:~.b.~~~~~~~.~~~.~.i·:.S~RTS.~ .. BU:~~~~~:~:~~~~~: VI~NA·.~MARTS ; ... P~!~.(~ol ~~i.l.~~~~::n ~~:~~ p B?(C) 

Subject: 

Greece Bans Departure of Flotilla Vessels to Gaza, Offers to Deliver Aid 

CONFIDENTIAL 

STATE SEAL 

MRN: 

11 ATHENS 407 

Date/DTG: 

Jul 06, 2011 I 061Sl2Z JUL 11 

From: 

AMEMBASSV ATHENS 

Action: 

WASHDC, SECSTATE ROUTINE 

E.O.: 

13526 

TAGS: 

3 
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PREL, PHUM, PHSA, PTER, KCSY 

Reference: 

A) 11 ATHENS 383 
<http://repository. state. sgov .gov/ _layouts/OSSSearchResul ts .aspxlk=mrn%3a%22 :11%20ATHENS%2038 
3%22> 
B) 11 ATHENS 349 
<http:/ /repository. st.ate. sgov .gov I _layouts/OSSSearchResul ts. aspx?K=mrn%3a%22 :11%20ATHEfl!S%2034 
9%22> 

Pass Line: 

AM EMBASSY AST ANA PASS TO AMCONSUL ALMATY AMEMBASSY ANKARA P~S TO AMCONSUL ADANA AMEMBASSY 
ROME PASS TO AMCONSUL FLORENCE AMEMBASSV PARIS PASS TO AMCONSUL STRASBOURG AMEMBASSV MOSCOW 
PASS TO AMCONSUL VLADIVOSTOK AMEMBASSY VILNIUS PASS TO Pl-IEMBASSY MINSK AMEMBASSY BERLIN PASS 
TO AMCONSUL DUSSELDORF AMEMBASSY MOSCOW PASS TO AMCONSUL YEKATERINBURG AMEMBASSY BERLIN PASS 
TO AMCONSUL LEIPZIG AMEMBASSY MOSCOW PASS TO AMCONSUL ST PETERSBURG 

Subject: 

Greece Bans Departure of Flotilla Vess'els to Gaza, Offers to Deliver Aid 

';1.4(8) 
~ .4(D) 
~1 

l. (C) SUw-!ARY: The Greek government's decision on July 1 to prohibit the departure of 
ships from Greek ports intended for Gaza was a significant shift from Greece's proviou~, less 
visibly confrontational, approach towards '"Flotilla II • Stay Alive'" Gaza vessels and ': 
activists. over the July 4 weekend two boats attempting to depart Greek ports, in viol~tion 
of the ban, were intercepted by the Hellenic Coast Guard, resulting in the arrest of the 
AMCIT captain of one of the boats. Also over the weekend, Gaza flotilla activists prot.\sted c:::" ""00 ~-""-=';''~'~": '"' ~:_···~,, "'~" ~"00~_.t~). r] 
Greek Ban on Departure of Ships to Gaza 

2. (SBU) On July 1, the Ministry of Citizen Protection released a notice to flotilla 
participants that the departure of ships with Greek and foreign flags from Greek jlor'ts to the 
maritime area of Gaza was prohibited, and that the HHlenic Coast Guard would take all 
appropriate measures to enforce the decision. Despite the departure ban by the Greek 
government (as well as an order to remain in port due to unresolved questions about the 
vessel's documentation and seaworthiness), the American-flagged vessel '"Audacity of Hope'" 
attempted to depart the Greek port of Perama, near Piraeus on July 1. The Hellenic Coast 
Guard intercepted the vessel and ~fter a standoff at sea, the ship consented to return to 
port. 

3. (SBU) The American captain was arrested by Greek authorities upon the ship's return 
to port. Embassy Athens provided regular consular services to Amcit members of this year's 
"Flotilla II - Stay Alive" US Boat to Gaza organization both before and after the captain's 
arrest. on June 24, American Citizens Services (ACS) Chief and Counsel General met with 
AMCIT flotilla participants to provide .a consular briefing and ACS Chief had regular contact 

StateDept004239 
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with the captain and his attorney, including a meeting on July 5 to verify that he was in 
good health, understood his arrest, had legal representation, and that authorities were 
treating hi.m well. The captain was released on July 6 without bail. There will be a trial 
at some point, but. the captain will not have to return to Gree.ce. 

4. (C) On July 4, the Canadian boat "Tahrir" was intercepted by the Hellenic Coast 
Guard five kilometers off shore when it attempted to leave the eastern port of Aghios 
Nikolaos on the island of Crete. The boat carrying 50 Gaza activists and medicine was towed 
back to an undisclosed location on Crete. According to reports, no arrests were made. 
According to Embassy sources, a total of nine ships intending to participate in the flotilla 
docked around Greece. Two of those, the "Audacity of Hope" and "Tahrir", defied the 
departure ban, prompting Coast Guard action. Seven have remained docked. 

s. (SBU) on July l some 35 dernonstrators assembled outside the American Embassy to 
protest on behalf of the Gaza flotilla. On the evening of July 3, a group of eight people 
from the US Boat to Gaza organization assembled at the American Embassy and presented a 
letter calling for U.S. officials to defend their rights to sail out of Greece to Gaza and to 
request 50 tickets to the Embassy's upcoming Independence Day celebration. On both occasions 
the protestors dispersed peacefully. On July 4, nine demonstrators assembled outside the 
EMR. The demonstrators were taken into custody briefly for identification checks after 
stating they planned to sleep on the sidewalk in front of the EMR. The demonstrators spent 
under two hours in the station and were released, They were never placed under arrest. 

6. (SBU) In addition to the group's regular website updates and Tweets, the Embassy has 
received roughly 500 calls and emails since July l asking ~he USG to put pressure on Greece 
to allow the flotilla to proceed to Gaza. 

Greek Proposal to Deliver Humanitarian Aid to Gaza . 

7. (SBU) PM Papandreou spoke by phone with Palestinian Authority leader Mahmoud Abbas 
on July 3. According to reports, Abbas positively viewed a Greek government proposal to 
facilitate the transport of humanitarian aid to Gaza, in cooperation With the United Nations. 
The proposal was confirmed later in the day when the MFA released a statement announcing 
Greece's intention to undertake the task of transporting humanitarian aid to Gaza through 
"appropriate channels." The statement also reiterated Greece's ban on departure from Greek 
ports primarily to protect human life and stressed Greece's concurrent view that the naval 
blockade should be lifted. The MFA announced plans to liahe with all concerned parties, 
while flotilla organizers and activists decried both the Greek government's intent and Abbas' 
alleged backstabbing collusion with the Greeks. 

__ o...::.-.. - ·· · . ___ .:.·_c=-c---· ·· -:.=-=·· ="'·""··'·---· ·-· -----. c_----· · -····· 
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COMMENT 
'~ .4(8) 
1A(D) 

9, (C) on June 22, the Greek MFA issued a strongly worded statement discouraging its B'1 
citizens from participating in the flotilla, r---··· ··----··•····· ··---·· ·-··---·--·· ·- ·-···--··' ··-····-·-··-··-···· ···'""''"·-·-~-~---·-· .. - . . ······--··-. ... . . . . . J 

Signature: 

SMITH 

Classified By: 

Name: Daniel B- Smith, Title: Ambassador 

Reason: 

1.4 (b), (d) 

Declassify on: 

2021/07/06 

Drafted By: 

ATHENS:Martin, Leah A (Athens) 

Cleared By: 

POL:cockrell, John D (Athens) 

POL:Lawton, Daniel J (Athens) 

Brandeis, Charles D (Athens) 

Smith, Stuart M (Athens) 

Miller, Thomas s (Athens) 

'Brandeis, Katherine (Athens) 

I 
---·-·--··-·----' 
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Approved By: 

EXEC:Smith, Daniel B (Athens) 

Released By: 

ATHENS:Martin, Leah A (Athens) 

Info: 

JERUSALEM, AMCONSUL ROUTINE; EUROPEAN POLITICAL COLLECTIVE ROlfTINE; ZEN/AMCONSUL ALMATY; 
ZEN/AMCONSUL ADANA; ZEN/AMCONSUL FLORENCE; ZEN/AMCONSUL STRASBOUAG; ZEN/AMCONSUL VLADIVOSTOK; 
ZEN/AMEMBASSY MINSK; ZEN/AMCONSUL DUSSELDORF; ZEN/AMCONSUL YEKATERINBURG; ZEN/AMCONSUL 
LEIPZIG; ZEN/AMCONSUL ST PETERSBURG 

Attachments: 

Metadata.dat 

Action Post: 

Dissemination Rule: 

Released Copy 

CONFIDENTIAL 

DERIVED FROM: Multiple Sources. 
DECLASSIFY ON: 20360706 

CLASSIFICATION: SECRET 
CAVEATS: NDFORN 
REL TO: NONE 
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05140864 Date: 02/14/2013 
I 

Law, R9semary C 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

rRELEASED JN PAR·T-B3 o.·-.o.D-CP,B3 I 
IDODFGl,B6,B6 - - ------- ---- I 

I 
Schwartz, Jonathan 8 I 
Monday, May31, 20101:57 PM 
Pamper, Stephen E; Perina, Alexandra H I 
Dolan, JOAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Jacobson, Linda; Donoghue, Jo~n E 
FW: MFA flotilla: TU Parliament For Aft Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Steps • 
Legal Aspects.pp\ I 

A further plea for L's advice on international law aspects. 

83 DOD-CP 
-----Original Message-----
From: Sindle, James M I 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1: S3 PM I 
To: Gordon, Philip H; Jeffrey, James F;L- ... _________ J Cunningham, James B; Levir, Jan; 
Operations Center; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, 
Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly,jMaura; 
Fe Lan, J .. ~-f .. f. r .. e.y D; _R(Jdrna_n_LM~-~! (Jerusalem); I . ------- ------ - · -- -- -- -- --,J Hale> David 
M; . --·-· ... _ _ ______ ______ __ J 'elizabetfi_:cL3~e-rwoOcJ: ran1fillWrisc:-eop. gov ; , 
'Bbrink@nsc.eop.gov'; McEldowney, Nancy E; Kaidanow, Tina 5; Baily, Jess L; Riley, Ropert J; 
M".~!-~! ___ Denise M; Waser, Tamir G; Silliman, _ _oou_~las _:l\LA.l'l_kar-a_:_PDL-DL; Wolff, Alexis S;b 

C::::: ______ . _______ -------·-··-·--------·-·---- . ______ ] Baumert, Kevin A; Jae_ bson, 
Linda; Dolan, JoAnn; Schwartz, Jonathan B ' 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla: TU Parliament For Aff Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Stepb 

I 
. I 

According to attachment and in several statements, GOI believes that they are in arme~ 
conflict with Hamas in Gaza and have the right to enforce blockade, includin_g interdicting 
ships in_~-"-~~!:~!-~~~~_! __ wa!_i:rs __ !~---~--int_end. to _break that blockade. [=--=~=~~::::.:~.--:.=~~] 85 

-----Original Message----­
From: Gordon, Philip H 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2.010 1:35 PM 

83 DOD-CP 

I 
To: Jeffrey I James F; r---====---=:1 Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations I Center; 
Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marches~, 
Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo_ Salvatore A Istanbul · Connelly, Maura; Fel:tni_a_n,J_effrey 
D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); C Hale, David M; L J 

j . . ------ · ·- ·· - · ··1 'eHzaEeth_ ._sherwood-ran a nsc.eop.gov'; 'Bbrink@nsc.eop.gov'; 
l'icEldowney, Nancy E; Kaiclanow, Tina S; Baily, Jess L; Riley, Robert J; Marsh, Denise M; 
Waser, Tamir G; Silliman, Douglas A; Ankara-POL-DL; Wolff, Alexis S ' 
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla: TU Parliament For Aff Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Step~ 

I 

Isr Amb Oren told D-Steinberg that Israel would release/deport all the people forthwith. Did 
not address plans for the ships. 

_ _ _ _ _ original Message __ ~Elil~~.Au'rHoRITY:sli&rOnlilima~;-~eniOrR~0°ew_!!I 

1 

I 
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doo No. C05140864 Date: 02114/2013 
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UNCLASSIFIED U.$. DepartmentofState Case No. F·2010-04163 Doc No. C05140864 Date: 02/14/2013 
83 DOD-GP 

I 
From: Jeffr:~YL~~!".l'.•J I 
To:C_ ... "'.. J Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Sievers, ~arc J; 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wat~rs, 
John R; Amod~ _ _?_a_l_ya.~_or_e_J\_JI_stanbul); Connelly, Maura; Fel tm[an, Jeffr~ry;__Rudman, lfla ra 
IJerujem); 1 . . ......... _______ ...! Mj Hale, David M; ·~----·--· ----83 DOD-GP 
[__ 'elizabeth_d ._sherwood-randall@nsc.eop.gov' <elizabeth_d._sherwood- I 
randall@nsc.eop.gov>; 'bbrink@nsc.eop.gov' <bbrink@nsc.eop.gov>; Gordon, Philip H; I 
McEldowney, Nancy E; Kaidanow, Tina S; Baily, Jess L; Riley, Robert J; Marsh, Denise ~; 
Waser, Tamir G; Silliman, Douglas A; Ankara-POL-DL; Wolff, Alexis S; Rice, Susan E (U UN) 
Sent: Mon May 31 13:27:49 2010 
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla: TU Parliament For Aff Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Stepf 

Aside from stressing as Amb Tan did to Phil Gordon need for Am 'condemnation' of Israb1 
Mercan-who can speak usually better for AKP leadership and Erdogan than MFA, Told Cod~l 
Delahunt and me that of particular importance for Turks is immediate release of Turkish ships 
and all personnel. He asserted and we need to look at, that under international law I 
enforcing a blockade does not convey the right to seize people/prop_erty.__[ .... - ........ ! 85 

c~=~ .. :-__ -----:=_:-_:: _·-~---.:---~~~--~--~=---=i··---· 
--·-·[9.!:ig_i_n~L~•s?~·-· 83 DOD-GP 
From: _____ J I 
To: Cunningham, Jaine5""s;Levin, Jan; operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Maic J; 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA·IPA·Dl; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wat¢rs, 
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, ~ara 

(Jerusalem);[----· ----·-------·) Levin, Jan; Hale, David M; Murphy, Mi<hael P; 

L -----··-·····---------_J . 83 DOD-GP 
sent: Mon May 31 19:27:09 2010 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing B3 DODFGI 

(f.h. ------. .. ... .. ·i· ........ -. -----~~-:~.~---~---:~---~----- ....... --- -.. --- -- ~- ~--~~~~~~----~~-~~' 
C= .. _ ···--- link between IHH organization and Muslim Brotherhood, Clear acti9n on 
part of individuals on MAVI MARMARA to incite violence. Beat first wave of soldiers ~ho 
arrived on board via Fast Rope, Several Rhibs and 3 Blackhawks were used in action against 
MAVI MARMARA. Took approximately an hour for INF forces (Flotilla 13(Navy Seals)) to:gain 
control of the vessel. All 6 boats were boarded at approximately the same time(0400·1500L) 
in international waters. Violence isolated to MAVI MARMA~A. Medical attention rende ed to 
all injured. , 

I 

- As of 1700L 3-4 of the vessels are in port Ashdod, MAVI MARAMRA to arrive soon. I 
I 
I 

- All IDF forces are monitoring for reaction, but currently no heightened activity on1borders 
or in Gaza. Some minor incidents involving Israeli Arab.5 within Israel (stone throwi~g). 
Israeli Arab protests and strike expected tomorrow. IDF continuing to monitor situation to 
determine reactions. ! 
· Several meetings and conversations with Turkish officials have taken place. 
concern for safety of Israeli representatives in Turkey. 

- Air exercise that has been taking place in Crete with Greeks has been stopped 
and the IAF assets have been asked to leave. 

- GDI and IDF focused on getting the facts out. Multiple video clips depicting 
against IDF forces being released. They will review the operation internally. 

2 

I 
There ~s 

' I 
I 

by th<j Greeks 
I 

I 
viole~ce 

I 
I 
I 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05140B64 Date: 02/14/2013 
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of Slate Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No.C05140864 Date: 02/14/2013 
I 

No decision on reaction to any additional vessels that may attempt to head 

we are awaiting response on CHALLENGER I Flag and any status of AMCITs. 

- At this time, unclear if any riot related gas, etc was used. 

.Y/.~R~-----·-- ...... _ .. 

-----Original Message----­
From: Murphy, Michael P 

to Gaza.! 
! 
I 
I 
I 
I 

83 DOD-CP 
I 

83 DOD-GP 

I 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 4:37 PM b 
To:[:_~:~.... · .:=-:...:=::J Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, ames F; 
Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew CJ Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, 
Gregory M; Waters, John R; AmJ>.<:!~9, .. 5.llJ'!'~.t.c:>.re A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, ~effrey 

D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem);!. ... ,, ................ ----.... ... J Levin, Jan; Hale, Dav~d M 
subject: RE: MFA flotilla brieTing i 
Ma'am, Sir, 

' 83 DODFGI 
I 

[-· ...... . 

"rhere"was" asignificant event-this morning: we ·don't iiaiie "a°lfthe details, andl '!le are 
still in the event. We will continue to update you." I 

lGi
. · · · · I I 83 DODFGI 

. . . .. .·. ==1 a prepared, written statement beginning with the assertion that the 
a·za ·striii.is··ruled by-a hostile enemy, HAMAS, that does not recognize the state of Israel. 

HAMAS encourages and executes hostile activity against Israel and is currently holdin~ an 
Israeli citizen, Gilad Shalit, against international convention. I 

' The naval blockade was established prevent smuggling that supports terrorist activityf 

The Free Gaza flotilla was organized by the Turkish IHH which is ·belligerent towards f srael 
and supports the Muslim Brotherhood. I 

I 

Israel tried different avenues to prevent the flotilla from launching to include I 
communications with the ships' owning countries and .companies to no avail. Israel ex~ressed 
willingness to transfer any non-contraband supplies via established land procedures a~d 

Israel continues to look for ways to ameliorate the human conditions in Gaza. Israeli 
assesses that there is no Humanitarian Crisis in Gaza. 1 

I 

When the organizers of the flotilla showed no desire to divert to Ashdod when request~d by 
the Government of Israel (GoI), the GoI made the decision to board the ships in stric~ 
accordance with international law and with a desire to minimize damage to the ships a d 
injury to passengers. · 

Boardins of the ships. 

3 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05140864 Date: 02/14/2013 

I 
' During boarding of the ship Mavi Marmara, Israel Navy (INF) Personhel encountered "se~ere 

physical violence" including knives, clubs and firearms. 1 INF weapon was seized by I 
passengers. Due to a clear and present danger to INF personnel, the INF initiated co~tact 
using riot control systems (NFI) then transitioned to' live fire. The injured in the event, 
both Israeli and foreign, have been transferred to "4·5 hospitals." 

Short term future actions. 

I Provision of Medical attention to the wounded. 
Non-contraband supplies, after inspection and processing, 
An IDF investigation will be initiated. 

will be transferred to Gaza~ 

The Go! continues to see HAMAS as a terrorist group. 
context of the current topic of the briefing). 

(Note: this seemed out of placr in the 

I 
I 

Israel is tak-ing action to prevent escalation of the situation. 
I Israel will "respond heavily" to any entity seekihg to provoke escalation. 

Legal Aspects 
83 DODFGI 

I 
I 

[ ::=-----~-.~-:-.·:_:==that a separate briefing wpitlcL be .J?r_Qyj~d on the legal aspects pf the 
operation. This was the attachment provided onL ·-- Js earlier summary, A Fopy is 
attached as well to this email. B3 DOD-CP 

' 

Questions from the assembled group. 

What are the nationalities of the casualties? 
No information yet, should have details in "a few hours." 

transmitted via "diplomatic" channels, not military. 
This information wiljl be 

I 
Where are the ships I I 

2 ships are at Ashdod, to include the Challenger I (as of 1415). The Challeng~r has US 
citizens, European citizens and at least one Israeli citizen. The Mavi Marmara shouW arrive 
to Ashdod between 1700-1800. ! 

What will happen·to passengers? 
Passengers will have 2 options. Accept immediate extradition or be jailed 

authorities. By "tonight," all personal details should be known. 
by ~sraeli 

I 

Any information on nationalities? 
Information will be passed to the Ambassador. 

What time and where .did boarding occur? 
Between 0500-0600, 70 NM from Israel in international waters. 

boarded. Only on the Mav1 Marmara was serious violence encountered. 
incident occurred on a second ship. All casualties were on the Mavi 

was permission granted to board the ships? 
Unknown at this time. 

I 
All 6 ships wer~ 
One other minor, 

Marmara. I 

What weapons were encountered? . 
One INF sailor was seriously wounded by rifle or pistol fire. 2 pistols were ~eized 

from dead passengers. One INF weapon was seized by the passengers during boarding. 

What international reaction has occurred? I 
HAMAS has declared 3 days or mourning. Turkey has recalled its Ambassador. I~raeli 

Ambassador to Turkey was summoned to the Turkish Deputy Minister of Foreign Affairs and was 
passed a "serious message." I 

I 
4 I 

' I 
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I 
[------- · ~poke with UNIFIL, and MFO to coordinate for de-escalation effort83 boOFGI 

Lebanciii and Egy-pf. 1 

The INF assesses that there were Jordanians on the ships, but no details were given. 
If there are Syrian or Lebanese citizens on the ·ships, then they will be transferred vi ia the 
Red Cross and UN to their respective countries. 

The MoO and IDF sent messages to the Palestinian Authority and the Israeli Arab' 
Community to not escalate the situation. At least one Palestinian passenger may have! been 
woundri1------l L_ pointed out that there has been no US reaction as of yet. 83 DODFGI 

I 
Casualties I 

10-14 passengers severely wounded or killed, 
passengers now at 4·5 Israeli hospitals. 

10 INF wounded, 1 seriously, one moderately 

all on the Mavi Marmara. A total ~f 30 

I 
83 DODFGI 

Why were the ~s boarded in international waters I ' 
I _ started by saying the organizers were warned that the Gal would resppnd to 

any provocation and the Free Gaze flotilla was meant only as a provocation. He then ~aid he 
would not get into operational details, but the INF intercepted at 70 NM in accordanc~ with 
international law as the flotilla made it clear that its intention was to violate the! Israeli 
exclusion zone. I 

Did the INF know what was on board? 
Only through press accounts, but INF assessed contraband items such as 

iron. 

Intentions for the ships? 
The ships will remain at Ashdod until further notice. 

Very Respectfully, 

L._____ d- ---1 

· · · • ·O[r_i ___ g_~_· t:!_al._ __ .l'l_e_s.s~ge :: :_:
1
-

From: _____ . . . _ 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:08 PM 

I concrete1, 

I 
I 

' 

and 

B3 DOD-CP 
I 

83 DOD-CP 

To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Mate J; . 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason 8; NEA-IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wat~rs, 

John R; Amode[_Q, __ ?_~J.~!'.tore~(!?Jtan~ .. !2.L. Co!)_n_e_J_ly,_ f'1a._u

1 

c~L.~eJt!l!.~D,_JJeffrey D; Rudman, ~ar93 DOD-CP 
(Jerusalem);_ -, Levin, Jan; Schlertt~, . 
Frank G -
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 83 DOD-CP 

83 DODFGI [-----···-- - ............ , .. ,_ __________ --------

Many--of-fii"e-aetaiE-lirief ed~h~a-v-e-al~r-e-ady b~~;.:~~:~~e~~"~~-~-at;~;~~~:~-5-;···s~;:~~~;~;~f8;cnt~J 
- Ongoing Operation 
· Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 

M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 
- All ships will be in port by later today 

10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed 
30 Civilians Wounded 

- 10 !OF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds 
Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 

5 
I 
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- Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International L$w 
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) 

;'---"---·-·~------·-"-

-····Original Message····· 

83 i;>OD-CP 

I 
' I 
I 
I 

From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; 
Parker, Jl,_ndrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-OL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wat1>rs, 
John R; L ........................... ...I Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltn83 DOD-GP 
o I 
Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Oshapiro@who.eop.gov' I 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have ~eard 
fro_m __ me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is fromj 86 

[ ______ ................... ], who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. I 
[-------ireported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, th~y met 86 
. wfth 'what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fir~. 
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments,letc. 
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of t~e 
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions take~ were 
in self-defense. I 

I 
Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all injrred 
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (syme 
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

Earlier this morning he and [--]made the following calls/contacts: . . 
86 ··Turkish FM and MoD 1---- -- f"Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh C I He fel'f the 

calls w the Turks given"trfe-situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he 
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levelslof 
rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for securf ty 
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by status ?f 
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. 

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 

····-Original Message---·­
From: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM 
To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, An~r~w_J:_; ___ _ 
Grubb, Jason B; NEA·IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; [ __________ ] 

6 I 
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[-·----=~]Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); 
Jeffrey D 

B3 DOD-CP 
Connelly, Maura; F~ltman, 

cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@Who.eop.gov' 
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 

I 

I 
Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon Js it's 
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo fro~ ships 
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat t~at 
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is ·1 
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have SJi>Oken to 
Davotuglu this am. 
Sent from my BlackBerry 

----- Original Message ----­
From: Levin, Jan 
To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; ParketLA.ridr~w 

C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; [ .. _ ::.::.:.:::J 
r--~·-·---J Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F4ltman, 
'-:Jeffrey o I 
Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 I 
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing i 
MFA DG Yossi Gal and IDF Col. L- ---- ---- - ------- ...J brt' efed B 
foreign ambassadors at 12: 30 iOC'a"i time today. ---·~-----.... _______ .. ____________ _ 

I 

' Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proa4tively 
to Embassies as IDS are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how. long this will take. i 
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, /all 
injuriet..Q,l;'J.Lrred on this ship. 
- - Col. -I told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boardeifs and 86 
were arme(f;'"'"--/inclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding p~rty. 
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to 
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed c~nflict 
between Israel and Hamas. ; 

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this 
you. 

7 

issuJ, thank 
I 
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Law, Ros11mary c 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 
Attachments: 

Sending also to L/PM. 

Townley, Stephen G 
Monday, May31, 20102:56 PM 
Pamper, Stephen E; Heinemann, Thomas B; Donoghue, Joan E; Cleveland, Sarah H; 
Eichensehr, Kristen E; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin 
A 
Fw: MFA flotilla: TU Parliament For AH Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Steps 
Legal Aspects.ppt · 

Seems related to another ongoing discussion. 

----- Original Message ----­
From: Gordon, Philip H 
To: Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Koh, Harold Hongju; Connery, Joyce L. 
<Joyce_L._Connery@nsc.eop.gov> 
Sent: Mon May 31 14:06:54 2010 
Subject: FW: MFA flotilla: TU Parliament For Aff Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Steps 

Making sure you guys have this. (Tom Donilon asked for chop). 

-----Original Message-----
From: Sindle, James M 83 DOD-GP 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:53 PM 
To: Gordon, Philip H; Jeffrey, James F; [___ _ ______ -·-----i Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; 
Operations Center; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA·IPA-DL; Greene, 
Elis_ a; Marc he __ s_ e, G. reg.cry M; Wate_r_s' ___ John R; Ajodeo. ..... _salvatore_A_(j_s_tanb_ ul_ >_ : .C.o.nJelly, Maura; 
Feltman,___Jetf_rey _D; Ru,i_r11_~_r1.L.~a.ra (Jerusalem); .......... .. Hale~ David 
M; [___ ___ ,_ ---·----·· I 'elizabeth_d._sherwood-randall@nsc.eop.gov'; 
'Bbrink@nsc.eop.gov'; McEldowney, Nancy E; Kaidanow, Tina S; Baily, Jess L; Riley, Robert J; 
M~r_sh, Deni2._e .... ~;_waser, Tamir G; Silliman, Douglas A; Ankara-POL-DL; Wolff, Alexis S;I 
C.:..:.:...... __ ,, ___ ]JCS JS AO'; c::=~-· ............ ==:J; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacpbson, 
Linda; Dolan, JoAnn; Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla: TU Parliament For Aff Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Steps 

According to attachment and in several statements, GOI believes that they are in armed 
conflict with Hamas in Gaza and have the right to enforce blockade._incl_\!!!j.Jlg_Jn!erdih,:i,_~g ... 

~_Jn_i_ntecri1!!;\.Q_n_al__,waters that. !nt~nd to br<ta.K.~bi!t blockaqg,_J____ ___ 85 

I 

[REVIE~:j\'y_THORITY:~tiaro_n Ahmac(~e11I()~ Revieweij 
-----Original Message----­
From: Gordon, Philip H 
Sent: Monday, May 31, ~_010 ~-;~UlL_ ___ 83 DOD-GP 
To: Jeffrey, James F;L:____ __________________ J Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan;, Operations, Center; 
Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA--DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, 
Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, 1Jeffrey 
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tjJ UUU-1.;t-' 

~~~ ... M?r~a-~( Jerusa_
1_jml ~sb:~·~:d '-'sherw~~~~~~ndall@nsc. ~-~P ~:~~:; D~~~~i~~~:~~op:kov'; 

McEldowney, Nancy E; Kaidanow, Tina S; Baily, Jess L; Riley, Robert J; Marsh, Denise M; 
Waser, Tamir G; Silliman, Douglas A; Ankara-POL-DL; Wolff, Alexis S 
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla: TU Parliament For Aff Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Steps 

Isr Amb Oren told D-Steinberg that Israel would release/deport all the people forthwith. Did 
not address plans for the ships. 

----- Original Message ---·- B3 000-CP 
Froro_: Jeffrey, James f 
To L ____ ,, ............ --::J Cunningham, James B; ·Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Sievers, Marc J; 
Parker, Andl'eW C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, 
John R; Amod~al. ~~!.or~ __ !\_.(Is~-~~bu!}; Connel_l]y, Maura; feltmln, Je.ff.r . .!!.Y.J?; _ _lloYdman, l!'i3lra 
(Jerusalem); L .. ___ · Hale, David MJ . 

L ........ __ J · eli zailetli~Cf._sherwood-randall@nsc~op.gov • <elizabeth_d ._-:iherwoocr:-·--­
renda11@nsc. eop. gov>; 'bbrink@nsc.eop.gov' <bbrink@nsc.eop.gov>; Gordon, Philip H; 
McEldowney, Nancy E; Kaidanow, Tina 5; Baily, Jess L; Riley, Robert J; Marsh, Denise M; •· 
Waser, Tamir G; Silliman, Douglas A; Ankara-POL-DL; Wolff, Alexis S; Rice, Susan E (U~UN) 
Sent: Mon May 31 13:27:49 2010 
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla: TU Parliament For Aff Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Steps 

Aside from stressing as Amb Tan did to Phil Gordon need for Am 'condemnation' of Israel 
Mercan-who can speak usually better for AKP leadership and Erdogan than MFA, Told Codel 
Delahunt and me that of particular importance for Turks is immediate release of Turkish ships 
and all personneL He asserted and we need to look at, that under internµ:tiQD.alJil.J!I ...... _ .... _. 
enforcing a blockade does not convey the right to seize people/property. L_ =1 BS c------- .. ·----:::- ___ . .. .. --- - ----·-·--------- ----···--... ·- --- __ J 

;;~~~ [O_rjgi,n~LMe~~~s5- B3 000-CP 
To: Cunningham, James a;·l.evin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, 
John R; Amodeo_,__?alvatore IL{_Istanbul}j Connell}, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey ll.L...R...YPJllilIL.J:lara___, 
(Jerusalem); [ Levin, Jan; Hale, David M; I ------J [.::: ..... ________ I _ ...... ---· -
Sent: Mon May 31 19:27:09 2010 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

·-----------·--------·----------------... - .... , 

B3 000-CP 
l All ........ .. 

B3 OOOFGI ............... ,, _____ .,,_,,,.,,,.. . .............. --............................ ,,_,,,_ __ ,,,, _____ --"'< 

C ......... Jstressed link between IHH organization and Muslim Brotherhood. Clear action on 
part of individuals on MAVI MARMARA to incite violence. Beat first wave of soldiers who 
arrived on board via Fast Rope. Several Rhibs and 3 Blackhawks were used in action against 
MAVI MARMARA. Took approximately an hour for INF forces (Flotilla 13(Navy Seals)) to, gain 
control of the vessel. All 6 boats were boarded at approximately the same time(0400·0500L) 
in international waters. Violence isolated to MAVI MARMARA. Medical attention rendered to 
all injured. 

- As of 1700L 3-4 of the vessels are in port Ashdod. MAVI MARAMRA to arrive soon. 

All IDF forces are monitoring for reaction, but currently no heightened activity on borders 
or in Gaza. Some minor incidents involving Israeli Arabs within Israel (stone throwi'ng). 

2 
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Israeli Arab protests and strike expected tomorrow. IDF continuing to monitor situation to 
determi-ne reactions. 

- Several meetings and conversations with Turkish officials have taken place. There is 
concern for safety of Israeli representatives in Turkey. 

- Air exercise that has been taking place in Crete with Greeks has been stopped by the Greeks 
and the IAF assets have been asked to leave. 

- GOI and IDF focused on getting the facts out. Multiple video clips depicting violence 
against IDF forces being released. They will review the operation internally. 

- No decision on reaction to any additional vessels that may attempt to head to Gaza. , 

We are awaiting response on CHALLENGER I Flag and any status of AMCITs. 

- At this ti~e, unclear if any riot related gas, etc was used . 

. V/R •. ________________ _ 
83 DOD-CP 

-----Original Message----· 
From: L - - -- =:J 
sent[: ... M..O.~daxL..!'!~L~_l..-____ 2

1
010 4: 37 PM 83 DOD-CP 

To: --------·-------·------... Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, Dames F; 
Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, 
Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey 

~~b~~~~~nRE~a~:A (~~~~~~~:m~~feflng- '""" ___ .. ___ --·- .... ______ J Levin, Jan; Hale, David M 

Ma'am, Sir, B3 DODFGI 
' 

[ ---------- .. 

··-----

J" .... ---- ___ _. ________________ _ 
"There was a significant event this morning, we don't have all the details, and we are 

still in the event. We will continue to update you." 
B3 DODFGI [ ....... -.::::~-----====]• prepared, written statement beginning with the assertion t,hat the 

Gaza Strip is ruled by a hostile enemy, HAMAS, that does not recognize the State of Israel. 
HAMAS encourages and executes hostile activity against Israel and is currently holding an 
Israeli citizen, Gilad Shalit, against international convention. · 

The naval blockade was established prevent smuggling that supports terrorist activity, 

The Free Gaza flotilla was organized by the Turkish lHH which is belligerent towards crsrael 
and supports the Muslim Brotherhood. 

Israel tried different avenues to prevent the flotilla from launching to include 
communications with the ships' owning countries and companies to no avail. Israel e~pressed 
willingness to transfer any non-contraband supplies via established land procedures and 

3 
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Israel continues to look for ways to ameliorate the human conditions in Gaza. Israel 
assesses that there is no Humanitarian Crisis in Gaza. 

When the organizers of the flotilla showed no desire to divert to Ashdod when requested by 
the Government of Israel (GoI), the GoI made the decision to board the ships in strict 
accordance with international law and with a desire to minimize damage to the ships and 
injury to passengers. 

Boarding of the ships. 

During boarding of the ship Mavi Marmara, Israel Navy (INF) Personnel encountered "severe 
physical violence" including knives, clubs and firearms. 1 INF weapon was seized by 
passengers, Due to a clear and present danger to INF personnel, the INF initiated contact 
using riot control systems (NFI) then transitioned to live fire. The injured in the event, 
both Israeli and foreign, have been transferred to "4·5 hospitals." 

Short term future actions. 

Provision of Medical attention to the wounded. 
Non-contraband supplies, after inspection and processing, will be transferred to Gaza. 
An IDF investigation will be initiated. 
The Go! continues to see HAMAS as a terrorist group. (Note: this seemed out of place in the 
context of the current topic of the briefing). 
Israel is taking action to prevent escalation of the situation. 
Israel will "respond heavily" to any entity seeking to provoke escalation. 

B3 DODFGI 

Legal Aspects 

I.:~_:·---
operation. This 
attached as well 

that a separate briefing woulL~!1_Jlt5lVided on the legal aspects bf the 
was the attachment provided on L . ~· s earlier summary. A copy is 
to this email. ----· --- . B3 DOD-CP 

Questions from the assembled group. 

What are the nationalities of the casualties? 
No information yet, should have details in "a few hours." This information will be 

transmitted via "diplomatic" channels, not military. 

Where are the ships? 
2 ships are at Ashdod, to include the Challenger I (as of 1415). The Challenger has us 

citizens, European citizens and at least one Israeli citizen. The Mavi Marmara should arrive 
to.Ashdod between 1700-1800. 

What will happen to passengers? 
Passengers will have 2 options. Accept immediate extradition or be jailed by I'sraeli 

authorities. By "tonight," all personal details should be known. 

Any information on nationalities? 
Information will be passed to the Ambassador. 

What time and where did boarding occur? 
Between 0500-0600, 70 NM from Israel in international waters. All 6 ships were1 

boarded. Only on the Mavi Marmara was serious violence encountered. one other minor 
incident occurred on a second ship. All casualties were on the Mavi Marmara. 

Was permission granted to board the ships? 
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Unknown at this time. 

What weapons were encountered? 
One INF sailor was seriously wounded by rifle or pistol fire. 2 pistols were seized 

from dead passengers. one lNF weapon was seized by the passengers during boarding. 

What international reaction has occurred? 
HAMAS has declared 3 days or mourning. Turkey has recalled its Ambassador. Israeli 

Ambassador to Turkey was summoned to the Turkish Deputy Minister of Foreign Affairs a~d was 
passed a 0 serious message." , 

c:-:-::··-:-Jspoke with UNIFIL, and MFO to coordinate for de-escalation efforts iB3 DODFGI 
Lebanon and Egypt. 

The INF assesses that there were Jordanians on the ships, but no details were given. 
If there are Syrian or Lebanese citizens on the ships, then they will be transferred yia the 
Red Cross and UN to their respective countries. 

The MoD and IDF sent messages to the Palestinian Authority and the Israeli Arab' 
Community to not escalate the situation. At least one Palestinian passenger may have·been 
wounded. r--·--: .. -:_]pointed out that there has been no US reaction as of yet. 83 DODFGI 

Casualties? 
10-14 passengers severely wounded or killed, all on the Mavi Marmara. A total of 30 

passengers now at 4-5 Israeli hospitals. 
10 INF wounded, 1 seriously, one moderately 

Why wer t e shi s boarded in international waters? 83 DODFGI 
started by saying the organizers were warned that the GoI would respbnd to 

any p votal:illrr--and the Free Gaze flotilla was meant only as a provocation. He then said he 
would not get into operational details, but the INF intercepted at 70 NM in accordanc~ with 
international law as the flotilla made it clear that its intention was to violate the•Israeli 
exclusion zone. 1 

Did the INF know what was on board? 
Only through press accounts, but INF assessed contraband items such as concrete., and 

iron. 

Intentions for the ships? 
The ships will remain at Ashdod until further notice. 

Very Respectfully, 
I 

83 DOD-CP 
' 

·····r-ri•<n•l Mo<<a_P.e_••··· . . "~,-··'---"'""-"' - --, 
From: __ . 

~~~t~u~~~~:~~m~a~a~!~ ~~
1

~e~~~~ ~=n; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Mar' J; 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, 
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; ~udman, Mara 

l~~~ru5.aJem); [_____________ -------] Levin, Jan; [=~-=:~3 DOD-CP 

Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 
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[ _::~::~==-- =-=- ----~·-· -=:: ------·-~=~=-~·==:~=-=:~_::_-~~··-1)0£:'._:]I Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highlights 

- Ongoing Operation 
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 

M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1B00L 
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

I I --· ----- --~~- .... --.------- - ____ .... ________ .. __ _ 
.. _] 

c·==i.-. =·-==~···------- .. ______ .. __ 

-----Original Message-----
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM 

------····-·····-----·-----

83 DOD-CP 

To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Ma~c J; 
Parker, Andrew Cj Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory MJ Watirs, 
John R; r-·--- .. ·"·-----·: .. -__::_~.::::J Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey 

D 83 DOD-CP 
cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@Who.eop.gov' 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

This ma_y largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have 1.ea.rd) 
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from 
I _ .. · --:----._] who also spoke with the UN' s Serry, among others, this am. · - -----

[~:--·_J reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met 
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fir~. 
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, •etc. 
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of tHe 
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions takerj were 
in self-defense. 

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14·15 "maybe more", He said all inNred 
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some 
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. !There, 
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

Earlier this morning he and~made the following calls/contacts: 86 
--Turkish FM and MoD (Barak)~at, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh (Dangot). Hefel~ the 
calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and.how he 
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels1of 
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rhetoric could be kept in check. With L.... ']they discussed primarily need for secur~ty93 DODFGI 
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by status of · 
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. 

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 

-·---Original Message----­
From: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1: 38 PM 83 DOD-GP 
To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Ancj.r:.~~c:;. ..... 
G .. ru .. b~.. Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; C __ J 

[:--- _ _J Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F~ltman, 

Jeffrey D 
Cc: 'DenniLB._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 

Our Consular people are in contact With MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's 
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to. help in forwarding cargo from ships 
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat t~at 
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is 
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have spoken to 
oavotuglu this om. 
Sent from my BlackBerry 

----- Original Message 
From: LevinJ Jan 
To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, __ A!l_drew 

_(;___§r_1.tb.b Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; C .. =::::J [ f Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feitman, 
Jefrrei·o 
Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing 

MFA DG Yossi Gal and IDF Col. Assaf Orion, Dir. Of Dept of Strategic Coordination, briefed 
foreign ambassadors at 12:30 local time today. 

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proattively 
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured wi~l be 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. 
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all 
injuries occurred on this ship. 
-- Col. Orion told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and 
were armed. unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. 
One lDF soldier nearly beaten to death w.tth metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to 
intercept in int! waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict 
between Israel and Hamas. 

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this iswe, thank 
you. 
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~ 

, SECRET 

~~~~-~~-~~~~~~=1 
.__ ________ ·-~1 (SI/REL TO USA, FVEY) 

• 19 Jun: First Gaza Flotilla vessel scheduled to 
leave port from Hamburg, GE M 

- Up to 22 ships, 1000 participants possible in 
Flotilla (U) 

- -27 Jun: Flotilla to rdvs south of Cyprus (U) 

• Turkish NGO IHH sending mixed messages about 
Flotilla saillng (U) 

JIOCEUR Ana1y1tcal center 
Morning Updata Brief 

_l ____ . . . -- ----· J t-,::-rr:-. ~-.:..MIV"-M•""'vi"'M;,.;•nl\.-. ,'-,.-'-1V.,-o"'re1a.,.· ,-~,-"-,-.,-.,-M-.,-,-, ---l 
- Says may postj)one'flotma"ciue to concerns-- YUR MIVO•aelVOl~MbUlnot4Apr1f 

over possible lnt'I intervention in Syria (U) i<H• . MIV• .. ••1.c••'• 
CAN MN'r•hrlr 

• Ankara discouraging Flotilla participation, but ••• •IV"'''"""°" .. · " . 
states it cannot block participation (U) "'" M1VFto0••mF1o1111.11 

MN·Saolfei:: Sl EL·TQ US FVf!Y 

[~-=-~~---~~ .. _ --'[is11Re~Tou8A, FVEY-> __ , _· -- --- _j l 
16 Jun 11 SECRET Declosslfy On: 16 Jun 36 

~V1EW_~uTHORl!Y:=~~--~tinlnd, ~-~~iOrRevl~~ 
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L9gg, Cristina A 

From: 
Sent: 

Stafford, Edward G 
Thursday, November 03, 2011 1 :33 PM 

To: ,..8ru:ns •. DavJiUl.:..'.KVm~r. Pretlt9,'.~Erlckson, Mark D; Levin, Jan X; 'Stein, Lawrence J. 
L...~->·y ···-- .. =::::::J . . I l 83 DOD-CP 
EUR-i!E-TU·DL; NEA-IPA-DL; Ankara-PMA; Ankara-Political; 1 t:Ll\v1v Cc: 

Subject: 
POL; 'AGodfrey@nss.eop.sgov .goV' 
RE: 'FREEOOMWAVES Tb GP.ZN' FLOTILLA· (SITREP 2) - 3 NOV 2011 (SECRET) 
[SECRET, Record] 

Sensitivity: Sensitive 
Classlfloetlon: SECRET//NOFORN 
Derived From: incoming llR 
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Declassify On: 2036/11/03 

From: Berns, David B 
sent: Thursday, November 03, 2011 5:57 PM 

: 'Kumar. Prem G.'; Stafford. Edward G; Erickson,_ Mark.'-'D"';-"Le\/=c.in"-, "'Ja""'n-'-x~j----------------1 

------·--·-----
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01 01 031156Z NOV ll RR RR SSSS AT ZYUll HOTRPM@3 DOD-GP 

FM c::--_·_· -----------' 
TO DIA WASHINGTON DC 

I CDR U!JCENTCOif~LllFB l 
CDR USEUCOM - )l!\±!!ING!lN GE/ L ___ .. _=:J 
CDR USTRANSCOM SCOTT Al"B IL 

CIA WASHINGTON DC 

cNO WASHINGTON~DC'.:.'=====-=·=-=-=-=;-·--

DA WASHINGTON DC/I _ .... __ 
DEPT OF ENERGY WASHINGTON DC 

[~EPT OF HOMELAND SECURJ.'.!'X.J!ASHIN~G~TO=N~D~C~/.'------'l 

DIRNSA FT GEORGE G MEADE MD/'--·---' 
DNI WASHINGTON DC 

I FBT w:sHTNGT~---J ---~ 
HQ NORAD PETERSON AFB co~ 
HQ USEUCOM VAIHING!lN GE 

I __ 
--] 

3 

B3 DO[)-CP 

B3 DOD-CP 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C18751133 Date: 02/19/2013 

StateDep\004260 



UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. 018751133 Date: 02/19/2013 

[ 
SECDEF Wl\SHINGTON DC,( .:: 

I ~ .. ~ ""~"r= 

["""""'" ,_, ....... -'"" _I 

USSOCOM MACDILL l'.FB FL 
USSTRATCOM =10FFUTT AFB NEA._ _______ J 
r=== __ :J 
WHITE. HOUSE SITUATION ROOM WASHINGTON DC 

S E C R E Tj, ___ ~rNOFORN 
QQOO 

SERIAL: {U) [=======l 
COUNTRY: {U) Israel {ISR) 1 Palestinian Territory, occupied {PSE) ; 
Comoros {COM); Turkey {TUR); Greece {GRC). 

IPSP1 (U) I 

~~)~~- ·-· __:_~~JPpdate on Flotilla to Gaza - 3 November 2011 

WARNING• (U) '.!'HIS IS JIN INFORMATION REPORT, NOT FIN/U.LY 
EVALUATED INTELLIGENCE. REPORT' CLASSIFIED 
B E C R E T/(_ ____ JNOFORN. 

DOI: (U) 20111103. 

~§.LJ!lLj"w"=· ======--·~=~--·~_·-----==-----~ 
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~UMMl\RY: (U) SEE EXECUTIVE SUMMl\RY, TEXT PARAGRAPH l, BELOW. 

TEXT: l. (S//NF) EXECUTIVS SUMMl\J\Y. The November 2011 Gaza Flotilla 
has transit'i'd south of Cyprus and as of 0730Z was loqated 
approximately 250 nm from Gaza. There are 27 participl>.nts f.rom 
multiple nations. The vessels declared a next port of Call ·to 
Rhodes-, bu't then -Changed course aftet departing TurkiBh port. There 
;l.s a Turkish vessel providing an escort for the flotilla, but at this 
time, it is not causing great consternation among tho Israel Naval 

i::::ru1....__l']le intentions of this flotill~ are still not known, a~ 

--·-·---------· ---------- -----····---·----->-•- --·- ___ .. ·-----. .. ·--
s 
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From: Kumar, Prem G. [mallto:PKurnar@nss.eop.sgov.gov] 
sent: Thursday, November 03, 2011 2:50 PM . ·----···-· ... ------· 
To: Stafford, Edward G; ~rlckson, Mark D; Levin, Jan X_i[_ ··~-~~------· 
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Subject: RE: "FREEDOM WAVES foGAzA" FLOTILLA - (Sl.'fREf>2) • 3 NOV 2ll11(SECRET) 
-----------------------------

_________________ ] 
Sensltlvlty: Sensitive 
Classification: SECRET 
Derived From: preceding thread 
OeclaS11lfyOn: 2021/11/03 

From: Levin, Jan X 
Sent: Thursda November 03"-, =20:.::1:.::1-=1:::1:-=-34.:..;A:..::M_:._ ____________________ _ 
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Good morning J2 -

86 

1.4(B) 
1.4(C) 
B1 

---------------·----·----------------' 
SITREP follows: 

Convention: Blue Is new 

(U) This event, called "Freedom Waves for Gaza," unites 27x activists from at least 6x countries, Including 
America, Canada, Denmark, Belgium, Germany, and Australia, alongside Palestinians from Bethle_hem and Haifa 
In an International movement to break Israel's blockade of the 1.6 million Inhabitants of the Gaza Strip. "Freednrrt 
Waves for Gaza" Is the 11 111 attempt by international activists to deliver humanitarian aid through the Israeli B1 
blockade of Gaza since 2008. 1.4(B) 

------------··-·-· -····-------·· 1.4(C) 

-----·--·-··--··----·--···----·----·-·--------., .... ,,. ·-•-•"•··--·· 

B1 
1.4(C) 

(SI/REL TO USA. GBR) Flotilla Ships _______ ==f 4(0) 
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Naval A~tlvlty: Routine 

JAC Molesworth will continue to keep ALCON Informed. 
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!RELEASED IN FULU 

The Supreme Court sitting as the High Court of Justice 

HCJ 4169/10 
HCJ 4193/10 
HCJ 4220/10 
HCJ 4221/10 
HCJ 4240/10 
HCJ 4243/10 

Before: The Honorable President D. Beinisch, The Honorable Justice 

M. Naor, The Honorable Justice U. Voge/man 

Petitioners in HCJ 4169/10: Yiftach Cohon; Omer Shatz, ltamar Mann 

Respondents in HCJ 4169/10: The Minister of Defense; The Minister of 

the Interior; 111e Minister of Public Security 

Petitione" in HCJ 4193/10: Adalah - The Legal Center for Arnb 

Minority Rights in Israel; Public Committee Against Torture in Israel; 

Physicians for Human Rights 

Respondents in HC'J 4193/10: The Minister of Defense; The Military 

Advocate Oencral; The Israel Prison Service; The Israel Police; The 

Immigration Authority 

Petitioners in HCI 4220/IO: Al Jazeera Satellite Network; Othman Al 

Dukhoiri; Abas Naser; Muhammad Fa!; Ali Sabri; Andrei Abu Khalil; 

Jamal Al Shial; Wasima Bin Salah 

Respondents in HCJ 4220/10: The Israel Defense Forces; The Minister of 

Defense; The Minister of Public Security 

(REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewed 
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Pclilioner in HCJ 4221/10: Yekutiel Ben Yaakov 

Respondents in HCJ 4221/10: The Israel Police; The Israel Prison 

Service; The Government of Israel; The Minister of Defense; The Prime 

Minisler 

Petitioner in HCI 4240/10: Shurat Hadin- Israel Law Center 

RCl!pondents in HCJ 4240/10: The Attorney General; The Prime Minister; 

The Minister of Public Security; The Minister of the Interior; The !sruel 

Police 

Petitioners in HCJ 42~3/IO: 1. Almagor - Terror Victims Associotion; 

Y.S. - Navy commando (res.); D.B. - Navy commando (res:) and 

bereaved llrothcr; Pnicl Krichmnn; Yekira and Zccharia Komemi; AviV'd 

and Rahan1im Komemi; Tzila Rahamim; Moshe Keinan; Briana and 

Shmuel Hilberg 

Respondents in HCJ 4243/10: The Prime Minister; The Minister of lhe 

Interior; The Attorney General; The Inspector General of the Israel Police 

Petitions to grant an order nisi 

Date of hearing: 20 Nisan 5770 (June 2, 2010) 

For the petitioners in HCJ 4169/10: llamar Mann; Yiflach Cohen; Omer 

Shatz 

For the petitioners in HCJ 4193/10: Fatima El Ajou 

For the petitioners in HCJ 4220/10: Zaki Kamal; Kamal Z.aki Kamal 

For. the petitioner in HCJ 4421/10: Himself 

For the petitioner in HCJ 4240/10: Nilsana Darshan Leitner 

For the petitioners in HCJ 4243/10: Sharon Avni; Shira Greenberg 

l)f\IQLf\SSIFIED U.S. D~partment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05140844 Date: 01
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For the respondents: The State Altorney Moshe Lador; Osnnl Mandel; 

Dina Zilber; Hila Groni 

Judgment 

President D. Bcinisch: 

1. In view of the control of the Ga1.a Strip by the Hamas 

organization, Israel has taken various measures designed lo prevent direct 

access 10 the Gaza Strip, among them a blockade of the Gaza Strip which, 

as declared by the State, is designed to prevent the infiltration of weapons 

and arms to the flamas organizatiOn, which, for years, has carried out acts 

of shooting and terrorism at Israeli territory for the purpose of harming 

civilians. 

2. In recent weeks, announcements have been publiely made by 

various organizations, among them organizations that declared 

themselves lo be a cling for hu manimrian purposes, regarding their 

intention lo arrange a flotilla of ships which, they claimed, were 

designated to transfer foodstuffs and materials as hu1nanitarian aid lo the 

residents of the Ga1.a Strip. Israel, for its part, made efforts to prevent the 

flotilla from reaching the shores of Ga1.a and breaching lhe blockade in 

such manner. The Slate proposed to the organizers of the flotilla, among 

01hers, that the cargo -which w~s supposed to reach Gaza - be unloaded 

from the ships and transferred direclly to Gaza via Jsrael. This proposal 

was rejected. 

I 
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In the early hours of May 31, a number of ships approached the 

shores of Israel to implement the flotilla's plan. As decided by the 

political echelon, the IDF prepared to take measures to prevent the entry 

of the ships into the Gaza Strip as stated. In the framework of an 

operntion that was designed to stop the ships, soldiers landed on the deck 

of the ship Mavi Marmara, the largest ship in the Ootilla. The soldiers met 

with a violent and severe response from the Ootilla participants on the 

ship. The soldiers were attacked with knives, clubs and iron rods. 

Attempts were made to seize the soldiers' personal weapons and they 

were violently attacked. One of the soldiers was even thrown off the deck 

of the ship. The soldiers were forced to respond to defend their Jives and, 

unfortunately, the operation ended with unexpected loss of life - nine 

people were killed and both soldiers and flotilla participants were injured. 

The operation concluded with the ships being halted and their passengers 

removed and detained in Israel. 

3. That same morning, when the results of the operation became 

known, the petition in HCJ 4169/10 was filed with this court (hereinafter:, 

the First Petition), in which four atto1neys filed the petition as public 

petitioners. It should be noted that at the opening of the hearing before us, 

lhe petitioners gave notice of the request of attorney A. Feh;lmnn, who 

was among the petitioners, to strike his· name from the petition. The 

petition ascribed grave and illegal acts to the State or Israel and the 

petitions sought a remedy of habeas corpus to free all the detainees. It is 

evident in the petition, which was hastily filed, tha4 notwithstanding the 

fact that the petitioners knew nothing about the actual events, they were 

quick to cast the gravest asperslon_s on tt"tc actions or -the IDF forces, 

while using inappropriate language. Notwithstanding that stated, because 

ate: 01 18/201 
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the relief sought was the release of the detainees, the petition was not 

stricken in limine at that stage, and the State's response was requested by 

the following day. 

During the course of that day and the following day, a number 

of additional petitions were filed with court. ln HCJ 

4193/10, which was filed on behalf of the Adalah organization and olher 

human rights organi1.ations, the petitioners requested informalion on the 

detainees and their whereabouts, as well as details on the injured and the 

dead. This petilion was also filed as a public petition. Another petition 

(HCJ 4220/10) was filed by the Al Jazeera television network and in the 

name of journalisrs acting on its behalf who had been arrested on the 

ship. This petition requested the release of the network personnel who 

had participated in the flotilla. It should be noted that during the hearing 

th'at we held, it tra11spircd that this petition was superfluous since the 

petitioners had already been released. 

4. On June l, 2010, the government issued a statement that all the 

foreign flotilla participants would be released and returned to their 

countries. After this statement was issued, three additional peliLions were 

filed wilh this courl: HCJ 4221/10, which w~s filed on behalf of Mr. 

Yekutiel Ben Yaakov; HCJ 4240/10, which was filed by Shurnt Hadin -

Israel Law Cenler; and !UC 4243/10 filed by Almagor - Terror Victims 

Association. In these three petitions, the remedy sought was to bar the 

release of the foreign flotilla participants, with the main argument being 

that these were people who had committed an offense, who were required 

both- ror investigating 1he facts and the circumstances surrounding the 

incident alld for a decision about arraignmenl for trial. 

I 
I 

I 
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In view of lhe remedy sought, which related 10 the question of 

the release of a large number of detainees, we conducted en urgent 

hearing and delibera1ed all the petitions together before the pone! al thal 

session, and within two days of the filing of the Firs! Petition. 

5. Berore the hearing, the State submitted a written response in 

which ii protested the description of the events in the First Pelilion and 

pointed out the dislortion of the facts therein. In essence, the State 

addressed the legality of the blockade and referred lo an alternative 

remedy set forth in the rclevanl provisions of the Entry into Israel Lew, 

5712-1952, with regard lo the foreign participants in the flotilla and the 

relevant provisions of the law pertaining to the criminal proceedings of 

investigation and detention with regard to the Israeli suspects who 

participated in the event. During the day, proximate to the time of hearing 

the petitions, the Slate completed its statement and submi!led a decision 

formulated by the attorney general, which stated that on the day of the 

event, May 31, 2010, the attorney general ordered the opening of an 

inve~tigalion on suspicion of offense.~ commilted on the deck of the ship 

Mavi Marmara, including the offense of the grave attack on IDF soldiers, 

disturbing the peace, endangering the lives of soldiers, seizing weapons 

and so forth. The attorney general further stated thal the next day, the 

ministerial committee on national security matters convened and 

conducted a long and exhaustive discussion of the security, polilical, 

legal and olher aspects of the affair. At the end or the discussion, the 

senior political echelon recommended "to enable the Immediate 

deportation or all the foreigners who had arrived on the flotilla, who were 

suspected of committing criminal offenses. This is rccon1mcndc<.I for 

clear political reasons pertaining to foreign relations and the security of 

the State oflsrael." In his decision, the attorney general noted that he had 

Date: 01 18/2013 
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discussed the mailer with the state attorney and other senior officials at 

the Ministry of Justice and other government ministries, at the end of 

which he decided, as slated, 10 allow the immediate deportation of all the 

foreigners from Israel. 

6, During the hearing before us, Stale Allorncy Moshe Lador, 

appeared together wilh senior allorneys, II should be noted that due to the 

nalure of the proceedings which we conducted, we sought not to address 

the claims pertaining 10 the legality of the blockade, nor with the factual 

events during that grave incident, the full details of which had not been 

presented to us, Claims pertaining lo the detention of Israelis suspected of 

committing offenses while rarlieipating in the flotilla were also not 

adjudicated before us, as they should be argued in individual hearings on 

the criminal arrest proceedings before the competent courts, The hearing 

focused on the urgent remedies sought which pertain to holding the 

foreign detainees. The state attorney stated that all the foreigners who 

wished 10 do so could be released from detention and, in effect, those 

who had not yet left the country were on their way to the airport, The 

wounded whose medical condition allowed for it, were also removed lo 

their countries of origin. Apparently, two of the wounded remained in the 

hospital because their condition did not enable them to be flown back to 

their country, The state allomcy further stated that the names of all the 

wounded had been submiued to the relevant consulates and, with regard 

to those who came from countries that do not bavc diplomatic relations 

with Israel, the details were provided to the Red Cross, II should be noted 

that the State did not see fit to acquiesce to the request to provide details 

in this mailer 10 counsel for the Adalah organization, as th,e details hud 

been provided to the relevant entities. Howeveri the possibility arose that 

if a specific, substantive application were to be made 10 obtain details 

18/ 0 3 
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regarding one of lhe casualties or the wounded, the State would examine 

the possibility of providing counsel for the Adalah organization wilh the 

requested details. h further transpired that the remaining details requested 

by the Adalah organization regarding the place in which the detainees 

were being held were resolved. The Adalah organization's counsel also 

made claims with regard to the detainees' ability lo meet with atlorneys. 

During the hearing it was made cleat that there had been no intenlion to 

prevent such a meeting, and many detainees had actually already met 

with attorneys. Due to the need to release hundreds of people quickly, not 

all the detainees may have had lhe opportunity 10 meet with an attorney. 

The position of the attorney general lo release all the foreign 

participants meant that the main remedy soughr in the First Petition was 

already granted. In the course of the arguments, in view of lhe response 

of the state attorney and Jhe comments of the courl, the petitioners 

retracted the style of the scathing verbal attack that lhey had employed in 

the petition. 

7. As staled, three of the petitions were filed against the attorney 

general's decision to release 1hc foreign llelainees. F..ach one of 1hc 

pelilioners argued before us al length about the importance of keeping the 

detainees in Israel far the purpose of conducting an exhaustive 

investigation regarding Jhe grave events that occurred on lhe ship, and 

regarding the need to exercise the full rigor of the law or, at least, lo 

investigate details which, they claim, would constitute defense arguments 

for the IDF soldiers. 

We did not find any ground for intervcnLion in the decision of 

the attorney general. The decision to release the detainees is in the realm 

I 
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of the attorney general's discretion. ln a long ·series of judgments, this 

Court has ruled that the scope of intervention in the attorney general's 

discretion in decisions pertaining to investigation or prosecution Is 

limited to exceptional and unusual instances. Due to the unusual nature of 

the event and the circumstances entaileu therein which, aside from the 

crimiTial ospects, also encompass political aspects pertaining lo the 

State's foreign relations, the attorney general was entitled to consider 

these asp-eels. The developments that have ensued in the international 

arena indicate that a particular political sensitivity exists in everything 

pertaining to the handling of the matter by the enforcement entities. The 

attorney general noted that he consulled wllh all the relevant government 

entities and after taking into account the fact that nine flotilla participants 

~ere kilted and several dozen were wounded} he reached the conclusion 

that _the public, political and security interests outweigh the interests of 

criminal enforcement. We did nol find in this decision, which was 

reasoned ns stated, and in the considerations underlying il, any cause for 

intervention. 

Wherefore, aflcr we were convinced that the n1ain remedies 

sought in some of the petitions wore superfluous, and in the absence of 

cause to intervene in 'the decision o-r the attorney general, we have 

decided to deny the petitions. 

Given this day, 20 Sivan 5770 (June 2, 2010). 

The President Justice 

Thlfl copy ifl subjccJ to ed!torlal a11d te.11lual change:>_I0041690 N04.doc AU 

lnformulion Ce mu Tel: 02·ti;'i9JM6t.i, wetn:ltci ~,;'il\l.!l..iLQ~ 
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Text: 

Ships forcing theirway into Gaza will do nothing to aid the people 
there. Existing land crossings arc more than capable of meeting 
their needs. lntemational aid organizations and the private sector 
of Gaza ensure that aU the necessary food, medicine and clothing 
arc provided to the Strip via Israel. 

In a typical week, 15,000 tons of supplies enter Gaza. Truckloads 
of meat, poultry, fish, daii-y products, fruits, vegetables, milk 
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powder, baby food, wheat and other staples arrive in Gaza on n 
daily basis, Building materials are also shipped in, when 
monl.tored by International organization so as not to be 
commandeered by Barnas for the fortification of bunkers. 

Since the coascfirc in January 2009, well over a million tons of 
humanitarian supplies entered Gaza from Israel • that is almost a 
ton ofaid for each man, woman and child in the Strip. 

The land crossings remain the most efficient system to transfer 
goods to Gaza, and the flotilla organizers are well aware of this 
fact. The organizers also know that since December 2008, their 
ships have been denied permission to land. 

lsraelh!IS invited the organizers of the flotilla to use the land 
crossings, in the same manner as all the reputable international 
organizations. 

However, they are less interested in bringing in aid than in 
promoting their radical agenda, playing into the hands of Harnas 
provocations. While they have wrapped themselves in a 
humanitarian cloak, they are engaging in political propaganda and 
not in pro-Palestinian aid. 

If the organizers were truly interesting in providing humanitarian 
aid • as opposed to engaging in publicity stunts • they would use 
the proper channels to ensure delivery of any supplies. 

© 2008 !srae! Ministry of !="orelg'n Affairs w The Slate of lerael. All rights roserJed. I.C.Il!J..§_Q[JJ/i.!1 llse o.,fcookies 
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community keep the focus on what Is certainly the main 
problem In the Middle East and in the world: a nuclear 
Iran. Iran is trying in numerous ways to distract 
International attention away from Its nuclearizatlon on the 
eve of the Security Council's resolution on the subject. 
Iran Is using extremist organizations and states in order 
to distract world attention, and it is entirely possible that 
the timing of the "terrorist flotilla" is not coincidental. 
2. The purpose of intercepting the flotilla was to protect 
Israel's security and sovereignty by maintaining the 
maritime blockade on the Hamas terrorist entity and the 
hostile territory of the Gaza Strip. Israel must continue 
the blockade In order to prevent more terrorist victims. If 
the international community wants to give the proximity 
talks between Israel and the Palestinian Authority a real 
chance, ft must strengthen the PA and Abu Mazen and 
not the Hamas. 
3. The goal of the flotilla was not peace but rather to 
continue the terrorism and to strengthen the waning 
status of Hamas, which has been losing political and 
economic power. 
4. lHH, the organization behind the flotilla, has close 
connections with Hamas, Al-Qaeda, and Global Jihad. 
5. Israel regrets the loss of life, but responsibility for 
Monday's events rests solely on the organizers. 

In answer to a question concerning Israeli-Turkish 
relations, the deputy foreign minister said that Israel did 
not attack Turkey, although the latter had the power to 
stop the flotilla, as Cypress did. Turkey must decide for 
itself where Its Interests lie. 

DFM Ayalon thanked all the participants for their support 
of Israel and asked them to continue to engage In publ!c 
diplomacy. For this purpose, the participants will be sent 
clips from the IDF Spokesperson. 

In l!ght of the conference calf's success, the participants 
asked the organizers to set up calls of this type on a 
regular basis as well as In times of emergency. 

C 2008 J.s®Mfnlstryof Foreign Affairs· The Slate of Israel. All rights reserved. Tiu:DJ~l..wi§_ .'UJ!Lolco~ 
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The launching ceremony for the part in 
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in Istanbul 

-------!=====·~-.· NR· 
B 
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Despite claims by flotilla to the 
contrruy, IDF continues its policy of 
coordinating humanitarian aid to the 
Giiza Strip 
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English> licw Channels> N9WS and Events> 2filQ >Ml!)'.> Navy Com 
soldiers: "Act with judgment and accomplish the mission" 
Navy Commander to soldiers: "Act with judgment and accomplish the mi! 

27 May 2010, 11 :39 ·--·-.. ·········-······· .... 
Maj. Gen. [!] Maj. GOn. EllozorMarom 
Marom 
required 
soldiers not to 
be dragged 
int1> 
provocations 
while 
fulfilling their 
mission. 
Moreover, the 
flotilla will 
have the 
opportunity to 
stop its 
journey to 
Gaza's shores 
at several 
stages; 
otherwise the 
passengers 
will be 
escorted into 
Israel's shores 
and deported 
to their 
country of 
origin. The 
aid brought 
by the flotilla 
will be 
transferred 
into the Gaza 
Strip after a 
security 
check. 

Navy commander Maj. Gen. 
Eliezer Marom. Photo: IDF 
Spokesperson 

I EJ gorosh I 

More Articles 
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According to the decision made by the Israeli government, the IDF and tht 
Navy are getting prepared to prevent the flotilla from reaching the shores c 
flotilla's pa..<isengers will be given the opportunity to tum back at any stage 
or to give up the control of their ships. 

From the moment of their departure, the ships will receive formal warning 
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stages of their joumey, requesting them to stop their trip to Gaza's shores. 

Should the passengers decide to continue the journey and not take the Isra 
warning into consideration, they will be arrested, brought to Israel's shore: 
transferred to the Ministry oflnterior and the immigration authorities so th 
sent back lo their cpuntry of origin. 

'('he security for~.cs will grab hold of the aid expected to be brought to Gaz 
flotilla, and after a security check of the goods, they will be transferred int• 
Strip. 

During the last few days, the Commander of the Navy, Maj. Gen. Eliezer l 
organized a series of exercises, consisting in stopping the flotilla, gaining 1 

the ships and brining them to Israel's shores. He stressed that during the OJ 
Israeli forces will take all the required steps in order to protect the soldiers 
make sure that no terrorist agents have been infiltrated into the ships. 

Maj. Gen. Marom instructed his forces not to be dragged into provocatiom 
with fair judgment; otherwise it could be harmful to the mission's accomp' 

He also said to his men that there is no intention to cause any harm among 
hundreds of people expected to arrive on these ships, however a clear miss 
assigned to the Israeli Navy and it has to be accomplished. 

[g[ Book I 0 Pnnt I 1!1 send To Fnend I 
Tu.rms of Us~ I About tb~.Slk I fil~ I J:mllijct u~ I 

~~oMuotl\21© 2010 IDF. All rights I B togo \ 
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unload its cargo in [@] 
Ashdod port 
27 May 2010 
The Minister of Defense has issued 
warrants prohibiting the entrance of 
the vessels to Gaza. Israel has 
advised the relevant countries of 
this ban, and requested they 
prevent the departure of the 
vessels. 
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0-G Gal with 
Swedish 
Ambassador 
Elisabet Borsiin 
Bonnier today In 
Jerusalem .(Photo: 
MFA) 

See. 

~§YIEW AUTH_~RITY: Sharo_~_!\hmad, ~e~_l,<>rRe~ 

(Communicated by the MFA Spokesperson) 

Ministry of Foreign Affairs Director-General Yoss! Gal 
separately summoned today (Thursday, 27 May 2010) 
the ambassadors of Turkey, Greece, Cyprus, Sweden 
and Ireland - the countries from which the ships 
participating In the flotilla set sail. 

At all the meetings, 0-G Gal expressly clarified the State 
of Israel's official position, which declares the flotilla an 
absolute provocation: There Is no shortage of 
humanitarian aid to Gaza, as food products, fuel and 
supplies are constantly transferred Into the Gaza Strip by 
the international organizations. Therefore, the flotilla 
organizers are Invited to dock at Ashdod port, to unload 
their cargo and transfer It lo Gaza, after a security check, 
either via the Israeli authorities or via the humanitarian 
organizations. 

c_=_···· ___ __. NR 
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This is the third round of talks with the ambassadors, and 
is In addition to parallel activities undertaken by Israeli 
ambassadors in the various countries warning the 
governments that the flotilla Is about to break 
international law. In accordance with the authority 
granted to the State of Israel, the Minister of Defense 
issued warrants that prohibit the entrance of the vessels 
to Gaza. Israel has advised the relevant countries of this 
ban, and requested they prevent ihe departure of the 
vessels. 

The Ministry of Foreign Affairs has arranged with the 
Ministry of Defense to assist the relevant government 
ministries In their handling ofthe passengers on the 
flotilla in order to assist them In leaving the country as 
soon as possible. Th\'l Consular Seri/Ices Department 
has C:Ontacted the foreign embassies In Israel and 
explained the measures expected to be Implemented 
against the participants In the flotilla. The MFA's situation 
room will also be reinforced In order to provide a 
response to developments. 

Eeedback Hebrew 

NR 
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IDF SPOKESPERSON 
ANNOUNCEMENT 

~~fJ 
'J"il:!i llll 
IOf SJloktspenon 

May 31st, 2010 
l l :3() FOR IMMEDIA'fE RELEASE 

Pistols Found. on Flotilla Activists 

According to reports from sea, on board thp flotill!\ that was seeking to break the maritime 

closure QD...\be GHZ!l.~!JiJ!, IDF forces apprehended two violent activists holding pistols. The 

violent activists took these pistols from !DP forces and apparently opened fire on the soldiers as 

evident by the empty pistol magazines. 

!REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Revlewerj 

IDF Spokesperson Unit - Foreign Press Branch 

News Desk: 
European & Pacific Media Desk: 
North Amertcan Media Desk: 
Latin·Amefican & Asian Media Desk: 

+972-3-6060245/8 
+912-2-546s6oo 
+972·2-5465807 
+972-2·5465601 

Arabic Media Desk: 
Russian Media Desk: 
Official IDF Website: 
IOF Spokesperson Blog: 

+972-2-5465602 
+972-2-5465606 

ldf.IVEngllsh 
ldfspokesperson.com 
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IDF forces unload the humanitarian 
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[@-,;:bout [] !OF Unit• . ~ Joining the !OF ·0~~·1;;-modia @ Search ·.~J 

Ilnglifill > lli).v.<s.Clrnnnel§ > News and Events> 2.0.lQ > June > Video Relt 
are firing on us with live fire!" 
Video Release: "They.are firing on us with live fire!" 
01June2010, 21 :OS 
Video shows 
soldiers on 
their way to 
intercepting the 
Mavi Marmara 
ship being shot 
at with live fire. 

~ 
During the 
operation to 
redirect the 
Gaza flotilla on 
Monday(May 
31),IDF 
commandos 
boarded the 
Mavi Marmara 
ship. On the 
other five ships 
which were 
part of the 
flotilla, the 
interception 
took place with 
no violence. 
When the 
soldiers 
attempted to 
board the Mavi 
Marmara, 

~~~·~~~~~~~-~ 

IDF cominandos boarding the 
Mavi Marmara ship. Photo: IDF 
Spokesperson 

More Articles 

j [!) geresh 1. 

~I 

.!.A.E...lllrg~tll mJlill!D.t.grQ]Jll-lfilJlJlrill!l.t\lJau.ruili rockets 
Video: Humauitarill!uid from tlQ\illlL!ransfcrrcd int.Q...QJ 
lDF ChiefofStaffto combat solQW~mLQJtey;j,t@»JJ 
Turror atta~<l!!..fil.Q!!g Gaza security fenc~ 

activists on board attacked the soldiers and stole two pistols in a prepared ' 

In this footage you can hear tho radio exchange between soldiers on their x 
bridge and the IDF ship. Tho soldiers report encountering live fire and seri 
violence. 

On Tuesday (June 1) Captain R., a Naval Special Forces commander of on 
squadrons who participated in the interception of the Ma vi Mamiara ship, 
interview with IDF Radio: "There were terrorists who wanted to kill us. I < 
explajn it any other way. We used every means possible in order that those 
shouldn't get hurt-would not get hurt." 
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Captain R. was stabbed in the stomach and was wounded in his arm. "Aftc 
descended from the helicopter, I was in front of several terrorists and I coc 
weapon when I saw one of them come towards me with a knife. I fired om 
at that point, another twenty people started coming at me from every direc· 
jumped at me and hurled me to the lower deck. At the same time, I felt int• 
my stomach. I so.w a knife stabbed into my stomach o.nd I pulled it out. I s< 
managed to get to the lower level, where there was another mob of people. 
with other team members, jumped into the water. The third conunando tha 
us was hit in the head and lost consciousness," he said. 

"We came to speak, they came to fight." 

Another naval soldier, who participated in the interception of the Mavi Ma 
and sustained a broken arm while under attack by the ship's passenger$, dt 
how the soldiers were shot at from the entrance to the ship's corridor. 

"I saw two from my group lying flat on the ground. From the opening oft 
they were shooting at them the entire time with live fire, bullets. We identi 
barrel, and one of us shot at the guy holding it. Afterwards we entered and 
there. About 30 men, they simply came for war. We came to straighten thi· 
speak to those who went downstairs, but each of us who descended was sb 
attacked." 

''There were some from my group that were thrown to the lower floor, Md 
passengers took their equipment. They jumped to the water as a last resort. 
told that if they didn't listen, we should shoot at their legs with our paintbE 
pistol was to be used only if we really felt our lives in danger, which wasn 
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to happen. It would be extremely abnormal. But in the end, that is what ha: 

"We cwne with the intention of stopping the ship and talcing it to Ashdod, 
not come with the weapons we usually have, we came for something entin 
different." 
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News and Events 

ZfilQ 
£0.Q.2. 
2..0..Q.8. 
2fill1 

filc;!Ji'@. 

Technology 

P.etsqm1l Stories 

Yid~ 

Annointrnents 

b.JY-ar J ourna! 

Yideo: HYDlllDilarian aiQ.fi:om.flQtiJlll [!] HumanitMian Aid Transfer 
transfQ!!!l..d into Gaza Gaza Strip 

IDF forces unload the humanitarian 
cargo from the Gaza Flotilla and bring 
the aid thr9_1,1gh the Kerem Shalom 

crossing. [ 0 [ 

[_ =_ ==--==l'Wl~~g:> LG~=== 

Full Article> 

.S.1112ply ofwell!lQill!.~ [!] 
board the Mayi Marmara 
After passengers on board departed the 
ship, security forces began checking 
the boat and found a cache of weapons. 

@1 
l'.!!!Urtic.!e > 

e=~~======= 
Y.idf<!Ll'y_e.witniiss accom1tJ>,y_Nn.Yi!.l [!] 
~.Q)dier: "They sh.21.l!l us the entire 
~~ 
One of the solders injured while 
intercepting the Mavi Marama ship 
gives an eye wi\ness account of how 
his group was beaten and lynched. "We 
came to speak, they came to fight." 

Full Article> ~--·------

~EvlEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer) 
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!i.ngtish > ~s..Qwi.Mls. >News an.>!JlYfill.lli > WQ > h.!n!l >Video: Hw 
aid from flotilla transferred into Gaza · 
Video: Humanitarian aid from flotilla transferred into Gaza 
01Ju!le2010,19:27 

IDF forces W1load the humanitarian cargo from the @ Humanitarian Aid Tre 
Gaza Flotilla and bring the aid through the Kerem Gaza Slrlp 

Shalom crossinJ @ I 
An average of I 0,000 tons of aid a week are 
imported into the Gaza Strip in coordination with 
international organizations through the land 
crossings. However, there remains a maritime 
closure on the strip as Barnas continues to smuggle 
weapons through tunnels for use against Israeli 
civilians. 

For more information about the IDF's humanitarian 
operations visit: www.jdfspokesperson.com and 
https://www.swive].com/peQ!2l.ef1.!U!l.J.8.2 

Humilllitarian aid int 
Strip. Photo: IDF Sp 

~ gere•h I 
~I 
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Videos 1 

Ap_p_Qinttnrolli 

A War Joumfil 

Video: Humanitarian gjci.frpm f).Qli.l.lll § Humanitarian Aid Transfer 
trfil]l!,~.Il~~JJllQ..Qa.zq Gazo Stnp 

IDF forces unload the humanitarian 
cargo from the Gaza Flotilla and bring 
the aid thrnu the Kerem Shalom 

crossing. 0 
u. ____ u ., __________ JC'l.Jll __ fil!\S!£ > \=-==~-= 

S.\!p.))1)'..~Y.~.Qll 0 
b.rullil.~narn 

After passengers on board departed the 
ship, security forces began checking 
the boat and found a cache of weapons. 

[®] 
Full Article> 

NR 
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Yide9_cy.llwitness accoun.U;iy_N.llY!!l. EJ 
soldier: "They shot at us the entire 
~ 
One oftl1e solders injured while 
intercepting the Mavi Marama ship 
gives an eye witness account of how 
his group was beaten and lynched. "We 
came to speak, they came to fight." 

Full Article> 

li!EVIEWAUTHORITYi. Sh~ron Ahmad, Senior Revlew-i!J 
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0 About l!J IDF Units B Joining tho IDF 0 Multimedia [!] Se~r 0 r··-· 
English > News Channels > New:i..mE.wllJi > 2fil.Q > ~ > Breaking F 
from Mavi Marmara interception 
Breaking Footage from Mavi Marmara interception 
02 June 2010 , 14::.:.5=-3 ________ _ 

Video shows [!] (lr0nade thrown from Mavl MEmiara 
what took place towords IDF soldlera 

as IDF soldiers 
intercepted the 
Mavi Marmara 
ship and were 
attacked by its 
passengers 

Elana Kieffer 

Video footage 
shows Shayetet 
Naval Special 
Forces 
attempting to 
intercept the 
Mavi Marmara 
ship which is 
part of the Gaza 
flotilla. 
Passengers on 
board ate seen 
throwing 
chains, metal 
pipes and a stun 
grenade at the 
soldiers while 
attacking them 
with water 
hoses. The 
passengers later 
use the same 
metal pipes to 
beat the 
soldiers who 
boarded the 
Mam1ara. The 
soldiers can be 
seen armed 
wlth paintball 
guns, to be 

Photograph shows a grenade 
being thrown from the Mavi 
Marmara ship towards IDS 
soldiers. Photo: taken from 
video clip 

[!] bullet proof vests 

Pictured here is a pile of bullet 
proof vests foudn on board the 
Mavi Marmara ship. Photo: 
Arielle Yahalom, IDF 
Spokesperson 

More Articles 
used as a means Allitc.k!>Luii.the IDE soldiers fq_und to be ALQae<la men 
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of riot 
dispersal. 

Five other ships 
arrived to the 
area with the. 
flotilla, 

yjdeo·Release: "Tl.teyc1irn.li.!:in&-Qn us with livU11:<i.!~~. 
Vided' IAF!fil:)>e_ts mililllfi{,gmyR.pmpating_t2;launch rq 
J.!2E.i11l¢fofStaff.lQ.i.<Omb.fil.filili!j~rs: "You Qllm:ated ou 
Terror attack lhwQtl.<J.QJtl.QDg.Qili_~~y_f@.<;.!l 
Vid_~P.:J:IYIDRllitarian aid from 0QlilllLttl!lJ.tlerred i!!JQJJj 

however IDF interception took place with no incident. The passengers on I 
other ships cooperated nonviolently with IDF soldiers and there were no ir 
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Law, Rosema1rv C 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

(RELEASED IN PART 83 DOD-CP,83 DODFGl,B5,B6I 

Aswad, Evelyn M 
Monday, May31, 2010 4:30 PM 
Schwartz, Jonathan B; 'Stephen & Betsy Pompet/Andersen': Perina. Alexandra H; Baumert, 
Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sullivan, David J; Pomper,.Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; 
I II ownley. Stephen G; Banos. Mariano H; Martin, Julie B 
RE: L comments on MFA flotil la briefing> 

Looping in Mariano & Julie, EA 

--------.. --... -- - - ------. - - --.-~----------------~-·---·--

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:10 PM 

86 

To: 'Stephen & Betsy Pamper/Andersen'; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas 
B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Cc: Aswad, Evely·n M; Sullivan, David J; Pamper, Stephen E; Guarin; Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; [- - ) 86 
Townley, Stephen G 
Subject: RE: l comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Jon 

. ... -· ----- - ···-·-- ... . --
From: Stephen 81. Betsy Pomper/Andersenl l 86 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:14 PM 
To: Schwartz; Jo1nathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Cc: Aswad; Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pamper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; [ I 86 
Townley, Stephen G 
Subject: RE: l comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Folks-- !REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Revieweij 

Here is a quick summary of where we seem to be on the grabbag of issues relating to the Israeli action off 
of Gaza (please! jump in/correct as appropriate); 
~----------------------------------------~ 
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86 

From San Remo Manual on International Law Applicable to Armed Conflicts at Sea, 12 June 1994 

http://www.icrc.org/ihl.nsf/385ec082b509e76c41256739003e636d/?694fe2016f347e 1c125641f002d49ce 

Blockade 

93. A blockade shall be declared and notified to all belligerents and neutral States. 

94. The declaration shall specify the commencement, duration, location, and extent of the blockade and the period within 
which vessels of neutral States may leave the blockaded coastline. 

95. A blockade must be effective. The question whether a blockade is effective is a question of tact. 

96. The force maintaining the blockade may be stationed at a distance determined by military requirements. 

97. A blockade may be enforced and maintained by a combination of legitimate methods and means of warfare provided 
this combination <foes not result in acts inconsistent with the rules set out in this document. 

9B. Merchant vessels believed on reasonable grounds to be breaching a blockade may be captured. Merchant vessels 
which, after prior warning, clearly resist capture may be attacked. 

24 
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99. A blockade miust not bar access to the ports and coasts of neutral States. 

100. A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels of all States. 

101 . The cessation, temporary lifting, re-establishment, extension or other alteration of a blockade must be declared and 
notified as in paragraphs 93 and 94. 

102. The declarattion or establishment of a blockade is prohibited if: 

(a) it has the sole purpose of starvf ng the civilian population or denying it other objects essential for its survival; or 
(b) the damage to the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in relation to the concrete and direct 
military advantag•e anticipated from the blockade. 

103. If the civilian population of the blockaded territory is inadequately provided wtth food and other objects essential for 
its survival, the blockading party must provide for free passage of such foodstuffs and other essential supplies, subject to: 

(a) the right to prHscribe the technical arrangements, including search. under which such passage is permitted; and 
(b) the condition that the distribution of such supplies shall be made under the local supervision of a Protecting Power or a 
humanitarian organization which offers guarantees ot impartiality, such as the International Committee of the Red Cro~s. 

104. The blockading belligerent shall allow the passage of medical supplies for the c ivilian population or for the wounded 
and sick membens of armed forces. subject to the right to prescribe technical arrangements, including search, under which 
such passage is permitted. 

Zones 

105. A belligerent: cannot be absolved ot its duties under international humanitarian law by establishing zones which might 
adversely affect tl:ie legitimate uses of defined areas of the sea. 

106, Should a belligerent, as an exceptional measure. establish such a zone: 

(a) the same body of law applies both Inside and outside the zone; 
(b) the extent, location and duration of the zone and the measures imposed shall not exceed what is strictly· required by 
military necessity and the principles of proportionality; 
(c) due regard shall be given to the rights of neutral States to legitimate uses of the seas; 
(d) necessary saf1e passage through the zone tor neutral vessels and aircraft shall be provided: 
(i) where the geooraphical extent of the zone significantly impedes free and safe access to the ports and coasts of a 
neutral State; 
(ii) in other cases where normal navigation routes are affected, except where military requirements do not permit; and 
(e) the commencE~ment, duration, location and extent of the zone, as well as the restrictions imposed, shall be publicly' 
declared and apprropriately notified. 

107. Compliance with ttie measures taken by one belligerent in the zone shall not be construed as an act harmful to the 
opposing belligemnt. 

108. Nothing in th.is Section should be deemed to derogate from the customary belligerent right to control neutral vess·e1s 
and aircraft in the immediate vicinity of naval operations. 

from Comman1tler's Handbook 

7.7 BLOCKADE 
7. 7 .J General 
Blockade is a belligerent operation to prevent vessels and/or aircraft of all nations, enemy as well as neutral, from 
entering or exiting specified ports, airfields, or coastal areas belonging to, occupied by, or under the control of an 
enemy nation. While the belligerent right of visit and search is designed to interdict the flow of contraband goods, 
the hclligerent riglht of blockade is intended to prevent vessels and aircraft, regardless of their cargo, from 
crossing an establ:ished and publicized cordon separating the enemy from internationaJ waters and/or airspace. 
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7.7.2 Criteria fo1r Blockades 
To be valid, a blockade must conform to the criteria rn the following paragraphs. 
7.7.2.l Establishment 
A blockade must be established by the government of the belligerent nation. This is usually accomplished by a 
declaration of the belligerent government or by the commander of che blockading force acting on behalf of the belligerent 
government. The declaration should include, as a minimum, the date the blockade is to begin, its 
geograp.hic timits, and the grace period granted neutral vessels and aircraft to leave the area to be blockaded. 
7.7,2.2 Notification 
II is customary for the belligerent na1ion establishing !he blockade 10 notify all affected nations of its imposition. 
Because knowledge of the existence of a blockade is an essential clement of the offenses of breach and attempted 
breach of blockade (see paragraph 7. 7.4), neutral vessels and airaafl are always entitled to notification. The 
commander of th•:: blockading forces will usually also not·ify local authorities in the blockaded area. The form of 
the notification is not material so long as it is effective. 
7.7.2.3 Effective1Bess 
To be valid, a blockade must be effective~that is, it must be maintained by a surface, air, or subsurface forq! or 
other legitimate methods and means of warfare that is sufficient to render ingress or egress of the blockaded area 
dangerous. The requirement of effectiveness does not preclude temporary absence of the blockading force, if such 
ab)jence is due to stress of weather or lo some other reason connected with the blockade (e.g., pursuit of a 
blockade runner) .. Effectiveness does not require that every possible avenue of approach to the blockaded area be 
covered. 
7.7.2.4 lmpartiallity 
A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels and aircraft of all nations. Discrimination by the blockading 
belligerent in faV•;)r of or against the vessels and aircraft of particular nations, including those of its own or those 
of an allied naiion, renders the blockade legally invalid. 
7.7.2.5 Limitations 
A blockade must not bar access to or departure from neutral ports and coasts. Neutral nations retain tlte right to 
engage in neutral commerce that does not involve trade or CQmmunications originating in or desrined for the 
blockaded area. A blockade is prohibited if the sole purpose is to starve the civilian population or Lo deny it other 
objects essential for its survival. 
7.7.3 Special Enltry and Exit Authorization 
Allhough neutral warships and military aircraft enjoy no positive right of access to blockaded areas, the 
belligerent imposing the blockade may authorize their entry and exit. Such special authorization may be made 
subject to such conditions as the blockading force considers robe necessary and expedient. Neutral vessels and 
aircraft in evident distress should be authorized entry imo a blockaded area, and subsequently authorized to 
depart, under conditions prescribed by the officer in ccmmand of the blockading force or responsible for 
maintenance of the blockading instrumentality (e.g., mines). Similarly, neutral vessels and aircraft engaged in the 
carriage of quali~ying relief supplies for the civilian population and the sick and wounded should be authorized to 
pass. through the blockade cordon, subject to the right of the blockading force to prescribe the technical 
arrangements, inducting search, under which passage is permilled. 
7.7.4 Breach and! Attempted Breach of Blockade 
Breach of blockade is the passage of a vessel or aircraft through a blockade without special entry or exit 
authorii.ation from the blockading belligerent. Attempted breach of blockade occurs from the time a vessel or 
aircraft leaves a port or airfield with the intention of evading the blockade, and for vessels exiling the blockaded 
area, continues until the voyage is completed. Knowledge of the existence of the blockade is essential to the 
offenses of breach of blockade and attempted breach of blockade. Knowledge may be presumed once a blockade 
has heen declared and appropriate no!ification provided to affected governments. It is immaterial that the vessel or 
aircraft is at the time of interception bound for neutral territory, if its ultimate destination is the blockaded area. 
There is a presumption of attempted breach of blockade where vessels or aircraft are bound for a neutral port or airfield 
serving as a poinr of transit to the blockaded area. {Capture of such vessels is discussed in paragraph 
7.10.) 
7.7.5 Contemponry Practice 
The criteria for valid blockades, as set out above in paragraph 7.7.2, are for the most part customary in nature, 
having derived th1eir definitive form through the practice of maritime powers during the nine1eenth century. The 
rules reflect a balance between the right of a belligerent possessing effective command of the sea to close enemy 
ports and coastlines 10 in1ernational commerce, and the right of neutral nations to carry out neutral commerce with 
the least possible interference from befligerent forces. The law of blockade is, therefore, premised on a system of 
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controls designed to effect only a limited interference with neutral trade. This was traditionally accomplished by a 
relatively "ciose-iin" cordon of surface watships stationed in the immedi<1te vicinity of the blockaded area. 
The increasing ennphasis in modern warfare on seeking to isolate completely the enemy from outside assistance 
and resources by targeting enemy merchant vessels as well as warships, and on interdicting all neutral commerce 
with the enemy, is not furthered substantially by blockades established in strict conformity with the rradirional 
rules. In World Wars I and ll, belligerents of both sides resorted to methods which, although frequently referred to 
as measures of bll()ckade, cannot be reconciled with the traditional concept of the close-in blockade. The so-called 
long-distance blockade of both world wars departed materially from those traditional rules and were premised in 
large measure upon the belligerent right of reprisal against illegal acts of warfare on the part of the enemy. 
Moreover, developments in weapons systems and platforms, particularly s ubmarines, supersonic aircraft, and 
cruise missiles, lt:ave rendered the in-shore blockade exceedingly difficult, if not impossible, to maintain during 
anything other than a local or limited armed conflict. Accordingly, the characteristics of modern weapon systems 
will be a factor ini analyzing the effectiveness of contemporary blockades. 
Notwithstanding this trend in belligerent practices (during general war) away from lhe establishment of blockades 
that conform ro the traditional rules, b1oc.kadc continues to be a useful means lo regulate lhe competing interests 
of belligerents and neutrals in more limited armed conflict. The experience of the United States during the 
Vietnam conflict provides a case in point. The closing of Haiphong and other North Vietnamese ports, 
accomplished by the emplacement of mines, was undertaken in conformity wi th traditional criteria of 
establishment, notification, effectiveness, limitation, and impartiality, although ar the time the mining took place 
the term "blockadle" was not used. 

From: 
~~~--~~~~~ 

To: schwartzjb@state.gov; perinaah@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; jacobsonl@state.gov; 
heinemanntb@:state.gov; dolanja@state.gov 
CC: aswadem@state.gov; sullivandjl@state.goVj pomperse2@state.gov; guarinrnf@state.gov; 
donoghueje@state.gov 
Subject: RE: L 1comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
Date: Mon, 31 IMay 2010 17 :29:30 +0000 

B6 

~ BS 

~ L comments on MFA flotilla brleTI,-n-g-=->----------------------' 
> Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 13:01:59 -0400 
> From: Schwa rtzJB@state.gov 
>To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; Jacot:>sonl@state.gov; 
HeinemannTB@state.gov; DolanJA@state.gov 
> cc: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanDJl@state.gov; 
Pomp e rS E 2@ st. ate.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov 

> jon 
> 
> -- ---Original Message----­
> From: Perina,, Alexandra H 
>Sent: Mondav, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM 

'--~~~~~~~~~~~~-

>To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, 
Thomas B; Dola1n, JoAnn 
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> Cc: Aswad, E:velyn M; Sullivan, David J; 
Marc F .__ _ _ _ 

Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, _ ________ _, 

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
' 

> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12: 17 PM 
> To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; 
Perina, Alexandlra H 
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullfvan, David J 
> Subject: RE; L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

> -----Original Message-----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11 :40 AM 
> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; 
Perina, Alexandra H 
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

~"~es~s~a~gffie~--~-~--~~============-~==============~====================1 
>From: Baume?rt, Kevin A 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM 
> To: Jacobson,, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan 8; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

> 
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> ----- Original Message -- -- ­
>From: Jacobson, Linda 
>To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
>Sent: Mon May 31 11 :20:32 2010 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

> 
> - -- -- Original Message ----­
> From: Baumert, Kevin A 

l 

>To: Goldber9er, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolah, JoAnn; Jacobson, 
Linda; Perina, .Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
>Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 2010 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

>Kevin 
> l/OES 
> 
> ----- Origina1I Message ----­
>From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
>Sent: Mon May 3110:50:27 2010 
> Subject: FW:: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> ---~ 

I > -----Ong1nal ~~ge----- -------------~---------------~ 
> From: Cunnilngham, James B 
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
> To: Goldberg1er, Thomas H 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flot illa briefing> 

> ----- Original Message----­
> From: GoldbHrger, Thomas H 
>To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly, Maura; 
Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov> 
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn 
>Sent; Mon Miay 31 17:37:00 2010 
> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> , 
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> 
> See below from Jonathan pis. 
> 
> ---- -Original Message-----
> From: Schwa1rtz, Jonathan B 
>Sent: Monday; May 31, 20109:13 AM 
> To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
>Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, 
Thomas B 
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

> ----- Original Message -- --­
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
> To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B 
> Cc: Baumert,, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn 
>Sent: Mon May 31 09:05:16 2010 
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

> 
> ----- Original Message -----
> From: GoldbE!rger, Thomas H 
>To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
>Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 
> Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

= 

85 

85 

85 

> ----- lriginal Message -----
>From: J 83 DOD-GP 
>To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, 
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83 DOD-CP 
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, Jori.: Amodeo, 
Salvatore A (lsltanbul); Connelly, Ma_ura; Feftma~ffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); ..__!_ _____ __, 

_______ _, evin, Jan;L_ I 
> Sent; Mon M;ay 31 08:08:22 2010 
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 
.__~~~--~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~83000-CP 
Many of tpe details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highlights - 83 DODFGI 
> - Ongoing Operation 
> - Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
> - M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 
> - All ships wiill be in port by later today 
> - 10-14 Civi!i.ans Seriously Injured or Killed 
> - 30 Civilians. Wounded 
> - 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds 
> - Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 
> - Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law because of intent 
by flotilla to bre~ach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) 

> 
> 

__ I 

> --l--Qriginal Message---- -
> Frprn: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM 

83 DOD-CP 

>To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, 
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA· IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese; Gregory M; Waters, John R; I I [-·--:--:i Amod1eo, Salvatore A (Istanbul)i Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D 83 000-CP 
> Cc: Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 
> This may laq;1ely repeat at this point what is out in other places andLor others have heard from me, but 
just to assure that various reporting lines· have same info, this is from ho also 86 
spoke with the 'UN's Serry, among others, this am. 
> 
~.----.I reported that when Israel i soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met with wtiat 86 
he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded were 
attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boarded were 
attacked by do2:ens; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation 
was one In which actions taken were in self- defense. 
> 
>Current estimates of those kil led from flotil la 14-15 "maybe more". He said all injured being moved to 
Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them coming int© 
Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; move the 
people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned 
initially, move a1s much of into Gaza as promptly as possible. 
> 
> Earlier this morning! )nade the following calls/contacts: 86 
> --Turkish FM and MoDJ ] Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh! /He felt the calls w the 
Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he will handle. With Pals, 
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Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad 
they discussed primarily need for security cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this wlll 
be affected by status of Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. 
> 
> (PIC seems ti:> be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by It.) 
> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Cunningham, James B 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 20101:38 PM 
>To: Levin, Jatn ; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason 
B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I ____ ] Amodeo, 83 DOD-CP 
Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D 
> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
> Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 
> Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's available. 
UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod. Serry is 
trying to send ci couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that assisting deliveries of humanitarian 
goods, much of which is destined for Harnas, Is problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just ~ave a press 
conference, and appears to have spoken to Davotuglu this am. 
> Sent from my BlackBerry 
> 
> ---.,-- Original Message ----­
> From: Levin1 Jan 
> To·: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; 1 
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I 83 DOD-CP 
Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D 
> Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
> Subject: MFA. flotilla briefing 
> 

83 DODFGI 

? ---

> Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded tak ing time. MFA will reach out proactively to Embassies 
as IDs are donE!, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be processed and escorted to 
airport for depc1rtation. Unclear how long this will take. 
> -- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all injuries 
occurred on this ship. 
> --1 ltold Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and werc83 DODFGI 
armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF soldier 
nearly beaten t•o death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
> -- Events took place in International waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in inti 
waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Hamas. 
> 
> Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank you. 

Hotmail has tools for the New Busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Learn more. 

The New Busy is not the old busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Get started. 
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!RELEASED IN PART 83 000-CP,83 DODFGl,B@ 

Law, Rosemar C 

from: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

Aswad, Evelyn M 
Monday, May 31, 201 O 1 :35 PM 
Schwartz, Jonathan 8: Perina, Alexandra H; Goldberger, Thomas H: Baumert, Kevin A; 
Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann[ Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sullivan, David J;I =1Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; 
Martin, JuHe B; Banos, Mariano H; Rtianna, Melanie J; Harris, Robert K 
RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Looping in Ju1ie Martin who is TDY to Geneva for HRC and following this issue from there as 
well as Mariano who will follow this during the week from DC. EA 

- ----Original Message--- - ­
From: Schwart;~, Jonathan B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:02 PM 
To: Perina, Alexandra H; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, 
Thomas B; Dofon, JoAnn 

85 

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; ; Pomper , Stephen E; BS 
Guarin, Marc F 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flot illa br i efing> 

jon 

-----Original Message---- ­
From: Perina, Alexandra H 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM 
To: Schwartz , Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert , Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; He i nemann, 
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 

85 

Cc: Aswad, EvE~lyn M; Sullivan, David J; · Pomper, Stephen E; BS 
Guarin, Marc F 
Subject: RE : L comments on MFA flotilla br i efing> 

® EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad,SeniOrReVle~ 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05129556 Date: 02/20/2013 



StateDept004316

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
JoAnn; Perina. Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

-----Original Message- ---­
From.: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1.1:40 AM 
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina,. Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, EvE~lyn M; Sullivan, David J 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

I __ 
-----Original Message----­
From: Baumert. Kevin A 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM 
To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina,. Alexandra H 
Cc: ~swad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
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
Cc: . Aswad, Evelyn M 
Sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 2010 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

~-
Original Message 

From: Baumert. Kevin A 

34 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05129556 Date: 02/20/2013 

B5 



StateDept004317

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05129556 Date: 02/20/2013 

To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobso~, 

Linda; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 2010 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Kevin 
l/OES 

Original Message ----­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, 
Linda 
Sent: Mon May 31 10:50:27 2010 
Subject: FW: l. comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

- - --~Original Message----­
Fro~: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Originaf Message 
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly~ 
Maura; Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov> 
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010 
Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

See below from Jonathan pls. 

---~-original Message----­
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

Or iginal Message ----­
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B 
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris , Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sent: Mon May 31 09:05:16 2010 
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

----- Original Message ----­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc : Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan 
Sent; Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 
Subjett: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

B; Knopf, Payton L 

85 

85 

~ 85 

L__·----~~I 
- --- - Original Message -----
Fromi l I 83 DOD-CP 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, 
John R; Amod~ . Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman~ 

(Jerusalem); L ~ Levin, Jan; i:=_1 I I L__ _ ____, 
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Sent : Mon May 31 08:08 :22 2010 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. 

- Ongoing Oper·ation 
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 
- All ships wlll be in port by later today 
- 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Ki l l ed 

30 Civilians wounded 
- 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds 
- Tul"kish Amb21ssador to Israel r ecalled 

83 DOD-CP 
Specific HignI 83 DODFGI 

Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in Internati onal 
because of intent by flotilla to breach the bl ockade. (See Attached Sl ides) 

Law 

- - -- :original Message---- -
From; Rudman , Mara (Jerusalem) 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM 

I 
83 DOD-CP 

To : tunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Siever s, Marc J;• 
Par ker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, 
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maur-a; Feltman, Jes3 000-CP 
D 
Cc: 'Dennis_B. _Ross@nsc.eop.gov ' ; • Dshapil"o@who. eop .gov ' 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

This may large•ly repeat at this point what i s out in other places and/or others have heard 
from me, but just to assure that va rious reporting lines have same info, this is from Gen . 
~---~~---::=J who also spoke with the UN' s Serry, among others, this am . 86 

.___~lreporteid that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met 
with what he d\escribed as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire . 
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc . 
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the 
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions taken were 
in sel f-defens.e. 

Current estima1tes of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all injured 
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some 
reports have them coming into Haifa ) . At Ashdod, he and ot hers will meet the ships. There, 
they will needl to ID the bodies ; move the people either to return them to home countries 
rapidly and/or· detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Gaza as 
promptly as po•ssible. 

Earlier this m1orning l.__ ____ __,lmade the f ollowi ng calls/contacts ~ 
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--Turkish FM and Moo I b Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh I l He felt the 
calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Eroogan and how he 
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of 
rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for security 
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by status of 
Israeli Arab Xslamic leader on board the flotilla. 

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 

- ----Original Message----­
From: Cunningham, James B 
Sent : Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM 
To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker~ Andrew C; 
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; ,_ ___ _, 

I I Amodt!O, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltn93 DOD-CP 
Jeffrey o 
Cc: 'Dennis_B .. _Ross@nsc.eop.gov '; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it ' s 
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships 
in Ashdod. St!rry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that 
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods~ much of which is destined for Hamas, is 
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have spoken to 
Davotuglu this am. 
Sent from my BlackBerry 

- ---- Original Message 
From: Levin, Jan 
To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker , Andrew 
C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I 

I I Amodf!O, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura,'-· ~F~e~l~tn_B_3_DOD-CP 
Jeffrey D 
Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing 83 DOOFGI 

u 

Highlights - J[dentification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively 
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. 
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all 
ipj_i,Jries occurred on this ship. 
( I told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarderB3 DODFGI 
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. 
One IDF soldiE~r nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to 
intercept in i ntl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict 
between Israel and Hamas. 

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, th'ank 
you . 
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@:::LEASED IN PART 83 DOD-CP,83 DODFGl,85,B6J 

Law, Rosemary C 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

Baumert, Kevin A 
Monday, May 31 , 2010 4:54 PM 
eQrnper:, Stephg_n~-A~wad1 Ev~lyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; 

[ _ !Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann. 
Thomas B; Dolan. JoAnn 
Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Marian< 
H; Martin, Julie B 
RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

I 

86 

I 85 

From: Pamper, Stephen E 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 4:31 PM 
To: Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; I !Perina, Ale><andra H; Baumert, Kevin J ; • 

'--~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Julie B 
SUbject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

removing non L address 

I 

I ,I I 

From: Aswad, Evelyn M J 

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; 'Stephen & Betsy Pamper/Andersen' ....._ ___ _ ___ _ __ __, Perina, Alexandr~ H; 1 

Baumert, Kevin A,; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Pamper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; I I 
I _ -=i Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Julies'------~ 

Sent: Mon May 3116:29:33 2010 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Looping in Mariano &Julie. EA REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Re~ 
· · - ·--· • --·---· - - - --- --- -· _,_ 4 - - - -- - -· -----

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Sent: Monday, M.ay 31, 2010 3:10 PM 

86 

86 

86 
86 

To: 'Stephen & BE~tsy Pamper/Andersen'; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomes ' 
B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Cc Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pamper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E;! 86 
Townley, Stephen G 
Subject: RE: L c<>mments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

I 
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I 

F~m-:.Ste~hen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen I I - ·-- -. ---- . -- - . - -·t-1 

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:14 PM 1 
To: Schwartz, Jon1athan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn ' 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; I -- · I 

1 
Townley, Stephen G 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Folks--
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From San Remo Manual on International Law Annlicable to Armed Conflicts at Sea- 12 J~ne 1! 94 

http://www.icrc.or,gJihLnsf/385ec082b509e76c41256739003e636d/7694fe2016f34 7e1c125641 f002d49ce 

Blockade 

93. A blockade shall be declared and notified to all' belligerents and neutral States. 
I 

94. The declaration shall specify the commencement, duration. location, and extent of the blockade and the period witt in , 
which vessels of ineutral States may leave the blockaded coastline. 

95, A blockade must be effective. The question whether a blockade is effective is a question of fact. 

96. The force maiintaining the blockade may be stationed at a distance determined by military requirements. 

97. A blockade may be enforced and maintalned by a combination of legitimate methods and means of warfare provided 
this combination does not result in acts inconsistent with the rules set out in this document. 

98. Merchant vessels believed on reasonable grounds to be breaching a blockade may be captured. Merchant \(essels 
which, after prior warning, clearly resist capture may be attacked. 

99. A blockade must not bar access to the ports and coasts of neutral States. 

100. A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels of all States. 

101. The cessatie>n, temporary lifting, re-establishment, extension or other alteration of a blockade must be declared d 
notified as in paragraphs 93 and 94. ' 

102. The declaration or establishment of a blockade is prohibited if: 

(a) it has the sole purpose of starving the civilian population or denying it other objects essential for its survival; or 
(b) the damage to the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in relation to the concrete and direct 
military advantagt3 anticipated fmm the blockade. 

103. If the civilian population of the blockaded territory is inadequately provided with food and other objects essential flr : 
Its survival, the btockading party must provide for free passage of such foodstuffs and other essential supplies. subject o: 

(a) the right to prescribe the technical arrangements, including search, under which such passage is permitted; and ' 
(b} the condition that the distribution of such supplies shall be made under the local supervision of a Protecting Power 0r a. 
humanitarian organization which offers guarantees of impartiality, such as the International Commfttee of the Red Crosb. , 

. I 

104. The blockadiing belligerent shall allow the passage of medical supplies for the civilian population or for the woundJd 
1 

and sick members of armed forces, subject to the right to prescribe technical arrangements, including search, under w~ich; 
such passage is permitted. I 

ZoneS I : 
; 05. A belligerent cannot be absolved of its duties under international humanitarian law by establishing zones which rl)Fht 
adversely affect tt1e legitimate uses of defined areas of the sea. I 

106. Should a belligerent, as an exceptional measure, establish such a zone: 
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(a) the same bod~r of law applies both inside and outside the zone; 
(b) the extent, location and duration of the zone and the measures imposed shall not exceed what is strictly requjred by 
military necessity and the principles of proportionality; 
(c) due regard shall be given to the rights of neutral States to legitimate uses of the seas; 
(d) necessary sate passage through the zone for neutral vessels and aircraft shall be provided; 
0) where the geo~1raphical extent of the zone significantly impedes free and safe access to the ports and coasts pf a 
neutral State; 
(ii) in other cases where normal navigation routes are affected, except where military requirements do not permif; and 
(e) the commenceiment, duration, location and extent of the zone, as well as the restrictions imposed, shall be pyblicly 
declared and app1ropriately notified. 

107. Compliance with the measures taken by one belligerent In the zone shall not be construed as an act harmful to th 
opposing belllgerEmt. 

108. Nothing in this Section should be deemed to derogate from the customary belligerent right to control neutra! vesse s 1 
and aircraft in the immediate vicinity of naval operations. 

From Commander's Handbook 

7.7 BLOCK.ADE'. 
7.7.l General 
Blockade is a belligerent operation lo prevenr vessels and/or aircraft of all nations, enemy as well as neutral, from 
entering or exiting specified ports, airfields, or coastal areas belonging to, occupied by, or under the control of an 
enemy nation. While the belligerent right of visit and search is designed to interdict the flow of contraband goods, 
the belligerent right of blockade is intended to prevent vessels and aircraft, regardless of their cargo, from 
crossing an establ.ished and publicized cordon separating the enemy from international waters and/or airspace. 
7.7.2 CrUeria for Blockades 
To be valid, a blockade must conform to the criteria in rhe fo llowing paragraphs. 
7.7.2.l Establishment 
A blockade must be established by the government of the belligerent nation. This is usually accomplished by a 
declaration of the belligerent government or by the commander of the bJockading force acting on behaH of the belligere 
government. ihe declaration should include, as a minimum, the date the blockade is to begin, its 
geographic limits, and the grace period granted neutral vessels and aircraft to leave the area to be blockaded. 
7.7.2.2 Notification 
It is customary for the belligerent nation escabJishing Lhe blockade to notify all affected nations of its imposition. 
Because knowledge of the existence of a blockade is an essential element of the offenses of breach and artempt~ 
breach of blockad1e (see paragrapn 7.7.4), neutral vessels and aircraft are always entitled to notification. The 
commander of the blockading forces will usually also notify local authorities in the blockaded area. The form of 
the notification is not material so long as it is effective. 
7.7.2.3 Effectiveness 
To be· valid, a blo<:kade must be effective-that is, it must he mainiained by a surface, air, or subsurface force or 
other legitimate methods and means of warfare that is sufficient lo render ingress or egress of rhe blockaded area 
dangerous. The reiquirement of effectiveness does not preclude temporary absence of the blockading force, if such 
absence is due to stress of weather or to some other reason connected with the blockade (e.g., pursuit of a 
hlockade runner). Effectiveness does not require that every possible avenue of approach to the blockaded area be 
covered. 
7.7.2.4 lmpartialiity 
A blockade must he applied impartially to the vessels and aircraft of all nations. Discrimination by the blockadin:g 
belligerent in favor of or against the vessels and aircraft or particular nations, including those of its own or those 
of an allied nation, renders the blockade legally invalid .. 
7.7.2.S Limitations 
A blockade must not bar access to or departlire from neutral ports and coasts. Neutral nations retain the right to 
engage in neutral commerce that does not involve trade or commu11ications originating in or destined for the 
blockaded area. A blockade is prohibited if the sole purpose is to starve the civilian population or to deny it other 
objects essenrial for its survival. 
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7.7.3 Special Ent:ry and Exit Authorization 
AJthough neutral warships and military aircraft enjoy no positive right of access to blockaded areas, the 
belligerent impos.ing the blockade may authorize lheir entry and exit. Such special authorization may be made 
subject to such wndilions as the blockading force considers to be necessary and expedient. Neutral vessels and 
aircraft in evident distress should be authorized entry in to i;l bll>Ckadcd area, and subsequently aulhorized to 
depart, under con·ditions prescribed by the officer in command of t he blockading force or responsible for 
maintenance of th1e blockading instrumentality (e.g., mines). Similarly, neutral vessels and aircraft engaged in the 
carriage of qualifying relief supplies for the civilian population and the sick and wounded should be authorized (o 
pass througn the blockade cordon, subject to the right of the blockading force to prescribe Lhe technical 
arrangements, inc:luding search, under which passage is permitted. 
7.7.4 Breach and! Attempted Breach of Blockade 
Breach of blockade is the passage of a vessel or aircraft through a blockade without special entry or exit 
au1horization fror.n the blockading belligerent. Attempted breach of blockade occurs from the time a vessel or 
aircraft leaves a port or airfield with the intention of evading 1he blockade, and for vessels exiting the blockaded 
area, continues until the voyage is completed. Knowledge of the existence of the blockade is essential to the 
offenses of breach of blockade and attempted breach of blockade. Knowledge may be presumed once a blockade 
has been declared and appropriate notification provided to affected governments. It is immaterial that the vessel or 
aircraft is at the time of interception bound for neutral territory, if its ultimate destination is the blockaded area. 
There is a presumption of artempted breach of blockade where vessels or aircraft are bound for a neutral porl or airficl 
serving as a point of transit to the blockaded area. (Capture of such vessels is discussed in paragraph 
7.10.) 
7.7.S Contempor-ary Practice 
The criteria for vnlid blockades, as set out above in paragraph 7.7.2, are for the most part customary in nature, 
having derived th·eir definitive form through the practice o[ maritime powers during the nineteenth century. The 
rules renect a balance between the right of a belligerent possessing effective command of the sea to close enemy 
ports and coastlines to international commerce, and rhe right of neutral narions to carry out neutral commerce with 
the least possible interference from belligerent forces. The law of blockade is, therefore, premised on a system o:f 
controls designed lo effect onJy a limited interference with neutral trade. This was traditionally accomplished by. a 
relatively "close-in" cordon of surface warships stationed in the immediate vicioity of the blockaded area. 
The increasing emphasis· in modem warfare on seeking to isolate completely the enemy from outside assistance 
and resources by ltargeting enemy merchant vessels as well as warships, and on interdicting all neutral commerce 
with the enemy, iis not furthered substantially by blockades established in strict conformity with the traditional 
rules. In World Wars 1and11, belligerents of both sides resorted to methods which, although frequently referred to 
as measures of blockade, cannot be reconciled with the traditional concept of the close-in blockade. The so-callyd 
long-dis1ance blockade of both world wars departed materially from those traditional rules and were premised in 
large measure upon the belligerent right of reprisal against illegal acts of warfare on the part of the enemy. 
Moreover, developments in weapons systems and platforms, particularly submarines, supersonic aircraft, and 
cruise missiles, have rendered the in-shore blockade exceedingly difficult, if not impossible, to rnainlain during . 
anything other than a local or limited armed conflict. Accordingly, rhe characteristics of modern weapon systems 
will be a factor in analyzing the effectiveness of corHemporary blockades. 
Notwithstanding t:his trend in belligerent practices (during general war) away from the establishment of blockades 
that conform to the traditional rules, blockade continues to be a useful means to regulate the competing interests 
of belligerents and neutrals in more limited armed conflict The experience of the United States during the 
Vietnam contlict 1provides a case in point. The closing of Haiphong and other North Vietnamese pons, 
accomplished by the emplacement of mines, was undertaken in conformity with traditional criteria of 
establishment, notification, effecriveness, limitation, and impartiality, although al the time the mining took place 
the term "blockade" was not used. 

From: _ I 
To: schwartzjb@state.gov; perinaah@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; jacobsonl@state.gov; 
heinemanntb@state.gov; dofanja@state.gov 
CC: aswadem@state.gov; sullivandjl@state.gov; pomperse2@state.govi guarinmf@state.gov; 
donoghueje@st.ate.gov 
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Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 17:29:30 +0000 

Marc Guarin is ~~oing to log in and weigh in on this question. I also reached out to JCS legal to see if the 
have a Navy lawyer we can talk to. Have taken Tom G off this chain for the moment. Steve 

>Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
>Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 13:01:59 -0400 
> From: SchwartzJB@state.gov 
>To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; JacobsonL@state.gov; 
HeinemannTB@state.gov; DolanJA@state.gov __ 
>CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanDJl@state.gov; L ___________ __, 
PomperSE2@state.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov - ------------ - - -------- - - - - - --'---. 

> ----Original Message---- ­
> From: Perina,, Alexandra H 
>Sent: Mondav, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM 

86 

BS 

> :ro: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, 
Thomas B; Dola1n, JoAnn 
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; L Pomper, Stephen E; ,Guari11 ' 86 
Marc F 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

85 

: 

> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:17 PM 
>To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; 1 

Perina, Alexandra H · 
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>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

> -----Original !Message-----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
>Sent: Monda)(, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM 
>To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; 
Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: RE: l comments on MFA flo,tilla briefing> 

----- --- ---L-
> -----Ohgmal !Message---- ­
> From: Baume!rt, Kevin A 
>Sent: Monda)I, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM 

J 
>To.: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 
JoAnh; Perina, 16..lexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad1 Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> = ----------'---. 
> ---- - Original Message----­
> From: Jacobson, Linda 
>To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina, 16..lexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
> Se'nt: Mon May 31 11 :20:32 2010 
>Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

> ----· Original Message ----­
> From: Baurne?rt, Kevin A 
>To: Goldberg1er, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, 
Linda; Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad1 Evelyn M 
> Sent: Mon May 31 11: 18: 29 2010 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

> JOES 
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> 
sage -----> ----- Original Mes 

> From: Goldberger 
>To: Schwartz, Jon 
> Sent: Mon Ma1y 31 
>Subject: FW: L co 

, Thomas H 
athan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
10:50:27 2010 

mments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

~~-~~~an-n::::::r:) ·-::r-
m, James B > From: Cunningha 

>Sent: Monday, Ma 
>To: GoldbergE~r, T 
> Subject: Re: IL co 

y 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
homas H 
mments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

r_ 
sage-----
, Thomas H 
James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly, Maura'; 

> -- --- Original Mes 
> From: Goldberger 
> To: Cunningham, 
Schlicher, Ronald L; 
> Cc: Holmstrom, T 
> Sent: Mon Ma.y 31 
>Subject: FW: L co 

'Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Danlel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov> 
odd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn 

17:37:00 2010 
mments on MFA flotilla briefing> ' 

> 
> See below from Jo nathan pis. 
> 

age-----
onathan B 
y 31, 2010 9:13 AM 
homas H 

> -----Original Mess 
> From: Schwartz, J 
> Sent: Monday, Ma 
>To: Goldberger, T 
> Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, 
Thomas B 
> Subject: Fw: IMFA 
> 

>Jon 
> 

flotilla briefing 

> ---- Original Message ----­
>From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 

-

>To: Perina, Al1exandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B 
> Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn 
>Sent: Mon May 31 09:05:16 2010 
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

I 

~----------------- --
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> --- -- Original Message -----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
> To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
>Sent: Mon Ma1y 31 08:24:00 2010 
> Subiect: FW: MFA flotilla briefina 

85 

? 

> ----- Original Message ----- I . 
> From~ 83 DOD-CP 
>To: Cunningh.am, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, I 
Andr~w C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R· Amod~<?.ti 

Salvatore A (Ist;anbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem);.__ _____ __, 
.._.,._ _____ , ______ ___,! Levin, Jan; I I 
>Sent: Mon Maiy 31 08:08:22 2010 
> Subject: RE: IMFA flotilla briefing 
> 

' 
_ _ 83000-CP 

Many of the detiails briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highlights - 83 DODFGI 
> - Ongoing Op12ration ' 
> - Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
> - M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 
> - All ships will be in port by later today :: 
> - 10-14 Civllic:ins Seriously Injured or Killed 
> - 30 Civilians Wounded 
> - 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with ;,medium" wounds 
> - Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 
> - Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law because of inti nt 
by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) 

J I 83 DOD-CP · 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 

~-----------~ 
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> -----Original !Message--- --
> From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 
> Sent: Monda)!, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM 
>To: Cunninghtam, James B; Levin, Jan.; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; ~er. __ 
Andrew C; Grut>b, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; L_ I . 
l . __ =1 Amod1?0, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D 83 000-CP 
> Cc: 'Dennis~B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' J 
> Subject : RE: MFA flotilla briefing 
> I 

> This may larg1ely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard from me, b t 
just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from ho als 86 
spoke with the ILJN's Serry, among others, this am. 
>·~--~ 

~ ~eported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met with wh t 
he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded were 
attacked with kinives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boarded we e 
attacked by doz:ens; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situat1 n 
was one in whic:h actions taken were in self-defense. 
> 
>Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all injured being moved to 
Israeli hospital ·- by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them coming into 
Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others wilt meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; move the 
people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ro the cargo and as planned 
initially, move a1s much of into Gaza as promptly as possible. 
> 
> Earlier this morning made the following calls/contacts: 
> --Turkish FM and MoDI l Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheik~ ·· IHe felt the cal ls wt e 
Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan an'cniow he will handle. With Pals ' 
Erakat in partic1Jlar, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayya~ 
they discussed IPrimarily need for securlty coop.eration, keeping things calm. Concern about how this wil 
be affected by status of Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla . 
> 
> (PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 
> 
> ---,--Original Message-----
> From: Cunnir:1gham, James B 
>sent: Mondav, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM ·I 
>To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew Ci Grubb, Jasor; 
B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; L --~ Amodeo, 83 000-CP 
Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D I 
>Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
> Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 1 

~ Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as It 's availabl . 
UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod. Serry is 
trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that assist ing deliveries of humanitarian 
goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press 
conference, and appears to have spoken to Davotuglu this am. 
> Sent from my BlackBerry 
> 
> ----- Original Message----­
> From: Levln, Jan 
>To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker. Andreyv C; . 
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;L _ 83 000-CP 
Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura~ Feltman, Jeffrey D 
> Sent: Mon Ma1y 31 13~20:31 2010 
> Subject: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 
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I . 
[~ 

> 
- -----,-

83 DODFGI 
I 

> Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactivety to Embassi s 
as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be processed and escorted, to 
airport for depolrtation. Unclear how long this wilt take. 
> -- Most violenice occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all injuries: 
occurred on this; ship. 
> -- told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and werEB3 OODFGI 
armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF soldier 
nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. I 
> -- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in inti 
waters because there is a rniltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Hamas. 
> 
> Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank yo 

Hotmail has tools for the New Busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Learn more. 

The New Busy is not the old busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Get started. 
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Law, Rosema1 c 
From: Baumert, Kevin A 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12;24 PM 
To: Schwartz. Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; 

Dolan, JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Yes, just to confirm, that was my point. Thanks. Kevin 

--- -- Original Message - - --­
From: Schwart2'., Jonathan B 
To : Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Hei nemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, EvE!lyn M; Sullivan, David J 
Sent: Mon May 31 12:17 :15 2010 
Subject: RE: l. comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

----- - ------~ 

- ----Original Message- ---­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM 
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Eve~lyn M; Sullivan, David J 
Subject : RE: l. comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

C _ __ _ 
-----Original Message-- - -­
From: Baumert, Kevin A 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM 
To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivanj David J 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

----- Original Message --- - ­
Fram: Jacobson, Linda 
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger~ Thomas H~ Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dol 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewetj 
Sent: Mon May 31 11 : 20:32 2010 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

6 

- ~ 
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----- Original Message 
From: Baumert, Kevin A 
To: Goldberge1r, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson 
Lind~; Perina) Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Ev1elyn M 
Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 2010 
Subject: Re: IL comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Kevin 
L/OES 

----- Original Message -- --­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, 
Linda 
Sent: Mon May 31 10: 50:27 2010 
Subject: FW: IL comments on MFA flotilla br iefing> 

'-------------==] -----Original Message-- --­
From·: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subject : Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Sent from my BlackBerry 

----- Original Message ----­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To; Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly, 
Maura; Schlicher, Ronald L; ·oaniel_B.~Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov>. 
Cc: Holmstrom" Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010 
Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla bri efing> 

See below frmn Jonathan pls. 

-- ---Original Message-- --­
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
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Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM 
To: Goldberger , Thomas H 
Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, 
Thomas B 

JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemarn, 1 

Subject: Fw; ~FA flotilla briefing 

Jon 

- ---- Original Message ----­
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B 
Cc: Baumert, !Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dol an , JoAnn 
Sent: Mon May 31 09:05:16 2010 
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

- ------
Jon 

----- Original Message ----­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To : Dolan, JoJ\nn; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc: Holmstromp Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 

' 

C::.ub j ect • EW • MFA floti..._ 11.....,~~h....__.. ... ;.s::. "''"-'-.fi" nw:=..a _____________________ _ ___ ....__,· 

I 

' 

85 

85 
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- - --- Original Message - ---- I : 
From: I l 83 000-CP 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; j I ·. 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, J 

John' R; Amodeo, Sal vatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara 
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l 
J,93 000-CP (Jerusalem); r 

[ J 
Levin, Jan; I 

Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

- 83 000-CP 
'-:-:~~-:--:-;-~7~:---;--;:------:-----:--=--:-~~--;;,-----,---,,---~~~':'""'.""-,---..,.~----,~~~~~-=-~-=-=-.,,--~~~ 

Many of the dE~tails briefed have already been provided via other means . Speci fie High.183 OOOFGI 

- Ohgoing Operation 
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
- M/V MAVI MAHMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 
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

Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International law 
because of intent by flotilla to breach t he blockade. (See ~ttached Slides) 

I 

-- ---Original Message-----
From~ Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 
Sent,: Monday, May 31, 2010 2: 46 PM 

83 000-CP 

To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; ' , 
Parker,~i.J:.;__Grubb. J,son B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, 
John R; I_ _ Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Je83 000-CP 
o I 
Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: RE: ll'IFA flotilla briefing 

This may large~ly repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have tteard 
from me, but just to assure that various reporti ng lines have same info, this is from~ 

I -----' who also spoke with the UN's Serry, amm~g others, this am. 86 

.__ _ __,I reporte·d that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship; they me 
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. 
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. 
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the 
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions taken wer 
in self-defense. 

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more" . He said all injured 
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (s~me 

reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. Ther , 1 

they will need to IO the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries 
rapidly and/or detain; !D the cargo and as planned initially, move as muc h of into Gaza as· 
promptly as possible. 
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Earlier this morning) I made the following calls/contacts: 
--Turkish FM and MoDl J Erakat, Fayyad; and Hussein al Sheikh ~ J He felt the : 86 
calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clear y is Eraogan and how he 
will handle. With Pals, Erakat i n particul ar, they discussed extent to which levels of 
rhetoric coult:i be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for security 
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will b.e affected by status of 
Israeli Arab I slamic leader on board the flotilla . 

(PIC seems to be on track/going f orward. Some events may be affected by it.) 

-----Original Message----­
From: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1 : 38 PM 
To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey , James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; 
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-OL; GreeneJ Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I _ I 
[_ ] Amod1~0, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltn83 000-CP 
Jeffrey D 
Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov ' ; 'Dshapiro@who.eop .gov' . 
Subje{'.t: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon a's it' 
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwa rding cargo from ship 
in Ashdod. S•~rry is trying to send a couple of observe.rs to Ashdod, has t old cogat that 
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods , much of which is destined for Hamas, is 
problemmatic hut he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have spoken o 
Davotuglu thi!> am. 
Sent from my BlackBerry 

----- Original Message 
From: Levin, :Jan 
To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, ,-.:;_ _ _,_~ 
C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; 

I I Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura;---=F-e~t-m_a_n~. ~ 

Jeffrey o 83 000-CP 
Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing 

83 OODFGI 

Highlights - Jldentification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactivel 
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. 
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all J 

injuries occurred on this ship . 
.__ ______ ]told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders •83 OOOFGI 

were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. 
One IDF soldiE!r nearly beaten to death with metal bar . Activists also had knives. 
_, Events took place in international waters . Israel asser~ed it had the legal right to 
intercept in jlntl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed confli 
between Israell and Hamas. 

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, th nk 
you. 
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!RELEASED IN PART 83 DOD-CP,83 DODFGl,85,861 

Law, Rosema1r C 

From: Baumert, Kevin A 
Sent: 
To: 

Monday, May 31, 2010 3:02 PM . 
'Stephen & Betsy Pamper/Andersen'; Schwartz, Jonathan 8; Pedna, Alexandra H: Jacobs n. '. 
Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pornper, Stephen E: Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E 1 

RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
Cc: 
Subject: 

I'm going to be inaccessible by email for a few hours. Here is my $.02 on the laws of the sea angle. This can be re­
packaged, as appropriate to the broader policy distro. 

Thanks, 
Kevin 

. -----------~===__;- ·:;...;-'-'-· --'------·-......;;;;.- ...:;;-..;;;-;.;;;;,- ·- --------- ··· ---- - I 
From: Stephen Bl Betsy Pomper/Andersenl,_____ _ _ I 
Sent: Monday, Mlay 31, 2010 1:30 PM 
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, Jo :i.nn! 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E 
subject: RE: L c1omments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Marc Guarin is <going to log in and weigh in on this question. I also reached out to JCS legal to see if they 1 

have a Navy lawyer we can talk to. Have taken Tom Goff this chain for the moment. Steve ' 

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> Date: Mon, 31 M<w 2010 13:01 :59 -0400 
> From: Schwa1rtzJB@state.gov 
>To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; JacobsonL@state.govj 
HeinemannTB@state.gov; DolanJA@state.gov 
>CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanDJl@state.gov; I 1 
PomperSE2@state.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov 
> 

> jon 
[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewe~ > 

> ----Original Message-----
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
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; I lPomper, Stephen Ei. Guar n, 1 86 
Marc F '--------------

I 

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> -

> 
> -----Original !Message- ---
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
>Sent:. Monda){, May 31, 201012:17 PM . 
>To: Goldberg1er, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnr); 
Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn t--1; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> -

L ---- -

> - ----Original Message-----
>From: Goldbeirger, Thomas H 
> Sent: Monda){, May 31, 2010 11 :40 AM 
>To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject : RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> -
"' 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Baume:rt, Kevin A 
>Sent: Monda)', May 31, 2010 11 :34 AM 
>To_: Jacobson,, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Do.lan 1 

JoAn.n; Perina, J~lexandra H 
' 

>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotllla briefing> 

,-->-
'IL 

I 
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> 
> ----- Original Message ----­
> From: Jacobson, Linda 
>To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina, 11\lexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
>Sent: Mon May 3111:20:32 2010 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

> 
> ----- Original Message ----­
> From: Baume!rt, Kevin A 

I 

> To: Goldberg•er, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, 
Linda; Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
>Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 2010 
> Subject : Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

> 
>Kevin 
> LJOES 
> 
> ----- Original Message -----
> From: Goldbe:rger, Thomas H 
>To: Schwartz,. Jonathan 8; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
> Sent: Mon Ma1y 3110:50:27 2010 

:j 
I 

> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 1 

L ---======: > -----Original Message-----
> From: Cunningham, James B 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
>To: Goldbergm, Thomas H 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

> ----- Original Message -----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H 1 

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
> 
> See below frnm Jonathan pis. 
> 
> -----Origincil Message-----
> From: Schwa1rtz, Jonathan B 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 20109:13 AM 
> To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
> Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, 
Thomas B 
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

>Jon 
> 
> - ---- Original Message--- -­
> From: Schwa1rtz, Jonathan B 
> To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B 
> Cc: Baumert,. Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn 
>Sent: Mon M:ay 31 09:05: 16 2010 
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

>Jon 
> 
> ----- Original Message ----­
>From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
> To: Dolan, Jo•Ann; Jacobson, Linda 
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
>Sent: Mon M<:ty 31 08 :24:00 2010 
> Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

C ____ --------.---,-. 
> 
> ----- , riginal Message ----­
>From: 
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>To: Cunningham, James 6; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, 
Andrew C; Grulbb, Jason 6; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo 
Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); r J 
I ~ Levin, Jan; I I 83 000-CP 
>Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 
>Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 

..-,-......,..,..,~--,83 000-CP 
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highlights - 83 DODFGI 
> - Ongoing Operation 
> - Two Ships l1n Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
> - M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 
> - All ships will be in port by later today 
> - 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed 
> - 30 Civilians Wounded 
> - 10 IDF wou1nded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds 
> - Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 1 
> - Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law because of lnt~n~ 
by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) · 
> 

~~~--~~~~~~~~ I 
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

· ' 

Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I J 
I _ - 1 Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D 83 DOD-CP· 
> Cc:"t5'ennis_IB._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 1 · . 
>Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing ' .. ' 

~ This may lar~1ety repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard from me, b t ; 
just to assure t,hat various reporting lines have same info, this is from I rho al 0 I 86 
spok:e with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. J ' 
> I 

>( =:Jeported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met with w · at : 86 
he described as: clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded were I , 
attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boarded wJre ' 
attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situal1on 
was one in which actions taken were in self-defense. I 
> 
>Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all injured being moved t< 
Isra~li hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them coming intq 
Haifa) . At Ashd1~d, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; move the ' 
people either tc1 return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned 
initially, move cts much of into Gaza as promptly as possible. 
> 
> Earlier this morningl.___,.= =......----'lmade the following calls/contacts: , 
> --Turkish FM and MoDI ~ Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh r.__ __ __JIHe felt the ca1:1s w the : 86 

~ I 
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Turks given thE! situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he will handle. With Pals 
Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. With .Fayya 
they discussed primarily need for security cooperation; keeping things calm. Concern about how t~is wit 
be affected by status of Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. 
> 
> (PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by ft.) 
> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Cunningham, James B 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM , 
>To: Levin, Jani Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew J Grubb, Jaso 
B; NEA-IPA-DL;; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John RJI Amodeo, 63 DOD-CP 
Salvatore A (Is1tanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; i;Feitman, Jeffrey D- ' 
> Cc: 'Dennis_IB._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
> .Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 
> Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's availabl 
UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod. $erry i 
trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that assisting deliveries of humanit~rian 
goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press 
conference, and appears to have spoken to Davotuglu this am. 
> Sent from my BlackBerry 
> 
> ----~ Original Message ----­
> From: Levin, Jan 
>To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andre!w C; t 
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I 83 DOD-CP 
Amopeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey O / ' 
>Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
> Subject: MFA. floUlla briefing I 

[~ B3DODFGI 

> 
> Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively to Embas~ies.I 
as IDs are donE!, with location and status of cit izens. The uninj ured will be processed and escorted to I . 
airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. 
> -- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all injuries 
occurred on this ship. 
> -{ 11 told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for board•B3 DODFGI 
armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF sqldier . 
nearly beaten to death with metal bar. ActlVists also had knives. 
> -- Events took place in International waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in: inti 
waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Hamas. 
> 
> Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank yQ 

Hotmail has tools for the New Busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. learn more. 
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Law, Rosemary C 

From: Baumert, Kevin A 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11 :34 AM 
To: Jacobson. Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thom.as B; 

Dolan, JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M: Sullivan, David J 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

-- --- Origi nal Message --- -­
From: Jacobson, Linda 
To: Baumert, l<evin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Hei nemann, Thomas B; 
JoAnn; Perina .• Alexandra H 
Cc : Aswad, Evelyn M 
Sent: Mon May 31 11:20: 32 2010 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

I __ 
----- Original Message --- -­
From: Baumert" Kevin A 

Do la 

-

n, 

; 

I 
I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

To : Goldberger·, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, , 
Linda; Perina 1 Alexandra H 
Cc: Aswad, EvE~lyn M 
Sent,: Mon May 31 11: 18: 29 2010 
Subject : Re : L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

1<evin 
l/OES !REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Revieweij 

---- - Original Message ----­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobsqn, 
Linda 
Senti Mon May 31 10:50:27 2010 
Subject: FW: L. comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

-----Original Message-----
49 
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From: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 A1<'i 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

L-=----Sent from my BlackBerry 

----- Original Message ----­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Cunningharm, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Conaelly~ 
Maura; Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_B. _Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B ._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov 
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010 
Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

See below fro1m Jonathan pls. 

-----Original Message-- - -­
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 A1<'i 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, 
Thomas B 

JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemanr , · 

I I Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

Jon 

----- Original Message ----­
~rom : Schwartz, Jonathan B 
To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B 
Cc: Baumert, l<evin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sent: Mon May 31 09:05:16 2010 
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

----------- - ~--------------~-----------------'--, 

so 
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Jon 

Original Message --- -­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 
Subject: FW: ~FA flotilla briefing 

[ 

I 

85 

85 

----- Original Mess~--
From: L. -·- _ _J . 83000-CP 
To: Cunningha1m, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; . 
Parker, Andrei~ C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA- DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wat~rs, 
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mar a 

r (Jerusali m); I I Levin, Jan; I I 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 
Subject: RE: l"1FA flotilla briefing 

l~~--~~--~~--~~~-
- I 

83 000-CP 
Many of the d•~tails briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highl93 DOOFGI 

- Ongoing Operation 
- Two Ships i~ Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 
- All ships will be in port by later today 
- 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed 
- 30 Civilians Wounded 
- 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and l with "medium" wounds 
- Turkish Ambi3ssador to Israel recalled 

Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law 
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade . (See Attached Slides) 

1--1 

-----Original Message- ----
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM 

51 
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To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; 
Parker, Andrew_~; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Mar'chese, Gregory M; Waters, I 
John R; c _____ ~I Amodeo , Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Je'fB3 000,...CP 
D 
Cc: 'Dennis~B . _Ross@nsc . eop.gov'; ' Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

This may 
from 111e. 

largely repeat at this poi nt what is out in other places and/or others have heard 
but just Ito assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from I 

J who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among othersJ this am. 
'------ -

I 86 

I ]reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met 86 
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. 
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. 
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of tne 
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions taken were 
in self-defense . 

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all inj4red 
being moved t ·o Israeli hospital - by helicopter . He said ships coming into Ashdod (stjme 
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, 
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countrie.s 
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Ga~a as 
promptly as possible. 

Earlier this morning J lmade the following calls/contacts: 
--Turkish FM .and MoD I I Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh l~---~I He felt the 
calls w the T1urks given the situation were OK, but the con. cern clearly is Erdogan and how hie 1 
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of 
rhetoric coulid be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for security 
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by status of 
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. 

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 

-----Original Message- - --­
From: Cunninglham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM 
To: Levin, Jain; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew (; 
Grubb, Jason IB; NEA-IPA-Dl; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, I 83 000-CP 
Frank G; Amod1eo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, ' 
Jeffrey D 
Cc: 'Dennis_B. _Ross@nsc.eop .gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon qS it's 
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships 
in Ashdod. St~rry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that 
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is 
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference 1 and appears to have spoken to' 

i Davo:tuglu thi~; am. 
Sent from my BlackBerry 

----- Original Message 
From: Levin, Jan 1 

To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, And ,ew 1 

C; Grubb, jason B; NEA-IPA-Dl; Greene, Hisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I 83 oqo-CP 

" I : 
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I L==1 Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F~lt183 000-CP 
Jeffrey D 
Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
Subject : MFA flotilla briefing 

[ , _____ _ 
Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactive y 
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured wiil be 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. 
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all 
injuries occurred on this ship. 
C -J told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarder's c:93 OOOFGI 
were armed . Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. I 
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to 
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed confli t 
between Israel and Hamas. 

' 
I 

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, th nk ; 
you. 
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[RELEASED IN PART 83 000-CP,83' DODFGl,85,86] 

Law, Rosemary C 

Frorn: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 
Subject: 

Kevin 
L/OES 

Baumert, Kevin A 
Monday. May 31, 2010 11:18 AM 
Goldberger, Thomas H: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoArin; 
Jacobson. Linda; Perina, Alexandra H · 
Aswad, Evelyn M · 
Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

-- - -- Ori gina1 Message - ---­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, 
Linda 
Sent: Mon May 31 10:50 :27 2010 
Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla bri efing> 

C _______ _ 
--- --Original Message----­
From': Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Subiect : Re: I. comments on MFA flotilla bri efine:> 

Sent from my E!lackBerry 

---- - Original Message --- -­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Cunninghan1, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubi nstein, Daniel H; Connelly;, 
Maura; Schlicher, Ronald L; ' Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B ._Shapiro@nsc .eop.gov 
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010 
Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotil l a briefing> 

See below from Jonathan pls. 
!REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewerj 

-----Original Message- - - - -
54 
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From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM 
To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
Cc : Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, 
Thomas B 
Subj ect: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

Jon 

Original Message --- -­
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
To : Perina, A.lexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B 
Cc: ·saumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sent: Mon May 31 09:05:16 2010 
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

Jon 

----- Origina1 Message ----­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc: Holmstrom .• Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 
Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

BS 

BS 

BS 

----- Original Messa .. ----- ·1 
From: I - I B3 DOD-CP 
To : Cunninghar.n, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; 
Parker, Andre~~ C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, 
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John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudm_fill~a 

(Jerusalem); [ Levin, Jan; [ __1,83 000-CP I I ~~~~~~~~ I 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 
Subject; RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

I 
83 000-CP 

~----,-~~~,----~-------~---------~~~-----~~ Many of the d1~tails briefed have al ready been provided via other means . Specific High-183 OOOFGI 

Ongoing Operation 
Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 

- M/V MAVI MAHMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 
All ships wUl be in port by later today 

- 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed 
- 30 Civilians Wounded 
- 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds 
- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 

Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International La.w 
because of intent by flotil l a to breach t he blockade. {See Attached Slides) 

I 

83 000-CP 

----~original Message-----
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 P~ 
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Mane J; 
Parker, Andre~' C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, 1 • 

John R; I ] Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, JeB3 000-CP 
0 ' I 

Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

This may large!ly repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard 
from me, but jiust t o assure that various reporting lines have same i nfo, t his is fromi::::=_I 86 

-- - - - - jwho also spoke with the UN' s Serry, among others, this am. . 

reporte!d that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main Ship, they me 
.__w~i~t~h-w~h~at he dlescribed as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. 

Military who hoarded were attacked 1..iith knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. 
He Spid the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the 
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions taken wer · 
in self-defense. 

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all injured 
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter . He said ships coming into Ashdod (some 
reports have them coming into Haifa) . At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. Ther 
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries 
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rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially; move as much of into Ga?a as 
promptly as possible. 

Earlier this morningf I made the foll~ing calls/contacts: 
- -Turkish FM and MoD TErakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh I I He felt the 
calls w the Turks gi -en tne situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and .how e 
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of 
rhetoric coul.d be kept in check . With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for security 
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by status of 
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla . 

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 

---- -Original Message----­
From: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM 
To: Levin, Jain; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew (:; 
Grubb, Jason IB; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I 

86 

I --=-i Atnodieo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; 
Jeffrey D 

F~ltrs3 000-CP 
I 

Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop .gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop .gov' 
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 

Our Consular ipeople are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's 
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from shi s 
in Ashdod. S1erry is trying to send a couple of observers to AshdodJ has told cogat that 
assisting del.iveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is 
problemmatic lbut he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have 
Davotuglu this am. 

I 

spoken to · 

Sent from my IBlackBerry 

----- Original Message 
From: Levin, Jan 
To: Operation:s Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andnew 
C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I I 

' 

[ I Amod•:io, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly,, Maura; Feltn83 000-CP 
Jeffrey D 
Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing 

I 

[ _ 83 OODFGI 

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactivel 
to Embassies i~S IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. 
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all 
injuries occurred on this ship, 
--1 ] told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders B3 DODFGI 
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms i n advance or took them from IDF boarding pqrty. 
One IDF soldiE~r nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
- - Events tool< place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to 
intercept in jlntl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflic 
between IsraeJL and Hamas. 

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, 
you. 
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Law, Rosema C 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

RELEASED IN PART 83 DOD-CP,83 
DODFGl,85,86 

Dolan, JoAnn 
Monday, May 31, 2010 4:17 PM I 

Schwartz, Jonathan B; 'Stephen & Betsy Pamper/Andersen'; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, 
Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B I 
Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper. Stephen E: Guarin. Marc F: Donoghu~. Joar; E; 
I JTownley, Stephen G · 
RE: L comments on FA flotilla briefing> I 

I 

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Sent: Monday, M•ay 31, 2010 4:10 PM I 
To: 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen'; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann,!Thomas 
B; Dolan, JoAnn 1 

86 

I 
8 

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pamper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; c= 86 
Townley, Stephen G · 1 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Jon 
I 
I 

=~·-~·=:---__,.--.=.:.-~-'--'-~I -----·- . -------r --From: -s~phe~-&" Be~ P~~pe;/Ander~nr-
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:14 PM '--------------- -' 
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Oo\an, JoAnn 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pamper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; I I 
Townley, Stephen G 
subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Folks--
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Steve 

85 
86 

From San Rem•t> Manual on International Law Applicable to Armed Conflicts at Sea, 12 Juhe 1994 
I 

http://www.icrc.orq/ihl.nsf/385ec082b509e76c41256739003e636d/7694fe2016f347e 1c125641 f002d49ce I 
I 

Blockade 

93. A blockade shall be declared and notified to all belligerents and neutral States. 

94. The declaration shall specify the commencement, duration, location. and extent of the blockade and the period within 
which vessels of neutral States may leave the blockaded coastline. I 

95. A blockade must be effective. The question whether a blockade is effective is a question ot fact. 

96. The force maintaining the blockade may be stationed at a distance determined by military requirements. 

I 
I 

1 
I 
I 

I 

97. A blockade may be enforced and maintained by a combination of legitimate methods and means of warfare ~rovided 
this combination does not result in acts inconsistent with the rules set out in this document. . 

I 
48 
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98. Merchant ves!:;els believed on reasonable grounds to be breaching a blockade may be captured. Merchant vkssels 
which, after prior warning, clearly resist capture may be attacked. I 

99. A blockade rn1ust not bar access to the ports and coasts of neutral States. 

100. A blockade nnust be applied impartially to the vessels of a.II States. 

101. The cessation, temporary lifting, re-establishment, extension or other alteration of a blockade must be decljl red and 
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
(b) the damage to the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in relation to the concrete and ~irect 
military advantago anticipated from the blockade. I 

i 
103. If the civilian population of the blockaded territory is inadequately provided with food and other objects essential for 
its survival, the blockading party must provide for free passage of such foodstuffs and other essential supplies, ~ubject to: 

(a) the right to prescribe the technical arrangements, including search, under which such passage is permitted; 4nd 
(b) the condition tl1at the distribution of such supplies shall be made under the local supervision of a Protecting Power .or a 
humanitarian organization which offers guarantees of impartiality, such as the International Committee of the Re~ Cross. 

I 

104. Ttie blockading bell igerent shall allow the passage of medical supplies for the civilfan population or. for the J..ounded 
and sick membern of armed forces, subject to the right to prescrrbe technical arrangements, including search, u~der which 
such passage is p1ermitted. 

Zones 

105. A belligerent cannot be absolved of its duties under international humanitarian law by establishing zones which might 
adversely affect t~1e legitimate uses of defined areas of the sea. I 

106. Should a belligerent. as an exceptional measure, establish such a zone: 

(a) the same body' oi law applies both inside and outside the zone; I 
(b) the extent, location and duration of the zone and t he measures imposed shall not exceed what is strictly reqJired by 
military necessity and the principles of proportionality; 
(c) due regard shall be given to the rights of neutral States to legitimate uses of the seas; 
(d) necessary safn passage through the zone for neutral vessels and aircraft shall be provided: 

1 
(i) where the geog1raphical extent of the zone significantly impedes free and safe access to the ports and coasts pf a 
neutral State; 
(ii) in other cases where normal navigation routes are affected, except where military requirements do not permi~; and 
(e) the commencement, duration, location and extent of the zone, as well as the restrictions imposed, shall be p4blicfy 
declared and appropriately notified. I 

I 
107. Compliance with the measures taken by one belligerent in the zone shall not be construed as an act harmf~ I to the 
opposing belligere:nt. 

108. Nothing in this Section should be deemed to derogate from the customary belligerent right to control neutral vessels 
and aircraft in the immediate vicinity of naval operations. l 
From Commander's Handbook 

7.7 BLOCKADE 
7.7.1 General 
Blockade is a bellj,gerenr operation to prevent vessels and/or aircrafL of all nations, enemy as well as neutral, froif1 
entering or exiting; specified ports, airfields, or coastal areas belonging to, occupied by, or under the control of arj 
enemy nation. While the belligerent right of visit and search is designed to interdict the flow of contraband good~, 
the belligerent right of blockade is intended to prevent vessels and aircraft, regardless of their cargo, from I 

49 I 
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crossing an estabjjshed and publicized cordon separating the enemy from international waters and/or airspace. 
7.7.2 Criteria for Blockades 
To be valid, a blockade must conform to the criteria in the following paragraphs. 
7.7.2.l Establishlment 
A blockade must be established by the government of the belligerent narion. This is usually accomplished by a , 
declaration of the belligerent government or by the commander of the blockading force acting on behalf of the bblligerent 
government. The decJaration should include, as a minimum, the date the blockade is to begin, its J 

geographic limits,, and the grace period granted neutral vessels and aircraft lo leave the area to be blockaded. 
7 .7.2.2 Notificat.iioo 
It is customary fo;r the belligerent nation establishing the blockade to notify all affected nations of its impositionl 
Because knowledge of the existence of a blockade is an essential element of the offenses of breach and attemplep 
breach of blockade (see paragraph 7.7.4), neutral vessels and aircraft are always entitled to notification. The 
commander of the blockading forces will usually also notify local authorities in rhe blockaded area. The form ofl 
the notification is not material so long as it is effective. I 
7.7.2.3 Efl'ectiveuess I 
To be valid, a blo1ckade must be effective-that is, jt must be maintained by a surface, air, or subsurface force orj 
other Iegitimare methods and means of warfare that is suffident to render ingress or egress of the blockaded area 
dangerous. The requirement of effec1iveness does not preclude temporary absence of the blockading force, if su4h 
absence is due to :stress of weather or to some other reason connected with the blockade (e.g., pursuit of a I 
blockade runner). Effectjveness does not require that every possible avenue of approach to the blockaded area be 
covered. I 
7.7.2.4 lmpartiality I 
A t>Iockade must lbe applied impartially to the vessels and aircraft of all nations. Discrimination by the hlockadi9g 
belligerent in favor of or against the vessels and aircraft of particular nations, including those of its own or those! 
of an all.ied nation, renders the blockade legally invalid. 
7. 7 .2.5 Limitatio1ns 
A blockade must 1riol bar access to or departure from neutral ports and coasts. Neutral nations retain the right to 
engage in neutral commerce that does not involve trade or communications originating in or destined for the . 
blockaded area. A blockade is prohibired if the sole purpose is to starve the civilian population or to deny it othet 
objects essential for its survival. 
7.7.3 Special Ent.ry and Exit Authorization 
Although neutral warshjps and military aircraft enjoy no positive right of access to blockaded areas, the 
belligerent imposing the blockade may authorize their entry and exit. Such special authorization may be made 
subject to such conditions as the blockading force considers to be necessary and expedient. Neutral vessels and 
aircraft in evident distress should be authorized entry into a blockaded area, and subsequently authorized to 
depart, under conditions prescribed by the officer in command of the blockading force or responsible for 
maintenance of th1e blockading instrumentality (e.g., mines}. Similarly, neutral vessels and aircraft engaged in thf 
carriage of qualifying relief supplies for the civilian population and the sick and wounded should be authorized tF 
pass through the blockade cordon, subject to the right of the blockading force to prescribe the technical 
arrangements, induding search, under which passage is permitted. I 
7.7.4 Breach and Attempted Breach of Blockade 1 

Breach of blockade is the passage of a vessel or aircraft through a blockade without special entry or exit I 
authorization from the blockading belligerent. Attempted breach of blockade occurs from the time a vessel or 
aircraft leaves a port or airfield with the intention of evading the blockade, and for vessels exiting the blockaded 1 

area, continues until the voyage is completed. Knowledge of the existence of the blockade is essential to the I 
offenses of breach of blockade and anempted breach of blockade. Knowledge may be presumed once a blockade 
has been declared and appropriate notification provided to affected governments. lt is immaterial that the vessel f' r 
aircraft is at the time of interception bound for neutral territory, if its uhimare destination is the blockaded area. 
There is a presumption of altempted breach of blockade where vessels or aircraft are bound for a neutral port or ?irfield 
serving as a point of transit to the blockaded area. (Capture of such vessels is discussed in paragraph · 
1.10.) I 
7.7.S Contemporary Practice I 
The criteria for vaLid blockades, as set out above in paragraph 7.7.2, are for the most part customary in nature, I 
having derived their definitive form through the practice of maritime powers during the nineteenth century. The 
rules reflect a balance becween che right of a belligerenl possessing effective command of lhe sea to close enemyl 
ports and coastlines to international commerce, and the right of neutral nations to carry out neutral commerce wilh 

~ I 

I 
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the least possible interference from belligerent forces. The law of blockade is, therefore, premised on a system of 
controls designed to effect only a limited interference with neurral trade. This was traditionally accomplished byla 
relatively "close-in" cordon of surface warships stationed in the immediate vicinity of the blockaded area. l 
The increasing emphasis in modern warfare on seeking to isolate completely the enemy from outside assistance I 
and resources by 1targeting enemy merchant vessels as well as warships, and on interdicting all neutral commerc~ 
with the enemy, i8 not furthered substantially by blockades established in strict conformity with the traditional I 
rules. In World Wars [and II, belligerents of both sides resorted to methods which, although frequently referred .to 
as measures of blockade, cannot be reconciled with the traditional concept of the close-in blockade. The so-calldd 
long-distance blockade of both world wars departed materially from those traditional ruJes and were premised i~ 
large measure upon the belligerent right of reprisal against iUcgaJ acts of warfare on the part of the enemy. l 
Moreover, developments in weapons systems and platforms, particularly submarines, supersonic aircraft, and 
cruise missiles, have rendered the in-shore blockade exceedingly difficult, if not impossible, to maintain during ! 
anything other than a local or limired armed conmct. Accordingly, the characteristics of modern weapon sys1em~ 
will be a factor in analyzing the effectiveness of contemporary blockades. · I 
Notwithstanding this trend in belligerent practices (during general war) away from the establishment of blockades 
that conform to the traditional rules, blockade continues to be a useful means to regulate the competing interests! 
of belligerents and neutrals in more limited armed conflict. The experience of the United States during the 
Vietnam conflict 1provides a case in point. The closing of Haiphong and other North Vietnamese ports, 
accomplished by !the emplacement of mines, was undertaken in conformity with traditional criteria of 
establishmenr, notification, effectiveness, limitation, and impartiality, although at !he lime the mining took placd, 
the term "blockade" was not used. ' 

From: pomper[_ - - - ---- -
To: schwartzjb@state.gov; perinaah@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; jacobsonl@state.gov; 
heinemanntb@state.gov; dolanja@state.gov 
CC: aswadem@state.gov; sullivandjl@state.gov; pomperse2@state.gov; guarinmf@state.gov; 
donoghueje@state.gov 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 17:29:30 +0000 

> Subject: RE: IL comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
>Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 13:01:59 -0400 ; 
> From: Schwartz.JB@state.gov 

1 
>To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; JacobsonL@state.g~v; 
HeinemannTB@:state.gov; DolanJA@state.gov 1 

> CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanDJl@state.gov; pompeL I 
PomperSE2@stcite.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov I 
> 

> 
> jon 
> 
> -----Original Message-----

i 

I 

I 
I 

> From: Perina, Alexandra H I 
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12: 56 PM • 
>To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinem~nn, 

I 
I 

51 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05135618 Date: 02/21/2013 

B 

B 

86 



StateDept004357

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05135618 Date: 02/21/2013· 

Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn I 
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; ~------------' Pamper, Stephen E;I Guarin, 
Marc F 

I 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

I 

> I 

> I 

> -----Orig inal Message-----
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
>Sent: Monday·, May 31, 201012:17 PM 
>To: GoldbergE~r, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 

1
JoAnn; 

Perina, Alexandra H 
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J I 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

C ____ -.----J 

> 
> ---·-Original Message--- --
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM . 
> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JjoAn~; 

Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
>Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

> 
> -----Original Message-----

1 

> From: Baume1rt, Kevin A I 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11 :34 AM 
> To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dojan, 
JoAnn; Peri na, ,A,Jexandra H . I 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J I 
~ Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> I 
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> ' 
> ----- Original Message ----- I 
> From: Jacobson, Linda , 
>To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; 901an, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M I 
>Sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 2010 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

> 
> ----- Original Message ----- I 

>From: Baum12rt, Kevin A I 
>To: Goldberg1er, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacoqson, 
Linda; Perina, l\lexandra H II 

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
>Sent: Mon M.ay 31 11:18:29 2010 1 

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> j 

~ 

>Kevin 
> LjOES 
> 
> - ---- Original Message ----- ! 
> From: GoldbE?rger, Thomas H 1 

>To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, ~inda 
>Sent: Mon May 31 10:50:27 2010 
> Subject: FW: l comments on MFA flotilla briefing> I 

> 
> --- --Original Message-----
> From: Cunningham, James B 
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
> To: Goldberg1er, Thomas H 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

> ~ent trom mY' BlackBerry 
> 

' 

> ----- Original Message -----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H I 
>To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly, ~aura; 
Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' < Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov> I 
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn j 
>Sent: Mon Ma1y 31 17:37:00 2010 j 
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> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 
> See below frt1m Jonathan pis. 
> 
> ---- -Original !Message-----
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
>Sent: Monda)(, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM 

I 
I 

>To: Goldberg1er, Thomas H ; 
>Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, 
Thomas B l 
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 1 
..... 

>Jon 
> 
> ----- Original Message ----­
> From: Schwa1rtz, Jonathan B 
>To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B 
> Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn 
>Sent: Mon M21y 31 09:05:16 2010 
> Subject : Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 
'> 

> 
>Jon 
> 
> ----- Original Message -----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
> To: Dolan, JoJ\nn; Jacobson, Linda 
>Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
>Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 
> Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

1: 
> 

I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

B 

85 
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> ----- , riginal !Message - -~ -­
>From: I 83 DOD-CP 
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>To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; P*ker, 
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA- DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory Mi Waters, John R; Arnodeo 
Salvatore A (Is~anbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem);B3 000-CP::=J 

.__ _ ____ ____ _ _ _ _ IM; Levin, Jan; [ l 1 

>Sent: Mon Ma1y 31 08;08;22 2010 I 
> Subject: RE: !MFA flotilla briefing I 
> r-------------------------------------~ 
> 83 000-CP . 
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highlights - B3 OOOFGI 
> - Ongoing Op1eration 
> - Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
> - M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 
> - All ships will be in port by later today 
> - 10-14 Civilicrns Seriously Injured or Killed 
> - 30 Civilians Wounded 
> - 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds 
> - Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 
> - Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law because! of intent 
by flotilla to bre,ach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) i 
> 

I 83 ~OD-CPI 
I 

> 
> I 

> - - ---Original Message----- I 
> From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) j83 000-CP 
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM I 
>To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; P~rker, 
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I :J 
I JAmode!O, Salvatore A {Istanbul}; Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D l 
> Cc: 'Dennis_Bi._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' l 
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing I 
> I 

> This may largiely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard from hie, but 
just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from ~ho also 86 
spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. ; 
> I 

>I lreport:ed that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met with wha95 
he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded +ere 
attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boarded were 
attacked by doztans; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear ~ituation 
was one in which actions taken were in self-defense. I 
> I 
>Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all injured being moyed to 
Israeli hospital -· by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them comin~ into 
Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; move the 
peop!e either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned 
~itially, move a:; much of into Gaza as promptly as possible. l 
"> Earlier this morning! ~ade the following calls/contacts; i 86 
> --Turkish FM and MoD j I Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh! f He felt the callf w the 

ss I 
I 
I 
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Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he will handle. Wit~ Pals, 
Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. With iFayyad 
they discussed primarily need for security cooperation, keeping things ca lm. Concern about how ttiis will 
be affected by status of Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. 
> 
> (PIC seems tc• be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 
> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: C1..1nningham, James B 
> Sent: Monday·, May 31, 2010 1 :38 PM I 
>To: Levin, Jam; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb,1 Jason 
B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo, 83 000-CP 
Salvatore A (lst<anbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D 
> Cc: 'Dennis_Bl._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
> Subject: R,e: MFA flotilla briefing 
> I 
> Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's availab.le. 
UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod. Serry is 
trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that assisting deliveries of humanit~rian 
goods, much of which Is destined for Ha mas, is problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave. a pre~s 
conference, and appears to have spoken to Davotuglu this am. 1 

> Sent from my BlackBerry 
> 
> --- -- Original Message -----
> From: Levin, Jan I 
>To: Operations Cehter; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andre.w C; 
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I 83 OOD-CP 
Amodeo, Salvat1:>re A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey DI 
>Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 , 
> Subject: MFA flotilla briefing J 

> 
~~----------------------------~!briefed foreitn 

ambassadors at 12:30 local time today. 
> I 

> Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively to E(nbassies 
as IDs are done,, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be processed and escorted to 
airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. · 1 

> -- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all injuries! 
occurred on this ship. I 

86 

> --1 ~old Ambassador that activists on Mavl Marmara were prepared for boarders and ~ere 8 
armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF soldier 
nearly beaten to1 death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. I 
> -- Events took place in International waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in ;ntl 
waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Hatnas. 
> I 
> Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy TeJ Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thark you. · 

Hotmail has tools for the New Busy. ·search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Learn more. 

The New Busy is not the old busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Get started. 

56 
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[RELEASED IN PART 83 000-CP,83 DODFGl,85,BSI 

Law, Rosema1rv C 

From: Donoghue, Joan E 
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 4:05 AM 
To: Martin. Julie B; Baumert, Kevin A;J:omper, Stephen E: Aswad, Evelyn M: Schwartz Jonathan 

B;[ . I ] Perina. Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; Heine tnann, 
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Mcleod, Mary (USUN) 

Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

From: Martin, Julie B 
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; 1 I . ,, 

Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoArln 
'=-~~~~~·~~~~~--!. 

Cc: Sullivan, Dav~d J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H 
Sent: Tue Jun 01 03:47:45 2010 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Thanks to all. 

I 
Thanks, Julie 

This email is UNC:LASSlFIED. 

From: Baumert, tcevin A 
Sent: Monday, M;;,y 31, 2010 10:54 PM 
To: Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; erina1 Al ] andra H; 
Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Julie 3 
Subject: RE: L ce>mments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Thanks, Kevin 

· - - ····-------·-·-·--·----------------- --- ·-- ----·--·- ·-~--

From: Pomper, Stephen E 
sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 4;31 PM 
To: Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; 'pompe~ !Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, kevin A; 

'--~~~~~--~ 

!REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewerl 
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Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Julie 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

removing non L address 

From: Aswad, Evelyn M 
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen''---r-~~-------_,,· Perina, Al xandra H; 
Baumert, Kevin A,; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 86 
Cc: Sulliv~! David J; Pamper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; [ 
.__ _ _ _ __ ==:]Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Julie Bk-------~ 
sent: Mon May 31 16:29:33 2010 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B I 
sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:10 PM 
To: 'Stephen & Bl~tsy Pomper/Andersen'; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann,JThomas 
B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Cc: Aswad, Evely1n M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; eandersen@as\

1

1.org; 
Townley, Stephen G 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

i 

Jon 

-- --- . 
From: Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen [mailtoj 
Sent: Monday, M;ay 31, 2010 3:14 PM 

I 

To: Schwartz, Joniathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Do an, JOAnn 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pamper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E;I 
Townley, Stephen G 

I 

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Folks--

8 
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86 

85 

Steve 

From San Remo Manual on International Law Applicable to Armed Conflicts at Sea, 12 JUne 1~94 

http:!Jwww.icrc.orrg/ihl.nsf/385ec082b509e76c41256739003e636d0694fe2016f347e1c125641 f002d49ce 

Blockade 

93. A blockade sr1all be declared and notified to all belligerents and neutral States. 

94. The dectaratic>n shall specify the commencement, duration, location, and extent of the blockade and the peri d wi~hln 
which vessels of neutral States may leave the blockaded coastline. 

95. A blockade mrust be effective. The question whether a blockade is effective is a question of fact. 

96. The force maintaining the blockade may be stationed at a distance determined by military requirements. 

9 
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97. A blockade may be enforced and maintained by a combination of legitimate methods and means of warfare provi<iled 
this combination c1oes not result in acts inconsistent with the rules set out in this document. 

98. Merchant vessels believed on reasonable grounds to be breaching a blockade may be captured. Merchant ressels 
which, after prior warning, clearly resist capture may be attacked. 

99. A blockade must not bar access to the ports and e:-:oasts of neutral States. 

100. A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels of all States. 

101. The cessation, temporary lifting, re-establishment, extension or other alteration of a blockade must be dee ared and 
notified as in paralgraphs 93 and 94. 

102. The declaration or establishment of a blockade is prohibited lf: 

(a) it nas the sole purpose of starving the civilian population or denying it other objects essential for its survival; r 
(b) the damage tci the civilian population is. or may be expected to be. excessive in relation to the concrete and direct. 
military advantag13 anticipated from the blockade. 

103. If the civilian population of the blockaded territory is inadequately provided with food and other objects ess ntiaJ for 
its survival, the bl1ockading party must provide for free. passage of such foodstuffs and other essential supplies. ubject to: 

{a} the right to preiscribe the technical arrangements, including search, under which such passage is permitted; knd 
(b) the condition that the distribution of such supplies shall be made under the local supervision of a Pmtecting ~owe( or a 
humanitarian organization which offers guarantees of impartiaHty, such as the International Committee of the Rf Cross. 

1.04. The blockadiing belligerent shall allow the passage of medfcal supplies for the civilian population or for the ounded 
and sick memben~ of armed forces, subject to the right to prescribe technical arrangements, including search, u der which 
such passage is permitted. I · 
Zones I 
105. A belligerent cannot be absolved of its duties under international humanitarian law by establishing zones ~hich 111ight 
adversely affect the legitimate uses of de.fined areas of the sea. 

106. Should a belligerent, as an exceptional measure, establish such a zone: 

(a) the same bOdlf of law applies both Inside and outside the zone; 
(b) the extent, location and duration of the zone and the measures imposed shall not exceed wnat is strictly req ired bY 
military necessity and the principles of proportionality; 
(c) due regard shall be given to the rights of neutral States to legitimate uses of the seas; 
(d) necessary saf1a passage through the zone for neutral vessels and aircraft shall be provided: 
(i) where the geouraphical extent of the zone significantly impedes free and safe access to the ports and coasts of a 
neutral State; 
(ii) in other cases where normal navigation routes are affected, except where military requirements do not permi ; and 
(e) the commencoment, duration, location and extent of the :zone, as well as the restrictions imposed, shall be p blicly 
declared and appiropriately notified. f 
107. Compliance with the measures taken by one belligerent in the zone shall not be constru. eel as an act harmf I to the 
opposing belligemnt. 

108. Nothing in this Section should be deemed to derogate from the customary belligerent right to control neutr~I vessels 
and aircraft in the immediate vicinity of naval operations. j 

From Commander's Handbook 

7.7 BLOCKADE: 
7.7.l General 
Blockade is a belligerent operation to prevent vessels and/or aircraft of all nations, enemy as well as neutral, fro 

10 
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entering or exiting specified ports, airfields, or ooastal areas belonging to, occ"pied by, or "ndcr the conkol of l 
enemy nation. While the belligerent right of visit and search is designed to interdicr the flow of contraband goo s, 
the helligerent right of blockade is intended to prevent vessels and aircraft, regardless of their cargo, from 
crossing an establ.ished and publicized cordon separating the enemy from international waters and/or airspace. 
7.7.2 Criteria for Blockades 
To be valid, a blockade must conform to the criteria in the following paragraphs. 
7.7.2.l Establishrnent 
A blockade must be established by the government of the belligerent nation. This is usually accomplished by a 
declaration of the belligerent government or by the commander of the blockading force acting on behalf of the elligerenl 
government. The declaration should include, as a minimum, the date the blockade is to begjn, its 
geographic limits, and the grace period granted neutral vessels and aircraft to leave the area 10 be blockaded. 
7.7.2.2 Notification 
It is customary for the belligerent nation establishing the blockade to notify all affected nations of its impositio 
Because knowledge of the existence of a blockade is an essenrial element of the offenses of breach and auempt d 
breach of blockade (see paragraph 7.7.4), neutral vessels and aircraft are always entitled to notification. The ] 
commander of the. blockading forces will usually also notify local authorities in the blockaded area. The form 01 
the notification is not material so long as it is effective. 
7.7.2.3 Effectiven1ess 
To he valid, a bl01;kade must be c(fective-that is, it must be maintained by a surface, air, or subsurface force ot' 
other legitimate methods and means of warfare that is sufficient to render ingress or egress of the blockaded are 
dangerous. The requirement of effectiveness does not preclude temporary absence of the blockading force, if su h 
absence is due to stress of weather or to some other reason connected with the blockade (e.g., pursuit of a 
blockade runner). Effectiveness does not require that every possible avenue of approach to the blockaded area b 
covered. 
7. 7 .2.4 Impartiality 
A blockade must lbe applied impartially to the vessels and aircraft of all nations. Discrimination by the blockadifg 
belligerent in favor of or against the vessels and aircraft of particular nations, including those of its own or thos, 
of an allied nation, renders the blockade legally invalid. I 
7.7.2.S I.irnitatio1ms 
A hlockade must ;nor bar access to or departure from neutral ports and coasts. Neutral nations retain the right to j 
engage in neutral commerce that does not involve trade or communications originating in or destined for the I 
blockaded area. A blockade is prohibited if the sole purpose is to starve the civilian population or to deny it ochdr 
objects essential for its survival. I 
7.7.3 Special Entry and Exit Authorization 
Although neutral warships and military aircraft enjoy no positive right of access to blockaded areas, the I 
bclJigerent imposing the blockade may authorize their entry and exit. Such special authorization may be made I 
subject to such conditions as the blockading force considers to be necessary and expedient. Neutral vessels and~ 
aircraft in evident distress should be authorized entry into a hlockaded area, and subsequently authorized to 
depart, under conditions prescribed by the officer in command of the blockading force or responsible for 
maintenance of the blockading instrumentality (e.g., mines). Similarly, neutral vessels and aircraft engaged int e 
carriage of qualifying relief supplies for the civilian population and the sick and wounded should be authorized o 
pass through the blockade cordon, subject to the right of the blockading force to prescribe the technical I 
arrangements, inc.luding search, under which passage is permitted. 
7.7.4 Breach and Attempted Breach of Blockade 
Brt!ach of blockadfe is the passage of a vessel or aircraft through a blockade without special entry or exit 
authorization from the blockading belligerent. Attempted breach of blockade occurs from the time a vessel or 
aircraft leaves a port or airfield with the intention of evading the blockade, and for vessels exiting the blockaded 
area, continues unliJ the voyage is completed. Knowledge of the existence of the blockade is essential to the 
offenses of breach of blockade and attempted breach of blockade. Knowledge may be presumed once a blockad 
has been declared and appropriate notification provided to affected governments. It is immaterial that the vessel or 
aircraft is at the time of interception bound for neutral territory, if its ultimate destination is the blockaded area. I 
There is a presum!Ption of attempted breach of blockade where vessels or aircraft are bound for a neutral port or r irfield 
serving as a point of transit to the blockaded area. (Capture of such vessels is discussed in paragraph 
7.10.) 
7.7.S Contemporary Practice 
The criteria for valid blockades, as set out above in paragraph 7.7.2, are for the most part customary in nature, 
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having. derived their definitive form through the practice of maritime powers during the n.ine1een1h cen1ury. Th.I 
rules reOect a balance between the right of a belligerent possessing effective command of the sea to close enernt 
pQrLs and coastlines to interna.tional commer.ce, and the right of neutral nations to carry out ne.utral commerce wpb 
the least possible interference from belligerent forces. The law of blockade is, therefore, premised on a system ~f 
controls designed to effect only. a limited inter. ference wit.h neutral trade. This was traditionaJly accomplished bJ a 
relatively "close-in" cordon of surface warships stationed in the immediate vicinity of the blockaded area. 
The increasing emphasis in modern warfare on seeking to isolate completely the enemy from outside assistance 
and resources by !targeting enemy merchant vessels as well as warships, and on interdicting all neutral commercf: 
with the enemy, is not furthered s~bstantiall.y by bl~ckades established in strict ~nformity with the traditional 
rules. In World Wars I and 11, belhgerents of both sides resorted to methods wtuch, although frequently referred to 
as measures of blockade, cannot be reconciled with the traditional concept of the close-in blockade. The so·caU d 
long·distance blockade of both world wars departed materially from those rraditional rules and were premised i 
large measure upon the belligerent right of reprisal against illegal acts of warfare on the part of the enemy. 
Moreover, developments in weapons systems and platforms, particularly submarines, supersonic aircraft, and 
cruise missiles, h<tve rendered the in-shore blockade exceedingly difficult, if not impossible, to maintain during 
anything other than a local or limited armed conflict. Accordingly, the characteristics of modern weapon syste 
will be a factor in analyzing che effectiveness of contemporary blockades. 
Nocwithsranding this trend in beJligerent practices {during general war) away from the establishment of bloekad s 
that conform to the traditional rules, blockade continues to be a useful means to regulate the competing interest 
or helligerents and neutrals in more limited armed conflict The experience of the Uniled States during the 
Vietnam conflict provides a case in point. The closing of Haiphong and other North Vietnamese ports, ' 
accomplished by 11he emplacement of mines, was undertaken in conformity with traditional criteria of 
establishment, no'lification, effectiveness, limitation, and impartiality, allhough at the time the mining took plac 
the term "blockad1e" was nol used. 

From:J i 
To: schwartzjb@state.gov; perinaah@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; jacobsonl@state.gov; 
heinemanntb@state.gov; dolanja@state.gov 
CC: aswadem@state.gov; sullivandj l@state.gov; pomperse2@state.gov; guarinmf@state.gov; 
donoghueje@state.gov 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 17:29:30 +0000 

>Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotifl~ briefing> --~ 
>Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 13:01:59 -0400 I 
>from: SchwartzJB@state.gov b 
>To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baurnertka@state.gov; Jacobsonl@state.g v; 
HeinemannTB@state.gov; DolanJA@state.gov 

86 

BS 

>CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanDJl@state.gov; pompe~ I 86 
PomperSE2@state.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov 

> jon 
> 
> -----Original Message-- - - -
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> From: Perina, Alexandra H 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM 
>To: Schwartz,, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, 
Thomas B; Dola1n, JoAnn 
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J;I_ IPomper, Stephen E; Guarin, 86 
Marc F 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

_,. 

> - ----Original Message----- I 
> From: Schwa1rtz, Jonathan B j 
>Sent: Monda)', May 31, 2010 12:17 PM 
> To: Goldber91:!r, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, IJoAn,n; 
Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject : RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> I 
- I 

> -----Original Message-- ---
> From: Goldbe:rger, Thomas H 
> Sent: Monda~r, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM 
>To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, oAnn; 
Perina, Alexand1ra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

[ I 
> -----Original Message---· ­
> From: Baumert, Kevin A 
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM 
> To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; De Ian, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
>Subject: Re: IL comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
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> 
> ----- Original Message ----­
> From: Jacobs0on, Linda 

I 

>To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; !Dolan; 
JoAnn; Perina, J\lexandra H 
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
>Sent: Mon May 31 11 :20:32 2010 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

> 
> ----- Original Message ----­
> From~ Baumert, Kevin A 
>To : Goldberg~~r, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacot son, 
Linda; Perina, Alexandra H 
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
> Sent: Mon Mc:1y 31 11: 18:29 2010 
> Subject : Re: IL comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
..... 

> Kevin 
> l/OES 
> 
> ----- Original Message - - - -­
> From: Goldberger, lhomas H 
> To: Schwartz,. Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
>Sent: Mon Ma1y 3 1 10:50:27 2010 
> Subject : FW : L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Cunningham, James B 
>Sent: Monday·, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
> To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

> Sent from my BlackBerry 
> 
> - ---- Original Message --- -­
>From: Goldberger, Thomas H 

I 

>To: Cunningh;am, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly, ft1aurc;i; 

14 
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Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shaplro@nsc.eop.gov> 
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn 
>Sent: Mon May 3117:37:00 2010 
> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 
> See below from Jonathan pis. 
> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
> Sent : Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM 
>To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
> Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, 
Thomas B 
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 
"> 

> 
>Jon 
> 
> - ---- Original Message----­
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
> 
> -----Original Message -----
> From : Goldbe?rger, Thomas H 
>To: Dolan, Jo.Ann; Jacobson, Linda 
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
>Sent: Mon Mc:1y 31 08:24:00 2010 
> Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

1: 
15 

I 

I 
I 

1 
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> 
> ----- ,riginal !Message ----­
>From: J 
>To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; P 
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, Jo.,......_..R,,_.·_,_,,,,,....,,,=,,,,.._­
Salvatote A (Istanbulr Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem);'----- ---.,,--- --' 

l I Levin, Jan; 83 DOD-CP .___ ______ _ 
>Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 

'"":'-:-~-;-:-~-:-:-·-:-:--:-:--r-.-.-~--.----.---.--~~__,....,..~-,--...,.,_~~~~--......._,..,.,~~~~~B3DOD-CP , 
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Spec 83 DODFGI 
> - Ongoing Op1:!ration 
> - Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
> - M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 
> - All ships will be in port by later today 
> - 10-14 Civilicins Seriously Injured or Killed 
> - 30 Civilians Wounded 
> - 10 IDF wounded to Include 1 serious and 1 with "medium'' wounds 
> - Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 
> - Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law becaus 
by flotilla to bre;ach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) 
> 

of intent 

83 DOD-CP 

I 
I 
I 

~ -----Original Message---- I 
>From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem} I 
> Sent: Monday·, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM ~ 
> To: Cunningh.am, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; P rker, 
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I · 

[ ] AmodE!0 1 Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D 83 DOD-CP 
> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
> Subject: RE: IMFA flotilla briefing 
> 
> This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places andf or others have heard from me, out 
just to assure that various reporting lines have same Info, this is from_ I ho 83 DODFGI 
spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. > ___ _ 

> I I reported that when Israel i soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met ith 83 DODFGI 
he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including five fire. Military who boarded ere 
attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boar ed were 
attacked by doz,ens; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation 
was one in which actions taken were in self-defense. 
> 
>Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all injured being m ved to 
Israeli hospital -- by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them comi g into 
Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; mov the 
people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planneb 
initially, move as much of into Gaza as promptly as possible. 

16 
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> 
> Earlier this morning I lmade the following calls/contacts: 86 
> --Turkish FM and MoD I l Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh! ]. He felt the ca Is w t he 
Turks given the situation were OR, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he will handle. Wi h Pals, 
Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. Wit Fayyad 
they discussed primarily need for security cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how his will 
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
>To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb Jason 
B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amod o, 83 000-CP 
Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D 
>Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapi ro@who.eop.gov' 
> Subject: Re: IMFA flotilla briefing 
> 
> Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's a ailable. 
UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod.1erry is 
trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that assisting deliveries of humani~arian 
goods', much of which is destined for Hamas, is problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a pre s 
conference, and appears to have spoken to D~votuglu this am. 
> Sent from my BlackBerry 
> 
> ----- Original Message ----- 83 000-CP 
> From: Levin, Jan ~ 
>To: Operatior11s Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; ,Egrker. And · 
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;l_ 
Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey 9 
> Sent: Mon Mc:1y 3113:20:31 2010 
~ Subject: MFA flotilla briefing ~ 

briefed forei n 8 
---,-------~----------~-~ ambassadors at 12:30 local time today. 

~ Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively to E~ba~sies 
as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be processed and escorted to 
airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. . I 
> -- Most violenice occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all injuries 
occurred on this ship. 
> --1 lttotd Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and ere 86 
armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF s ldier 
nearly beaten tci death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
> - - Events tool< place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in inti 
waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Ha as. · 

~ Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, th4nk y9u . 

. I 
r 

Hotmail has tools for the New Busy. Search, chat and e- mail from your inbox. Learn more. I 
The New Busy is not the old busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Get started. 
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Law, Rosemar C 

From: Dolan, JoAnn 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 201012:14 PM 
To: Dolan. JoAnn; Pamper. Stephen E; Schwartz, Jonathan 8; Donoghue, Joan E:; Jaco son, 

Linda; Mcleod, Mary (USUN); Sullivan, David J; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexand a H; 
Heinemann, Thomas B; Aswad, Evelyn M I 
Harris, Robert K 
RE: Humanitarian flotilla I 

Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

on Flotilla Activists; FW: IDF Spokesperson Announcement: IDF Forces Met with Pr -Planned 
Violence when attempting to Board Flotilla 

Fw: MFA flotilla briefing; Fw: MFA flotilla briefing; FW: DEF. MINISTER BARAK NE\j\'S 
CONF. -- YNET; MOD Flotilla Brief ... ; FW: IDF Spokesperson Announcement-Pisf Is Found 

I have not found full transcript of Israel! brlefings in my queue but here are what appear to be most rel~vant frpm 

:::~~lan, ~Ann ------------------ ----+- --
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:45 AM . I 
To: Pamper, Steplhen E; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Donoghue, Joan E; Jacobson, Linda; Mcleod, Mary (USUN); Sulllvan, 
David J; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B; Aswad, Evelyn M I 
Cc: Harris, Robert K 
Subject: RE: Humanitarian flotilla I 

Thanks, Steve. I have been unable to reach Alexandra or Kevin by ph0ne. I have left pho1e 
messages for both but will try them through op center next. I will go through emails land 
circulate what I have for benefit of addressees. Conference call may be the way to go.I Including 
Evelyn as she is following HRC angle. 

---- -Original Message· - - - ­
From: Pamper, Stephen E 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11 :40 AM 
To : Schwartz, Jonathan B; Donoghue, Joan E; Jacobson, Linda; Mcleod, Mary (USUN); 
David J; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Dolan, JoAnn; Heinemann, Thomas B 
Cc: Harris, Robert K 
Subject: Re : Humanitarian flotilla 

I 
I 
I 

Sullivan,.. 
I 

I 
I 
l 

Joann just reached me. I haven't tracked this beyond this mor nong's traffic and the f rlont 
page of the nyt but can help coordinate this afternoon. If someone could send me any 1naly5is 
done in the run up last week that would be very helpful. Would it be useful to set up a can 
so that those folks who have been working the issue can pool info re knowledge/work dqne tb 
date/etc? I 
----- Original Message -----

1 
From~ Schwartz, Jonathan B 
To: Donoghue, Joan E; Jacobson, Linda; McLeod, Mary (USUN); Pamper, Stephen E; Sulliv n, 
David J; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Dolan JoAnn; Heinemann, Thomas B 
Cc: Harris, Robert K; Jacobson, Linda 
Sent: Mon May 31 11:29 :10 2010 
Subject: Re : Mumanitarian flotilla !REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Revieweij I 

I 

l 

I 
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i 

Jon 

Original Message ----­
From: Donoghue, Joan E 
To: Jacobson, Linda; Mcleod, Mary (USUN); Pomper, Stephen 
Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Dolan, 
Sent: Mon May 31 11:21 :26 2010 
Subject: Re: Humanitarian flotilla 

E; Sullivan, David J; Schwa~tz, 
JoAnn; Heinemann, Thomas B I 

----- Ori ginal Message ----­
From: Jacobson, tinda 
To: Mcleod, Mary (USUN); Pomper, Stephen E; Sullivan, David J; Donoghue, Joan E; Schw!rtz, 
Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Dolan, JoAnn; Heinemann, Thomas B 
Sent: Mon May 31 10:05:35 2010 
Subject: Re: Humanitarian flotilla · I 

Including others working on this. 

-- --- Original Message ----­
From: Mcleod, Mary (USUN) 
To: Jacobson, Linda; Pamper, Stephen E; Sullivan, David J; Donoghue, Joan E; 
Jonathan B 
Sent: Mon May 31 09:57:46 2010 
Subject: Humanitarian flotilla 

Schwartz1 
I 
I 

All--Assume you all are working on this. I know Todd and Harold are in Kampala and b~s 
aren 't working . I am rushing back to NYC to try to make the SC meeting, currently sc~edul~d 
for 1. Anticipate much interest iry legal issues focused on Israeli claims they were l cting 
in self-defense and that the flotil l a was violating international law. 

1 

2 
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l 

Law, Rosemar C 

From: Grubb, Jason B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 7:09 AM 
To: Sindle, James M; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; 'Sergio_L. 

_Aguirre®1s~.eoo.aov'; HolmstrornJodd C; 'Eric.Lynn@osd.mil'; Waller, Robert P;l Rana, 
Gautam A; _ _l 'Patrick.Antonietti osd.mil" 'Daniel 8. 1 83 DOD-CP 

Subject: 

From: Blaukopf, Ruth B 

_Shapiro@nss.eop.gov'; 'Prem_G._Kumar@nss.eo . ov' Hicke , Mary 
E; Schwartz, JonathanB;'joe.ramirez@eucom.mil'; _ J 
'mike.holmes@osd.mil'; 'Timothy.P.Connors@uscg.mil'; Sievers, Marc J; Dolan, JoArm: 
Bernier-Toth, Michelle; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Frelich, Karlene H; Connelly, Maura; HafiS, 
Robert K; Mortlock, David JL; Rudman, Mara; Waters. John R; Marchese, Gregory ryi: Pelion, 
Erin; Gutman, Bonnie S; Greene. Elisa; Harutunian, Ruben; Levin, Jan; Roberts, Kristi (Tel 
Aviv): Reisser, Wesley J; Parker. Andrew CJ _ ~ 
FW: DEF. MINISTER BARAK NEWS CONF. -- YNET 

Sent: Monday, Ma1y 31, 2010 1:53 PM 
To: BARON Desiree; Garcia, Oennis .J; KAPLAN Crystal; Burnett, David R; Frellch, Karlene H; Giauque, Jeffrey G; 
Goldberger, Thomas H; Hale, David M; Harden, Dave; Hertzberg, David A; Holmstrom, Todd C; Irwin, Matthew t 
(IrwinMT@state.gov); Jacoby, Julia I; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Knopf, Payton L; Lentz, Andrew N; Marc Sieve~; Mayo, 
Iris J; Reisser, Wesley J; Roberts, Kristi (Tel Aviv); Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Sindle, James M; Waters, John R; Alan Holst; 
Grubb Jason; Levin, Jan (LevinJ@state.gov); Michael Honigstein; Michaels, David G (MichaelsDG@state.gov); Nelson Tim 
Subject: DEF. MINISTER BARAK NEWS CONF. -- YNET .... Jason pis note l 
YNET 13:23, 05.31.10 1 

Barak: Sail's organizers responsible for deadly raid I 
Defense minister, IDF chief of staff and Navy commander explain Israeli considerations following takeover of aid ships sailin$ to G~. 
which left at least 15 pro·Palestinian activists dead. We regret the casualties, but the sail's organizers are fully responsible' I 

I 
Attila Somfalvi I 
Defense Minister Ehud Barak said Monday that the organizers of the flotilla to Gaza were responsible for the deadly Israel Drfense 
Forces raid of the ships, wtiich left at least 15 pro-Palestinian activists dead and dozens Injured. I 
Speaking at a joint press briefing with IDF Chief of Staff Gabi Ashkenazi and Navy Commander Eliezer Marom, Barak said, 'We 
express our regret over the injuries, but the sail's organizers and its participants are fully responsible." 

He added that a vioh:mt incident took place on only one of the six ships involved in the sail. 

"The State of Israel appealed to the organizers before the ships set sail and during the sail and invited them to arrive at the hdod Port 
and transfer the aid to Gaza after security checks," he said. "All of our appeals were turned down. The soldiers were attack after 
arriving at one of the-ships. Some were injured by serious physical violence on the part of the protestors. J 
•1 am familiar with th13se types of operations and their possible developments, and I am familiar with the units which operate and with 
their commanders. They are the best of our people," the defense minister explained. I 
"In light of the life-threatening situation, the soldiers were forced to use crowd dispersal means and firearms," he said, adding that some 
of the casualties were killed by firearms. According to Barak, 1 O soldiers were injured in the incident, some from firearm~ an~ some 
from cold arms. I 
"The IHH organizatic1n, which was behind these unruly ship, is a violent and radical organization acting under the cover of hr1 

nitarian 
activity," Barak argu1~d. 

"This is the time for responsibility and I call on everyone to act with restraint and common sense and not let an anarchistic organization 
and radical elements seeking to undermine the public order to take advantage of this unfortunate incident for violence.· I 
'Crowd dispersal equipment wasn't enough' I 
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Law, Rosemary C 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM 
Goldberger, Thomas H 

Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; 
Heinemann, Thomas B · 
Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 
Legal Aspects.ppt 

Subject: 
Attachments: 

Jon 

Original Message ---- ­
From: Schwartz., Jonathan B 
To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B 
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sent: Mon May 31 09:05:16 2010 
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

Jon 

Original Message - --- ­
From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
To : Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
Cc : Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 
Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

l 

I 

I 
I 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No .. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05135941 Date: 02/21/2013 

-

85 



StateDept004377

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05135941 Date: 02/21/2013 

----- Original Message ----- I 
I 83 DOD-GP 

To: Cunningham,, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Ma~c J; 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, 
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara 

From: l _ =o) 

(Jerusalem); [ - Levin, Jan; I J 

[ I 
Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 
Subject : RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

'--~~~~~~-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
83 DOD-GP 

Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Speci fie Hig~l:B3 DODFGI 

- Ongoing Oper,ation 
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
- M/V MAVI MARl"\ARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 
- All ships will be in port by later today 
- 10-14 Civili.ans Seriously Injured or Killed 
- 30 Civilians Wounded 
- 10 IDF wound~d to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds 
- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 

Interaction ~occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International 
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) 

I 
I I 83 DOD-GP 

-----Original Message----­
From: Rudman, IMara (Jerusalem) 

I 
I 
I 

Sent: Monday, J!\1ay 31, 2010 2: 46 PM I 
To : Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Mane J; 
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wat~rs, 
John R; [ ] Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Je-83 DOD-GP, 
D 
Cc: 'Dennis_B. __ Ross@nsc. eop. gov'; 'Dshapiro@who. eop. gov' 
Subject : RE: MFA flotilla briefing 

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have eard 
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is froml J 

~~~~=-=-iwho also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am . 

.__ __ _.I reporteid that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, th y met 
with what he d•escribed as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live firq. 
Military who b•oarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, !etc . 
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of tHe 
soldiers were .stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions take~ were 
in self-defense . I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
2 
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Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14·15 "maybe more" . He said all in) red 
being moved to' Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod ( Jme 
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others. will meet the ships. !There, 
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countr es 
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Ga a as 
promptly as possible. l 
Earli er this miorning made the following calls/contacts: 86 
--Turkish FM and MoD I Erakat , Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh I I He fel the 
calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and l how he 
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of 
rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for security 
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by status ' f 
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the f lotilla. 

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 

-----Original Message----­
From: Cunningham, James B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM 
To : Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, ·James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, An~_re_w_f_;__ 

Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I I 
I I Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F~ltB3 000-CP 
Jeffrey D 
Cc: ' Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
Subject: Re: MIFA flotilla briefing 

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's 
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last we.ek to help in forwarding cargo frof shfps 
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat tmat 
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is I . 
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have spoken to 
Davotuglu this am. l 
Sent from my BlackBerry 

----- Original Message 
From: Levin, Jan 

! 
I 

To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; ParkerJ Andrew 
C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Sc 1lereth 
Frank G; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F ltmah, 
Jeffrey D 
Sent: Mon May 31 13 : 20:31 2010 
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing 

__ br1e. fed. foreign ambassadors at 12:30 local time today . 

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proa~tive~y 
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured wi 1 be 
processed and escorted to airport for deportation . Unclear how long this will take. 
- - Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, jan 
injuries occurred on this ship. 
--1 !told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmar a were prepared for boardeJs and 
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms i n advance or took them from IDF boarding p, rty. 
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
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-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the lOgal righl to 
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed cf nfl1ct 
between Israel and Hamas . 

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy iel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issu , thank 
you. 

I 
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I 
Law, Rosemal!Y C l~ELEASED IN PART 83 000-CP,83 j 

DODFGl,85,B: : 
From: Mcleod, Mary (USUN) 
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 8:32 AM 
To: Martin, Julie B; Donoghue, Joan E; Baumert, Kevin A; Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad Eve~n ~ ; 

Schwartz, Jonathan B; I :==JPerina, Alexandra H; Ja t:obs ;n, I 
Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn . 

Cc: Sullivan, David J: Guarin, Marc F; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H 
·1 Subject: Re: l comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

I 
I I 

! 

From: Martin, Julie B 

Helne~~n, To: Donoghue, Joian E; Baumert, Kevin A; Pamper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; 
I I Perina1 Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; 
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Mcleod, Mary (USUN) 
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H 
Sent: Tue Jun 01 05:10:54 2010 . 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

I I 

... 
I I 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~'--+-
From: Donoghue, Joan E I 
To: Martin, Julie B; Baumert, Kevin A; Pamper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; . t' 
I Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; Heinema n, 
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Mcleod, Mary (USUN) I : , 
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H · ' 1 
Sent: Tue Jun 01 04:04:41 2010 
Subject: Re: l comments on MFA flotilla briefing> j 

I 

Cd someone sencJ the SYG statement please? Thanks. 
! 
I 

From: Martin, Julie B 

!._ 
i 
' 

To: Baumert, Kevin A; Pamper, ~P. hen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; I..__ _ _ -----~---'I 

I _J; Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas Bi Dolan, Jol\nn 
Cc: Sullivan, Oaviid J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H 
Sent: Tue Jun 01 03:47:45 2010 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Thanks to all. 

!REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewerj 
12 
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I 

I I 
j 

I 
11 

I 
: 

Thanks, Julie 
: 

This email is UNCLASSIFIED. 

I 

-- -- ______._ 
' 

From: Baumert, •cevin A i T 
Sent: Monday, M;ay 31, 2010 10:54 PM 
To: Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; I -I Perina, i lexan~ra H; 
Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn ' 

' 
Cc: Sullivan, Davi1d J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Juli es 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

l 

Thanks, Kevin : 

I 
' ·-·- ···- · ·---

From: Pomper, Stephen E I 
I Sent: Monday, M,ay 31, 2010 4:31 PM 

To: Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; I I Perina, Alexandra H; Baumer, Kevin A' 
t 
I 

Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn , r 
Cc: Sullivan, Davi1d J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Juli B 
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

' 

removing non L a•jdress 

j 
I 
I 

f-ro_m_:._As_wa_d_,-E-~e-1-yn--M---------------------------------------------------~---+---~~ 
To: Schwartz, Jon1athan B; 'Stephen & Betsy Pamper/Andersen' .__ ______ _ ______ Perina, lexanpra ; 
Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Cc: Sullivan~ Davi1~ J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E;~--------' t Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Julie B 
Sent: Mon May 31 16:29:.33 2010 
Subject; RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Looping in Mariano & Julie. EA 
I 

-F.:0~:-Schwartz, Jonathan B · -i -
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:10 PM . J 
To: 'Stephen & BE!tsy Pomper/Andersen'; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heineman , Thoma~ 
B; Dolan, JoAnn l 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; l 
Townley, Stephen G l 
subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> I 

13 1 
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85 

Jon ' I 

f.:Om~ Stephen a.Betsy Pomper/Andersenl I .+ 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:14 PM · J 

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; tDolan,: Jo1nn 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pamper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; t . 1 

1 
Townley, Stephen G ' 

86 

B6 

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Folks--

BS 

14 
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http://WWw .icrc .orq1/ihl.nsf/385ec082b509e76c41256739003e636d/7694fe2016f347e 1c125641 f002d49ce 
I 

~ 
I Blockade 
I 

93. A blockade shall be declared and notified to all belligerents and neutral States. , j 

94. The declaratio1n shall specify the commencement, duration. location, and extent of the blockade and the p riod ~itt"+ 
which vessels of neutral States may leave the blockaded coastline. · : j 

95. A blockade must be effective. The question whether a blockade is effective is a question of fact. ' 

96. The force maintaining the blockade may be stationed at a distance determined by military requir~ments . 

97. A blockade maty be enforced and maintained by a combination of legitimate methods and means of warfa. provideh 
this combination dioes not result in acts inconsistent with the rules set out in this document. : r 
98. Merchant vessels believed on reasonable grounds to be breaching a blockade may be captured. Merchan vessbls I 
which, after prior warning, clearly resist capture may be attacked. j 

99. A blockade mu1st not bar access to the ports and coasts of neutral States. 

100. A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels of all States. 

101. The cessation, temporary lifting, re-establishment, extension or other alteration of a blockade must be de lareq an 
notified as in para~1raphs 93 and 94. : j 

102. The declaration or establishment of a blockade is prohibited If: 

(a) it has the sole purpose of starving the civilian population or denying it other objects essential for its surviva; or ' 
(b) the damage to the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in relation to the concrete ar.i dire¥t 
military advantage anticipated from the blockade. 

103. It the civilian population of the blockaded territory is inadequately provided with food and other objects essentiE!I to 
its survival, the blockading party must provide for free passage of such foodstuffs and other essential supplies subject t: 

I . 

(a) the right to prescribe the technical arrangements, including search, under which such passage is permitte ; and: j 
(b) the condition that the distribution of such supplies shall be made under the local supervision of. a Protectiri Pow~r Of a 
humanitarian organization Which offers guarantees of impartiality, such as the International Committee of the ed qoss. 

104. The blockading belligerent shall allow the passage of medical supplies for the civilian population or for the wou,hdl 

15 , I 
J 
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and sick members of armed forces, subject to the right to prescribe technical arrangements, including search, 
such passage is permitted. 

• j 
nderwhfh 

I 
I Zones 

105. A belligerent cannot be absolved of its duties under international humanitarian law by establishing zones which mi~ht 
adversely affect tr1e legitimate uses of defined areas of the sea. ! 

106. Should a belligerent. as an exceptional measure. establish such a zone: 

{a) the same body· of law applies both inside and outside the zone; · 
(b) the extent, location and duration of the zone and the measures imposed shall not exceed wha~ is strictly re uired byJ 
military necessity 1and the principles of proportionality; 
{c) due regard shs1ll be given to the rights of neutral States to legitimate uses of the seas; 
(d} necessary safE! passage through the zone for neutral vessels and aircraft shall be provided: 
(i) where the geographical extent of the zone significantly impedes free and safe access to the ports and coa 
neutral State; 
(ii) in other cases where normal navigation routes are affected, except where military requirements do not per it; ar.id 
(e) the commencement, duration, location and extent of the zone, as well as the restrictions Imposed, shall b publi~ly 

1 

declared and appropriately notified. I 

107. Compliance with the measures taken by one belligerent in the zone shall not be construed as an act har fut t~ th~ 
opposing belligere1nt. j 

108. Nothing in this Section should be deemed to derogate from the customary belligerent right to control neu ral ve.ssejs 
and aircraft in the immediate vicinity of naval operations. • : 

From Commander's Handbook 

7.7 BLOCKADE 
7.7.1 General 
Blockade is a belliigerent operation to prevent vessels and/or aircran of all nations, enemy as well as neutral, f om 
entering o~ exiting.specified ~orts, ai~elds, o~ ~oastal areas ~elon~ng to, o_ccupi~d by, or under the control ol an ' 
enemy natmn. Whtie the belligerent nght of v1s1t and search is designed to mterd1ct the flow of contraband g ds, 
the belligerent right of blockade is intended to prevent vessels and aircraft, regardless of their cargo, from 
crossing an established and publicized cordon separating the enemy from international waters and/or airspace 
7.7.2 Criteria for Blockades 
To be valid, a blockade must conform to the criteria in the following paragraphs. 
7.7.2.l Establishment 
A hlockade must be established by the government of the belligerent nation. This is usually accomplished by I 
declaration of the !belligerent government or by the commander of the blockading force acting on behalf of th belliger~nt 
government. The declaration should include, as a minimum, the date the blockade is to begin, its 
geographic limits, and the grace period granted neutral vessels and aircraft to leave the area to be blockaded. 
7.7.2.2 Notificatio1n 
It is customary for the belligerent nation establishing the bloc.kade to notify all affected nations of its impositi n. 
Because knowledB:e of the existence of a blockade is an essential element of the offenses of breach and allem ted 
breach of blockade (see paragraph 7. 7.4), neutral vessels and aircraft are always entitled to notification. The 
commander of the blockading forces will usually also notify local authorities in the blockaded area. The form of 
lhe notification is 1nol material so long as it is effective. 
7.7.2:3 Effectiveness 
To be valid, a bloc:kade must be effective-that is, it must be maintained by a surface, air, or subsurface fore or 
other legitimate methods and means of warfare that is sufficient to render ingress or egress of the blockaded ea 
dangerous. The requirement of effectiveness does not p>eclude temporary absence of the blockading force, if uch 
absence is due to stress of weather or to some other rea.son connected with the blockade (e.g., pursuit of a 
blockade runner). :Effectiveness does not require that every possible avenue of approach to the blockaded are be 
covered. 
7.7.2.4 Impa.rtiaJity 

16 
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A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels and aircraft of all nations. Discrimination by the blocka ing 
belligerent in favor of or againsc the vessels and aircraft of particular nations, including those of its own or thbse 
of an allied nation, renders the blockade legally invalid. 
7.7.2.5 Limitations 
A blockade must not bar access to or departure from neutral ports and coasts. Neutral nations retain the right o 
engage in neutral commerce that does not involve trade or communications originating in or destined for the 
blockaded area. A blockade is prohibited if th.e sole purpose is to starve the civilian population or to deny it o her 1 

objects essential for its survival. 
7. 7.3 Special Entry and Exit Authorization 
Although neutral warships and military aircraft enjoy no positive right of access to blockaded areas, the 
belligerent imposing the blockade may authorize their entry and exit. Such special authorization may be mad 
subject to such conditions as the blockading force considers to be necessary and expedient. Neutral vessels a d 
aircraft in evident distress should be authorized entry into a blockaded area, and subsequently authorized to 
depart, under conditions prescribed by the officer in command of the blockading force or responsible for 
maintenance of the blockading instrumentality (e.g., mines). Similarly, neutral vessels and aircraft engaged i the 
carriage of qualif;ying relief supplies for the civilian population and the sick and wounded should be authorizdd to 
pass through the blockade cordon, subject to the right of the blockading force to prescribe the technical 
arrangements, induding search, under which passage is permitted. 
7.7.4 Breach an'31 Attempted Breach of Blockade 
Breach of blockade is the passage of a vessel or aircraft through a blockade without special entry or exit 
authorization from the blockading belligerent. Attempted breach of blockade occurs from the time a vessel or 
aircraft leaves a port or airfield with the intention of evading the blockade, and for vessels exiting the blocka d 
area, continues until the voyage is completed. Knowledge of the existence of the blockade is essential to the 

I 

offenses of breach of blockade and attempted breach of blockade. Knowledge may be presumed once a block~de I 
has been declare<il and appropriate notification provided to affected governments. ft is immaterial that the ves el or J 
aircraft is at the time of interception bound for neutral territory, if its ultimate destination is the blockaded are . 
There is a presum1ption of attempted breach of blockade where vessels or aircraft are bound for a neutral port r airf.el 
serving as a point of transit to the blockaded area. (Capture of such vessels is discussed in paragraph ' ' I 
7.10.) I 1 

7.7.5 Contemporary Practice I 
The criteria for valid blockades, as set out above in paragraph 7.7.2, are for the mosl part customary in nature 
having derived their definitive form through the practice of maritime powers during the nineteenth century. T e 
rules reflect a balance between the right of a belligerent possessing effective command of the sea to close ene y 
ports and coastlines to international commerce, and the right of neutral nations to carry out neutral commercef ith 
the least possible interference from belligerent forces. The law of blockade is, therefore, premised on a syste · of 
controls designed to effect only a limited interference with neutral trade. This was traditionally accomplished y a 
re latively "close-1in" cordon of surface warships stationed in the immediate vicinity of the blockaded area. 
The increasing ennphasis in modern warfare on seeking co isolate completely the enemy from outside assistan e 
and resources by targeting enemy merchant vessels as well as warships, and on interdicting all neutral comm ce 
with the enemy, i:s nol furthered substantially by blockades established in strict conformity with the traditiona 
rules. In World Wars I and II, beUigerents of both sides resorted to methods which, although frequently referr d to 
as measures of bl•ockade, cannot be reconciled with the traditional concept of the close-in blockade. The so ed 
Jong-distance blockade of both world wars departed materially from those traditional rules and were premise in 
large measure upon the belligerent right of reprisal against illegal acts of warfare on the part of the enemy. 
Moreover, developments in weapons systems and platforms, particularly submarines, supersonic aircraft, and 
cruise missiles, have rendered the in-shore blockade exceedingly difficult, if not impossible, to maintain duri g 
anything other than a local or limited armed conflict. Accordingly, the characceristics of modern weapon syst ms 
will be a factor in analyzing the effectiveness of contemporary blockades. 
Notwithstanding 1this trend in belligerent practices (during general war) away from the establishment of block des · 
that conform to the traditional rules, blockade continues to be a useful means to regulate the competing inter ts 
of belligerents and neutrals in more limited armed conflict. The experience of the United States during the 
Vietnam conllicl provides a case in point. The closing of Haiphong and other North Vietnamese ports, 
accomplished by the emplacement of mines, was undertaken in conformity wi1h traditional criteria of 
establishment. notification, effectiveness, limitation, and impartiality, although at the time the mining rook pl ce 
the term "blockade" was not used. 
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From: pomper[ I 
To: schwartzjb@state.gov; perinaah@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; jacobsonl@state.gov; 
heinemanntb@state.gov; dolanja@state.gov 
CC: aswadem@istate.gov; su llivandj 1@state.gov; pomperse2@state.gov; g uarinmf@state.gov; 
donoghueje@state.gov 
Subject: RE: L mmments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 17:29:30 +0000 

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
>Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 13:01:59 -0400 
> From: SchwartzJB@state.gov 
> To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; JacobsonL@state gov;; 
HeinemannTB@state.gov; DolanJA@state.gov 
>CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanDJl@state.gov; I ] 
PomperSE2@st,ate.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov 
> 

: jon I 
~ ----·Original Message--~-- 'I 
> From: Perina, Alexandra H 'l 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM 
>To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Hei n~[ antj, 

l 

l 

I 

I 

I 
~ 

1J 

Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 1 

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; I pomper, Stephen, F; G4ar ih, 
~ ~~F I 

~ Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 'I I 

I 
I 

18 
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> I 

> -----Original Message----- · ~ 
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12: 17 PM ' 
>To: Goldber9er, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAn ; 
Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, E:velyn M; Sullivan, David J l 
~Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> , J 

=----~--.----.----J > 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Goldb•erger, Thomas H 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM , 
>To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolar, JoA1nn 1 

Perina, Alexandra H : 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilta briefing> 

I 
> 
> -----Original Message----­
> From: Baum1art, Kevin A 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM 
>To: Jacobsoni, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, E:velyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

I 
> 
> -----Original Message ----­
> From: Jacobson, Linda 
>To: Baumert,, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
>Sent: Mon M:ay 31 11 :20:32 2010 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> I, 
> 
> ----- Original Message ---- ­
> From: Baumert, Kevin A 

I 

Dolan, 

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan 1 JoAnn,; Jae bson, 
Linda; Perina, t~lexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
> Sent; Mon May 31 11: 18:29 2010 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

j 
I 
I 

j 
I 
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>Kevin 
> L/OES 
> 
> --- -- Original Message -----
> From: Goldbe!rger, Thomas H 
>To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobso [ , Lin~a 
>Sent: Mon May 31 10:50:27 2010 
> Subject : FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> ! 
> I 

,--C •+l A I C • l I •' ... L. .. b •-"'----~ · b ... m,e,1 e. ~_i.' 

> -----Orig inal !Message-----
> From: Cunningham, James B 
>Sent: Monda)t, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
> To: Goldberg1er, Thomas H 
>Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

I > Sent from mY BlackBerry 
> 
> ---- - Original Message ----­
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
>To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connell , Maura ~ 

Schlicher, Rona ld L; 'Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov> ' I 
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn · j 
>Sent: Mon May 3117:37:00 2010 
> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> I 

. J l > 
> See below from Jonathan pis. 
> 
> - ----Original Message-----
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
>Sent: Mondav, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM 
>To: Goldberg•~r, Thomas H 
> Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heine 
Thomas B 
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 

> 
>Jon 
> 
> -- --- Original Message -----

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
>Sent: Mon Ma1y 3109:05:16 2010 
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 

> 
>Jon 
> 
> ----- Original Message ----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
>To: Dolan, Jo1a.nn; Jacobson, Linda 
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
>Sent: Mon Ma1y 31 08:24:00 2010 
>Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

[ 
> 
> 

85 ; 

> ----- cr:inal Message ----- l 
> From: I 83 000-CP 
>To: Cunningh.am, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James Fi Sievers, Marc J; Park¢r, l 
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-lPA-DL; Greene; El isa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; modeo 
Salvatore A (lst;anbul};_~on_n~lly1 f'1aura; FeltmanJ. Jeffr_~Rudrnan, Mara (Jerusalem); Burg ss, Rich rd 
J; Murphy, Mich.ael P; [ ] Levin, Jan;! I . 
>Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 ! 
>Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 1 

I C 83000-CP 
Many -o-f -th-e-·d--e- t_a __ il_s_b_r_ie-fe_d_ h_a-ve_ a_I r-e-a-dy_ b_e_e_n_p_r-ov_i_d_e_d_v-ia- o-th_e_r_m- ea_n_s ___ S_p_e_c_ifi-1c- H- ig-h-li-9-h-ts- --....--83 OOOFGI 

> - Ongoing Operation J 

> - Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
> - M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L 
> - All ships will be in port by later today 
> - 10-14 Civiliams Seriously Injured or Killed 
> - 30 Civilians Wounded 
> - 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with ~medium" wounds 
> - Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled 
> - Interaction C>ccurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law because of intent 
by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) · ! 
> 

I 
I 83 000-CP 
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> 
> 
> ----Original Message-----
> From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) , 1 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM . 1 

>To: CunninghamI James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc JtEark~ 
Andrew C; Grulbb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John Rl I 

I ]Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D "~--8-3-D~OD-CP 

> Cc: 'Dennis_IB._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' l 
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing ; 
> . • 

> This may lar9ely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard frnrn me, b t 
just to assure that various reporting lfnes have same info, this is from I I whq al+o 
spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. I 
~ !reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met with: wh:at 
he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boardeb we.te j 
attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the .military who bo~rded ; were 
attacked by do;~ens; He indic::ated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and siashed. Made c1JI · r si~atlon 
was one in whic:h actions taken were in self-defense. 
> ' 
>Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all injured being ove~ td 
Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them co ing itito I 
Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ship. s. There, they will need to ID the bodies; mlve t~e 1

1 people either te> return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as plan ed . 
initially, move as much of Into Gaza as promptly as possible. ' : i 
> , I 

> Earlier this rnornind I made the following calls/contacts: ; j 
> --Turkish FM and MoDI J; Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh!- I· He felt the calls \jl/ t~e 
~iven the situation were OK, but the concern clearly Isl Ian~ how he will handle. Y'ith Plals: I 
L _ lin particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. Wi h 
they discussed primarily need for security cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about hovi this.wit _ 
be affected by status of Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. ' ' 
> 
> (PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 
> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Cunningham, James B 
>Sent: Monda•~, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM 
>To: Levin, Jain; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grut b, Jason 

86 

86 

86 

B; NEA-tPA-DL;: Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;I ==1 Amo 1Ueo, 83 000-CP 
Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffri:?y D ; ' 
> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 'J 

> Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 
> ' 
> Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on arncits. as soon as it's 1avail~b1J . 
UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod1 Serry i~ 
trying to send a1 couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that assisting deliveries of huma:r itari~n 1 

goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a p.ress , 1 
conference, ancl appears to have spoken to Davotuglu this am. 1 ~ 
> Sent from mv BlackBerry ~ 

> 
> ----- Original Message --- --
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j r 
. 83 DOD-CP 

> From: Levm, Jan · 
>To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; ["™''·And Fw C: j 
Grubb, Jason Bi NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; 
Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusa lem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey j 
> Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
> Subject: MFA. flotilla briefing 83 DODFGI 
> 

I . > r 

> Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively to Emb~ssi~s 
as IDs are donE!, with location and status of cit izens. The uninjured will be proc. e·s.sed and escortrd to 1 

airport for depc1rtation. Unclear how long this will take. I 
> -- Most viol~nce ?ccurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as Is currently know03-00DFGf , 
occurred on this ship. 
> --1 I told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders <;lnd were I 
armed. Unclear if they had firearms In advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF oldi~r 

nearly beaten t10 death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
> -- Events took place in international waters. I srael asserted it had the legal right to intercept i inti 
waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and ama$. i 
> I 

> Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on th is issue, t ank ;yot 

Hotmail has tools for the New Busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Learn more. 

The New Busy is not the old busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Get started. 
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@[Ll~ASED IN PART 83 DOD-CP,83 DOOFGl,85,86J 

law, Rosemary C 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

removing non L address 

From: Aswad, Ev•elyn M 

Pamper, Stephen E 
Monday, May 31, 2010 4:31 PM -
Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan i3;[ J Perina, 
Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Lmaa;Refrlemann~omas B;olan, Jc !Ahn 
Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, IAariano 
H; Martin, Julie B · 
Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen' .__ ________ __ _JI Perina, AIEP<andra H; 
Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Cc: Sullivan, Dal/lid J; Pamper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E;I I 
<eandersen@asil.org>; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Julies------~ 
Sent: Mon May 3:1 16:29:33 2010 
Subject: RE: L oomments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Looping in Mariaino & Julie. EA 

·-- - . --- ------ ------- -----------------... -r--... - - · ·--·-

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Sent: Monday, Mlay 31, 2010 3:10 PM 
To: 'Stephen & 81etsy Pamper/Andersen'; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas 
B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pamper, stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; eandersen@a5il.org; 
Townley, Stephen G 
Subject: RE: L ciomments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Jon 

66 

' . 

86 

85 

. -- ·- --··-------;:===============::;----- ------·- ---·----
From: Stephen &i Betsy Pomper/Andersenl I B6 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:14 PM 
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert; Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dt>lan, JoAnn 
Cc: Aswad, Evely,n M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E;I I 
Townley, Stephen1 G 
Subject: RE: L e1::imments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

lREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewe~ 
'"' 
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Folks--
I 

BS 

86 

Steve 

From San Remc• Manual on International Law Annlicable to Arm""d Conflich' ;tt Sea 12 lllne 1994 

http://www.icrc.orq/ihl.nsf/385ec082b509e76c41256739003e636d/76941e2016f347etc125641 f002d49ce 

Blockade 

93. A blockade shall be declared and notified to all belligerents and neutral States. 

11 
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94. The declaration shall specify the commencement, duration, location, and extent of the blockade and the peri within 
which vessels of neutral States may leave the blockaded coastline. 

95. A blockade m1ust be effective. The question whether a blockade is effective is a question of fact. 

96. The force maintaining the blockade may be stationed at a distance determined by military requirements. 

97. A blockade m:ay be enforced and maintained by a combination of legitimate methods and means of warfare rovided 
this combination does not result in acts inconsistent with the rules set out in this document. 

98. Merchant vessels believed on reasonable grounds to be breaching a blockade may be captured. Merchant v ssels 
wnich, after prior warning, clearly resist capture may be attacked. 

99. A blockade must not bar access to the ports and coasts of neutral States. 

100. A blockade nnust be applied impartially to the vessels of all States. 

101. The cessation, temporary lifting, re-establishment, extension or other alteration of a blockade must be decl red and 
notified as in paragraphs 93 and 94 . 

102. The declaratlion or establishment of a blockade is prohibited if: 

(a) it has the sole purpose of starving the civilian population or denying it other objects essential for its survival; 
{b) the damage to the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in relation to the concrete and 
military advantage! anticipated from the blockade. 

103. If the civilian population of the blockaded territory is inadequately provided wifh food and other objects ess ntial for 
its survival, the blockading party must provide tor free passage of such foodstuffs and other essential supplies. jbject to: 

(a) the right to prescribe the technical arrangements, including search, under which such passage is permitted; ~d 
(b) the condition t11at the distribution of such supplies shall be made under the local supervision of a Protecting ower or a 
humanitarian organization which offers guarantees of impartiality, such as the International Committee of the Re Cross. 

104. The blockading belligerent shall ailow the passage of medical supplies for the civilian population or for the ounded 
and sick member~; of armed forces, subject to the right to prescribe technical arrangements, including search, u der which 
such passage is pierrnitted. 

Zones 

105. A belligerent cannot be absolved of its duties under international humanitarian law by establishing zones w ich might 
adve(sely affect the legitimate uses of defined areas of the sea. 

106. Should a belligerent, as an exceptional measure, establish such a zone: 

(a) the same body of law applies both inside and outside the zone; 
(b) the extent, location and duration of the zone and the measures imposed shall not exceed what is strictly req ired by 
military necessity and the principles of proportionality; 
(c) due regard shall be given to the rights of neutral States to legitimate uses of the seas; 
(d) necessary safe! passage through the zone for neutral vessels and aircraft shall be provided: 
(i) where the geographical extent of the zone significantly impedes free and safe access to the ports and coasts fa 
neutral State; 
(ii) in other cases where normal navigation routes are affected, except where military requirements do not permi ; and 
(e) the commencement, duration, location and extent of the zone, as well as the restrictions imposed, shall be p blicly 
declared and appropriately notified. I 

107. Compliance with the measures taken by one belligerent in the zone shall not be construed as an act harmf I to the 
opposing belligerent. 

106. Nothing in this Section should be deemed to derogate from the customary belligerent right to control neutr vessels 
and aircraft in the immediate vicinity of naval qperations. 

12 
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From Commander's Handbook 

7.7 BLOCKADE 
7.7.l General 
Blockade is a berngerent operation to prevent vessels and/or aircraft of all nations, enemy as well as neutral, fro 
entering or exiting specified ports, airfields, or coastal areas belonging to, occupied by, or under the control of 
enemy nation. While the belligerent right of visit and search is designed to interdict the flow of contraband goo s, 
1he belligerent right of blockade is intended to prevent vessels and aircraft, regardless of their cargo, from 
crossing an estab.lished and publicized cordon separating the enemy from international waters and/or airspace. 
7.7.2 Criteria forr Blockades 
To be valid, a blockade musl conform to the criteria in the following paragraphs. 
7. 7 .2.1 Establishment 
A blockade must be established by the government of the belligerent nation. This is usually accomplished by a 
declaration of the. belligerent government or by the commander of the blockading force acting on behalf of 1he elligcrent 
government. The declaration should include, as a minimum, the date the blockade is to begin, its 
geographic limits, and the grace period granted neutral vessels and aircraft to leave the area lo be blockaded. 
7.7.2.2 Notificati:on 
It is customary for 1he belligerenc nation establishing the blockade to no1ify all affected nations of its impositio 
Because knowledlge of the existence of a blockade is an essenliaJ element of the offenses of breach and attempt d 
breach of blockade (see paragraph 7.7.4), neutral vessels and aircraft are always entitled to notification. The 
commander of the blockading forces will usually also notify local authorities in the blockaded area. The form o 
the notification is; not ma1erial so long as it is effective. 
7.7.2.3 Effective1ness 
To he valid, a blO•ckade must be effective-that is, ii must be maintained by a surface, air, or subsurface force ot 
other legitimate methods and means of warfare that is sufficient to render ingress or egress of the blockaded are 
dangerous. The requirement of effectiveness does not preclude temporary absence of the blockading (orce, if su h 
absence is due to stress of weather or to some other reason connected with the blockade (e.g., pursuit of a 
blockade runner). Effectiveness does not require that every possible avenue of approach to the blockaded area b 
covered. 
7.7.2.4 Impartiality 
A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels and aircraft of all nations. Discrimination by the blockadi g 
belligerent in fav.or of or against the vessels and aircrafl of particular nations, including !hose of its own or thos 
of an allied natioin, renders the blockade legally invalid. 
7.7.2.5 Umitati(Jlns 
A blockade must not bar access to or departure from neutral ports and coasts. Neutral naLfons retain the right 10 
engage in neutral commerce that does not involve crade or communications originating in or destined for the 
blm.:kaded area. A blockade is prohibited if the sole purpose is to starve the civilian population or to deny it oth r 
objects essential for ils survival. 
7.7.3 Special Enllry and Exit Authorization 
Although neutral warships and military aircraft enjoy no positive right of access to blockaded areas, the 
belligerent imposing the blockade may authorize their entry and exit. Such special authorization may be made 
subject to such conditions as 1he blockading force considers to be necessary and expedient Neutral vessels and 
aircraft in evidenrt distress should be authorized entry inco a blockaded area, and subsequently authorized to 
depart, under conclitions prescribed by the officer in command of the blockading force or responsible for 
maintenance of the blockading instrumentality (e.g., mines). Similarly, neutral vessels and aircraft engaged in 1 e 
carriage of qualifying relief supplies for the civilian population and the sick and wounded should be authorized o 
pass through the blockade cordon, subject to the right of the blockading force to prescribe 1he technical 
arrangements, including search, under which passage is permiued. 
7. 7.4 Breach anCI Attempted Breach of Blockade 
Breach of blockade is the passage of a vessel or aircraft through a blockade without special entry or exit 
authorization from the blockading belligerent Anempted breach of blockade occurs from the time a vessel or 
aircraft leaves a port or airfield with the intention of evading the blockade, and for vessels exiting the blockade 
area, continues until the voyage is completed. Knowledge of the existence of the blockade is essemial ro the 
offenses of breac!h of blockade and attempted breach of blockade. Knowledge may be presumed once a blockad 
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has been declared and appropriate notification provided to affected governments. lt is immaterial that the vessel Dr 
aircraft is al the time of interc.eprion bound for neutral territory, jf its ultimate destination is the blockaded area. 
There is a presumpition of attempted breach of blockade where vessels or aircraft are bound for a neutral port or • irfield 
serving as a point of transit to the blockaded area. (Capture of such vessels is discussed in paragraph 
7.10.) 
7.7.S Contemporary Practice 
The criteria for valid blockades, as set out above in paragraph 7.7.21 are for the most part customary in nature, 
having derived theiir definitive form through the practice of maritime powers during the nineteenth century. The 
rules reflect a balance between the right of a belligerent possessing effective command of the sea to close enemy 
ports and coastline:s co international commerce, and the right of neutral nations to carry our neutral commerce wi h 
the least possible ii1terference from belligerent forces. The law of blockade is, therefore, premised on a system o 
controls designed to effect only a limited interference wilh neutral trade. This was traditionally accomplished by a 
relatively "close-in" cordon of surface warships stationed in the immediate vicinity of the blockaded area. 
The increasing emphasis in modern warfare on seeking to isolate completely I.he enemy from outside assistance 
and resources by 1a1rgeting enemy merchant vessels as well as warships, and on interdicting all neutral commew 
with the enemy, is not furthered substantially by blockades established in strict conformity with the traditional 
rules. In World Wars I and ll, belligerents of both sides resorted to methods which, although frequently referred o 
as measures of bfockade, cannot be reconciled with the traditional concept of the close-in blockade. The so-calle j 
long-distance blockade of both world wars departed materially from those traditional rules and were premised in 
large measure upon the belligerent right of reprisal against illegal acts of warfare on the part of the enemy. 
Moreover, developments in weapons systems and platforms, particularly submarines, supersonic aircraft, and 
cruise missiles, have rendered the in-shore blockade exceedingly difficult, if not impossible, to maintain during 
anything other than a local or limited armed conflict. Accordingly, the characteristics of modern weapon system~ 
will be a factor in analyzing the effectiveness of contemporary blockades. 
Notwithstanding thtis trend in belligerent practices (during general war) away from the establishment of blockadt s 
that conform to the traditional rules, blockade continues to be a useful means to regulate the competing interesls 
of belligerents and neutrals in more jjmited armed con.flict. The experience of the United States during the 
Vietnam conflict provides a case in point. The closing of Haiphong and other North Vietnamese ports, 
accomplished by the emplacement of mines, was undertaken in conformity with traditional criteria of 
establishment, notification, effectiveness, limitation, and impartiality, although at the time the mining took place 
the term "blockade" was not used. 

From: I --·-~ 
To: schwartzjb@state.gov; perinaah@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; jacobsonl@state.gov; 
hefnemanntb@st:ate.gov; dolanja@state.gov 
CC: aswadem@s;tate.gov; sullivandjl@state.gov; pomperse2@state.gov; guarinmf@state.gov; 
donoghueje@state.gov 
Subject: RE: L C()mments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 17:29:30 +0000 

86 

----· 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 13:01:59 -0400 
>From: SchwartzJB@state.gov 
>To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; Jacobsonl@state.g1pv; 
HeinemannTB@s:tate.gov; DolanJA@state.gov 
> CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanDJl@state.gov; I I 
PomperSE2@sta1te.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov 
> 

I 
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> jon 
> 
> -----Original Message----­
> From : Perina, Alexandra H 
>Sent: Monday·, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM 

I 
85 

>To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, 
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; I I Pomper, Stephen E Guarin, 86 
Marc F 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

.> 

> -----Original Message-- ---
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
>Sent: Monday·, May 31, 2010 12: 17 PM 
> To: GoldbergE~r, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; 
Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: RE: IL comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
.... 

> -----Original Message-----
> From : Goldberger, Thomas H 
>Sent: Monday·, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM 
> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, ~oAnn; 
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
>To: Jacobson,. Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; De Ian, 
JoAnn; Perina, J\lexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA floti lla briefing> 

=----~----l > ----- Orig inal Message ---­
> From : Jacobson, Linda 
> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, 
JoAnn; Perina, J~lexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
>Sent: Mon May 3111:20:32 2010 · 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

> 
> ----- Original Message ----­
> From: Baume:rt1 Kevin A 
>To: Goldberg•:!r, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacol son, 
Linda; Perina, Alexandr.a H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
>Sent: Mon May 3111:18:29 2010 
>Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

..... 

>Kevin 
> L/OES 
> 
> ----- Original Message -----
> From: Goldbe:rger, Thomas H 

I 

>To: Schwartz,, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
>Sent: Mon May 31 10:50 :27 2010 
> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

[ 
> -----Original Message---- -
> From: Cunnin1gham, James B 
>Sent: Monda)', May 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
>To: Goldberg~2r, Thomas H 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

1 0 

I 

n 
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> Sent from m~· BlackBerry 
> 
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
> 
> See below froim Jonathan pis. 
> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Schwa1rtz, Jonathan B 
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM 
> To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
> Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinerr ann, 
Thomas B 
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

>Jon 
> 
> ----- Original Message ----­
> From: Schwal"tz, Jonathan B 
>To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B 
> Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn 
>Sent: Mon Ma1y 31 09:05:16 2010 
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

>Jon 
> 
> ----- Original Message -----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
> To: Dolan, JoJ\nn; Jacobson, Linda 

17 
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> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
>Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 
> Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 

[ _ ___ _ __ -----.----J 

> 

85 

> ----- ,riainal Message -----
> From: l 83 DOD-CP 
>To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; P rker, 
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA·DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R· A odeo 
Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); 
I Levin, Jan; '---~----J 

> Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 

83 DOD-CP 
Many of the detail,,_s,........,..b -.rie.,...f...,,.e-r-r:~...,.--,,:-.-::~:-:-.:---:----:----=.......,...o-r-,......,,..~Y'."":""::-:-:-:-:---:-__..~....,,...,,....,......~.,,...,,,,=--.,.....B3 DODF GI 
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
> - Turkish Amibassador to Israel recalled 
> - Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law becaus 
by flotilla to bre!ach the blockade. (See Attached SI.ides) 
> 

> 
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
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DLi Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; 
[ I Amod1~0, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D .._.,._83 DOD-CP 
>Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 
> This may larg1ely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard from me, but 
just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is fro~ I ho also 86 
spoke with the IUN's Serry, among others, this am. 
> 
>llreported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met 86. 
hhescrrded as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded ere 
attacked with kinives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boar ed were 
attacked by doz:ens; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clea situation 
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was one in whidh actions taken were in self-defense. 
> 
>Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all injured being moved to 
Israeli hospital -· by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them coming into 
Haifa). At Ashdo1d, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; movE the 
people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as plannec 
initially; move a:s much of into Gaza as promptly as possible. 

86 > 
> Earlier this morning I - lmade the fol lowing calls/contacts: 
> --Turkish FM and MoDI ~ Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh~ ~ He felt the cal 's w the 
Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan an how he will handle. Witn Pals, 
Erakat in particL1lar, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad 
they discussed primarily need for security cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how t ~is will 
be affected by sitatus of Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. 
> 
> (PIC seems to1 be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by lt.) 
> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Cunningham, James B 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 20101:38 PM 
> To: Levin, Jani; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J: Parker, Andrew C: Grubb, Jason 
B; NE:A-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John Fd ]Amode ~, 83 DOD-CP 
Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D 
> Cc: 'Dennis_B·._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
> Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 
> Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's a" ailable, 
UN had been apjproached be COGAT last week to help In forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod. S~rry is 
trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod , has told cogat that assisting deliveries of humanitlrian 
goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press 
conference, and appears to have spoken to Davotuglu this am. 
> Sent from my BlackBerry 
> 
> :----- Original Message -- -- ­
> From: Levin, Jan 
>To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc Ji Parker, AndreN C; 
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I 83 DOD-CP 
Amodeo, Salvatore A ·(Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D 
>Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 
> Subject; MFA flotilla briefing 

83 DODFGI 

~~--~~~-~~~~~~--~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--'' . 

> 
> Highlights - Idlentification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA wHI reach out proactively to E1tnbassies 
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
> -l told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and v ere 83 DODFGI 
armed. Unclear i1f they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF sotier 
nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
> -- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in inti 
waters because 1there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Ha as. 
> 
>Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, the: nk you. 
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Hotmail has to()ls for the New Busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Learn more. 

The New Busy :is not the old busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Get started. 
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!RELEASED IN PART 83 000-CP,83 DODFGl,85,861 

Law, Rosema1 C 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 
Subject: 

Pomper, Stephen E 
Monday, May 31, 201 O 4:20 PM 
Dolan, JoAnn; Schwartz, Jonathan B; I ~ Perina, Al xandra H; 
·Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, 1 nomas B 
Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, ephen G 
Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Rmoving a non USG famfly-member address that wound up on this chain. 

[ 

From: Dolan, JoAnn 

86 

B 

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; 'Stephen & Betsy Pamper/Andersen' Perina, Al xandra H; 86 
Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pamper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E;J- I 
'------~Townley, Stephen G 
Sent: Mon May 31 16:16:35 2010 
Subject: RE: L cc1mments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

- . - - .. ·- - --------------------- ------- --r- ___,..--
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 4:10 PM 
To: 'Stephen & Be!tsy Pamper/Andersen'; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas 
B; Dolan, JoAnn 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pamper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; eandersen@as l.org; 
Townley, Stephen G 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Jon 

~!EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewerj 
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From: Stephen&. ~~;Pom~;/,.\-;:;ci·er;~[ --
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:14 PM ...._ ___ _ ___ _ ____ __, 86 

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Do an, JoAnn 
Cc: Aswad, Evely1n M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; 
Townley, Stephenl G '--------' 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

Folks--

Here is a quick summary of where we seem to be on the grabbag of issues relating to the Israeli ction off 
of Gaza (please jump in/correct as appropriate): 

Steve 

From San Remt:> Manual on International Law Annlicable to Armed Conflicts at Sea. 12 June 1994 

n I 
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141746 Date: 02/21/2013 

85 



StateDept004405

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141746 Date: 02/21/2013 

hnp:Uwww.icrc.orq/ihl.nsf/385ec082b509e76c41256739003e636d0694fe2016f347e1c125641 f002d49ce 

Blockade 

93. A blockade sh1all be declared and notified to all belligerents and neutral States. 

94. The declaratic1n shall specify the commencement, duration, location, and extent of the blockade and the peri d within 
which vessels of neutral States may leave the blockaded coastllne. 

95. A blockade rn1ust be effective. The question whether a blockade is effective fs a question of fact 

96. The force maintaining the blockade may be stationed at a distance determined by military requirements. 

97. A blockade m:ay be enforced and maintained by a combination of legitimate methods and means of warfare rovided 
this combination cloes not result in acts Inconsistent with the rules set out in this document. 

98. Merchant vessels believed on reasonable grounds to be breaching a blocl<ade may be captured. Merchant v ssels 
which, after prior warning, clearly resist capture may be attacked. 

99. A blockade m1ust riot bar access to the ports and coasts of neutral States. 

100. A blockade nnust be applied impartially to the vessels of all States. 

101 . The cessation, temporary lifting, re-establishment, extension or other alteration of a bfockade must be decl red and 
notified as in paragraphs 9~ and 94. 

102. The declarati!on or establishment of a blockade is prohibited if: 

(a) it has the sole purpose of starving the civilian population or denying it other objects essential for its survival; r 
(b) the damage to the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in relation to the concrete and irect 
military advantage? anticipated from the blockade. 

103. If the civilian population of the blockaded territory is inadequately provided with food and other objects ess ntial for 
its surviva!, the bl()ckading party must provide for free passage of such foodstuffs and other essential supplies. ubject to: 

(a) the right to prescribe the technical arrangements, including search, under which such passage is permitted; nd 
(b) the condition that the distribution of such supplies shall be made under the local supervision of a Protecting ower or a 
humanitarian organization which offers guarantees of impartiality, such as the International Committee of the R d Cross. 

104. The blockading belligerent shall allow the passage of medical supplies for the civilian population or for the ounded 
and sick members of armed forces, subject to the right to prescribe technical arrangements, including search, u der which 
such passage is p·ermitted. 

Zones 

105. A belligerent cannot be absolved of its duties under international humanitarian law by establishing zones which might 
adversely affect the legitimate uses of defined areas of the sea. 

106. Should a belligerent, as an exceptional measure, establish such a zone: 

(a) the same body• of law applies both inside and outside the zone; 
(b) the extent, location and duration of the zone and the measures imposed shall not exceed what is strictly req ired by 
military necessity :and the principles of proportionality; 
(c) due regard shall be given to the rights of neutral States to legitimate uses of the seas; 
(d) necessary safo passage through the zone for neutral vessels and aircraft shall be provided: 
(i) where the geographical extent of the zone significantly impedes free and safe access to the ports and coast of a 
neutral State; 
(ii) in other cases where normal navigation routes are affected, except where military requirements do not per it; and 
(e) the commencement, duration, location and extent of the :ne, as well as the restrictions imposed, shall be 1"bllcly 
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declared and appropriately notified. 

107. Compliance 'With the measures taken by one belligerent fn the zone shall not be construed as an act harmt I to the 
opposing belligemnt. 

108. Nothing in1his Section should be deemed to derogate from the customary belligerent right to control neutra vessels 
and aircraft in the immediate vicinity of naval operations. 

From Comman1tler's Handbook 

7.7 BLOCKADE. 
7.7.1 General 
Blockade is a belligerent operation to prevent vessels and)or aircraft of all nations, enemy as well as neutral, frof 
entering or exiting specified porrs, airfields, or coastal areas belonging to, occupied by, or under the control of ar 
enemy nation. While the belligerent right of visit and search is designed to interdict the flow of contraband goo , 
the belligerent rig.ht of blockade is intended to prevent vessels and aircraft, regardless of their cargo, from 
crossing an established and publicized cordon separating the enemy from international waters and/or airspace. 
7.7.2 Criteria for· Blockades 
To be valid, a blockade must conform to the criteria in the following paragraphs. 
7.7.2.1 Establishment 
A blockade must be established by the government of the belligerent nation. This is usually accomplished by a 
declaration of the belligerent government or by the commander of the blockading force acting on behalf of the b lligerent 
government. The declaration should include, as a minimum, the date rhe blockade is to begin, its 
geographic limits, and the grace period granted neutral vessels and aircraft to leave the area to be blockaded. 
7.7.2.2 Notification 
1l is customary for the belligerent nation establishing the blockade to notify all affected nations of its imposition 
Because knowledge of the existence of a blockade is an essential element of the offenses of breach and attempt 
breach of blockade (see paragraph 7.7.4), neutral vessels and aircraft are always entitled to notification. The 
commander of lhe! blockading forces will usually aJso notify local authorities in the blockaded area. The form o 
the notification is not material so long as it is effective. 
7. 7 .2.3 Effective111ess 
To be valid, a blockade must be effective-that is, it must be maintained by a surface, ai.r, or subsurface force o 
other legitimate methods and means of warfare that is sufficient to render ingress or egress of the blockaded are 
dangerous. The re.quirement of effectiveness does not preclude temporary absence of the blockading force, if su h 
absence is due to mress of weather or to some other reason connected wjth the blockade (e.g., pursuit of a 
blockade runner). Effectiveness does not require that every possible avenue of approach ro the blockaded area b 
covered. 
7.7.2.4 lmpartialiity 
A blockade must he appHed impartially to the vessels and aircraft of all nations. Discrimination by the blockadi g 
belligerent in favor of or against the vessels and aircraft of particular nations, including those of its own or thos 
of an allied nation, renders the blockade legally invalid. 
7.7.2.5 Limitations 
A blockade must not bar access to or deparLure from neutral ports and coasts. Neutral nations retain the right to 
engage in neutral commerce that does not involve trade or communications originating .in or destined for the 
blockaded area. A blockade is prohibited if the sole purpose is ro starve rhe civilian population or to deny it oth r 
objects essential for its survival. 
7.7.3 Special Ent1ry and Exit Authorization 
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
maintenance of the blockading instrumentality (e.g., mines). Similarly, neutral vessels and aircrafL engaged in L e 
carriage or qualifying relief supplies for the civilian population and the sick and wounded should be authorized to 
pass through the blockade cordon, subject to the right of the blockading force lo prescribe the technical 
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arrangements, jnclluding search, under which passage is permitted. 
7.7.4 Breach and Attempted Breach of Blockade 
Breach of blockadle is the passage of a vessel or aircraft through a blockade without special entry or exit 
authorization from the blockading belligerent. Attempted breach of blockade occurs from the time a vessel or 
aircraft leaves a porr or airfield with the intention of evading the blockade, and for vessels exiting the blockaded 
area, continues until the voyage is completed. Knowledge of the existence of the blockade is essential to the 
offenses of breach of blockade and attempted breach of blockade. Knowledge may be presumed once a blockad 
has occn declared and appropriate notification provided to affected governments. ll is immaterial that the vessel r 
aircran is at the ti1me of interception bound for neutral territory, if its ultimate destination is the blockaded area. 
There is a presumjption of attempted breach of blockade where vessels or aircraft are bound for a neulral·porl or irfield 
serving as a poinL of transit to the blockaded area. (Capture of such vessels is discussed in paragraph 
7.10.) 
7.7.5 Contemporary Practice 
The criteria for valid blockades, as set out above in paragraph 7.7.2, are for the most part customary in nature, 
having derived their definitive form through the practice of maritime powers during the nineteenth century. The 
rules reflect a balance between the right of a belligerent possessing effective command of the sea to close enem 
ports and coastJines to international commerce, and the right of neutral nations to carry out neutral commerce w · h 
the feast possible interference from belligerent forces. The law of blockade is, therefore, premised on a system o 
controls designed to effect only a limited interference wi1h neutral trade. This was traditionally accomplished by a 
relatively "close-iin" cordon of surface warships stationed in the immediate vicinity of the blockaded area. 
The increasing emphasis in modern warfare on seeking to isolate completely the enemy from outside assistance 
and resources by targeting enemy merchant vessels as well as warships, and on interdicting all neurral commer 
with the enemy, is not furthered substantially by blockades established in strict conformity with the traditional 
rules. In World Wars I and II, belligerents of both sides resorted to methods which, although frequently referred to 
as measures of blockade, cannot be reconciled with the traditional concept of the close-in blockade. The so-call d 
long-distance blockade of both world wars departed materially from those traditional rules and were premised i · 
large measure upon the belligerent right of reprisal against illegal acts of warfare on the part of the enemy. 
Moreover, developments in weapons systems and platforms, particularly submarines, supersonic aircraft, and 
cruise missiles, have rendered the in-shore blockade exceedingly difficult, if not impossible, to maintain during 
anything other than a local or limited armed conflict. Accordingly, the characteristics of modern weapon system 
will be a factor in analyzing the effectiveness of contemporary blockades. 
Notwithstanding Lillis trend in belligerent practices (during general war) away from the establishment of blockad s 
that conform to th•~ traditional rules, blockade continues to be a useful means to regulate the competing interests 
of belligerents andl neutrals in more limited armed conflict. The experience of the United States during the 
Vietnam conflict provides a case in point. The closing of Haiphong and other North Vietnamese ports, 
accomplished by t he emplacement of mines, was undertaken in conformity with traditional criteria of 
establishment, notification, effectiveness, limitation, and impartiality, although at the time the mining took plac 
the term "blockade" was not used. 

From: 
To: sc,_h_w_a_r.,..tz-=j.,..b-:::@' ,..>s--:t-a..,..te-.g-o_v_;_p_e_r..,.in_a_a_,h,...@~state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; jacobsonl@state.gov; 
heinemanntb@state.gov; dolanja@state.gov 
CC: aswadem@state.gov; sullivandjl@state.gov; pomperse2@state.gov; guarinmf@state.gov; 
donoghueje@st.:ite.gov 
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 17:29:30 +0000 

Marc Guarin is going to log in and weigh in on this question. I also reached out to JCS legal to se if they 
have a Navy lawyer we can talk to . Have taken Tom G off this chain for the moment. Steve 

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 13:01:59 -0400 
>From: SchwartzJB@state.gov 
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>To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; JacobsonL@state.gDv; 
HeinemannTB@state.gov; OolanJA@state.gov 
> CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanDJl@state.gov;r I 
PomperSE2@state.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov 
> 
> Thanks Alexa~ 

> jon 
> 
> -----Original Message----­
> From: Perina, Alexandra H 
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM 

-

86 

I 
BS 

> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heir:iemann, 
Thomas B; Dol.:in, JoAnn 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J;I I; Pamper, Stephen E Guarin, B6 
Marc F 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

. ..... 

> -----Orig inal Message----
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
>Sent: Monda)(, May 31, 2010 12 :17 PM 
>To: Goldber91er, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; 
Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: RE: L comments an MFA flotilla briefing> 

-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

> -----Orig inal Message-----
> From: Goldbe:rger, Thomas H 
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>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM 
>To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, J Ann; 
Perina, Alexandra H 
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

> -- ---Original Message----­
> From: Baume~rt, Kevin A 
>Sent: Mondav, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM 
>.To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Do an, 
JoAnn; Perina, 1~lexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

[ 
> ----- Original Message -----
> From: Jacobson, Linda 
>To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; C olan, 
JoAnn; Perina, 1~lexandra H 
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
>Sent: Mon Mc1y 31 11 :20:32 2010 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

I >Ke~ c:==s 
> ----- Original Message -----
> From: Baumert, Kevin A 
>To: Goldberg1~r, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacot ison, 
Linda; Perina, A,lexandra H 
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
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> 
> - ----Original !Message--- --
> From: Cunningham, James B 
> Sent: Monda)(, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM 
> To: Goldberg•er, Thomas H 
> Subject : Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

lSentffomm\fBlaCK'.-r='Be=rry=-:-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--' 
> 
> ----- Original Message - ----
>From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
> To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly, 
Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov> 
>Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jon<1than B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn 
>Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010 
> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 
> See below from Jonathan pis. 
> 
> -----Original !Message--- -
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 
>Sent: Monda)r, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM 
> To: Goldber91er, Thomas H 

'1aura; 

>Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, 
Thomas B 
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 

> 
>Jon 
> 
> ----- Original Message -- - -­
> From: Sc;hwa1rtz, Jonathan B 
> To: Perina; Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B 
> Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn 
>Sent: Mon Ma1y 31 09:05:16 2010 
>Subject: Fw : MFA flotilla briefing 

: .c.r,,.v.::mnra/Tom -Are either of you in a position to assist L/OES? I 

I 
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> 
>Jon 
> 
> ----- Original Message-----
> From: Goldbe?rger, Thomas H 
>To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L 
>Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 
> Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 

,2..S.9rri. but co1uld we get guick reactions to this? 
L_ I ~~~~~~~~~~ '"----:'.> _ _________ _, 

> 

BS 

BS 

> ----- Original Message -----
> From:I- J 63 000-CP 
> To; Cunningham, James 8; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; P rker, 
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; A odeo, 
Salvatore A (Istanbul)[ Co!}_nelly..t,Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); 
I _JM; Levin, Jan; '----....-----' 
>Sent: Mon Mc:1y 31 08:08:22 2010 
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 

Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highlights -
> - Ongoing Operation 
> - Two Ships i1n Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
> - M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700l and 1800L 
> - All ships will be in port by later today 
> - 10~14 Civili;ans Seriously Injured or Killed 
> - 30 Civilians Wounded 
> - 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds 
> - Turkish Amloassador to Israel recalled 
> - Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law becaus 
by flotilla to bre:ach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) 
> 

- ---------

>-----
> . 
> -----Original Message-----

of intent 

B3 000-CP 

> From : Rudmain, Mara (Jerusalem) 
>Sent: Mondav, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM 
>To: Cunningham, James 8; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; rker 
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; 
C::J Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D .__,... __ 8_3__,000-CP 
>Cc; 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who .. eop.gov' 
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 

29 
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> This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard from e, but 
just to assure that various reporting tines have same info, this is from ho also 86 
spoke with the IJN's Serry, among others, t his am. > _____ _ 

>I reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met w th what 8 
he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fi re. Military who boarded ere 
attacked wit h k1nives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boarded were 
attacked by doz:ens; He indic.ated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and. slashed. Made clearlituation 
was one in whic:h act ions taken were in self-defense. 
> 
> Current esttmates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all injured being m ed to 
Israeli hospital -- by helicopter. He said ships coming Into Ashdod (some reports have them comin into 
Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to I D the bodies; mov t he 
people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planne 
initially, move a1s much of into Gaza as prompt ly as possible. 
> 
> Earller this morning made the following calls/contacts: 86 
> --Turkish FM and MoDI ~ Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh! I He felt the cal s w the 
Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he will handle. Wit Pals, 
Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad 
they discussed primarily need for security cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how t is will 
be affected by status of Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. 
> 
> (PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) 
> 
> -- - --Original Message-----
> From : Cunn i111gham, James B 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM 
>To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J("arker, Andrew~ Grubb, Jason 
B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; L__ _1 Amodl

1
o, 83 DOD-CP 

Salvatore A ( I stanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D 
> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' 
> Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 

~ Our Consular people are in contact wrth MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it 's a ailable. 
UN had been ap1proached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod. erry is 
trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat t hat assisting deliveries of humani arian 
goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, ls probtemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a pre s 
conference, andi appears to have spoken to Davotuglu this am. 
> Sent from my BlackBerry 
> 
> ---- - Original Message --- -­
> From: Levin, Jan 
>To: Operatior:1s Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Par~ Andr w C; 
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; j 83 DOD-CP 
Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istan.bul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey , -
> Sent: Mon Ma1y 31 13:20:31 2010 
> Subj ect: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 

83 DODFGI 

> 
> Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively to mbassies 
as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be processed and escor te to 
airport for depo1rtation. Unclear how long this will take. 
> -- Most violenice occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all injurie 
occurred on this; ship. 
> --1 ':old Ambassador that acti vists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and eres3 DODFGI 
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armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IOF boardin·g party. One IDF so dier 
nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. 
> -- Events tool< place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in ntl 
waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Ha as. 
> 
>Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, th nk you. 

Hotmail has tools for the New Busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Learn more. 

The New Busy is not the old busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Get started. 
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II 

Bowers, Ally!son M 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subjei:t: 

Attachments: 

Sindle, James M 
Friday, June 04, 2010 10:43 AM 
Gaza Flotilla Monitoring Group 
FW: PM 4 JUN 10 - FREE Gf>:ZA MOVEMENT (FGM} FLOTILLA UPDATE -WAVE# 2 
(SITREP #9) (SECRET) 
Free Gaza Movement Flotilla Update_PM 4 Jun 10.ppt; GAZA FLOTILLA AFTERMATH -
SITREP 3.doc 

RELEASED IN PART 83 
000-CP,81,BS,1.4(0), 1.4(C),B6 

The latest locations of the Israeli SAARs and Rachel Corrie. 

From:r--- 0 
sent: Friaav,Tuin ....... e_,04....-, .... 20""1"'0 ..... 1 .... o"'":2 ... 8,....A'""'M.------------_...... 

B3 DOD-CP 

To: Gardner, John D. LTG;john.allen@centcom.smil.mil 

1.4(C) 
B1 

86 

Cc:1 I 
83 DOD-CP 
86 

SUbject: PM 4 JUN 10- FREE GAZ.A MOVEMENT (FGM) FLOTILLA UPDATE-WAVE# 2 (SITREP #9) (SECRET) 

~VIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer] 

Classification: :SECRET//REL TO USA, AUS, CAN, GBR 

Good afternoon LTG Gardner I LtGeo Allen 
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Current Situatio1n: 

1. Free Gaza Movement (FGM) "Freedom "Flotilla -Wave# 2 (reduced to a single ship) 

1 .4~C) 

B1 I 

- Open source reporting indicates RACHEL CORRIE has no plans to stoo u.ntil.reachine cart in Gaza and 

~not intend to resist. should Israeli forces attempt to board. I 1.4(C) 

l__------~~~~~~~' G B1 

-C 
Assessment: [ 

0 

0 

2. Israeli Defense Force (IDF) 

Naval Ad:ivity: 

- ~' --------~ 

2 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State qase No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C18750556 Date: 02/21/2013 

1.4(C) 
81 

1.4(C) 
81 

1.4(C) 
81 



StateDept004416

. .. . . -
UNCLASSIFIED U.S .. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C18750556 Date: 02/21/2013 

V/R, Larry 

Attaclunent Claissification: SECRET 
Attachment Caveats: NOFORN 
Classification: SECRET I/REL TO USA, AUS, CAN, GBR 

3 

86 

83 DOD-CP 
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[RELEASED llN PART 83 000-CP,81, 1.4(0),86, 1.4(C)) 

Bowers, Allys1on M 

From: Yoo, DonnyH 
Sent: Thursday, June 30, 2011 4:59 AM 
To: 
Cc: 

Eussen, Matthew M; SES..O OPS-Watch Team 
NEA-IPA-DL; Silverman. Robert J; Levin, Jan X; Grubb. Jason B; Berns, David B 

Subject: RE: •FREEDOM FLOTILLA W Gft2.A AID CONVOY UPDATE (SITREP #7) (SECRET) 

Mr. Eussen, 

Many thanks for "these very helpful emails. 

Thanks, 
Donny Yoo 

From: Eussen, Matthew M 
Sent: Thursday, June 30, 2011 4: 15 AM 
To: SES-O_OPS-WatchTeam 
Cc: NEA-IPA-Dl; Silverman, Robert J; Levin, Jan X; Grubb, Jason B; Berns, David B 
SUbject: FW: "FHEEDOM FLOTIUA II" GAZA AID CONVOY UPDATE (SITREP #7) (SECRET} 

Additional information. 

Respectfully­
-Matt 

This document is UNCLASSIFIED//NOFORN when separated from SECRET//NOFORN attaclunent(s). 
Sensitivity: Sensitive 
Classification: SECRET/INOFORN 
Derived From: previous msg in thread. 
Declassify On: 2021/06/30 

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer) 

From: 
'--~-..,.---,.----=~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~---' 

Sent: Wednesda)I, June 29, 2011 7:42 AM 
To: I 

1 
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86 
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83 000-CP 

SUbject: "FREEDOM FLOTILLA II" GAZA AID CONVOY UPDATE (SITREP #7) (SECRET) 

Classification: SECRET 
Caveats: NOFORN 

Good morning J2: -

2 
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eor •est all:::::s cnntin11e to ~ease feed updates to USEUCOM theater all-source fusion analysis cenlAf at 
_ ----~ J This will help to ensure accuracy, timeliness. relevancy, and dissemB3 000-CP,r 
.......,....,.,~s~n~1p~a~c~a~11 ................ ~.----~ 86 

Convention: Blue is new. 

____ _ _ , _____ _______ ________ _ _ 1.4(0) 

B1 

(U) The lnternatronal "Freedom Flotilla II (FF2)-Stay Human· will Include 10 ships, at least two of which are cargo 
boats carrying aid, while the rest are passenger ships carrying hundreds of people, among them, politicians. MEPs, 
writers, religious. faith representatives, people of arts and culture and activists. Press releases Indicates many TV crews 
will be also on board (CNN, NBC, Al.Jazeera, et al) as well as journalists sent by various world media and newspapers. 
"Stay Human• was selected in honor of 36-year old Italian pro-Palestinian activist Vittorio Arrigoni, who was killed 14 Apr 
2011 after being kidnapped in Gaza City by Salafist radicals. 

SITREP follows: 

3 
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(U) Political Developments: 

- (U) On 28 Jun, l!srael Defense Ministry proposed confiscating the ships that attempt to break the naval blockade to 
Gaza, a move ainned at deterring future flotillas. lsraelt press reporting indicates IDF claims they have intellfgence 
showing 'some flo1tilfa participants are planning to use violence ::ind possibly chemical weapons against the troops. Flotilla 
members claim this js an attempt to justify IDF violence. {Source: Jerusalem Post) 

1.4(C) 
1.4(0) 
B1 

- (U) On 27 Jun, l:he Israeli "Lawfare· Group took responsibility for lodging the complaint against flotilla ship AUDACITY 
OF HOPE. Free Gaza Movement (FGM} organizers and AUDACITY OF HOPE passengers believe the complaint was 
frivolous and are now c;onfident the Greek government will allow them to depart Greece. 

- (U) On 27 Jun, t:he "Freedom Flotilla II (FF2) - Stay Human• press conference occurred in Athens but no specific ship 
names, departurei dates, launch tiines, or rendezvous date, time. or area were revealed. Organizers also withheld the 
length of time the flotilla would remain at the rendezvous area before heading south. In short, FF2 spokespersons stated 
the flotilla will press forward with their departure plans despite Israel's warnings. 

- (U) On 27 Jun, ::ifter two days of closed-doors meetings, the Israeli ministers committee on security affairs voted in favor 
of the navy plans to stop the FF2 flotilla from breaching the lsraelf.imposed naval blockade on the Palestinian territory, 
giving the army authority to use ''all necessary means" during the operation. The Israeli cabinet has ordered Israeli troops 
to operate with "maximal restraint and avoid clashes with ·activists on board the vessets." 

-(U) On 22 Jun, US STATE Dept warned US citizens against taking part in the flotilla and to avoid all travel to the Gaza 
Strip, citing th~eats to themselves as well as US interests. (STATE) 

SI/REL TO USA, GBR) Israeli Defensi! Force (IDF) 

4 
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(S) US Navv Forces 

I 

I 

Attachment Classification: SEcRET 
Attachment Caveats: NOFORN 
Classification: SECRET 
Caveats: NOFORN 
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Law, Rosemary C 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 
Subject: 

--- - - --
RELEASED IN PART 83 DOD-CP,83 
DODFGl,85,86 

Stephen & Betsy Pamper/Andersen~-------------' 
Monday, May 31, 2010 1 :29 PM 1 
Schwartz, Jonathan 8; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; HEjinemann, 
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn t 
Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F: Donoghu~, Joan E 
RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 1 

I 

Marc Guarin is going to log in and weigh in on this question. I also reached out to JCS legal to see if they 
have a Navy lawyer we can talk to. Have taken Tom G off this chain for the moment. Steve 1 

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 13:01:59 -0400 I 
> From: SchwartzJB@state.gov 
>To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; JacobsonL@state.gpv; 

B 

HeinemannTB@state.gov; DolanJA@state.gov 
1 

> CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanDJl@state.gov; pomper_andersen~ 86 
PomperSE2@state.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov 
> _ _ _ _ _ 

> 
> jon 
> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Perina, Alexandra H I 
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM 
>To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinembnn, 
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 1 

BS . 

>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pamper, Stephen E;1 Guarin, 86 
Marc F 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

!REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Revieweij 
11 

I 

I 
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> 
i . 85 

> I 
> -----Original Message----- 1 

> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B I 
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12: 17 PM I 
> To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,J JoAnn; 
Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H 1 

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM I 
> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, boAnn; 
Perina, Alexandra H 1 

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J 
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

I>_ ~ 
> -----Original Message----­
> From: Baumert, Kevin A 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM I 
> To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Ddlan, 
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H I 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J I 
>Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> 

> 
> ----- Original Message -----
> From: Jacobson, Linda ~ 
>To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; LJ)olan, 

' JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H , 
>Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M i 
>Sent: Mon May 3111:20:32 2010 I 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 

r 
> 
> ----- Original Message ----­
> From: Baumert, Kevin A 
>To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacojjl'son, 
Linda; Perina, Alexandra H 
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M 
>Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 2010 
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 
> c-= 

12 
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I 

> Kevin 
> l/OES 
> 
> --- -- Original Message ----- I 
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H 1 

>To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson,IUnda 
>Sent: Mon May 3110:50:27 2010 I 
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
> 

~runmmyo~~B-&=~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
> 
> ----- Original Message ----­
>From: Goldberger, Thomas H 
>To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly, Maura; 
Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov> ' 
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
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan 8 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM 
> To: Goldberger, Thomas H 
> Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinem~nn, 

Thomas B ' 
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 

> 
>Jon 
> 

13 

I 
I 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05140888 Date: 02/20/2013 

85 



StateDept004425

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
>Sent: Mon May 3109:05:16 2010 
>Subject: Fw: MFA flot illa briefing 
~ 

>Jon 
> 
> --- - - Original Message ----­
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
> ----- Original Message----- • 
> From:[__ I I 
>To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, 
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; AAiodeo, 
Salvatore A (Istanbul) ; Conne!ly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem);[ 

~-------------' M; Levin, Jan; [, ~ 
1
• 

>Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 
---~~--~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~83000-CP 
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highlight83 OODFGI 
> - Ongoing Operation i 
> - Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I 
> - M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L I 
> - All ships will be in port by later today I 
> - 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed 
> - 30 Civilians Wounded 
> - 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 With "medium" wounds , 
> - Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled I 
> - Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law because· of intent 
by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) ! 
> ! 

85 

BS 

83 000-CP 
I 
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> 
> 
> - ----Original Message-----
> From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 

I 
83 DOD-GP 

I 

>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM I 
>To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Pi3rker, 
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R~3 0 

C I 
[ I Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D 

1
D D- P 

>Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' I 
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing , 
> 
> This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have t"ieard from1 me, but 
just to assure that various reporting lines have same Info, this is fro yvho also 
spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. I 

~I ]reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met Jith what 
he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded rere 
attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boar<l!ed were 
attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear, situation 
was one in which actions taken were in self-defense. 1 

> l 

> Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more". He said all injured being mQved to 
Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them comi~g into 
Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; movb the 
people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planm~d 
initially, move as much of into Gaza as promptly as possible. 
> 
>Earlier this morning he~nd ade the following calls/contacts: ; 
> --Turkish FM and MoD Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh [ I He felt the calls w the 
Turks ~iven the situation were 0 , but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he will handle. With Pals, 
Erakat Un particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. Wittl Fayyad 
they discussed primarily need for security cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how ~his will 
be affected by status of Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. I 

> I 
~ (P.IC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) I 
> -----Original Message--- - - I 
> From: Cunningham, James B I 
>Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM 
>To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubbf Jason 
B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amod~o, 

Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D 83 DOD-CP 
>Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' I 
> Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 
> 
> Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as i t's ayailable. 
UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod. Serry is 
trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that assisting deliveries of humanitarian 
goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is problemmatic but he'll see. Barak j ust gave a pre~s 
conference, and appears to have spoken to Davotuglu this am. I 
> Sent from my BlackBerry 
> I 

15 
I 

I 
I 
I 
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83 000-CP 
> ----- Original Message ----- : 
> From: Levin, Jan I 
> To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew c;:~ 

Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; I _J 
Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltm'-a-n~,-J~ettrey D 
>Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 I 
> Subject: MFA flotilla briefing 

' > I 

> MFA DG Yossi Gal and IDF Col. briefed foreign 
.__..,......~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-' I 

ambassadors at 12:30 local time today. 
> I 

> Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively to 9mbassies 
as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be processed and escorte~ to 
airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. I 

8 

> -- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all injurier 
occurred on this ship. 
> -- Col.c=Jtold Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and Jtere 86 
armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF scjildier 
nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. I 
> -- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in: inti 
waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and H~mas. 
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
Thursday, June 03, 2010 8:42 AM 
Gaza Flotilla Monitoring Group To: -

Subject: FW: 3 JUN 10- FREE GAZA MOVEMENT (FGM) FLOTILLA UPDATE -WAVE# 2 (SITREP 
f/6) (SECRET) 

Attachments: Free Gaza Movement Flotilla Update_3 Jun 10.ppt: 20100604_TUR_IHH.ppt 

!RELEASED IN PART 81 ,83 DOD-CP, 1.4(A),86, 1.4(C)J 

Interesting that Rachel Corrie heading to Alexandria, Egypt. 

From: Stein, Lawrence J. CAPT {mallto:lawr'ence.Stein@jac.eucom.smil.mll] 
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 12:36 AM 

83 000-CP 

To: Gardner, John D. LTG 

~~J 

!{SECRET) 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Good morning LTG Gardner-

1.4(A) 
B1 

!classification Extended on : 02/1912013 - Class: SECRET -Authority: DSCG 11-1 -o Declassify on: 06-02-20251 

Situation Update: 

(REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer) 
l 
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86 

83 DOD-CP 
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<<Free Gaza Movement Flotilla Update_3Jun10.ppt>> «20100604_TUR_IHH.ppt» 

3 

83 000-CP 
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Schaefer, Courtnay 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Warlow, Molly 
Thursday, February 17, 201110:08 AM 
McHenry, Teresa; Warner, David 
Hammer, Timothy; Schaefer, Courtney 
RE: Meeting re Furkhal Dogan 

_J l 

!RELEASED IN PART 85) 

t would recommend doing it with State- don't want to have them playing one against the other, plus l would want to 
know what state says, and I think this more a foreign relations than legal Issue at this point. Would you be willing to 
attend?· 

Molly 

B!B5 

Sent: Wednesday;·February·t6;-201l ·6:3l· PM .. ·---·· ····· 
To: Warlow,-Molly; Warner;- David .. · · - .. · ·· · ··· · · ·· ... · .... 
Cc: Hammer, Timothy; Schaefer, Courtney 

·····-·--"'··--···--·······-··-~·-~~(."~-~Jr. 

. .... - ····----· ···-· ............. "'". . ... "1t..:."1" 

Subject: Re: Meeting re Furkhat Dogan 

I Inclined to think we shld meet. Don't have strong preference re whether doj does w state, or we do separately 
T 

----·-·--·~---· ----· 

[111 
--i 

From: Warlow, Molly /!)) F; 
To: Warner, David; McHenry, Teresa ~ 

Cc: Hammer, Timothy ·- 'OCJ,.Aii.1: 1 

---5ent:-WeEl-feb46-13'34!2-l.~H-----------------~----------~· ! .x 
Subject: RE: Meeting re Furkliat Dogan , 1 f 

Or Join their meeting? 

From: Warner, David 
Sent: Wednesday, February 16, 20111:21 PM 
To: McHenry, Teresa; Warlow, Molly 
Cc: Hammer, Timothy 
Subject: Fw: Meeting re Furkhat Dogan 

............... 
. ... . Molly.and Teresa, State is. taking.the meeting.with.Dogan .. They.are.asking.about o~Lintentions.r~: .his. proposed .meeting: .. : 

with us and whether we want to attend their meeting. With State taking the meeting, do we want to decline the meeting 
him perhaps provide a talking point that speaks to the lack of Jurisdiction under US law? David 

--·----·-------- J..i. ,Jrn A. 
. pvw: ~izv~ 

.BS 

SBU 
This email ls UNCLASSIFIED. !REVIEW AUTHORITY: Charles Daris, Senior Reviewer) 
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y----------·--------·-------------~--~.-~----···--¥----~-----

/;m 

-

·- .. ... . . . . .. --·· ....... -· .. . ...... ···--·-···· -· -.. - . .... . . 
From: McDonough, Patricia E . 
Sent: Wednesday, February 16, 201112:22 PM 
To: Hammer, Timothy; 'Warner, David'; Wiison, Kathleen A 
Subject: Meeting re Furkhat Dogan 

Tim, David-

'''~M''''' '"""''.'''' ··-·••·~ O• ·-·-·~," 

t0f i 

85 

'----< 

I • 

f ... ·I 
I - ... , 

I . 
j-'-
! 

1~Best-, ~~~~~~~~~~11 

Trish 
-!---------------------------------------+--~ 

Patricia E. McDonough I 
' Attorney-Adviser 

US Dopa1tmont of State , 
Office of the Assistant Legal Advise1·,.Law Enforcement and Intelhgence (ULEI) 

Toi: 202-647-6194 

This email fs UNCLASSIFIEB:-····----··--·-- ----· ---------------·-
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[UNCLASSIFIEDj [RELEASED IN FULL 

Schaefer, Courtney 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc:. 
Subject: 

Lets discuss 
Thi<S 

McHenry, Teresa 
Friday, February 16, 20111:03 PM 
Warlow, Molly; Warner, David 
Schaefer, Courtney; Swartz, Bruce; Weinstein, Jason 
FW: DOS meeting re: Dogan 

,..,t __ ~~~·~----~-~--···--- --~·..........---.·------· .... ··~~·---
From: McDonough, Patricia E Fmallto;McDonoughPE@state.govJ 
Sent: Friday, February 18, 201111:56 AM 

--· · :ro:-Warner,Davld;-MGHenr:y,Teresa 
Cc: Wilson, Kathleen A 

. Subject: .DOS meeting .re: Dogan .... 

Teresa, David -

.... ·• · ·1 ·ti~ve· jil'sr· If ei! l\"llifo r tn-ee!·that·th·e-o OSlne-et In g·wJth·M r ~Do ga n·a nd·his-cou nse I· I s·n ot'go ing·to·b e·o pen-to·i n e lu de·a-El@J....,........~ .. 
representative. I had previously been asked to see If DOJ would be Interested In attending that meeting on Wednesday, 
but the off\ce that has been tasked with holding this meeting plans to confine the meeting to DOS consular matters. 

I 
Thus, the current thinking Is that a DOJ representative should not attend the DOS meeting- rather, if DOJ meets with 
Mr. Dogan and counsel, such a meeting should be separate. 

I 1 am sorry for the confusion on this Issue I I just learned of this development this morning. I am happy to discuss­
__ I clearly there has been an evolution ofthinklng on this end and I do not know whether that will change again. 

I Best, · ' 
Trish 

I 

! Patricia E. McDonough 
/ Attorney-Adviser 
j US Department of State 

.... i .Office of the Assistant '[..;>gal .Ady_l.ser,, !.-a'''. 1).nforc.o;m~~J ancj ln!e!l.igenc.e.(LJL.]ll).. 

I 

i 
i 
' 1 

..... I .. ······-··----·--------. . . . . .. .. ·-· .. -· --·-··- ..... 
I Toi: 202-647-6194 ··- -------~-.--l 

' I 

' 
[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Charles Daris, Senior ReviewerJ 

i SBU 
-'-'fhis-ema!Hs-l:INet.-ASSIFIEElc-. --------------------------~-----

[UNCLASSIFIEDj 
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[RELEASED IN FULLJ 

···-~~~~~~~~~~-J-~~-·Lh.~' ~Henry. Teresa ~ 

From: McDonough, Patricia E [McDonoughPE@state.gov] µp· .>Y 
Sent: Tuesday, February 22, 2011 6:06 PM 'l 
To: Warner, David; McHenry, Teresa j 
Subject: FW: Haaretz - Father of teen killed In Gaza flotilla raid seeks American justice , 

David, Teresa - From the Turkey desk· you may wjsh to review (or pass to people attending the Dogan meeting at DOJ 
tomorrow) for Information purposes, If you have not seen these already. 

Best1 

Trish 

SBU 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED. 

. I . .. .. .... . . .... ....... ... ... . ... . . .. .. .... .. . . . . . . . .. ... . ... .. ... ... ..... ... . . . . . 
! 
I 

1-
1 

From: Gregonls, Meghan E · 
Sent: Tuesday, February 22, 2011 6:05 PM 

\ To: McDonough, Patricia E 
I subject: Haaretz - Father of teen killed In Gaza fiotllla raid seeks American justice 

I . . 
I Trish, . 
, Below see a link to the NYTimes article from this summer and further below there's a Haaretl article from today. DOJ 

. [ might want to review these In advance of the meeting, If they haven't done so already,. Thanks, 
I Meghan 
I 

!~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
/ Meghan Gregonls •Senior Turkey Desk OffJcer •Office of Southe~n t:uropean Affairs'• US Department of stat"o 

12201 C St, NW Rm 5511 Woshlngton, DC 20520 J 'Iii: 202.&47 .97491 181: QOlgonjsME@!Jale sov 

http://www.nvtlmes.com/2010/07 /27 /op lnlon/27 iht-edcohen.htm I ?scp=l&sq=roger+cohen+doga n&st=nvt 

http://www,haaretz,com/blogs/foi:us·li=s~aZfather:of-teen-kllled-ln-gaza-flotlf!a-ra!d-seeks'iiinet!can-
1 ustlce-1.345023 

• 
• 

Published 15:35 22.02.11 
Latest update 15:36 22.02.11 

I . 
1 Father of teen killed 
\justice 

in Gaza flotilla raid seeks American 

! Like the other people on board the Mavi Marmara, says Professor Ahmet Dogan, 
'we did not expect Israelis to attack the ship in the middle of the night.' 

By Natasha Mozgovaya !REVIEW AUTHORITY: Charles Daris, Senior ReviewerJ 

1 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2011-07535 Date: 04/30/2012 

! 
I 

I 
I 

• •• 1 

' 



StateDept004435

•• 
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2011-07535 Date: 0413012012 

Did you see the video of IDF soldiers being attacked on the Mavi Marmara? Did It not look like a 
provocation to you? 

"If these were really dangerous people, Instead of throwing away the weapons that they captured from 
the soldiers,' they could have used them and killed the soldiers. When the'hellcopters were tied to the ship 
with ropes so that the soldiers could scale down, they could have pulled them down, but they let them 
go,'.' says Dogan. · 

"Have you ever Imagined what It would be like to be In their shoes, being set upon by commandos at the 
crack of dawn? I think that the lsraells were the ones that wanted a provocation." 

Dogan says he has nothing against Jews or Israel. 

"The Turks accepted Jews that were expelled from Spain, Jews that fled the Second World War. That was 
Furkan's belief. If Jews were living under an oppressive regime, he would have joined a flotilla to aid . 
th'em:· When"J"StU~le-d-rn·tM·tJ;S;;--1·h·ad-a-1ot"Of"Jewlsh-fri·ends/l"never·had·-anythlng-agalnst-them;'"--····-----· .. -·-· 

"My opinion of the Israeli people has not changed, but I want those responsible for my son's death to face 
· justice.·Regifr"dlesii'ofWhci'ls··resporHlllile;·111c1udtrfgar111y·commanders· and the ·polltlclamnhai:-send them:·­

And if the State of Israel has self-respect, It must admit Its mistake," says Dogan. "I would appeal to an 
Israeli court In a quest For justice, but I no longer believe that Israeli justice Is Impartial." 

... . .. ,, ... . .......... _ .. ·-·--· ... -· ... ···-. ··-·-· ·---·-·· -~·-··-·-.. ---···--··-~--~- - ___ _.. ___ -····---···· ····-- . --· --····· ·----~ ..... --.-· ....... ~··-·· ' ... -- ...... . 

Dogan says that no Israeli has made any effort to contact him since the flotilla. "No government ,official 
and no peace activist. I was quite surprised by It, because I am sure that there are many people In Israel 
that do not agree with the policies of their government," he says. 'I expected more solidarity." 

"Twice we were contacted by the American Embassy, once regarding the death certificate, and a second 
time the ambassador called to express his condolences, two months after the Incident." He has two more 
grown children, a boy and a girl. "I don't know if there are words that can express what they feel." 

He received advice on how to deal with the U.S. government and the names of possible contacts from the 
parents of Rachel Corrie, the International Solidarity Movement activist that was killed by an Israeli 
bulldozer In Gaza. They met once In Istanbul and plan tO meet again during Dogan's upcoming visit In the 
U.S. . 

"They told me who to talk to and what steps to take. They also told me that It won't be easy." 

Dogan says that he has still not received the 'clothes that his son was wearing when he was killed, nor his 
video camera wlth·whlch he filmed what happened on the ship. 

"If Israel Is so certain of Its righteousness, I call upon It to stand trial at the International court In the 
Hague and provide Its explanations," says Yugur Sevglll, Dogan's lawyer. 

' 

SBU 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED. 

4 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2011-07535 Date: 04130/2012 



StateDept004436

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2011-07535 Date: 04/30/2012 
!RELEASED IN PART TO CERTAIN PARTIES B5j 

i 

From: McDonough, Patricia E [mallto:McDonoughPE@state.gov] 
Sent: Wednesday, February 23, 201111:52 AM 
To: Warlow, Molly 
Subject: FW: READOUT of meeting with Prof, Dogan (Feb 23) 

. . .... .. . . . . . . ··~ ... ... .. .. .. . .. ...... _ ., ........ . 

Prlvacy/Pll 
This email Is UNCLASSIFIED. 

r~hh 
I~ 
I 
! 
I ··. 

B5 

·

1

1 -Fr_o_m_:_B_a-ily-,-Je_s_s_L---------------·--- I -·--- --· 
Sent: Wednesday, February 23, 201111:48 AM )./; K 

\ \ 

.. ·•.· ·~•il',,P.:'J. To: McDonough, Patricia E . .?i 

Cc::: Gregonls, Meghan E f).,;gf" 
- 1-subject:-FW:-READEltJT-of-meetlng-wlth·Prof;-Bogan-(Feb-W)-------------------ii---'''-C'"--' i . 

· \ lhis just come in. Jess 
! 

Privacy/Pl! 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED. 

I 

! From: Pettit, James D 
\ Sent: Wednesday, February 23, 201111:41 AM 

1
1 To: Schnler, David M; Riley, Robert J; Miller, Andrew T; Gregonls, Meghan E 

\ 
Cc: Baily, Jess L; Mokhtarzada, Homeyra N; Baez, Alejandro X; Kaidanow, Tina S; Eilts, Colin C; Richter, Kim B; Sutphin, 
Paul R; Flood, Colleen B i Subject: READOUT of meeting with Prof, Dogan (Feb 23) 

! (Please Feel free to forward as necessary) 
1 

\ Partlc1pants: 

I DOS 
I 
I Jim Pettit (DAS for CA/OCS) 
I Kim Richter (OCS/ACS/NESCA) 
! Colleen Flood (OCS/PRI) 
' 

IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Charles Daris, Senior Reviewer\ 
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Colin Eiits (NEA/IPA) 

Dogan Party 

Prof. Ahmet Dogan 
Katherine Gallagher (attorney, Center for Constitutional Rights) 
Ugur Sevgili (attorney/interpreter) 

Meeting was held at 10:00 a.m. In CA front office on Feb, 23, 2011. 

I just want to share my general impressions - olhers were loking.noles If addressees need more deloil. 

I expressed condolences to Prof. Dogan on the loss of his son. I told him that CA places a high priority 
on ossisling the next-of-kin when a U.S. citizen dies abroad. He Initially staled that he hod no con1act 
with the eml:;iasw qf\er his. s.or:i'.s P.C?.9.Y c;irriv~g_/r:i Tur~eY· J.re<;;q1,JriJe9.. 99-tes onc!n2rriEis of (n_dixisJL19]s. 
from our embassy in Ankara (including the Ambassador) who were in touch wllh him in the first few . 
days. He evenluolly qualified his inilial assertion by slaling lhat the embassy hos nol provided arw 
information. 

There were repealed calls for a USG investigation. I told them that lhe USG does not as a rule 
conducl investigations over.;eas, but musl rely on local jurlsdiclions. In lhls Instance, we were 
awaiting the findings of lhe UN SYG Inquiry panel (Palmer Commission), which would be based on 
independent investigalions of the Gaza Flotilla lncldenl .bY the governments of both Turkey and 
Israel. I was queried as lo why we did not accept ·the findings of lhe earlier-UNHRC report and why 
the USG was critical of lhat report. I replied that we were seeking a more balanced and better 

·---lnformea stuay, noffngfnatmeGl\lffRC's manaoleliod been somewliafDnclear anatne ------­
invesligalion obit "rushed." 

The meeting was generally friendly, although Ms. Gallagher got a bil aggressive with her questioning 
toward the end. asking who/when/how we engaged with the Israelis on this issue, whether we had 
asked for an apology, etc. My response was always "we're walling for the UN report." 

Ms. Gallagher also pressed on the autopsy repqrt. saying that It clearly shqwed summary execution of 
protesters and of Furkan. I told her I had seen the aulopsy report and agreed. that it seemed Jo 
evidence gunshots at close range, but that lhe characterizallon of the cause .of death being . 
"summary execution" was a call lhal would have to be made by experts who could def ermine lhe 
context. 

I apologized for the delay in issuance of a Consular Report of Death, explaining thal such documenls 
are issued on the basis of a death report Issued by local authorities and not just on the aulopsy 
reporl. 

1he group is meeting wilh DOJ later todoy. I did say that lhere were circumstances under which the 
USG (including the FBI) could and would assist in investigation. of crimes against U.S. citizens overseas, 
but that whether this Incident fell within those narrow parameters would have lo be determined by 
DOJ. 

Ms. Gallagher pointed out that the Israelis have yet to return the video camera taken from Furkan 
and insisted that this needed to be returned both because l) it was the prpperty of a deceased U.S. 

2 
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citizen and 2) it could have crucial evidentlary/forenslc value to the ongoing investigation. I agreed 
and we committed to ask for an update from our embassy In Tel Aviv on efforts lo locate and return 
this Item. 

I did make the point that we have been in frequent contact with the Israelis on this matter. most 
recently on February 15. 

At the end of lhe.11')eeling, 1 lold Prof. Dogan that he was always entitled to a response when he 
asked for information from the Department or our posts and that he should let me know personally If 
he was not receiving requested information. Al the same time. I pointed out that many previous 
inquiries on his pehalf to our embassy in Ankara were made by third parties who had no clear 
relationship to him (citing the Privacy Act). I added that our consular staff in Ankara would be happy 
to meet with him upon request. 

Let me know if you have questions. I'll be back in the· office ·on March t. · 

_Jir:n ................ ". 
Privacy/Pl\ 
This email ls UNCLASSIFIED, 

-----------------------------------

3 
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t..--"°. Text: I RAEL 
~ !RELEASED INlQh!J NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS] 1d:EBANON 

REDACTED - - -

UNITED STATES 'MISSION TO THE UNITED N IONS 

June 10, 20 I 0 

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE DEPUTY PERMANENT REPRE ENTATIVE 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

FROM: POL- Jeff Delaurentis 
SUBJECT: Meeting with Israeli MFA Deputy DG, IO, Eviatar Manor and BG Yossi 

Heymann, Friday, June 11, 4:00 p.m., USUN 

Background 

I --

Issuesffalking Points 

,.___ _ __ ~G~aza~fl=o=ti=ll=a:~l-----------~~-----------i 

.__ _ ___, Israeli Foreign Minister Lieberman told Ambassador ice. thaUhe Israelilcabjn_e.t_wo:uld l likoly mako a docision on an invostigation on s...,day, Juno 13. 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

~EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewe~ 
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= --

I 

• We expect your government to conduct a prompt, impartial, credible and tran parent 
inves.tigation conforming to international standards that gets to all the facts surrounding the 
tragic incident. We are open to different ways of assuring a CTedible investig< ~ion, including 
international participation. 

I 
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AW 06-&-JO Mtg with lsr MFA Dep DG Manor and BG Hevmann.doc 

Drafted: POL: ASchedlbauer 
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IRELE~SEO IN FUjJ:J 

Participants 

Israel 
Mr. Eviatar (Evi) Manor, Deputy Director General 

for International Organizations, MFA 
Brigadier General Yossi Heymann, Head of Strategic 

Division, IDF 

Ambassador Gabriela Shalev 
Ambassador Danny Carmon 
Hairn Waxman, Deputy Perm Rep-designate 

(will replace Ambassador Carmon in mid-August) 
lnbal Eshed, Adviser 

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior 
Reviewer 

~~~~~~~~~ 

United States 
Ambassador Wolff 
JeffDeLaurentis (t) 
Ellen German 
Amy Schedlbauer (n tetaker) 
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The White House . 
-·· 

Offiee .of the Pre$s · s~creUu-y 
- '· • • ! , ' •I • "' • 

. ' ,·: ·_· .... ·. 
For l.mn,lediate .Rb:t~e · ·, · 
June 09~.2010 · 

[RELEASED IN F@ 

: •, ·-..... . . :" ' " 
' .. · · . ·· .• ' ... 

.· . .. . ' ~ . . 

!RE~IEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, sem:i 
Reviewer 

.· " .... ·:- ·:· 

.· 
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In the meantime, the United States -- which is already the biggest humanitarian aid onor in . 
Gaza-~ is going' to be anno,uncmg an additi~iial $4:ao mQlioil in; assistance for lious ilg, s~hool 
·construction, busin.ess deve.lop~ent.-::::not only in Q:aza, b).lt afso in the West Bank, eoause 'We 
tbinkit's important forus to rea,fijriP'.Qnee '!g~ our .. c;;orrtmi~ent toj mprovirig'tlie · ay~t<H!~y 
'liveS'Of.ordinary Palestinians._. · . . · · -_ . ·. _ : · · .. ' , _ 
Now, what w..e aiso discusse(:I, t]j~ugp;iarid }Vh~t we.wjlt_cfo~tinue to work on o"er t ·e'next · . 
several months is the f~t that qofbnlji is the sta~s qu() ~ith.respectto·Gaia uosu ·1naok. the 
s~rus.quo with cesjiect to theMiddkE~:i:s W'isri.st~irnibttt'lt is.time for:.µs to go ~d an_d mov.e 
forward on a two-stiite solutiortitiiabwiii-hllitrii~the·fit:&fs,iif-fsraeli -citizens and' wit affir:m'fue -
n~eds of Palestinian ~- P~iestln:i~:~~c; ;~~·.d~:SJ)erat~:f9r'a:h,oriielind. -· · . -_ .. ., 
We ha;ve·had y1;ry'productivepro~itf~k~: '. . :s.en.at9t ·¥ItcpeU. -Vt'.hP is here, ·I th nkstandigg -
in U.wl:>ack ....:... has D:een ver:Y ~tiv:e;'.~orlW;ig:Willi~bol:ll ·ihe: PMestiiija.ri,s·;!.hd the ls~l( U:~· to-try tq 
start m_9ying tn~(i'r&es~ rorw.~,·Ai{d.!fiW~~@<>:~~lllt pre~ide~t Ab~lls roi p~ci ~~g:'i9 these 
'proxupity.taiks ev~~·.under so'me ~i~94lt P;i~~stiUi¢~~:·· H~h'as"slJ..~~. cp~ge. , ~t~l.l~9iW,i,n : 
°\YNtt~ng to:r.es<!l-Ye ltii~ i:Srue. A'1d.~~1'e,ii(;v,~!hatwifh:f:Staeli$;,!m.O·tb~,Pa~e~tinian · ·u~orify' 
.ex) in to:· ethei. · . ak.ih .clear;ibaf' ~; .. · 'Ge~•1: n · ~vFl. ·c @lutio' _,,:i:;al teci:i : . ize5 ·'6th,the.: rn "g ., .. g . ,,_,m . g . .. ,. , ... .. .. \a.-~-,, ·-\.~•--.o~ , 9_~1t~ , .. ,!,1-~ .,. _ ... Wt -· . ... . 
·s~µrity·ne~s:9f Israe:l as w~U:a$:~_M~gtt®~t~ a_,5pll:iitid~s1d'.f:-Pal~s~~ :\$ithe n hhvay,tq,go, 
can yiel~' reaj:pr.~gr~ss 'in•tile'~mhijmen\J:l~~-::' :·'.:. :~ . ·:,.: ~ ... ,)' ' :~> ., .,' . . - ' - . 
Jt"s .. unportard fu\lfW.e'iln4erstand th.~ s~rl:se'.cif;iirg"¢ncY:'t.bat:theJ~alestmlan peopfo:Ic el fu:iJiis: : 
~r.O-~s~>.0bviowilY,Y~ti;vc; gqtc,e .~ '·.';.·. · -i · ' ' · ·'ttiC¢JJ~~-~at~~~~:~0t il'~coiu'iZe4 '~t~~l/l_l;}~~ . :: 
;g~(ie;tq.i:iri~,"~~1e.i\~;::~~o: · . ·: ·)r~~*~~~~i~;~Aria.~~~t'h~ if~. 3w~<>rr~r :·, 
1P<it! ~V,en,;et~s.~a_e9~:./\~b'~i:s,·~?.~t; .. .. :.:~ .. 4 p.~f~Pt.!~~~§.fjlafi~ll).l~~P ~(}!tl!~·s : ~i~.s~e~i,~ ~~:J 
thinldlie d~sit'e:of. ' :• ) 'le n6th;iii • A/n •• :P,il:!¢§tiiic; ,:,...;,£eaj.~stiii@i'I'.eiif.itoiie.S.to1!• ' ¢aceful:.'• --• 

~~~='.?:~~~~,,,,, :,,,.~;r~r~~~~it~~,~ . &@{~· t; • •. 
i·<lici.:si:tare:.~11ld>resici.etifAhl>aitn\O'rdet.Jaims,to,5~;s ·~~'Iriiiiliime~e-nexf.se~e · Tirloiiili~· .. -.. 
:tf~i ~6tii ~;-1ci~i~~~¥;f~l~.;e~t~~~~~¥Jt~~~;~~#.~~W.fil'.{j;g9:~~it.~:.~~~~~j :~e~io ~~·: :-·:. 
·~e.~l:l:>rc£~9il$h:· Nlq4h~t·~~~~o1;1;,~~,~~,.~~i!§~\l'.e.;,:f~r.,b}j.}~-t~~~e,iµen;t·~ct~vi. :M~. , . _ ':· · >­
Fe90g¢Zfi1g !!Q))ie'Pf th~.ipt9gi'.e$~ th,Jil'.1\~M~~~iri,lade Qy th~-F.~~ti~~';!\~~OJ:to/ : p~pii~.¢0~s, 
to issues·like· seeiirlty, :It m~aiis&n•tfiiH?.iilestiri'ian .. sidl'!°~.an&:t'~a.S\i.ecyfuilik wit ,;pte's'iderir · 

~::;.:~\t~-~~.:¥::~eJ~~;~~~~~~;~~~~~~~~~~t.~~?~~~;~7~%t;;~,~11~ai': ::;;ie~~~~:;· .. t: 
And if. we ·clut o er fu.e..,n.~,s·everat;mon'ths tzy:.to '1ift: · iWhat, .. eftlicfh:Onesf and~e ~ timate · ·; · ~ 

~QP~i~:s·;~r.i>:9;,(#4~i~£1i~~~~?~!TP~-~~4)~t~~lr~·9~i?~~@~~·Ui~~:~~y: ~~~i~::\ .. ·/.--';'.­
·~P1m.~p,, ~~~feit.W f.rlov~~:'?ft:,(i,f~~~~~~epJh!~ 9.ea4,~~d;_Jiie~J~li~IJi~v,~;#,i~t ~~~~.fi~:r;"~e r 
can.Jriak.e'lli' :·ncant- "to estrbefoii~1:hl~il.d1J>ftlfo. · ··e. ,. '. : -:~ '· '.· .. . . ·······'. _ · . : - · 

~ds:.1~~t!f t!t'~t;:"~~,;~~~~Wt;~~~~~~;.~fu'~. · ~:r~"t't;r · 
That C9mm~~ei;!t;~as;l).ot waY~t;e.tL~.ji.I1.b!~ tp.e Aµie)::}gaµ:people ~~t:to ·see . n;solut1on. uf 
this fa.sue thllf: ~s.~qui~~te . .. \V~1,w).ir~:£ij~~~ej~~W;P.;r~ ~i4~~Y'.~~a~-~~·!pi11: a~ .. we: ,as~~ _ . . . 
I.sraehs~ t;o_ ~sQl¥eth1S m:a way:~~tJ$ g@a for:the chlldien and:future.generahon,s botb 1.n JsµJe) 
ab.Ct hi a futiite.Piibtine. -. · · --· -_ · ' , ... < .- · · · · · · - ' · - · - · · - - ,.-

So tb~k yciu _v~ry.much. : . . . , _ ., _ _ . . _ 
:PRESID.ENT ABBAS: (As'U'anslattid.) ·.thaiik·you; Mt. ·Pr.eshfont. ~Cl we, inde , have just 
held ~¢ry impo~n~ dlscussioi:is th'art9~che1f 9n the po!Mcat:pr.ocess _a5'wel!·as tlie .ery. 
important latest development that ·happen!!d in Gaza. -· -
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Of_cours~ \Ye yalue and de~~!Y appi:eciate .¥1. ~e efforts 9fthe·lJ.~t~ ·~t~tes, as e!J ~the effort 
Qf Pr~idellt Obama, ~d all'the.assistan~ and ~e!p for pushing fory;aj:d the econ mfo.and , 
seeudty lev~ls. An,d w,eha.ve re!whed a sa~sfac~q_zy ,pi~tui:e .of.tlle:eC<?tiomic Md ecur_it)".·levels. 
Yet ~e are determined t<>.keep pushiµg forward in.o\lr.efforts t9: l?.i'.ing jt llP to th next.-l~v,tl. 

And I a)so app~ciate the attcmtion and ll1.e :aetermination:Oi Pr~ideiµ Obiu¥.in ~ing th~· we · 
push ~qrward the political .process as soon1 as J>C?ssibl~. An4J a:Sse~.:an_d .I #firm at we:wiU.not . 
give .up on this eJJd~jlvor ~head :pfus,Jievau.se, i.t i$· iQ-.!;)ur'in.t~r¢Stidn ~e.int~res :ofisraeJ, 'in the· 
interes.tof~e . .wot,ld, and·~is9, 'rJiosH>f.ali'; ·41 t~~·itjf~r~st o(ib~:Unite~· States. : · · · : ... · · 
Wd~now that:tin.te is of essenc~; wekµovrl)t~~:Yf~:gi~t ~~{.ipi~s..tfii~'.;opporttl!li . We a-ffitin: 
't,IJ.e ~p-9rt<1;nce of'brin~~: apout p~ce an~:~~~fy:.in the r~gipn: ::, '." . .... ' . . 
.Apd ~ woulq.l.i)5e,to thanl(Pr~~~~en~ q~~a ~r ;th~}.§qppo'rt;,!ha~: }i~· W..ill gt".e.Jo • .. ~a .-.- and ·yre 
:h~vejust taik~d ·~l>out tllaniow~ Thisjs'.il'.p6~iHY.~,S].&nat.o'f 1he·:Unit~lSt~~!i:tµa the On it~~· . . 
:states car~ ·ai?outthe .sUJf~i;ing q{iQe.p~op(e.;ijj: ~~M4.tlbqu.t j}ie ~sii~~-g 'of e Paie5tiniilh . 
peqple;.... ·.. · : .. : .. : · · " . , .. '. ,_._., .. " :·.>:):· ~ ·~:.· :; " : ; . :,' . : .:~'·'.: · · . '. _ , . 
And: we.also. ser th~ .n~ea. to.l!~ ,t~~~~r~df ~ieie,:~.t:W:~"Ji'.ajes!ii:ifo:n::P.~~P.le~ 'th~:ne to qp.eq,-all. : : 
!11.i;:.cr~s~ings, ~q ti,eneed w•~.t buil~iugfa~fort~J~~ h4~W!a~·!Jiater)"'l: ati .aJf the' \ .:_:.. : . .. 
~ec~~l.t!~.~ go1ntp.lhe.P.l).J~~.1a~.peopl.e .. ," <·: -~,-< .. · ·:-·: : . ~ .. 1. ,,: . ,:-;.:._. .• .. ·. · . . .. · .. ::.: . . . : ·· 
'And alsb we. aP.p~~iate th~ ·att«?ntion gi v.en· l9· tJ.1~f9p;1.1!l~IQn.:ofil,ff j.Ih:¢s.~g~ti.op .c mnijtte.~:~;tt . 
·wo:Ufd:'iirv.estlg~te .. W.hat :bai?J>Cr:ie{in md~tsh eV,~zj~_;. ~e 'eyentSiofV{haj;:~~-~.11:· eoi•~~cfor:ii ~: •, ~ .. 
Pfotilla orthe'.freedom'Fleet· .: '.;:. .. : -..::,:. .·:_:·:·. , :~:" , " : ,_:.~·.::i,; · ·.,-,:~.,;· ....... · .. :: ... : . . 
ioat*y~ ill tii~!?t ~~tQ~~-Mi:.~~4id~~~;i!i"~(w~~y~;qo;tl)'"1~fi··t~:rli>~~2fu.~.it~~ ~t a.&;ti~st .''.:·:. ': .' 

~1~ia~~:tt~~~i~ta~~~f~~!~l!~:~~~tl\)1~r~lti~~!ft.ro eY.~eb~~~:.!~; 
~ta~~ify: ·:·: ~;> t ·. :.~·::. \:~-=·:,;;;::;<:· <~ :~~!~:~·,~tr..;i,r~~J~f;1\~i;;·;: ;~~ != ~{~;~~·4tr: ":'..: ·· .: .. \. ·_ . .'.:._ .. i:<i:/ 
We:aacr°t4i"d \Ve~~;.;;..; fue;Afal);p~· "' ifuitiatiY'h:+i.:t.~:W~ade' lect!m;·'-' - .,t$ :·· :Arab utllini~1 ., ... ,". lP ., ~ ....... ~.~~~ ....... , .. .. ,., .. ,. ~ ., .. ... ~~~ .•. ,,.,. , , .• p.. ~: .. .-!-'S}J!Jl_Jl!A, . .. -.~ .... -. . ·! . 

~well as- iri sumiriits'hela·""'~:!slanus:C:O ·· :t;r·-~;..<J<J~·~.;s~di~~ ··Q1Sliiihic·co 'ntries-liaV.e .i .. :. 
, ' ! I • , • . •,1 .. - •;;;•t,."'t'-!' ,. , ,.. _•.-•; . ~- ,: ~Y.1f.~~.J'•, .. - ... •,: -:r- , ...... ~ ... "'\ 1 , ..,f* ~·~ -·• • • • · •,., ·~, ,· l.., 

:~~1d.:tl}a:t~¢y "":bu~~ re¢0'~~·!,st~el;ir~T:$~ehx~~·difWJj;~ri!: ,tf.l~ ~~°'W,ed,·~~~ Ii .?,; 2 . .,. ·:~:.,~ ·:' ~~ · 

;~~~:;~;~;:~#k~!~~~~:~~~~:J.~~~~t~~~~:~;~~ ~~~;:~:~i~i,;: 
§P.i}.~~ct1s·a·etitteal iqt<;t~·•;>f:th~ Pm.(e¢S~t~,~~s--~~~t<.;!g;ml.Q(~"V{e .art;;pl'i. d _ofari:cl :w~ ... ,.;: 
~Bl l?·~t~P.~,;~iy Si11gu~\~~~ ~c(o~Q~~~~~:~~~i~~~~P~f~).~S~:~fi~~e ! ~t·.: ~· .. ::;'. ... '~:· 
;l'-RE~IB.~N;r;~~~:· .)Veig(?;Ni[p§0fofrUP.1~tVf8:$4~~~ous:. i'~·.o~i§Q1!te;V.ff.. ~id~ .. ~~'.,r:t:· -.: ,,, 
·g~J.tt:tsi':~119~:M~~~l?.~~hil~k.o;t~~#i~r):i°?~-~ .;~ :~~~, ·~:}(~: ~:1.1\1·c·~~-s· ~· ~: .. · -_. ~-. ···,:· <~:_,t-<·.· 
.Q;··,,y~s, }4r.'·~re~ide~t,.Tlg)Qw-J'.R~~:-g§ln~Q:_.,~Jrill1¢1gj~(e,ile,o.t]?Jet-o.it !lf ·. :~u_t;f~9s~ · _..· ::. 

i~~~~~~y~~~~~~~j~~~~J~t!i~;~:1f LI·"> r:j,,:; 
P.RESIDENl'-OBl\.MA:: flHlo .t1:1atat the·pext :one-.c. L "" . , .. -: ::• ; ....... ; -. .. , : . . .. • 

f¥:-O~~y. Did Pi:e~.i~eri; 46~i4 -~~yq~i.t9:i~~~.;~!~1,1@.J;~)1:n{wi~~Js~el o¥'er.th '.Gaz~. aid t 
fi'~ii1~ ra.id,~8:fid Will yoii ·ll.t. fact·do :so· !P..:8.~~i~~·~~d7~!)~tiO'~!of t~g1~s ~c~~o . ? An.d 4(i:Jo.u .. 
,s~pti_ott lsrael ''s Jhs.is~~n~·.?ti. ~:Qi?g aL.'fl~((µ~~jpy.e~~~M~: o,i;Hts·:o~, ~~~.h~ps wi . ~om~ fot.e_ign 
.~v.9Jvement, or arc you t~~y.pt·tif ~e.U~-:prop.osid !.~ta t;o!llp!elely mi!t?p~nde tm.qwrfl __ 
nIBSI;I?ENf QB~:: -\Yell;: let m,~·~e.:!~~ sec()rid ·,qtrestj.o~ ·fu~t;; .,what th.e U. .,·:S.ecizjtY,- . 
Co,ujicir c.aJte4 ~o~, W,~ a;~~~:di?Ie> tr<ins_p#~nt iil:v~st~gatiorr'!bat .*1etj.~!~ma~i~nal t.andards. ~Arid .. 
we .. inearit wfiat·we saicl;'tb~t's'what w~.e~pect . . . : '::=: ..... 
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RELEASED IN FULJ 
Non-Relevant 
Excised 

MIDDLE EAST 
IS RAEL 
PALESTINE 

UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED NATIO S 

7W Uuil~ Na1ions Pta:zu 
N~w York. N. Y. llNll 7 

J ly 28, 2011 

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENTATI E 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

FROM: POL - Ellen Germain, Acting 

THROUGH: EXEC -Ambassador Di Carlo 

SUBJECT: Meeting with Malcolm Hoenlein, Executive Vice Chairman of the onference of 
Presidents of Major Jewish Organizations; Monday, August 1; 10: 0 a.m. 

I 
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307556 Date: 05/03/2013 
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Flotilla/Palmer report: The efforts in early July to launch a second flotilla to Gaz fizzled, as did 
simultaneous efforts to create an "air flotilla." The Greek government was helpful i refusing 
permission for vessels to sail to Gaza, and the one French vessel that did finally sail on July 19 was 
peacefully intercepted by the Israeli Navy. Israel detained activists who arrived by ir at Ben 
Gurion airport on July 8. 

The Israeli press has reported that release of the Palmer report will be delayed until ugust 20, at 
Israel's request, and Tsraeli DPR Waxman confirmed to us that the report will be de ayed until 
August 22. News reports say the Israeli-Turkish talks are deadlocked over the issu of an Israeli 
apology to Turkey for the May 31 incident. In his statement during last week's ope debate on the 
Middle East, the Turkish DPR said Israel must apologize and pay compensation, 01 erwise there 
will be no norl?alization of diplomatic relations. 
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UNlTED STA TES MISSION TO THE UNITED A TIONS 

140 East 4S°' Street 
NEW YORK, N.Y. 10017-3505 

June 11, 2010 

MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE 

SENSrTIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

FROM: POL- JeffDeLaurentis 
THROUGH: EXEC -Ambassador Wolff 
SUBJECT: Security Council Briefing/Consultations on the Middle East, June 5, 2010, 

Security Council Ch.amber/Consultation Room 

BACKGROUND: 
Assistant Secretary-General for Political Affairs Oscar Femandez-Taranco will r ely brief the 
Council on events in the region since the Council's last regular meeting on the die East on 
May 18 and the Council's emergency meeting on the Middle East on May 31 and he issuance of 
the Presidential Statement. He will likely review the events of May 31 and what as happened 
subsequently. He may touch on the Secretary-General's consultations with vario s parties on an 
investigative mechanism. The most recent public comment fr-0m the Secretary-G neral's office 
on the investigation caine on June 8 from bis spokesman: "We have been asked si ce yesterday 
about reports that Israel may reject any international investigation into the 31 Ma incident 
involving the flotilla. First, we have not yet received an official response 'from Isr el. We would 
like to underscore the Secretary-General's considered view that credible internati al 
involvement is crucial to a prompt, credible, impartial and transparent investigati n, as called for 
in the Security Council's Presidential Statement of 1 June. The Secretary-Genera understands 
that Israel is still considering how and if to bring an international element into the investigative 
process." Femandez-Taranco should also highlight that the proximity talks betw .n Israelis and 
Palestinians continued during the May 31 crisis. 

SENSITTVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 
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The talking points for Tuesday's consultations have been fully cleared within the Department 
and by the NSC. There has not yet been a fonnal Israeli government announcem nt of its plans 
for a national (non-IDF) investigation. Such an announcement could come on S day, June 13, 
as Foreign Minister Liebennan mentioned to you, and Washington and USUN m ywant to 
update the remarks with revised language to reflect the announcement. The rem ks also only 
contain general language on the need for a new mechanism for Gaza. If there is greement with 
the GOI before the meeting on Tuesday, revised language could be included. 

Until we have fonnaI announcement of an Israeli national investigation and/or a ew mechanism 
for Gaza, here is the current NSC guidance: 

• AS WE'VE SAID FROM 1HE BEGINNING, we support an Israeli-led inve tigation into 
the flotilla incident that is prompt, credible, impartial, and transparent. 

• We are open to different ways of ensuring the credibiJity of this Israeli-led in estigation, 
including international participation, and have been in intensive talks with ou Israeli partners 
in the past few days on how to move forward. 

• We know of no resolution that will be debated at the UN on the flotilla invest gation next 
week. 

Attachment: Draft talking.points for consultations 
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UNSC Middle East Consultations 

Talking Points 
June 15, 2010 

Thank you, Mr. President, and thank you, Assistant Secretary-General Fernandez-Tar nco, for your 
briefing. 

I 

.. J 
On June l, the President of the Counc1l 1ssued a statement m reaction to the mc1den~volvmg the 
convoy sailing to Gaz.a, expressing on behalf of all Council members our deep regret t the loss of life 
and injuries, and our condolences to the families. The Council condemned those ac which resulted 
in these casualties, and called for a prompt, impartial, credible and transparent invest~tion 
confonning to intemation~standards~ _ _ __ __ __ _ J_ _ _ 

!REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewe~ 
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Thank you Mr. President. 
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BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE 
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FROM: POL - Bill Grant 
THROUGH: EXEC - Ambassador Di Carlo 
SUBJECT: Your meeting with IDF Intelligence Director Major General Avi Kochavi, your 

office 

Background· 

assessments o a second Gaza flot Ila. 

[REView AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Revieweij 
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n t e ot1 la, arren s em ti readout (on 

the other system) of yesterday's meeting in Washington is our most up-to-date inti nnation. 

• What are the IDF's plans for handling a possible second Gaza flotilla? 

I 
I 
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UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED N1 TIONS 

June 10, 2010 

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENT AT VE 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

FROM: POL - Bill Granr 
THROUGH: EXEC - Ambassador DiCarlo 
SUBJECT: Your meeting with Israeli ambassador to the United States, Mich< el Oren, June 

13, your office 

Background 

Oren is also likely to want to disc~ss!_ __ __ __ _ 
Gaza flotilla follow-uor-- I 
-"'-""""'-->~~"-=--=~!.>'...!l'--"'1"-'------'--------------------1 

c------.--,-
,REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewerl 
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Gaza notilla: Turkey has again presented a resolution i~ Geneva on the follow-u~I to the Human 
Rights Council's fact-finding mission on the May 31, 2010, flotilla incident. We ill again vote 
no, most likely in complete isolation. The new resolution requests that the SYG t e into 
consideration the conclusions contained in the report of the HRC fact-finding Mis ion and drops 
positive language on the Palmer panel, which Turkey had included in prior HRC r~1 solutions ·on 
the incident. The Turkish press has reported that the draft Palmer report says the I raeli blockade 
of Gaza does not breach international law, and that Turkey is threatening to pull o t of the panel 
unless the report changes. I . 

• We're grateful to those who have issued statements discouraging activists 4-o~ 
attempting another flotilla to Gaza, including the SYG. We remain committed to 
working together with Israel to further expand the flow of reconstruction · 

1
aterial and 

exports, with appropriate safeguards. 

• As evidenced by recent terrorist attacks, Gaza militants possess and contin e to seek 
advanced weapons and Israel has legitimate security concerns. 

• (If raised - Palmer panel) The SYG told the press on June 6 that the Palme Panel will 
report sometime in July, but that no exact date has been set as the panel's 

1
ork is 

ongoing. 
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UNITED ST ATES MISSION TO THE UNITED 

140 E.15145'" Street 
NEW YORK, N.V. 10017-JSOS 

July 19,2010 

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE FO SPECIAL 
POLITICAL AFFAIRS 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

FROM: POL - William Grant 
SUBJECT: Security Council Briefing/Open Debate on the Middle East, July 21, 2010 

BACKGROUND: 
Under Secretary-General for Political Affairs Pascoe will brief the Council on eve ts in the 
Middle East since the June 15th briefing by UN Middle East Special Coordinator obert Serry. 
In June the Secretariat briefing focused on events in Gaza, in the wake of the May 31 Gaza 
flotilla incident. The June briefing occurred before Israel's new policy on access or goods into 
Gaza was announced on June 20. The U.S. statement at this meeting will be the ti public U.S. 
remarks on the Gaza flotilla incident since the June 13 White House statement, fro which your 
remarks are largely drawn. 

Regarding the flotilla incident, Serry noted that, "The SYG has taken note of lsrae 's 
announcement [of its own investigation] and recognized that a thorough Israeli in estigation is 
important and could be consistent with the SY G's own proposals for an internatio al panel. The 
two combined would fully meet the international community's expectation for a c edible and 
impartial investigation. The SYG's proposal is not incompatible with domestic in uiries; in fact, 
the two approaches are complementary, so his proposal, accordingly, remains on e table." 

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior 
Reviewer SENSITIVE B T UN LASSIFLED 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307638 Date: 05/03/2013 

NR 



StateDept004467

- UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307638 Date: 05/03/2013 

Attachment: Remarks 

SENSITlVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 
-2-

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSlFrED 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307638 Date: 05/03/2013 

NR 



StateDept004468

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307638 Date: 05/03/2013 

(Low side) 

L:\L!BS\POLSEC\MasilkoBJ \BPA 07 2120I0 SC ME consultations.doc 

Drafted: POL: BMasilko, 4-4190 

Cleared: POL: EGermain 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307638 Date: 05/03/2013 



StateDept004469

I . 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307572 Date: 05/03/2013 

RELEASED IN FULL 
Non-Relevant 
Excised 

ISRAEL 
PALESTINE 
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UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITE NATIONS 
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NEW YORK, N.Y. HJOJ7.J505 

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENTA E 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

FROM: POL- BiU Grant 
THROUGH: EXEC -Ambassador Anderson 

SUBJECT: Security Council Briefing/Open Debate on the Middle East, Octob r 18, 2010 

BACKGROUND: 

_ _ _ _ We don't expect a Secretariat update on the Gaza flotilla pa el, although 
Turkish victims' families appealed to the ICC prosecutor on the issue this week. 

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior 
Reviewer 
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Remarks by Ambassador Susan E. Rice, 
U.S. Permanent Representative 

To the United Nations, 
At an Open Security Council Debate 

On the Middle East 

October 18, 2010 

Thank you, Mister President, and thank you, Under Secretary-General Pascoe, f r your helpful 
briefing today. 

Mr. President, last month, Israeli and Palestinian leaders took the momentous s ep of returning 
to direct talks. The core issues of this longstanding and tragic conflict will not b1easily resolved. 
Direct talks are the path for the parties to reach a solution that resolves all issu , ends all 
claims, and establishes a viable state of Palestine alongside a secure state of lsr el, as a key part 
of a comprehensive peace among Israel and all of its neighbors. 

The United States will <;ontinue to be a vigorous and steadfast partner In this vidl effort. We are 
working closely with both sides to allow these negotiations to continue. So we v1ere 
disappointed by the announcement of new tenders in East Jerusalem on Octobe 14, which was 
contrary to our efforts to resume negotiations. We have long urged both parties to avoid actions 
that could undermine trust, including in Jerusalem, and we will continue to dos as we work to 
make progress toward Middle East peace. Ultimately, however, forging a lasting nd just peace 
Will depend on leadership, vision, and courage from the Israelis and the Palestini ns. 

As President Obama has noted, we have urged Israel to extend the settlement m rarorium, 
which we believe makes sense as long as constructive talks are underway. As wt.continue to 
urge Prime Minister Netanyahu to institute another moratorium, we also urge P sident Abbas 
to resume negotiations, which remain the only way to resolve t he conflict's mos difficult issues 
and give the Palestinians the dignity of an independent state of their own. 

We know that many obstacles lie ahead. We know that attempts to move towar lasting peace 
may be met by rejectionists and terrorism. But we must not let the forces of viol nee and 
despair determine whether Israeli and Palestinian children will live in peace or la guish in 
conflict. We must press forward together toward our common goal of a com pre ensive Arab· 
Israeli peace including a two-state solution, with Israel and Palestine living s ide b side in peace 
and security. That goal is in the interests of Israelis, Palestinians, the United Stat s, and all those 
who seek to maintain international peace and security. Those in the region who ant a 
Palestinian state should do all they can to support the parties' efforts to bring ab ut a just and 
lasting peace. And those around the world who seek an end to this bitter conflict\shoold 
support these efforts and do nothing to ondermine them. 

Mr. President, let me turn to the situation in Gaza. We continue to view the situa ·on there with 
concern. Israel's July 5 announcement was an Important step in improving the flo of goods 
and material into Gaza. That progress is continuing several months later, and we ncourage the 
Government of Israel to take further steps to expand trade in both directions, con istent with its 
security needs. All those wishing to deliver goods should do so through the expan ed 
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established channels to ensure that Israel's legitimate security needs are addr ssed even as the 
Palestinians' humanitarian needs are met. 

Let us also remember the Israeli soldier Gllad Shalit, whom Ham as abducted in 2006 and who 
remains in captivity. We call again for his immediate release. 

In its June 1 presidential statement on the flotilla incident, the Council called f a prompt, 
impartial, credible, and transparent investigation confqrming to internationals andards. We 
commend the Secretary General's constructive Initiative in convening a panel t at will receive 
and review the results of Israel a~d Turkey's investigations. We welcome the s rit of 
cooperation that this panel represents and continue to regard it as the primary nd most 
appropriate method for the international community to review the incident. 

Mr. President, let me conclude by touching on the situation in Lebanon. The Un ted States 
remains firmly committed to Lebanon's sovereignty and independence, and the efore to t he full 
implementation of Resolutions 1S59, 1680, and 1701. We continue to be grave y concerned 
with attempts by foreign players to undermine Lebanon's independence, endan er its stability, 
and interfere with its sovereign affairs. The continuing now of weapons and wa -fighting 
material across the Syrian border to Hizballah is a reckless practice that risks pl nging the region 
into open conflict. We urge this Council to remain vigilant to these destabillzin trends, which 
threaten international peace and security and the lives of innocent civilians on th sides of the 
Blue Line. 

Finally, let me turn to the Special Tribunal for Lebanon. On October 6, the Secre ary-General 
rightly and unequivocally noted that the Tribunal Is an independent !Jody, with clear mandate 
from the Security Council to uncover the truth and end the era of impunity for p liticaf 
assassinations in Lebanon. The Tribunal is an independent judicial entity; its wo k is not a 
matter of politics but of law. The Tribunal is fulfilling its independent judicial ma date under 
this Councll's Resolution 1757, at the request of the sovereign government of Le anon. We 
completely endorse the Secretary-General's statement that the Tribunal's effort must go 
forward without interference. Efforts to discredit, hinder, or delay the Tribunal' work should 
not be tolerated, and those who engage in them do not have the interests of le non or justice 
at heart. 

Thank you, Mr. President. 
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August 16, 20 I 

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIV FOR 
SPECIAL POLITICAL AFFAIRS 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

FROM: POL - Ellen Germain, Acting 
SUBJECT: Security Council Briefing/Open Debate on the Middle East, Augus 17, 20 I 0 

BACKGROUND: 
Assistant Secretary-General Oscar Femandez-Taranco will brief the Council on ev nts in the 
Middle East since the July-=-1 briefin:_by Under Secretary-General for Political Atairs Pasco~ 

The Council welcomed the August 2 announcement by the SYG of the formation< fa panel of 
inquiry on the Gaza floti Ila incident of May 31 ' 1 with a press statement (Attach mer t A). Council 
members may probe Fernandez-Taranco for additional information about the pane as the 
Secretariat has carefully restricted information flow in the wake of last week's conifusion over 
the panel's work when the press asked questions about summoning Israeli soldiers to testify. 

U.S. draft remarks are attached (Attachment 8). 

Attachment: 
A) August 4 Council Press Statement 
B) U.S. talking points 

IEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior l 
·ewer 
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(RELEASED IN FULL] 

SECURITY COUNCIL PRESS STATEMENT ON PANEL OF INQUIRY ON 31 MA FLOTILLA 
INCIDENT 

The following Security Council press statement was read out on 3 August by Counci President Vitaly 
Churkin (Russian Federation): 

The members of the Security Council welcomed the establishment by the Secretary- eneral of the 
United Nations of the Panel of Inquiry on the flotilla incident of3 I May 2010. 

TI1c: members of the Security Council look forward to a successful implementation b the Panel of its 
mandale, as announced by the Secretary-General as based on the statement of the President of he Security 
Council of I June 20 I 0, which called for a prompt, impartial, credible and transparent investi tion conforming 
to international standards. 

The members of the Security Council welcomed the commitment of Israel and Turke to provide full 
cooperation to the Panel. 

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior 
eviewer 
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Talking Points for Ambassador Brooke D. Anderson, 
U.S. Alternate Representative 

For Special Political Affairs, 
At Security Council Consultations on 

The Middle East 
August 17, 2010 

• Thank you, Mr. President, and thank you, Assistant Secretary General Fer 1andez­
Taranco, for your briefing. 
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• Mr. President, the United States has welcomed the Secretary-General's ar nouncement 
of the establishment of a panel regarding the May 31 flotilla incident. As 'Ne have 
emphasized before, the panel is not a substitute for national investigations. 

·-
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• Thank you, Mr. President. 
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REDACTED UNITED STATES MISSION TO nm UNITED NA IONS 

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENT AT 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

FROM: POL- Jeff Delaurentis 
THROUGH: EXEC -Ambassador Wolff 

June 14, 2010 

SUBJECT: Meeting with Israeli Foreign Minister Avigdor Liberman, Tuesday, June 15, 2:30 
p.m., USUN 

Background 

Foreign Minister Liberman is traveling to New York with Deputy Foreign Minist Danny 
Ayalon, whom you met in April. Liberman will brief the Israeli Missions in Nort 
America about the Gaza flotilla (aka Mavi Marmara), the proximity talks, and call to review 
Israeli actions under international legal regimes - what lsrael has termed a " lawfa " campa~ 

Talking Points 

Gaza Flotilla: L iberman has been quoted by the Israeli press as supporting an int rnational 
component to investigating the events related to the Mavi Marmara. He said "We have excellent 
jurists ... one of whom will be willing to take it on himself, and if they want to inc ude an 
international member of some sort in their committee that's all right too". Accord ng to press 
reports, Israel is expected to announce a state panel to investigate the incident wit international 

r k;P'Uon. Tu,k;sh of!idal~n~ reaoted.[" J 
The OIC and NAM in New York have criticized Israel's actions regarding the M l i Marmara. 
The OIC statement from 4 June refers to "Israeli military aggression" and alleges n "explicit act 
of piracy" under the UN Convention on the Law of the Sea. The OIC statement lied for an 
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"impartial, credible, transparent, and independent international investigation in accf{>rdance with 
international standards led by the UN Secretary~Geoeral." The statement also reite'•ates demands 
for accountability related to the Goldstone Report. 

• ln the wake oftheMavi Marmara incident, it is important to show progress on addressing 
Gaza access. The NSC statement of June 4 notes that we are working with Isr el, the 
Palestinian Authority and international partners on "new procedures for delive ing more 
goods and assistance to Gaza, while also increasing opportunity for the people of Gaza and 
preventing the importation of weapons. The current arrangements are unsusta nable and 
must be changed." 

• UN partners, especially UNRWA, continue to experience delays and hurdles i nporting the 
quantities and range of goods needed to complete projects. As we expand overall access, J 
hope that you will help ensure that they have the access they need through the ... rossings. 
While many of the goods UNRWA needs are available in Gaza as a result oft ie tunnel 
economy, the UN is not purchasing those goods. 

• Whenever there is a change in the status quo in the West Bank, Gaza, or Jerus-~lem, it 
reverberates in New York and often negatively affects the atmosphere. 

• Of course, we remain mindful of Israel's security needs and will never ask tha Israel take 
steps that contravene those needs. 

• We also remind mindful that Gilad Shlait remains captive in Gaza and continue to call for his 
immediate release. As we continue down this path, the cause of his release has not been 
forgotten. 

Peace efforts: I 
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• President Abbas has rejected calls to suspend the proximity talks after the Mav Marmara 
inr.ident. We believe he is sincere and dedicat"""'"'".ll.Lltnn""""'"'"""""'"'<------_...-------. 
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"Lawfare": Liberman will want to discuss calls to review Israeli actions under ir ternational 
legal regimes. The Swiss appear to be moving forward on consultations on conver ing a meeting 
of the High Contracting Parties of the Fourth Geneva convention as called for by ( eneral 
Assembly and Human Rights Council (HRC) resolutions on Goldstone follow-up. Before the 
Gaza flotilla incident, the Swiss were working on a paper to circulate on possible t:>pics of 
discussion for such a meeting. The final HRC resolution on the Gaza flotilla aske< the 
independent international fact finding mission to investigate violations of "internal onal law, 
including international humanitarian and human rights law, resulting from the Isra Ii attacks on 
the flotilla of ships carrying humanitarian assistance." 

• We have stood firmly against the counterproductive recommendation to conve ie the High 
Contracting Parties to the Fourth Geneva Convention as called for in the Gold~~one Report 
and in subsequent follow-up UN action. 

(If raised) SCUD Transfers: I 

{If raised) NPT:I 

- - --

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

1 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307633 Date: 05/03/2013 

N 



StateDept004482

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307633 Date: 05/03/2013 

Attachment: 
I) Participants list 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 
-5-

-----.----] 
2) Security Council PRST on Gaza Flotilla 
3) HRC resolution on Gaza Flotilla 
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Participants 

Israel 
Deputy PM and Foreign Minister Avigdor Lieberman 
Deputy Foreign Minister Daniel Ayalon 
Israeli Ambassador to the US Michael Oren 
Ambassador Gabriela Shalev 
Ambassador Daniel Carmon 
Political Counselor Amir Weissbrod (notetaker) 
Yitzhak Bachman - Chiefofpolicy staff to the FM 
Sharom Shalom- Chief of staff to the FM 
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Reviewer 

United States 
Ambassador Rice 
Ambassador Wolff 
Deputy Pol Counselor ermain 
Po!OffMasilko (notet· ker) 
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ISRAEL 

UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED N TIONS 

June 9, 2010 

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENT AT 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

FROM: POL - Bill Grant 
THROUGH: EXEC - Ambassador DiCarlo 
SUBJECT: Your meeting with AJC Executive Director David Harris, June 13 your office 

Background 

I Harris is also likely to want to discuss Palestinian reconciliati~m, 
developments onl Paza flo.tilla follow-up, and Syria. I 

--
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Gaza flotilla : Turkey nas again presented a resolution in Geneva on the follow-up to the Human 
Rights Council's fact-finding m ission on the tragic May 31, 20 I 0, flotilla incident. I We will 
again vote no, most likely in complete isolation. The new resolution requests that the SYG take 
into consideration the conclusions contained in the report of the HRC fact-finding tv1ission and 
drops positive language on the Palmer panel, which Turkey had included in prior ~RC 
resolutions on the incident. The Turkish press has reported that the draft Palmer report says the 
lsraeli blockade of Gaza doesn't breach international law, and that Turkey is threatening to pull 
out of the panel unless the report changes. I 

• We're giateful to those who have issued statements discouraging activists Jorn 
attempting another flotilla to Gaza, including the SYG. We remain commifed to 

working together with Israel to further expand the flow of reconstruction mr terial and 
exports, with appropriate sateguards. 

• As evidenced by recent terrorist attacks, Gaza militants possess and continJe to seek 
advanced weapons and Israel has legitimate security concerns. [ 

• (lfraised - Palmer panel) The SYG told the press on June 6 that the Palme} Panel will 
repo~ sometime in July, but that no exact date has been set as the panel's w

1
ork is 

ongoing. I 
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Slmonoff, Mark A (USUN) 

From: Arbogast, John R 
Sent: Monday, November 14, 2011 2:41 PM 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Schaaf, Kenli A (OES) 
Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Norman, Cherith (USUN) 
LOS resolution, etc. 

Classiflcatlon: 
SensltivltyCode: 

UNCLASSIFIED 
Sensitive 

Dear Elizabeth & Ken Ii - a few items on this: 

• 122bis "flotilla" para: Mark will be back to you on this. 

Many thanks/best regards, john 

SBU 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED. 
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Summary 

1. This document provides a progress report to the Secretary-General, B n Ki-

moon, from the Secretary-General's Panel oflnquiry on the 31May2010 Flo ilia 

incident. Upon establishing the Panel, the Secretary-General requested a pro ess 

report by 15 September 2010. 

2. The introduction outlines the steps that preceded the decision by the S cretary-

General to establish the Panel of Inquiry. The report then outlines the Panel's first 

meeting, a summary of the backdrop to the Panel's work, and a description o the 

Panel's approach to its task and intended programme of work. 

Introduction 

3. The Security Council received a briefing on the incident from 

Mr. Oscar Femandez-Taranco, Assistant Secretary-General for Political Affai s, on 

31 May 2010. He gave the following accounl to the Security Council of Lhe cts as 

understood at that time (S/PV.6325): 

"Jn the early hours of this morning, Israeli naval forces boarde a six­

ship convoy that was heading towards Gaza. The stared purpose of the 

convoy was to deliver humanitarian aid to Gaza and to break the Israel 

blockade on Gaza. The convoy was reportedly carrying a range of 

educational, medical and construction materials and approximately 7 

activists, citizens of a number of countries. Among their numbers wer 

reportedly members of Parliament from several countries. 

"ln the lead-up to today's events, the Israeli authorities conveye their 

intention, both publicly and through diplomatic channels, not to allow t e 

convoy to reach Gaza. The Israeli authorities stated that, should the co voy 
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proceed contrary to these warnings, they would divert the convoy to a Israeli 

port, inspect the cargo, facilitate the entry of only those goods that are lowed 

into Gaza, in accordance with Israel's blockade, and deport those on b ard. 

"The organizers of the convoy indicated their intention to proc d with 

their convoy and to attempt to deliver their fuU consignment of cargo t Gaza 

and to break the blockade. A committee of persons organized by the d facto 

Hamas authorities in Gaza was formed to receive the convoy. 

"Several Governments with nationals on board the vessels urge 

restraint on all sides and indicated to the Israeli authorities their utmos 

concern that their nationals be protected. The Secretary-General's spo esman 

warned on Friday that all involved should act with a sense of care and 

responsibility and work for a satisfactory resolution. 

"The convoy was due to reach Gaza today. According to the ls eli 

authorities, Israel's naval forces conveyed directly to the convoy durin 

early hours this morning that it would not be allowed to reach port in 

However, the convoy proceeded towards Gaza. 

"At approximately 4 a.m. local time, the Israeli navy acted to i 

·the convoy. This reportedly took place 40 nautical miles off the coast 

international waters and involved Israeli military personnel boarding th 

vessels, supported by naval ships and helicopters. Israeli forces took c ntrol 

of all s ix vessels. However, there was serious violence on the main pa nger 

vessel, a Turkish-registered ship named Mavi Marmara. We have also 

media reports of violence related to a Greek-registered ship, the Sfend ni. As 

a resull of this violence, according to the laiest information, at least 10 eople 
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were killed and at least 30 injured, while at least six Israeli military p sonnel 

were injured. There are no final confirmed casualty figures at trus sta e. 

"Given the circumstances, it is not possible to state definitivel the 

sequence or details of what happened. The Israeli Government has st ed that 

the demonstrators on board used knjves and clubs against Israel Defen e 

Forces (JDF) naval personnel and possibly live fire, and that a weapon was 

grabbed from an IDF soldier. Given that those who were on board the ships 

are now in Israeli custody, including reporters who were travelling wit the 

convoy, and had their transmission equipment confiscated by the boafi ing 

Israeli forces, further information from the organizers of the convoy h s been 

minimal since this morning. We have no independent information on hat 

transpired. 

"According to Israeli statements, the seriously injured were 

subsequently evacuated by helicopter to hospitals in Israel. All of the hips 

have arrived under escort at the Israeli port of Ashdod. An Israeli Min stry of 

Foreign Affairs spokesman has stated that all international persons fro the 

vessels will be deported. 

" Israeli authorities have expressed regret about the casualties b t 

blamed the activists for the vio lence. President Abbas has condemned srael's 

actions and the killing of the activists, and declared three days of mou ing in 

the occupied Palestinian territory. There have been widespread region and 

international expressions of alarm and concern at the bloodshed, as wel as 

diplomatic demarches seeking a full explanation from the Israeli autho 1ies. 

There have been protests in Gaza, the West Bank, Israel and several re ional 

capitals. 
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"The Secretary-General stated earlier today in Kampala that he is 

shocked by the !Oiling and injury of people on the boats and condemne the 

violence. Be called for a full investigation to determine exactly how t e 

bloodshed took place and stressed that Israel must urgen1ly provide a f II 

explanation. 

"At the Secretary-General's direction, Special Coordinator Ro rt 

Serry, along with Filippo Grandi, the Commissioner-General of the U 

Nations Relief and Works Agency for Palestine Refugees in the Near st, 

have been actively engaged on the ground sinc.e the crisis broke to urg 

restraint and an end to the violence, and to coordinate with all relevant arties 

in the aftermath of this tragedy." 

4. The Pane.I is not endorsing that statement of facts. It is simply reciting hem to 

contextualise the subsequent steps that led to the establishment of the Panel. 

5. On l June 2010, the President of the Security Council made a stateme on 

behalf of the Council in connection with the Council's consideration of the ite 

entitled "The situation in the Middle East'including the Palestinian question" 

(S/PRST/2010/9). Parts of that statement are relevant to the Panel's inquiry. bey 

are as follows: 

"The Security Council deeply regrets the loss of life and injurie 

resulting from the use of force during the Israeli military operation in 

international waters against the convoy sailing to Gaza. The Council, i this 

context, condemns those acts which resulted in the loss of at least ten c vilians 

and many wounded, and expresses its condolences to their families. 
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"The Security Council requests the immediate release of the shi s as 

well as the civilians held by Israel. The Council urges Israel to permit f U 

consular access, to allow the countries concerned to retrieve their dece ed 

and wounded immediately, and to ensure the delivery of humanitarian 

assistance from the convoy to its destination. 

"The Security Council takes note of the statement of the UN Se retary­

General on the need to bave a full investigation into the matter and it c lls for 

a prompt, impartial, credible and transparent investigation confonning o 

international standards." 

6. On 15 June 2010, the UN Special Coordinator for the Middle East Pea e 

Process, Mr. Robert Serry, briefed the Security Council on the situation in the iddle 

East. Among other things he said (S/PV.6340): 

"In its 1 June Presidential Statement (S/PRST/2010/9), this Co 

called for a prompt, impartial, credible and transparent investigation 

conforming to international standards. The Secretary-General held 

consultations with the permanent members of the Security Council and a host 

of other concerned parties on the modalities to comply with the Counci 's call. 

fn this context, he has proposed an international panel under the aegis fa 

third party seen as impartial and in which both Turkey and Israel activ y 

participate. He has briefed the leadership of both Turkey and lsraeL" 

7. On 2 August 2010, the Secretary-General made a public announcemen 

concerning the Panel in the following terms: 

"For the past two months., I have engaged in intensive consulta on 

with the leaders of Israel and Turkey on the setting-up of a Panel of In uiry on 
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the flotilla incident of31 May. Today I am very pleased to annouoce he 

launch of the Panel. This is an unprecedented development 

"T thank the leaders of the two countries with whom I have en ged in 

last minute consultations over the weekend, for their spirit of compro 

forward looking cooperation. 

"The Panel will be led by eminent personalities: former Prime inister 

of New Zealand, Mr. Geoffrey Palmer as Chair and the outgoing Presi 

Colombia, Mr. Alvaro Uribe as Vice-Chair. The Panel will have two 

additional members, one each from Israel and Turkey. lt will begin it work 

on 10 August and submit the first progress report by mid September. 

"I hope the Panel will fulfil its mandate based on the P residenti I 

Statement of the Security Council and with the fullest cooperation of e 

relevant national authorities of the two countries. It will also give me 

recommendations for the prevention of similar incidents in the future. also 

hope that today's agreement will impact positively on the relationship 

Turkey and Israel as well as the overall situation in the Middle East." 

8. On the same day as his public announcement, the Secretary-General fo mally 

advised the President of the Security Council of his decision concerning the P el, 

saying among other things: 

"I hope the Panel will discharge its responsibilities with the full st 

cooperation of the relevant national authorities of the IWO countries. It ill 

also give me recommendations on the prevention of similar incidents i 
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future. I further hope that this will impact positively on the overaU T rkey­

Jsrael relationship and the situation in the Middle East." 

9. The Secretary-General also thanked the leaders ofTurkey and Jsrael fi r "their 

spirit of compromise and foiward-looking cooperation". 

10. The Secretary-General appointed Sir Geoffrey Palmer as the Chair of he 

Panel and President AJvaro Uribe as the Vice-Chair. Israel identified, and the 

Secretary-General appointed, Mr. Joseph Ciechanover as the member from Is el 

Turkey identified, and the Secretary-General appointed, Mr. Suleyman Ozden 

Sanberk as the member from Turkey. 

11. The Security Council issued a press statement on 3 August 2010 in res onse to 

the Secretary-General 's announcement (SC/10001), which '\velcomed the 

establishment" of the Panel and noted that 

"The members of the Security Council look forward to a succe fol 

implementation by the Pan~! of its mandate, as announced by the Secre ry­

General as based on the statement of the President of the Security Cou cil of 1 

June 2010, which called for a prompt, impartial, credible and transpare 

investigation conforming to international standards. 

"The members of the Security Council welcomed the commitrn nt of 

Israel and Turkey to provide full cooperation to the Panel." 

The Panel's First Meeting 

12. On 10 August 2010, the Panel convened in New York. It met for two f II 

days on 10 and 11 August. During that time the Panel met with the Secretary­

He referred to the "unprecedented and critical" nature of the task facing the Pa I. He 
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made reference to the methods of work that are discussed later in this report. e 

encouraged the Panel to pay close attention to both aspects of its remit: first, t 

examine and identify the facts, circumstances and context of the Flotilla incid nt; 

second, to consider and recommend ways of avoiding similar incidents in the ture. 

He stressed the importance of the Panel's main task to review the reports ofn tional 

investigations into the incident. 

13. The Secretary-General stressed the need for t~e Panel to work as one t am. It 

would be supported by the United Nations Secretariat He sought a first prog ss 

report from the Panel by 15 September 2010. The Secretary-General express the 

hope that the Panel would have a positive impact to improve the friendly rela 

between Israel and Turkey and assist with the situation in the Middle East. H 

counted on the leadership and commitment of the Panel members and tte wan 

achieve a way forward. 

Relationships 

14. The Panel will examine and identify the facts, circumstances and cont t of 

the 31 May incident. 1n doing so, it is conscious of the deterioration in the 

relationship between lsrael and Turkey that appears to have resulted from the 

incident. This deterioration has wider implications for the situation in the Mid le 

East as well as bilateral relations between Turkey and Israel. While these 

consequences are beyond the Panel 's frame of reference to report upon, they d make 

up an important part of the conteitt in which the Panel's work takes place. 

15. It is for reason of context that we provide here a brief overview of the r lations 

between Israel and Turkey, and we are particularly concerned in this short ana sis to 
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point out the importance o[ the economic relations and the consequences that m y 

ensue if they are not repaired. 

16. Israel and Turkey have built over the years a strong and dynamic trade, 

diplomatic and military cooperation alliance, which has contributed to the econ mic 

performance of both nations. In 1949, Turkey became the first Muslim majori 

country to recognize and engage in diplomatic relations with Jsrael, creating a 

environment for the structuring of a long term bilateral agenda. Since then, ea h 

decade has presented constructive evolutions in different fields, and as of toda , 

Turkey represents Israel's largest market in the region. 

17. Jn the late fifties (1958-1959), Israeli Prime Minister David Ben Gurio and 

his Turkish equivalent Prime Minister Adrvan Menderes developed a frarnewo k of 

cooperation that increased bilateral military and intelligence exchange that has been 

the basis for the construction of trust among both States' highest officials. Th 

evolution of the 1950's alliance helped increase trade, reaching in 1990 a mar ·nal 

level of commercial exchange close to US$170 million dollars. 

18. During the l 990's, lsraeli-Turldsh relations became more active thane er. In 

1992 both countries formalised the''Parameters for military cooperation" defa ing all 

the areas and protocols to be followed in the provision of combat and intellige ce 

equipment. In 1993 the Turkish-Israeli Business Council was created to prom te 

cross border investment and trade, and developed into a vigorous match-maki g 

organization and business information provider for corporations, investment f rms and 

project developers. 

19. Throughout 1994 another important milestone took place when a cuJt al 

exchange cooperation agreement was signed, increasing the number of artisti 
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performances, museum exchanges and travelling exhibits, and symposia betw en both 

nations. The impact of such initiatives strengthened ties between business lea ers, 

academic organizations and government officials and in 1995 Israel publicly 

supported Turkey's plans to enter the European Union, expressing the substan ial 

contribution that this mechanism would bring to relations within the Mediterr nean. 

20. Between 1996 and 1997 Israel and Turkey negotiated, signed and rati ed a 

Free Trade Agreement, making Turkey the first Muslim majority country to d · velop a 

mechanism of this nature with Israel. The results of this accord can be descri din 

different ways by highlighting that in 2000 both countries signed a protocol fo 

various irrigation projects in Turkey valued above US$500 million, that in 2 1 a 

scientific cooperation memorandum of understanding was agreed, that more t an 

300,000 Israeli tourists visited Turkey in 2003, that in 2004 the Magnavat A 

was signed for Israel to import an annual amount of 50 million water cubic m ters for 

a period of twenty years, and that in 2005 bilateral trade amounted to .US$2,0 

million, 13 times the ex.isting trade in 1990. 

21. Today Turkey is Israel,'s eighth largest trading partner, while Israel rep esents 

Turkey's l 7'h largest market During the first semester of 2010 and despite th recent 

diplomatic tensions, bilateral trade has increased 40% compared with 2009 an jt is 

ex:pected to surpass the record number of US$3,000 million reached during th 

prevjous year. 

22. The normalization of both countries' diplomatic relations after the inci 

that took place on 31 May 2010 is vital for the continuation of this strategic an 

prosperous reJationship. 
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23. Against the backdrop of relations between Turkey and Israel, the matt TS 

relating to the 31 May incident have resulted in a significant set of issues bet een the 

two countries and a concerned state of public opinion in both countries. The nel is 

highly conscious that nine people have died in the incident. Precisely how an why 

they died remains at issue between the nations and there needs to be some rati nal 

understanding of what occurred. Those are the questions with which the Pan is 

concerned. The Panel hopes further that in addressing these questions, its wo k may 

contribute to create a better environment with respect to the broader situation n the 

Middle East. 

The Panel's Approach to its Task 

Summary of the Panel's Tasks 

24. The Secretary-General has asked the Paael lo focus and organize its w rk 

around four elements. The first and foundation requirement is to receive and eview 

interim and final reports of national investigations into the incident that occu d on 

31May2010. 

25. The dates by which these reports become available to the Panel will be a 

material consideration in detennining the precise timetable for the Panel's wo The 

Panel will strive to submit its final report to the Secretary-General within six 

from the first meeting of the Panel, taJcing into account the pwgress of the nati nal 

investigations. Any adjustment to that timetable will be in the hands of the S 

General, depending on the progress of the Panel's work. 

25. The second step of the Panel's work will be to request such clarificatio sand 

information as it may require from relevant national authorities. What clarific tions 
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and information may be required cannot be properly assessed unlil the releva 

reports are in lhe hands of lhe Panel. 

27. Then follow the two substantive tasks with which the Panel has been 

entrusted. Io light of the information so gathered, the Panel will examine and dentify 

the facts, circumstances and context of the incident. The Panel is accordingly 

required to consider the facts of what happened on 31 May, the surrounding 

background to those events, and the broader general state of affairs. 

28. Following the task set out in the previous paragraph, the Panel will co sider 

and recommend ways of avoiding similar incidents in the future. This task is ikely to 

require some degree of creativity on the part of the Panel since this element in ites a 

consideration of international policy issues. The Panel hopes to develop an a lytical 

framework within which the is.sues can be addressed. 

29. The final task of the Panel is to prepare a report including both its find gs and 

its recommendations. That report will be submitted to the Secretary-General. 

report of the Panel will be designated unclassified. The Panel may attach con 

annexes to its report. 

30. The Panel is 11nder an obligation to conduct its work in a prompt, i.mpa 

credible and transparent manner, in conformity with international standards. 

The Panel's MeJhods of Work 

31. The Panel has arrived at some conclusions about its functions and met ds of 

work that will guide its approach ro its task. The Panel is not a court. Courts 

adjudicate on disputes and in criminal cases adjudicate on criminal liability. 

Panel is not empowered to adjudicate. Neither does the Panel have the necess ry 
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powers or the required capacity to conduct criminal investigations or ro com 

people to give evidence. It is a review inqufry. 

32 What the Panel can do is: 

• receive and review reports of national investigations into the incident; 

• request such clarifications and information as it may require from rele ant 

national authorities; 

• examine and identify the facts, circumstances and context of the incid nt; and 

• make findings and recommendations. 

33. There are important parameters within which the Panel must work an these 

parameters need to be understood clearly from the outset in order to avoid 

misunderstandings later. The Panel cannot receive unsolicited information fr m 

persons and organisations who may wish to supply it. Nor can the Panel appr ch 

individuals and organisations directly. 

34. Any clarifications or information from Israel or Turkey that the Panel 

considers necessary to complete its inquiry will be sought through Points of C nract 

designated by those two States. Those Points of Contact have now been desi ated 

and formally notified to the [nquiry as follows: 

Israel: Ambassador Yossi Gal, Director-General of the Ministry of Fo eign 

Affairs of the State of Israel 

Turkey: Ambassador Mithat Rende, Director General for Multilateral 

Economic Affairs at the Ministry of Foreign Affairs 

14 Rev. 2 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307810 Date: 05/03/2013 



StateDept004503

UNCLASSIFIED U.S Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307810 Date: 05/0312013 

35. Where the Panel considers it necessary to obtain infonnation from oth r 

affected States, it may request such information through appropriate diploma ti 

channels. Such diplomatic channels are underatood to mean the Permanent ssions 

of such States to the United Nations in New York. 

36. Such requests for information are the only means available to the Pane to 

receive information beyond the reports of national investigations. The Panel' 

requests wiU specify the questions or issues on which information or clarificat on is 

requited. This may include a request for a meeting with the Point of Contact. 

[37. In that case, the Point of Contact will detennine if other members of tri or her 

national authorities (civil servants} should attend the meeting in order to provi e the 

Panel with the information or clarifications that have been requested. The Poi t of 

Contact will advise the Panel in advance of the names of those members of its 

national authorities who will attend the meeting and the specific questions or i 

that they will address regarding the requested information or clarifications. 

informalion provided by the persons who attend any meeting must be directed to the 

questions or issues raised in the Panel's request, and will aftorwards be attach to the 

country file presented to the Panel. le should be noted that it is within the com 

of the Panel to decide whether to go ahead with the meeting. (To be adjusted 

necessary to reflect further discussions on 2 and 3 September as to who may 

accompany the Point of Contact to meetings.)} 

38. It needs to be appreciated that the Panel's method is the diplomatic me hod of 

obtaining information - not the adversarial method, or the inquisitorial method or 

independent fact-finding of the type thal other United Nations panels have ca ·ed ouL 

This Panel is not empowered to use any of those methods. The Secretary-Gen ral has 

described the establishment of this Panel in its particular circumstances as 
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"unprecedented". Literally that means there is no precedent for it. Thus, anal gies 10 

other United Nations panels established with a differenlframe of reference a not 

apt. This Panel is unique and its methods are similarly unique. 

39. The method for obtaining information does not restrict the findings an 

recommendations the Panel may decide to make. The Panel can and will exa 

identify the facts, circumstances and context of the incident. It can and will 

recommend ways of avoiding such incidents in the future. lt can and wiJI re 

findings and recommendations to the Secretary-General. Upon the nature of 

findings and recommendations, it is futile ·to speculate at this stage. Suffice it o say 

its 

the level of international concern that has been expressed concerning the incid nt 

under review has been high. The Panel has the means available lo it to respon to that 

concern and carry out a review that will give the Secretary-General some mat rial that 

will aJJow him and the international community as a whole to address the issu s 

raised. 

40. The Panel has discussed, but at this stage taken no decisions, as to wh her it 

is authorized or whether it is necessary for Members of the Panel to visit lsrae and 

Turkey in the process of its work. It was considered that the benefit of such v· its 

may become clearer once the Panel has had the opportunity to receive and rev w 

interim and final reports of nationa.I investigations into the incident. 

Staffircg and Administrative Support 

41. The United Nations wiU provide Secretariat services to the Panel and ill 

arrange for the provision of necessary administrative, logistic and security sup ort. 
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including transportation and accommodation. The Archives and Records 

Management System will provide records-management support to the panel. 

42. ln addition, it will be necessary for each Panel member to have an aid These 

aides wilJ be paid by the United Nations and accountable to it for their work 

Panel. The Panel sees itself very much as a team and the arrangements that h e been 

made in this regard should facilitate both coUegiality and communication. Th details 

of the aides are as follows: 

Sir Geoffrey Palmer: 

President AJvary Uribe Velez: 

Mr. Joseph Ciecbanover Itzhar: 

Mr Suleyman Ozdem Saoberk: 

Ms. Elana Geddis 

Mr. Ivan Duque Marquez 

tbc 

Mr. Can Dizdar 

The Panel's Intended Programme of Work 

43. The Panel held its second meeting on 2 and 3 September, in New York, i 

(discuss the interim reports of national investigations received from Israel and Turkey 

and] determine its programme of work. 

{Review of Interim Reports of National fnve.stigations Received from Turlcey d 

Israel - to be i~rted if such interim reports are received, and to reflect disc ions 

on this point at 2 & 3 September meeting) 

Programme of Work 

[to be inserted 10 reflect discussions on Programme of Work at 2 & 3 Septem r 

meeting] 

Conclusion 
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44. The Panel has had two meetings for a total of four days. It has met in ew 

York on 10 and 11 August and again in New York on 2 and 3 September. It b s 

conducted ics proceedings in a positive and collegial atmosphere. The Panel ii els 

keenly the responsibilities that wejgh upon it. Within the Panel there are two 

members whose appointments have been made on the proposal of the two Stat most 

closely connected with the incident. The structure of the Panel ensures that th se 

States will not be at arm's length from the Panel's work. The structure may al o have 

the advantage of ensuring that each State bas a full understanding of the poin 

view of the other. 

45. The points at issue between tbe States will become easier to identify a 

hopefully easier to resolve in such a process than in a third-party inquiry pr 

Furthermore, I.his element of the process may further help to soothe relations 

two important States in the Middle East, an area of the world .beset by a series f 

difficult issues. 

46. The Panel will make every effort to reach consensus in relation to its fi dings 

and recommendations. When the best efforts to achieve consensus have been 

exhausted and consensus has not been achieved, the Chair and the Vice-Chair ill 

agree on rhe particular procedural issues, finding or recommendation in issue. Such a 

procedure ensures that the Panel will have the means to accomplish ics tasks f y and 

not become rendered incapable of making progress. 
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_s_im __ o_n_off ...... ;M __ a_rk_A...,.(U __ s_u_N_) __ ....,.~_S_E_D_IN~F~U~L~--------------------...-------------
From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Categories: 

William P. Pope 

Pope, William P (USUN) 
Thursday, September 30, 2010 12:12 PM 
Simonett, Mark A (USUN) 
F'N: Law of the Sea Language vis a vis Gaza Flotilla 

Working 

Senior Advisor for Europe 
U.S. Mission to the United Nations 
212-415-4079 
popewp2@state.gov 

From: Anderson, William H (USUN) 
Sent: Thursday, September 30, 2010 11:45 AM 
To: Anderson, William H (USUN) 
Subject: law of the Sea Language vis a vis Gaza Flotilla 

To All: 

Annual law of the Sea Resoution 

The Turks are apparently trying to insert language into the General Assembly's annual Law of the ea resolution that 
criticizes Israel for its raid on the Gaza Flotilla. The Turks are trying to pull language from the SC residential Statement. 
USUN legal commented that we (US) will object to this initiative saying that the law of the Sea R solution is supposed 

to be general and not mention any countries by name. 

Tllought you might find this useful. 

Regards, 

ANDO 

CDR Bill "ANDO" Anderson 
Commander, USN 
Military-Political Advisor 
U.S. Mission to the United Nations 

Email: AndersonWH@state.gov 
PH#: 212-415-4111 
~AX: 212-415-4415 

!REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Revieweij 
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!RELEASED IN FULlJ 

UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED ATIONS 

140 East 45" S1ree1 
NEW YORK, N.Y. 10017-3505 

September 30, 20010 
UNCLASSIFIED 

INFORMATION MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESE ATIVE 

Ftom: LEGAL- Mark A Simonoff 

Througn: EXEC - Ambassador Anderson 

Subject: Sixth Committee: Administration of Justice 

As I noted this morning, Turkey is proposing a flotilla paragraph for the 

annual UN General Assembly Oceans and Law of the Sea resolution. The 

paragraph provides as follows: 

''Expresses its deep regrets for the loss oflife and injuries resulting from t e use of force 
during the Israeli military operation in international waters against the co voy sailing lo 
Gaza and in this context condemns those acts which resulted in the 1oss o 9 civilians and 
many wounded as expressed by the Security Council Presidential Stateme t 

(S/PRST/2010/9) ofl June 2010;" 

As of 4:30 today, Turkey had circulated the text in writing, but bad not ye 

discussed it at the informa1 consultations. The Brazilian Permanent 

Representative, who is coordinator of the informal consultations, plans to have th 

paragraph discussed at about 5:30 this afternoon. 

I talked to my Turkish, counterpart and urged him to withdraw the 

paragraph, but he plans to go forward with it. He asked whether the US would b 

prepared to accept some reference to the flotilla incident, and I said "no." I plan 

to take the floor for the US and oppose the paragraph as inappropriate for the 

oceans resolution. The EU and Australia plan to do the same. 1 have been 

coordinating with my Israeli counterpart. 

IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad. Senior Reviewe~ 
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For your additional background: 

Every year, the UNGA adopts an omnibus resolution on oceans and Jaw o 
the sea. The resolution covets a vast range of oceans issues, including piracy, the 
environment, scientific issues, capacity-building, Law of 1he Sea Convention 
institurions, freedom of navigation and other ocean-relared issues. The practice 
bas been not to include any language on bilateral or country-specific issues in the 
resolution (other than piracy off I.he coast of Somalia). 

There are two rounds of informal consultations, chaired by Brazil. The 
first round, where delegations make proposals for new paragraphs, is taking plac 
this week. The second round will be in mid November. The worst case this wee 
is that the text will remain in brackets and will be considered further at the secon 
round of infonnal consultations in mid November. 

The US delegation is composed of two Oceans, Environment and Science 
officers from OES, who are very experienced and capable, and who have been 
coordinating closely with me. 

Turkey has also been pressing for text on the flotilla elsewhere in New 
York. Turkey has tried to add language to the UNRWA Finance Working Group 
Report; negotiations over this technical report are ongoing with Turkey as chair 
the Working Group. During its Council Presidency Turkey also attempled to 
build support for a Security Council press statement on the interim report of the 
SYG panel of inquiry during the September 17 Middle East consultations; but 
after U.S. efforts demurred. 

Drafted: Legal: Mark Simonoff 
Cleared: POL: E Germain 

POL: B Masilko 
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[R°ELEASED IN FULq 
NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS] 
REDACTED __j 

UNJTED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED 
NATIONS 

ISRAEL 

Sept mber 27, 20 I 0 

BRJEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT llEPRESENTA TI E 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

FROM: POL- Bill Grant 
THROUGH: EXEC - Ambassador Anderson 
SUBJECT: Meeting with Israeli Foreign Minister Avigdor Liebennan, Wedne day, 

September 29, 4 :00 p.m, Regency hotel (Park & 61 51
) 

Background 

Lieberman will want to address efforts to minimize diplomatic fallout on reports t the Human 
Rights Council (HRC) by !:he independent experts COl]lrnittee assessing domestic r raeli and 
Palestinian investigations onj lthe HRC Fact-Fi ding Mission 
(FFM) on the Gaza flotilla incident. We expect HRC resolutions on the tlotill~J9. 
be voted on Thursdav/Fridav in Geneva. I ,,_ -"- -~- .__ _____________ __.._, 

Talking Points 

SENS!TlYE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

l@Y._IEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Revieweij 
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Gaza Flotilla: Lieberman's prickly views on Turkey and complicated relations W th Ankara 
p recede the flotilla incident --- in January 20 I 0, his deputy, Daniel Ayalon, causec a major 
outrcry in both the Turkish and Israeli press with a humiliating dressing-down of urkey's 
Ambassador to Israel during a meeting. We continue to emphasize the primacy o1 the SYG 
panel of inquiry for follow-up to the May 3 I Gaza flotilla incident. We persuaded Turkey not to 
propose a Securil.Y Council press statement or press elements after the issuance of he panel's 
interim report to the SYG on September 15. We understand Turkey is not satiated by the SYG 
panel and continues to demand compensation and an apology from Israel. The FF Vi's report on 
the Gaza flotilla incident was blistering, including a strikingly harsh tone toward r rael. The 
Turkish draft HRC resolution on follow-up to the Fact-Finding Mission (attachme it B) makes no 
mention of the SYG panel and instead promotes a General Assembly debate on tht flotilla 
incident. Israel has asked for our help in keeping the HRC flotilla inquiry contain< d to Geneva 
and out of New York. Meanwhile, [srael's independent civilian commission into ti e episode, the 
Turkel Commission, is reportedly nearing completion. According to public reports~ the Turkel 
Commission has taken public as well as closed testimony from senior Israeli offici~J.s including 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 
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Prime Minister Netanyahu and Defense Minis1er Barak. The Turkel Commission !has requested 
that the (Turkish) Captain of the Mavi Marmara testify as well. 

N 

• The draft Turkish resolution in Geneva on follow-up to the Fac1-Finding Miss on on the Gaza 
flotilla incident could extend discussion of the legality of Israel's actions on l\i ay 31. 

• The FFM's language, tone, and conclusions were unbalanced . 
• We continue 10 hope that Israel and Turkey will move beyond the recent strair sin their 

historically strong bilateral relationship and urge you to do what you can to mi ve ahead. 
• We continue to regard the SYG's panel as the primary method for the intemat onal 

community to review the floti lla incident, and we continue to await the outco11 e of the 
Turkel commission. 

-

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 
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Anachments: 
I l 

B) Draft Turkish Flotilla HRC resolution 
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Tall<ing Points for Ambassador Brooke D. Anderson, 
lJ.S. Alternate Representative 

For Special Political Affairs, 
At Security council Consultations on 

The Middle East 
Septl!mber 17, 2010 

• Thank you, Mister President, and thank you. Special Coordinator Serry, for your briefing. 

~EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahma_<!, Senior Reviewe~ 
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o CONTINGENCY LANGUAGE IN THE EVENT Tl'iE ESTABLISHMENT OFTHE 
FLOTILLA INVESTIGATION PANEL IS RAISED: We take note of the report of the 
HRC's flotilla fact-finding mission and will review It in due course. But we again 
welcome the establishment of the Secretary-General's panel regarding the 
lloti/la incident, which has the support of both Israel and Turkey. We reiterate 
that this panel is riot a substitute for national investigations. We expect that the 
work of the Secretary-General's panel will be the primary method for the 
international community to review the incident. 

... . ; 
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• Thank you, Mr. President. 

H Femia ted: Indent: Lert: 0.5", t<o bullets O< ) 
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NON.RESPONSIVE PORTIONS 
REDACTED 

UNl1'ED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED NATIONS 

September 16, 2010 

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE 

SENSITtYE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

FROM: POL-Bill Grant 
TfJROUGH: EXEC-Ambassador Anderson 
SUBJECT: Sccuril)' Council Briefing/Consultations on the Middle East, September 17, 2010 

BACKGROUND: 

Special Cootdinator Serry. will bri'e[ the Council 011 events in the Middle East since the August 
15 briefing l>y Assistant Secretary-OeneraJ Fernandez Taranco, followed by closed consultations. 

We expect• positive briefing from the Secretariat. On September 15 the SYG released a faclual 
statement to the pre$5 on the Interim report of the Gaza flotilla panel of inquiry (attachment A). 
The U.S. draft remarks contain contingency guidance on the panel of inquiry, should we choose 
to use j( (a!lachmenl B). USUN proposed cha11ges to DC's draft are shown as U'ack changes. 
The Human RighlS Council report of its fact-finding mission on the flotilla is unlikely to be 
released. bcfon: tomorrow•s co11s1 .. dtarions. 

LEB NON 
PAL STINE 
MID LE EAST 

' ! 
. ..... ~ ' 

.... \1 , 
t ~ : ' ~ ~· 'l!-

a_. • r 

J ·. 
Turkey, as Council presiden~ will speak lasL We are not clearro what extent Turkey will use 
lhe meeting to highlight the Gaza flotilla panel of inquiry interim report. Other Council 
members, 11'.0SI notably Mexico, have consistently called for follow-up briefings to the Council 
011 lh~ panel's work. 

Auachment: 
A) Gaza flotilla panel of inquiry: SYG Septembe~ 15 Press Statement 
B) Prafl U.S. talking points 

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior 
Reviewer 
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lRELEASED IN FULLJ 

The Sccrttary•General's Panel of Inquiry 
on the 31May2010 F1oti11a Incident 

Pn.OGRESS REPORT TO THE SECRETARY-GENERAL 

SEPTEM'BER 2010 

Sir Geoffrey Pa1mer, Chair 

PresidentAJvaro Uribe, Vice-Chair 

Mr. Joseph Ciechanover ltzhar 

Mr. Silleyman Ozdem Sanberk 

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior] 
Reviewer . 
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Introduction 

I . This document provides a progress report to the Secretary-General. Ban Ki­
from the Secretary-General's Panel oflnquiry on tlte-31 May 20 l 0 Flotilla Incident. 
establishing the Panel. the Secretary-General requested a progress repon by 15 Septe 
2010. 

2. The Panel was established 'by the Secretary-General on 2 August 2010. The 
Secretary-General appointed Sir Geoffrey Paimer a:s the Chair of the Panel and Presi ent 
Alvaro Uribe as the Vice-Chair. lsraei identified, anti the Secretary-Genera) appoi 4 
Mr. Joseph Ciechanover as the member fi':om 1sraet Turkey identified, and the Seer tary­
Gencral appointed, Mr. Silleyman Ozdcn Sanberk as the member from Turkey. 

3. This rcpon outlines the PanePs.decisions at its first meetings and-sets out the 
Panel's agreed approach to ics task. 

The Panel's First Meeting 

4. On 10 August 20JO, the Panel convene<i in New York. It met for two full da son 
IO and 11 August. During that time the Panel met with the Secretary-General. Re re erred 
to the "unprecedentr:d and ~riticaJ" nature of the task facing.the Panel. Ho made refi nee 
to the methods of work that are discussed later in this report. He .encoo~ged the Pa I to 
pay close attention to bo~ ~peels of its-i:e,m¢ first, to examine.and itjentify the fac 
circumstances and context of tl:ie H,otilla incident; se<::ond, to <ionsidet and recomme d 
ways of avoiding similar incidents in the future. He Sfressed the importance of the P el's 
main task to review the reports ofcationa:l investigations into the incident. 

5. The Secretar:y-Genetal stressed the need for the Panel to worl< as one team. I 
would be supported by the United Nations Secretariat He sought a first progress rekrt 
from the Panel by 15 September 20Hl. The Secretary-General expressed the hope tilt the 
Panel wouJd impact positively on the- relationship between Israel and Tw:key and ass t 
with the overall situation in the Middle East.. He counted on the leadersbip and 
commitment of the Panel members and be wanted to achieve a way forward. 
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The Panel's Approach to its Task 

Summary of the Panel's Iasl:s 

6. The Secretary-General bas asked the Panel ro focus and organize its work aro nd 
four clements. The first requirement is to rcGCive and review interim and final report of 
national investigations into the incident that occurred on 31 May 20 I 0. 

7. The dates by which these reports beoon10 available to the Panel wil I be a mate ial 
consideration in detennining the precise timetable for the Panel's work. The Panel w II 
strive to submit its final report to the Secretary-General within six. months from the t 

meeting of the Pane~ taking into account tbc progress of the national investigations. 
adjustment to that timetable will be in the bands of the Sccrcu1ry-Geoera~ depe.nding n 
the progress of the Panefs wqrk. 

8 The second rcqui.rement of the Panel'sworlc will be to request such clarfficati 
and information as it may require from relevant national authorities. What clarificati 
and mformAtion may be required cannot be properly assessed until the relevant repo 
in the bands of the .Panel 

9. Then follow the two snbslantivc tasks with which the Panel has been en 
light of the information so gathered, the Panel will examine and identify the facls. 
circumstances and conte.'(t of the incident. The Panel is according)y required ro cons 
the facts of what happened on 31 May and the surrounding background to those even 

I 0. Following the wk set out in the previous paragraph, lhc Panel will consider- d 
recommend ways of avoiding similar incidentS In the futu.re. This wk is likely to uire 
some degree of creativity on the part of the Panel since this clement invites a conside tion 
of International policy issues. The Panel hopes to develop a.o analytical framework ithin 
which the issues can be addressed. 

11. The final task of the Panel is to prepare a report including both its findings an 
recommendations. That report will be submitted to the Secretary-General. The repo 
the Panel will be designated unclassified.. The Panel may attach confidential anne to its 
report. 

12. The Panel is under an obligation to conduct iu work in a prompt. impartial, 
credible 2nd 1ransparcnt manner, in confonniry with international staruiasd.s. 
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The Panel's Methods of Work 

I 3. The Panel bas arrived at some conclusions about its functions and methods of ork 
thar will guide its appFoach to .·its task. The Panel is not a court. Courts adjudicate 011 
disputes and in criminal cases adjudi~te on crim:ipal liability. The Panel is not 
empowered to adjudicate. Neither cfoes tbeJ>a»el·have the necessary powers or the 
required capacity to conduct criminal investigations or to compel people to give evid 

14.. The Panel will: 

• receive and review reports ofnational investigations into't he incident from 
and Turkey; 

0 where it consider.; that it requires further information, cladfications ot meetin s 
from Israel or Turtey, make such requesr to the points of contact designated .b 
those States; 

• ' where it considers it necessary to obtain information from other affected Stat 
may request such infonnation through appropriate diplomatic channels; 

• in the light of the information. so gathered, examine and identify the facts, 
circumstances and context o.f the incident and make findings and 
recommendations. 

15. There are important.parameters within which the Pane! muSt work and these 
parameters need· to be understood clearly from the outset in order to avoid 
misunderstandings fater. The Panel cannot receive unsolicited information from J'et'S ns 
and organisations who may wisb to supply-it. Norean.the Panel approach individuals d 
organisations except through the .Points of Contact. 

16. Any clarifjcations or information ftom Israel orTmkey that fue Panel conside s 
necessary to complete its inquiry will be sought through Points of Con~act des~gnated by 
those two States. This may mclude a req1:1est for a meeting with the Point of Contact 
Those Points of Contact have now been designated and fonnalty notified to the lnqui as 
follows: 

Israel: Ambassador Yossi Ga!, Director-General of the M inistry of Foreign 
Affairs of the State: oflsrael 

Turkey: Ambassador Mithat Rende, Director General for Multilateral 
Economic Affairs at the Ministry ofFore.ign Affairs ofTurkey 

17. Where the Panel considers it necessary to obtain infonnation from other a ffe d 
States, it may request such information through appropriate diplomatic channels. Su 
diplomatic channels are understood to mean the Permanent Missions of such Scates 
United Nations in New York. 

4 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307758 Date; 05/03/2013 



StateDept004524

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307758 Date: 05/03/2013 

18. Such requests for information are the only means available to the Panel to rec tve 
information beyond the reports of national investigations. The Panel's requests will 
specify the questions or issues en which in formation or clarification is reqllired. 

Met tings with PoinJs of Conract 

19. The Panel discussedjfis iwproachto meetillgs with the Point of Contact. The anel 
will not meet with Non-Governmental Organisations or other individuals. Any m.ee · gs will 
be according to the following pr.ooedure: 

a. The "Panel will receive both 'Countries-' (Turkey and Israel) interim and fmal eports 
through the Points afConta.Ct. 

b. Once the Panel bas revjewed both interim 1111~ final r~rts it r:nay request er 
information or clarifications from the Point of Contact, 

c. The Point of Contact will receive the qu~ons and clarifications and m·ay: 

i) Pro-vide written or oral answers and clarifications; or 

ii) Suggest a meeting with a Civil Servant who can provide answers an 
clarifications to tbe specific questions in the Panel's request. When m ·ng 
such a suggestion the Point of Contact will indicate the name of the Ci~il 

· Servant and the specific question that he or she wil I address. In this ins cc, 
the four members of the P.anel will unanimously decide whether or not o 
authorize the m.eeting with the Civ.il ServanL 

d. All written and oral answers and cJarifica.tion:s pr0vided by the Point of Co tor 
Civil Servants will constitute part 0(ea~h country's interim and final repo 

20. rr needs to be appreciated that the Panel's m;ethod.is the dip.lo.matic rnethod o 
obtaining information -not the adversar.ia"I method, or tbe inquis:itorial method or 
independent fact-finding of the type that: other United Nations panels have carried ou 
This Panel is unique and its methods arc similarly unique. 

2 1. The method for obtaining information does not restrict the findings and 
recommendations the Panel may decide to make. The Panel can and wifi :examine 
ideoufy the facts, circumstances and context oftbe incident. It can and will recomm nd 
ways of avoiding such incidents in the future. It can and will report its findings and 
recommendations to the Secretary-General. Upon the nature of those findings and 
recommendations, it is futile to speculate at this si:agc. Suffice it to say the level of 
international concern.that has been expressed concerning the incident Wider review 
been high. The Panel has the means available to it to respond to that cancem. 
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22. The Panel has discussed, buc ae this stage taken no decisions, as to whether it s 
authorized or whether it is necessary for Members of the Panel to visit Israel and Tu ey 
in the process of its work. It was considered that the benefit of such visits may beco c 
clearer once the Panel has .had the opportunity to receive and review intetim and fina 
reports of national investigations into the incident. 

Staffing and AdministraJive Support 

23. The United Nations Secretariat is providing secretariat services to the Panel a d 
arranged for the provision of necessary administrative, logistic and security support, 
including transportation and accommodation. The Archives and Records Managem t 
SyStem is providing rerords-management support to the Panel. 

24. In addition, it is.necessary for cacti Panel member to have an aide. These aid s 
will be paid by the United Nations and .accountable to it for their work. with the Pane . 
The Panel secs itself very much as a team and the amuigtments that have been made in 
this regard should .facilitate both coUegiality and communication. The di:tails of the "des 
are as follows: 

Sir Geoffrey Palmer: 

Presidenr Alvaro Unbe Velez: 

Mr. Joseph Ciechanpver ltzhar. 

Mr SOLcyman 6zdcm Sanberlc: 

The P211el's Intended Programme of Work 

Ms. Elana Geddis 

Mr. Ivan Duque Marquez 

Mr. Arthur Lenk 

Mr. Can Dizdar 

25. The Panel held its second meeting on 2 and 3 September, in New York. 

/n1uim Report of N01ional lnvestigaJion &ceived from Turkey 

26. The Panel received an interim report, with annexes and related material, fro 
Turkey on the progress with respect to its national investigation on I September. 
Panel apprccia~s that the Government of Turkey has submitted itS report. Mem 
Panel will individually study the report and the material it contains, and the 1.sracli rt 
once it has been submitted. The Panel agreed to recoovenc &om I to 3 Dec:ember t 
discuss and review the interim reports, at which time it expects to have also recciv 
repon from Israel. 
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CQnclusion 

27. The Panel has had two meetings for a total offour&ays. It has met in New Y rk 
on 10 and 11 August and again il'l New York on 2 11J;1d 3 September. It has conducte its 
proceedings in a positive and collegial atmosphere-, fie Panel feels keenly the 
responsibilities that weigh upon it. Within the Panel there are tw0 members whose 
appointmentS have been made.{)n the-proposal oftbe tWo States most closely connect d 
with the incident. The structme has tbe.advantage of ensuring that each State has a II 
understanding of the points of view of the other. 

28. The points at issue betw~n the States will become easi~ to id.entify and hop fully 
easier to resolve in such a process than in a third,..party inquiry process. The Panel w II 
make eveiy effort to-reach consensus i:n relation-to proceduial issues, its findings an 
recommendations. When the best efforts to achieve consensus have been exhausted 
consensus has not been achieved, the Chair and the Vice-Chair will agree on the. pa 
procedural issues, finding or recommendation in issue. Such a procedure.ensures th 
Panel wi11 have the means to accomplish its tasks fully and not become rendered in · 
of making progress. 
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United Nations. Nations Unies 
HE.\DQUARTEI!:~ • 511!0£ ~EWYO:R~.N\' 10017 

T~L. : I (1111 Ul . 121• •FAX: I (21ll ·96J. U79 

R.EFER.E!S~E: 

8 September2010 

(RELEASED IN FULQ 

Excellency, 

I am writi'ng to you on behalf of the Pane} of Inquiry on the 31 May 20 l 0 
Incident. The Panel has met on two occasions, on I 0-11 August and 2-3 Septembe You 
bad requested that the Panel submit a progress report to you by 15 September. Thi report 
has now been completed and is attached. The work of the Panel is going well and as 
continued in a constructive tone. 1hc Panel agreed to reconvene from I to 3 [)e{:e ber to 
discuss and review the interim reports submitted by the parties. 

Please accept, E'lCcellency, the assurances of my highest consideration. 

His Excellency 
MI-. BAN Ki-moon 
Secretary•General 
New York 

rRE~IEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior I 
~viewer 

I 

Geoffrey Palmer 
Chair of the Panel of Inquiry 

on the 31 May 20 I Flotilla Incident 
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lRELEAsED IN FULL) 

Madam President, 

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS 
REDACTED 

In its June I statement on the Gaza flotilla incident, this Council expressed support fo the proximity 
talks, "'urged the parties to act with restraint, avoiding any unilateral or provocative ac ions," and 
called on "all international partners to promote an atmosphere of cooperation between the parties and 
throughout the region." We urge the international community to shun unilateral actio and 
confrontation and instead undertake conciliatory steps that promote cooperation betw en the parties. 
We call on all parties to act responsibly to meet the recovery needs of the people ofG za and to 
rebuild Gaza's civilian private sector, which will be the engine of Gaza's recovery. 

In this context, Israel, like any other nation, should be allowed to undertake an investi ation into 
events that involve its national security. Israel is capable of conducting a serious and redible 
investigation and the structure and terms of reference of the independent public co ission on the 
Gaza flotilla can meet the standard of a prompt, impartial, credible, and transparent in estigation. We 
will prejudge neitller the process nor its outcome, and we will await the conduct and ndings o-fthe 
investigation before drawing further conclusions. 

Thank you, Madam President. 

Sharon Ahmad, Senj 
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[RE~EAS~ IN£@ NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS ' ----- l V-- Text: PAL 
REDACTED 2d: ISRAEL 

UNSC Middle East Consultations 
Talking Points 
June 15, 2010 

Thank you, Mr. Preshlent, and tha~ you, Special Coordinator Serry, for your briefin 

MIDDLE EAST 

On June I, the President of the Council issued a statement in reaction to the incident volving the 
convoy sailing to Gaza, expressing oo behalf of all Council members our deep regret at the loss of life 
and injuries, and our condolences to the families. The Council condemned those ac which resulted 
in these casualties, and called for a prompt, impartial, credible and iransparent inves gation 
conforming to international slandards. 

The Government of Israel took an important step forward on June L 4 in approving a 
public commission to iovestig;tte the circumstances of the recent tragic events on bo 
headed for Gaza. 

We believe that Israel, like any other nation, should be allowed to undertake an inves igation into 
events that involve its national security. Israel bas a military justice system that mee international 
standards and is capable of conducting a serious and credible investlgatlon, and the cture and 
terms of reference offsrael's independent public commission can m~et the standard f a.prompt, 
impartial, credible, and transparent investigation. But we will not prejudge the proce_s or its outcome, 
and will await the conduct and findings of the investigation before drawing further c nclusions. 

While Israel should be afforded the time to complete its process, we expect Israel's c mmissi-0n and 
military investigation will be carried out promptly. We also expect that, upon comp! ion, its finwngs 
wiJ I be presented publicly and will he presented to the international community. 

~EVIEW AUTHORITY: SharonAhmad, Senior Reviewe~ 
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Thank you Mr. President. 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307637 Date: 05/03/2013 

NR 



StateDept004532

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No_ F-2010-04163 

jRELeASED IN FUL:bJ 
NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS 
REDACTED 

Doc-No·. C05307598 Date: 05/03/2013 

ISR EL 
PAL STINE/ 

UNITED STATES M ISSION TO THE UNITED N TIONS 

140 East 45" Street 
NEW YORK. N.Y. 10017-3505 

January 18, 2011 

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENT A Tl 

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED 

FROM: POL - Bill Grant 
THROUGH: EXEC - Ambassador DiCarlo 
SUBJECT: Security Council Open Debate on the Middle East, January 19, 20J I 

BACKGROUND: 

Under Secretary-General Pascoe will brief the Council on events in the Middle Ea · since 
December 14, followed b an o en debate. 

jREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Revieweq 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307598 Date: 05/03/2013 

NR 



StateDept004533

;- UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307598 Date: 05/03/2013 

The U.S. draft statement fo r the open debate is still being finalized in Washington. We've 
removed points on the Gaza floti Ila incident, as Israel's report will not be submitte~ to the UN 

i'h;, W'ek.J - - -J 

NR 
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(Low side) 

L:\LIBS\POLSEC\MasilkoBJ \SER 01 18 2010 SC ME consultations.doc 

Drafted: POL: BMasilko 
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[RELEASED IN FUU:j 
Simonoff, Mark A (USUN) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Anderson, Brooke D (USUN) 
Saturday, November 13. 2010 6:44 AM 
Simonoff. Mark A (USUN) 
Re: Weekly Report: Legal Sectlon 

I 

Great!!! 

INQN-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS J 
~DACTED 

From: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN) 
To: Anderson, Brooke D (USUN) 
Sent: Sat Nov 13 00:16:09 2010 
Subject: Re: Weekly Report: Legal Section 

Yes 

I From: Anderson, Brooke D (USUN) 
To: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN) 
Sent: Fri Nov 12 21:46:12 2010 
Subject: Re: Weekly Report: legal Section 

U got flotilla language out of law of the sea?? 

From: Simonoff, Mark A {USUN) 
To: Singh, Priya (USUN); DiCarlo, Rosemary A (USUN); Anderson, Brooke 0 (USUN); Ahmed, Saltnan (USUN); Harris, 
GrantT 
Sent: Fri Nov 12 20:37:56 2010 
Subject: Weekly Report: legal Section 

Weekly Report: Legal Section 

Followin,g are highlights of the work of the Legal Section on matters which we have the l~ad on. 

Sixth Committee 

Disabilities Convention 

NR 
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International Criminal Court UN General Assembly Resolution 

Oceans and Law of the Sea Resolution 

We remained united with the EU, Canada, Australia, Israel and others in our opposition tf the flotilla paragraph 
in the annual oceans and law of the sea resolution. While Turkey did not affirmatively withdraw the paragraph, 
it took a rather low profile on the issue and did not put up much of a fight. (I consulted seoarately with Turkey 
and lsrael throughout the negotiations. Everyone seemed eager to avoid an open confron ation on the issue.) 
Because there was no consensus on this flotilla paragraph, it was deleted from the text of the resolution. 

CTED Mandate Renewal Resolution 

Mark A. Simonoff 
Acting Legal Adviser 
U.S. Mission to the United Nations 
799 United Nations Plaza 
New York, NY 10017 
(212)415-4220 

SBU 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED. 
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(RELEASED IN FULL TO ;ERTAIN I 
PARTIES Requestor Only 

center orconstitutionalrights 

February 16, 201 l 

Ms. Peggy Kerry 
NGO Liaison 

on the front lines for social justice 

United States Mission to the United Nations 
799 United Nations Plaza 
New York, N.Y. 10017 

Re: Meeting Request: Ahmet Dogan, Father ofFurkan Do~an, U.S. citize killed on the 
Mav; Marmara on May 31, 2010 

Dear Ms Kerry: 

I write on behalf of Ahmet Dogan, the father of F urkan Do~an, the U.S. citizen killed aboard the 
Mavi Marmara on May 31, 2010. Mr. Dogan will be travelling 10 1he United skies next week 
for the purpose of meeting with U.S. government officials to discuss his son' s kil~ng and actions 
that the United States has taken or can take to assist in seelOng justice and acco~ptability for his 
son' s death. Mr. Dogan wiU be in New York on February 24th and would Ii'! to meet with 
you or represent.atives from your Office to discuss his son's killing and the U.S. response to 
it. 1 note that efforts to secure a meeting for Mr. Oo~an with representatives of t~e United Stales 
Embassy in Ankara, Turkey have been unavailing, prompting him to make this tlp lo the United 
Stales. See Enclosure A. 

As you may be aware, 19-year old Furkan Dogan was among the sixteen Unite9 States citizens 
who were part ? f the fl?tilla, including five who were on the C~~llenger 1, a IU .S.-regi~t~red 
vessel. At the ltme of his death, F urkan Dogan was only a U.S. citizen, (and not a dual c1ttzen 
with Turkish citizenship) having previously renounced his Turkish citizenshipi Furkan Dogan 
was shot five times, including t\vice in the head, once in the back, in the left leg nd foot. All of 
the eniry wounds were to the back of his body, except the shot to his face, whic~ was deliveTed 
al point-blank range. See Enclosure B. An English-translation of the autopsy rel>ort for Furkan 
Dogan is attached. See Enclosure C. l 
In addition, United States citizens were beaten, and their property, which incl des video and 
phorographic evidence, was seized and appropriated by Israel and has not beenj rerurned. The 
U.S . passengers have urged the State Department to assist in securing the return cjf their pTOperty 
and safeguarding evidence for a criminal investigation. See Enclosure D. The evidence which 
was seized by the lsraeLi government and remains in its possession includes thb video-camera 
Furkhan Dogan was holding at the time that the Israeli commandos rappelled! onto the Mavi 
~~ I 

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senj:Jr 
Reviewer 

6-broa.dway, 7 fbn york, ny 10012 
t 212 614 6464 l 212 614 6499 w;vw.CCRjustice.org 
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Meeting Request: Ahmet Dogan 
February 16, 2011 
Page 2 of2 

I appreciate your urgent attention to this matter and look forward to your pr mpt response. 
Please feel free to contact me at 212-614-6445 or kgallagher@ccrjustice.org i you have any 
questions or need any additional information. 

Encl. A. 

B. 

c. 

D. 

Sincerely, 

Katherine Gallagher 
Senior Staff Attorney 

Letters exchanged between the Elmadag Law Office and 
the Embassy of the United States - Ankara J 

Excerpt from the United Nations Human Rights Council Report Fabt-Finding 
Mission on the Flotilla Attack, September 27, 2010, A!HRC/15/21 

Autopsy Report for Furkan Dogan 

Letter from U.S. passengers, including Ahmet Dogan to 
Secretary of State Clinton, October 6, 2010 

666 broadway, 7 il, new york, ny l0012 
t 2J.2 814 6464 f 212 614 64S9 www.CCRjustice.org 
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Enclosure 
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THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA EMBASSY, ANKARA-TUR EY 

To: 

Douglas A, SILLIMAN 

Deputy Chief of Mission 

Atatiirk Bulvan 110 
l<avakhdere, 06100 Ankara- Tilrklye 
ozbai;d®state.w 

No: HUKMEK-01-10-28 

Subject: Formal request for information about the USA citizen FURKAN DOGAN 
whom he was killed on 31 May 2010 by the Tsraeli attack on freedom Gau 
l'lotill11 while It was In the international waters. 

Date: 7.09.2010 

Dear Sir DEPUTY CHIEF OF MISSION 

At the outset allow us to introduce ourselves. We, Elmadag law Office, are the Legal Rep esentatives of 

each victim of the 31 May Gaza Flotilla Incident who hold Turkish Citizenship. Our role is to pursue the 

rights of the each victim in accordance with remedies available under International law, in er alia United 

Nations, International Court of Justice and International Criminal Court, and exhaust very possible 

international legal remedy. 

On the day of May 31 when the aforementioned attack has occurred, 9 civilians wer killed with 

gunfitt. Among them one of the deceased people was Furkan Dogan, having Turkl~h origin and 

holding the USA citizenship. His dead body was sent to Turkey after the attack. His I topsy report 

IJt•nbul Ounv• ncaret Me•ICJi llDTM) A·l Bit . N:61 - ¥eiilkDv. l•tonbul, Til~klYE 
r.lofon • •'30 (O) l12 4GS U 65 F•b • '90 !O) lU U S 88 69 

www.eh@dJ•huku\.;om 
1gto•slmadac1>ukv\cam 
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prepared by the Forensic Medicine Institute and his family took his body and buried n the city of 

Kayseri. 

Elmadag Law Office is the representatives of his Family for the fact that they w victim and 

complainant since their son was shol 

Based on the foregoing; 

On behalf of the Dogan Family, we respectfully request from the authority of the nited States 

Government to act the legal and diplomatic remedies for Furkan Dogan's de.ath, e therefore 

request the US Embassy in Ankara to inform us about the aforesaid situation furth r and have a 

meeting. 

Sincerely, 

Att. RAMAZA ARIT0Rl< 

EK - I: 30.07.2010 Tarihli. I<ayseri 8. Notetliginden 28678 Yevmiye No'lu 

S.yf• · t · 
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Vekiletname - Vekil: A!unet Dogan 
EK-II: 17.06.2010 Tarihli, fw:kan Dogan' a ait Otopsi !Uporu - Adli Tsp J(urumu BaJikanh& 
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Emba.,sy oft-he United Slates of America 

Ankar , Ekim 7, 2010 

Saytn Avukat Ramazan Anturk,, 

istanb'ul DOnya Ticaret Merl<ezi 

A-1 Blk. N: 61 Ve~ilkoy, 

i.stanbul 

Sayin Aritiirk, 

Amerlkan Biiyuketciligi Maslahatgil2an Douglas A. Silliman' a gonderm~ oldugunuz 1-10-20 tarihll 

yaz1n12a cevaben Maslahatgiizar adma bu mektubu yazmaktay1m. 

Gondermi~ oldugunuz yaz1 taraf1m11a ula~m1~tir. 

Ba~konsolos 

Amerikan Bliylikelciligi 

Ankara 
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Embassy of the United Stat of America 

Ankara, Septe ber 7, 2010 

Dear Att. Ramazan Anturk, 

Istanbul World Trade Centre 

A-1 Block No:61 Yesilkoy, 

Istanbul 

Dear ARITURl<1 

I am writing on behalf of the United States Charge d'Affaires Douglas A. Silliman In resp nse to letter 

he received dated 1/10/210. 

We tiave received your letter. 

Regards, 

Richard Appleton 

Consul General I 
Embassy of the United S ates 

Ankara 
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EMBASSY OF THE UNITED STATE, ANKARA-TURKEY 

Do1.1glas A. SJLUMAN 

Deputy Chief of Miss'ion 

Atatiirk Bulvan 110 
l<aval<Ldere, 06100 Ankara - Tilrkiye 
ozbagd®State.gQY 

HUKMFK-01-10-39 

Reiteration for Fonnal reqU1.>st for information about the USA citizen 
FURKAN OOGAN whom he wa,s killed on 3l May 20l0 by the Israeli 

attack on Freedom Gaza Flotilla while it was in the international waters. 

29.11.2010 

Dear Sir DEPUTY CHIEF OF MISSION 

We: Elmadag Law Offic.e, ar~ ~he Le~al Representatives of each victim of the 31 May )Gaza Flotilla 
Incident who hold Turkish Citizenship. I 
On the day of 31 May 2010 one of the deceased of the consequence of the aforeme '~oned attack 
was Furkan Dogan. The legal team of our office will go to the USA on the point of leg process for 
Fuikan Dogan's case. 

It was asked for formal request on the date of 01.10.2010 to have appointment with ou on behalf 
of victim and complaint Dogan Family for further information about Furkan Dogan. (no: 
HUKMEK-01-10-28). We have received your letters indicating that you received our jequest letter. 
R~spectfully, We wo~l.d like to renew our aforementioned request dated 01.10.201 for meeting 
with you before we v1s1t the USA. 

Sincerely, 

Av. Ramazan ARrrUJ~ 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

bt~ribuJ ounva Tic:ar1U Merk~zi llOTM) A•l "Blk. N:61-YCJilkOy. Istanbul, TORkfYE WWW !!!lm1dHby1c:uk com I 
Ttlefon · +90 (0) 212. 46S U 6$ h ies - +90 (0) 212 465 88 69 . lnfo@elmadrghulcuk cgm 
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Enclosure 
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United Nations AmRC/15121 

- General Assembly Oistr.: OenCral 
1 7 September 2-0 l 

Original: !lng)ish 

Buman.Rights Council 
F'lfteeulll 1esslon 
Agenda itent I 
OrganlzatlonaJ and procedur•I matters 

Report of the internadonal fact-finding mission to investiga e 
violations of international law, including international I 
humanitarian and hu~an rights la~, resulting frqm the I 
Israeli attacks on th~ flotilla of ships carrying humanitarianl 
assistance• " ' - " . 

, Summary . 

This reporl was J)('l:pPred by the fact·finding mission established by !lie Hun an 
Right9 Council in resolution 14/1 of2 June 2010 to investi.g.etc violations of internatlo,1al 
law, including intematioMI hutnanitarian law and human 'rights ·iaw; resulting from be 
interception by lsnscli .forces .of the hwnanitarian aid flotilla bound for <Jam on 31 ~ ay 
20 IO during which nine people were killed and many othe~s injured. . · I 

The report s_ets out background informlllioh relating to the interceplion of the flotitla 
as well as the applicable international Jaw. 

The fact-finding mission conducted interviews with more lhan JOO witnesses 1in 
Geneva, London, Istanbul and Amman. On the basis of this 1estirnony and other 
information recelved, the Mission was able to reconstruct a picu1re of the circumstan~' 
surrounding the interception on 3 l May 20 I 0 and its aftermath. The report prescn a 
factual descrlplion of the events leading up to the interception, the interception of each f 
the six 3hips fa the flotilla as well as a seventh ship subsequently intercepted on 6 J 
2010, the deaths of nine passengers and wounding .of inany others and the detention Kif 

passc:ngcn .in Israel and their depot111tion. 

The report oontains 8 legal analysis of facts as determined by the MillSion wilh a 
view to determining whether violations of inlernational law, including intematlor al 
humanitarian and human rights Jaw, took place. 

The f!lct·finding mission concluded that a series of violations of international la •, 
inclu(ling international humanitarian and human rights law, were committed by ·the lsra1 Ii 
forces during the interception of the flotilla and during the detention of passengers in 111 I 
prior to deportation. 

I 
• Late submission. I 

I 
GEJ0-16486 .J..niqca@ 
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boJird the vessels by force. This belief persisted among many lcss·cxpcrlcnced Jlll$sen 
right up to lhc moment of Che interception, notwithstanding Che precedent of the Spirit o-1 
Humanity in 2009. Many passengers told the Mission that they did not really believe thl 
the Israelis would attempt to boani until the first boats approached the Mt111i Marmara o 
t!)e~omingof31 May. ... • 

Preparatton a111:( plan,,/~ Oii rhe Mavl Marmara 

9~. . The full realization ·the.I the lS111Clis. were serjous aboul comll)andeeri.ng the flotll~ 
spread Jhrougb lhe pas:ierig= on ihe Mtrt1I Marmara during the course of JO May. Theci: i 
clear evidcncc that some people on board the Mavi Marmara, incluc;l)ng. senior IHH leaders 
were prepared actively to defend the ship agalmc any boarding atteinpl Video evidcn 
shows 'a meeting of about .SO to JOO passengers on the ship on 30 May at which the JH 
President .and a number of other prominent passengers spoke with some bravado abou 
~venting an Israeli takeover of the ship. The pressure of the water hoses wu seen beini 
tested on the 9~ks ~ .. 48Y \lcfore the lnt~pti<>;n. . . 

100. Following radio c:onirmmk:ation wi1h ihe laraell Navy and the sightings of the lsraelJ 
vdscb, it became-appBl'C!lt that 11 boarding oflbc ship was an imminent ~!ty. Passcngers 
wen: instructed· to pul on their life Jackets. Although there dllc:3 not sum 10 have been f 
c:oordlnatcd plan involving all passengen. some individuals grouped together with IJ 
Intention of defending the .ship. There u •lillle ·evidence of any unified ·commlllld · 
~rdinate the defence of the ship. 

101. During the night of 30 to 31 May, some passellgcrs took electric 1001.s from 1 

ship's wnrbhop, which was not kept locked and sawed sections of railings into lcngt~ cf.' 
approximaicly one and a half meires, apparently for use as weapons. Lcnglhs of m~ 
chains from between the railings wetc a!ao ranoved. When the ship's crew discovered lh~ 
the &ools were confiscated and locked in the radio room on the bridge. A numb1:1 of !lit 
JWsettgm were also provided with gllll masks to counter the effects oftear gas. Howevej-, 
the.Mission notes that the ship's standard· fi~lighling cquipmcnl would have includ~ 
breathing apparatus. Frnthennore, lhe fild that some pauengers engaged in last mi.nuqe 
effo11s to • .fashion rodimc:ntazy · weapom shortly prior to the interception confirms th!e 
findings of the Mission that no weaPQns w~ brought·on board the ship. j 

fre{J<lratlon and planning on I~ Challenger 1: Sfendon/, Elejlherl MeJog\o.s mid!~. I 
Rachel Corrie .' . 

102. Passengers a.nd crew on the Challenger I underwent training in pas!!ivc resl3ten<f 
techniques, non-violence lllJd what to do if detained in !s~ael {including. contacting a.la~wr 

beforo embarkation). Witnesses said discussions took place In ·advance amongst e 
pllSSCngers on how to respond·to. 8ll Israeli 11tcmp110 board the ship during which the 
hl!d !Misted that -there. should be no attempts to repel boarders wlch physical force. e 
captain .and crew opposed a suggestion that access lo the bridge should be blodccd, u~ 
wQ feared this would incense me soldiera. The intention, acconlmg to whnesses, was 
show a symbolic resistance lo the soldiers ~uffkient to demonstrate th~t t!'c boardlng w 
unwant=d. The planned raponse to a boarding of the Chal/tnger I was 1n part lnfonned 1Y 
the _experience oJ sqne of the passengers on previous bo$l! whicll had been lnterC%ptcd y 

t~laraclis, . • 

103. Wiln= aboard the Svendoni and the Elejlhul Me.roglN confinnc:d simitlir 
dis~sions aboard their vessels. On the E~l Mt.1ogi01, it was.also decided that watbr 
hoses could be misconSUued u .wcapons end hence should not be used. On the Sf11!do~ 
piwcngers intended to sit on the decks and ilow down any attempt to talcc control of $e 
bridge through passive resislance. I 

A/HRC/15121 
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AllmC/JS/21 

'24 

104. .The pa.u~ers on board the Rachel Corrie ~eccl end notified lhc Israelis bcfo 
boarding !hat no . .resis~-w.oul~ be ojfered to the Israeli forcC3. 

PrePfll"<allon·anft planning 011 the. yaue J and Defne Y 

IOS. There is no infonnation to suggest that any specific Jl'Cparations were made by t c 
m:w or pwc:ngers ofGauel and Defne Yto defend 8.£11lnst a possible boarding. 

B. ~~ ~terceplion of~ Gaza ~tflla by tl~e Iiraell Navy on_31May201 

J. Factual ciucrtptlon and tliidlDfll 
I ' • ~ ; ·• • 

I 06. The Mission f6und the following facts to have be«in established to·ils satisfa.ctlon . . 
• I 

(a) Conlacts htlwun ihe· /sraell Navy and the veuels of the flotilla 

107. The: flotilla lei\ the rendezvous point at 15~ hours on 30 Mii)' 20io' and prOcc:d d 

In a so\¢1-weslcrly i!irection on course 222 dc:gius. This course was altered lo 185 d~ 
approximately due south, at 2330 hours upon drawing level with the coast of Israel and n 
order to maintain 11 courwe roughly panillcl to the colll3L The flotilla maintained a distance f 
70 nautical miles ftom the coast since: a NA VTEX (Navigational Telex~ advisory h d 
WlllJled that· the Israeli military were conduccing c:xercises up to 68 nautical mllC3 from 

:: ·. The fiM radio c:onlact with tho JsrllCli Navy was al approximately 2230 hours~! h 
vessel was coniactcd by ~ lstacli Na"}', one o.ftet the Olhcr, on·Channel )6 and rcq 
to switch to an altemarivc channel Each vessel refused to switch in order that e 
conversation oauld be 1110llitorcd by all·sbipping. ·The Israeli N.avy rcqucsted each vessel o 
identify itself and state its dcStlnatlon. It then warned each vessel, with some V11riations, it 
was approaching 1111 area of hDlltlllties whk;h is under a. nav!ll b!ocbdc; that the Gapi 
meritlme area is. closed to all vem!s and that they must ohange coorsc to deliver th~ir 
supplies to the Port ~r Ashdod lo Israel. In some of the m~ges, the captain of each vcs+t 
was warned that be would be held pcrgooaJJy respomible for any coo.sequences of a faitu;rc 
to comply with the Israeli request. The Israeli Navy's contacts wen: similar to those '" 
relation 10 previous Free Gau M~vcmcnl cffoft;3. to enter 01121t by .sea. j 
109. in. resp0nse, the captains of the various vessels stated that their destination was oar 
and the pwpose wm lo deliver humanilllrillll uid. They also assencd that the Israeli forces 
dld. not have the: right to. order the vessels to change course and that the blocU..· de referred~o 
wea Illegal. A representative of the Free Gaza.Movement 1pOketothc: Israelis on behalfpr 
the whole· flotilla, .rciteratlng that the p&S$Cllgc!$ were uruinned civilians dclivcripg 
humanitarian.aid ll!ld t!iat none of the ships that should be COl13idercd as any form ofthrdat 
10 Israel. At no s!Jlge wu a rcq.UCllt made by !he Israeli Navy fur the cargo to be i3. 
Conlllcis.with the lsrael! Navy continued untll 11round 0200 hours when eommuni · n 
equipmtnl was jQJnmed· by die bracli forces, cutting them off to. all ex al 
commuhicafi,ons. However, the vessels in the flotilla were able to maintain cootac:t with otc 
another ·Via handheld two•way radios. 

( i O. · In early Jime io i 0, audio reco1dfngs were released 'by the Israel I auUioritiC$fif 
apparent exchanges between the brecli Navy and the Deftre Y which included irurulf g 
rcfcrcnces by unknown persons reftmng to "Auschwiti." and the.11 September 200 I atta 
on 11111 Wotld'Trade Cent111 in New York. Hawevcr, !he Mission is ool satisfied that~ 
rccdrdi$ B1l: authentic; nor h1111 1h.e Oovernment of lanlc! made this material availlbleFo 
the Mission "for t'ippropria1c examlnatlon. The Miss1on was given positive evidence that 
siroh statements w~ made by 1111yonc involved in communicuions on the flotilla. 

I 
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I I!. The crew and pa3sengersof the siit Vt:l!Sels became visually aware of the presence o 
Israeli naval vessels some time after the initial communications, between 1300 hours an1 
midnighl, bo1h through sightings and two-way radlo·communication between the vesselst 
The larger Israeli .ships and hdicoptcrs came into view of the crew of the vessels al 
approximately 0100 hours on Jt Mii)'. Similar sighting:s were made by oiher v=el~ in th

1 

flotilla at a.round lh:e same time. · 

(b) 

(i) 

Ewfl/s-on boa1Yf ihe M.11. Ma11i Marmara" 

rniUal 11\tempt to _boll!'d the Mavi Marmara from the sea 

(iO 

112. Israeli wdiac boats made a first etlcmpl to board the Mavl Marmara from the s 
shortly be/Ore 0430 hours. Several todlac boats approaohed the ahlp al. the stern from bo 
the pon 81ld starboard sides. The "approach was accompanii:d by the! flrlng of non·lelh I 
weaponry onto the, ship. including smoke and stun grenades. tear-gas and paint balls. Pl1131ic 
bultets may also have ~ wicd al this stage: however, despite 90me claims that Liv~ 
ammunition was also fm:d from the zodiac boets, the Mission b not satisfied that this wail 
the c:ax. The smoke an!l tear gas were not effective due to lhe suong sea breeze acd wt 
due lo the downdraft from helicopters. . 

113. The Israel! fo~ altcmplcd to board the ship lhro~gh ~aching l~cn to the hull. 
Pusengers eng11gcd in efforts to repel the anc:mpted boarding USl!lg the ship's water hoscsf. 
and !he throwing of various items at the boats including chairs, sticks, a box of plates anj! 
Olhcr objects I/lat were readily to hand. This initial 11~pt to bolltd the ship ,provefl 
unsucc;egful, It is the view of the Mission that the Israeli forCC3 should llavt> n:-cvaluattjl 
the.Ir plans when it became obvious that putting their soldiers on board the ship may lead tb 
civilian oasuoltic$, · I 
Landing of soldiers from helicopters onto the Mavi Marmera 

114. Just minutes after soldim from the zodiac bo8IS had made initial umuccess~I 
sttempts to board. lhe first helicopti:t approached the ship Ill approximatdy 0430 ho~ 
hovering above the top deck. At this point between IO and 20 pa.swigcrs were located r. 
the central area of the top dcclc, although this number incnased as other passengers leam<jd 
of events on the top deck. The Israeli forces used lllllOke and stun grenades in an attcmp; 
clear an aiq for the landing of soldiers. The first rope that was let down from the helicopt 
was ·taken by passengers .and tied it to 11 part of the top dccJc and thereby rend 
lnc!Teotivc for the purpose of soldiers' descent. A_ second rope wall thea let down from .,c 

01 For Ille purposes oftlliueport, lho followin111c:nns are used to d_escribe the -ious decks of the M~i 
Al~« top dect - lhcroof of~ ship whe111 the.satclll~ tower and fu.111ld are locllcd, bridg~ J 
- Inc deck below the top deck wbidi ghoe:s _, to !he-bridge. bow dccl< - lcMlesl open declt w11b 
ftOC:CSS to lh£ ftont of the ship. live television bnillllcull weie imdc &om an open '*k WU al the 
back of lire bridge deck. 

" It is worth nolfil& lhll in accordlliu:e wllb the ln!unational Maritime Organization's cirClllat 
"Ouldanee lo ship owncn and ship opmtors, "1lpmu!CB and crcws on P'llVcmfn& and suppressing 
llCIS ofpilacy ud ~ robbeiy ag6inst ships" of June 2009, the use of water hoses is rccomm:rndc 
it 1 me.ns to p:event 11111.llemp!ed bollrding by pirates and 11r1Dcdrobbers. IMO Circular 
Msc.lfCirc.1334, date 23June2009, Annex, pua. S11t1lo»'8' follows: "1110 useorwa1ethoscs 
should also be considered thou&h they may be difficult to train if evasive manoeuvring Is also - , 
pl1cc. Wiier pressures of8-0 lb per liquare i~ 1od Bbovo h~ve deterred aod repulsed artackus. N~I 
only does lbc anacker bave to 11Wit api11n the jet of water butthe flow may swamp his/her boat 
dl1111111c engines and ~ectrical sysien11. Sptc.ial litiinas for ~ing hoses could be conslclen:d whf 
would also provide protealon f"or the hose operllOr. A number of $p81C lire hOSC$· c;ould be rig~d ld 
lied dawn to be prernirized al short notice iC a poicntilll attack is detcctcd". . 

A/HRC/lSfll 
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heli~ptet and the firs\ gn;iup of soldiers descended. The ~ission dotll not find it.plausible 
that soldiers Wel"I: holding their weapops and firing as they descended. OI) the: rope:. 
However, it has concluded that live: ~unition was used from the helicopta" onto the top, 
d~k priorto the dc:Scent of the soldiers. 

115. With the availtW!c evidence it is difficult to delineate the exact ci>urse of events on 
the top deck between the time ofthe. first soldier descending lllld the lsnieli (orees securin 
control of the decic. A figlit ensued between passe~gen end fhe fir.ii soldiers to desce 
onto the top deck that resulted in at least two soldiers being pushed down onto the brld~ 
deck below; where ihey were involved in struggles With groups of passengers wh . 
attempted to take lheir weapons. The: equipment jacket of at least one soldier was remo;; 
as he was pµshed over tlie side of, !Jie dei;k. A number of weapons were taken from th 
soldiers by passengers and thrown into the sea: one weapon, a 9-mm pistol, \¥BS unloade 
bY. a pilssenger. tr former U.S. Marine, in front of witnesses and then hidden in another par)' 
oflhe ship in an attt:mpt to rel.ain evidence. . 

I 16. A numbu of the p113scngers on lhe top declt fougJit with the solcliel'S using their fists, 
sticks, m.etal ro~s and IC~ives." At l~t ?~of the so~iets ·.w~ stabbed with a knife or .otbe{ 
sharp obJ~t. Witnesses rnfonned tlic M1ss1on thet their obJCClive was to subdue and d1slll11J 
!he soldiers SP 1ha1 they could nol harm anyone. The MISslon is satisfied on the eviden011 
that et le~t two passengers on.the bridge declc also used hand))cld catapults to propcf small 
projectiles lit the helicopters. 'IJie Mi.ssion hBS fuund no evidau;e to suggest that any of thy 
p11SSCn~ u.sed fir~ms or thort any firearms were taken on board the s!iip. Despit~ 
requeslll, the Missiqn· has. not received any medical records or other substantiatef 
Information from the Israeli authorities regarding any fireann injuries susl8ined by soldi11'f 
p_articipating in the rai~. Doctors eicamincd the three ~oldiers laken below decks end nf 
firearm irijuries were notcil. Further, ihe M~ion finds that the Israeli BCCQunts Sf 
inconsistent and contradictoiy with regard to evidence of alleged fireanns injuries ID Israeli 
soldiers that it h'as to reject it.'" I 

(iii) Deaths nf9 passengers and wounding of at least SO other passengers I 
111: · During the. qpcrati~n to ~eure control ot; the top deck, the Israeli fo!l;CS land~ 
soldiers from three helicopters over a I S-minutc puiod.11 Tm: Israeli fuTCeS used paintball~ 
plastic bullets and live ammunition, tired by soldiers from the helicopter above and soldie~s 
who had landed on the top dt:ck. The use of live Bllimunilion during this period resulted~·' 
fatal injuries to fi.our passenger$,n and injuries to e~ least 19 .-Others, 14 wilh gunsh I 

wounds. Escape points to the brldg~ deck from lhc top declc were nlllTOW lilld restricted· 

as.such it was.'"Y dlmo.tt f~ '"""""' ;,, •• - to. avoid being hit by. live rounds.11 
69 The Minion bas found no evidence qfltnivcs bciag lalccn on board by passengers except for one 

traditional ccn:l!IOllia.I knife. However, tho Mavi Marmara hid silt kitchells, ead't of which was 
stocked with usual culinary lmi~s. . 

.,. In bis testimony to the Turkel Committee. bold in Israel on 11 August 2010, ChidofOeneral Staff I 
Ashkenf!Zi .refers ill one soldier bein.g "sb,ot in his abdomett by one of the aclivisls" and that "in the 
course oflhe battle,. live soldiens [wereJ wounded by stabbings, blows and shooting". However; at tf!C 
urgent debate oflhe Human Rights Council helddoring lls-fotwteentli session, on I June 20\Q, lhe I · 
Permanent Representative: of luacl stilled Iha! passengers -shot two Israeli soldiers". In conttaSI, in 
the State's ~ponsc auhe babes! corpus bearing. held on 2 June 2010 {petition HCJ 4913/10 before 
the Supreme Court in Jerusalem, sitting as the High Coun of Justice; u11ollicial translation), no 
specific reference was made to any Israeli soldicls 'being shot 

71 In hi,s,te'slimony to the Turkel C-0111111ittee Oii t l Augusl 2010, ChiefofOcllcral Stllff Ashkcnazi st d 
lhallhc first holiccptcr carried IS .soldiers, the second canied 12 soldiers and the .third carried 14 
soldiers. 

11 Fahri Yaldiz, Furkan DoAan, lbl'l!hirn Bil gen and Ali Haydat llenl!i. 
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leost one of those killed was using a video camera and not involved in any of the figb.tlng 
with the soldiers. The ·11111[ori1y of gunshot wounds received by passen·ger.i were to· their 
upper torsos in the head, thorax, abdomen and back. Givm the relatlvcly smalr number o 
passengers on the top deck d11ri11& the incident, the Mission is driv\:11 to the conclusion that 
the vaSI lll,lljurity were in i:eceipt of gunshot wOWJd8. 

I 18. · l.vaell soldiers continued shooting at passengezs who had already been wounded, 
with live ammunition, soft baton charges (beanhllgs).and plastic bullets. Forensic anelysi 
demonstrates that two of the passengers killed on the top deck received wounds compat.ibl 
with being shot at close fll!lge while lying on the ground: Furkan DoAan received a bullet I 
the face and Ibrahim Bligen received a fatal wound liom a soft baton round (beanbag) fire 
!U such close proximity to his. head that .perts such as wadding .Ptneln\ted his slt\in 8ll 

entered his brain. Furthermore, some of the wounded were subjected to further violcn 
!nclµding being hit w_ith the butt of a weapon, being kicked in the head, c~t and back an 
being verbiilly. abused. A number of the wounded passcngcrs were h1111dcut1. fed and. then h:~ 
ull!lttcl!(icd for some time before being dragged IO the front of the deck by their arms 
tep. . 

l 19. Once the hracli forces had secured control of the top deck they undertook measure 
to move down to the bridge 4eck below In order to take over tile slilp's bridge ll!ld thllS tllkq 
control of the ship. ln relation to th~ operation, a aeries of shooting incjdents occu11cq 
centred on the portside doorway whiCh giVC3 access to the main stairw.cll on the bridg~ 
deck. This door is near to the hatch and ladder, which allows access f~m the top deck 1 
the bridge deck. . 

120. lsnieli soldiers fired :live ammunition both from the top deck at passengen on ~ 
bridge deck below, l!lld after they had moved down 10 lhe bridge deck. At le.Mt fou 
passengers were ~illed,'l_ and at lcasi nine ihjured (five with flrcat!llS _lnjuri~) _during thi 
p_hase. None of the four passengen who were killed, incl11ding a photographer who at 
time of. being shot was engaged ln laking photographs and was shot by an lsraeli soldi 
positloned on' the top'· deck 11bove, posed eny threat to lhe IS111cli forces. There wj 
~nsiderable_Hve fire. trOrt1 r.ataeli soldiers on th.c t?P deck and a num~ .of passe!)gm we 
mJured or kil~d whtl~ trying to take refuge inside the door or BJStsttng oth«;r to do s r 
Wounded passengers were brought foto tbe ship through the stairweU 1111d thro,ugh J 
ship's bridge roQr!l ll!ld were helped downstairs where they could be given some furm o 
medical treatment by doctors and others on board. 

121. Qne witness d~cribcd the cir~mstnnces in which one j)!!Ssenger w113 killed on th 
bridge. deck: I 

I :$8W two soldiers on. top of the roof staiiding there holding tbeir guns .down~ 
somcdiing on ,the roof that I oouldn 'ts= There were two guys hidden undel'!lea!h 
walk Way of the ship to the right hBlld side and I was screaming iii: them npt lo mov . 

. 11ic two passengers we:rc below lhe soldlCI'$. They could not see the ~ldiers and 
scildiers could not sec them while they were hidden under the walkway. Then 'hf. 
guys moved out. rtl!lking themselves visible as they tried to run towards the m~~ 
door. One man made it to open the door and got inside. The other man must havf 
been shot. I think he was shot in the head from the way he looked,hew11S.n'tmoving 
at all. He was 20 or 30 metres away from !Ile. When the second man got shot, !He 
first m811 opened .the door aiid using it as a shield tried to reach out for the secon~ 
men. He m.an~cd to reach l!i,m and was pulliqg. him .by his tight ann. I co11ld11't s9e 
illly blood, but he wasn' t lnoving at al!. . . 

71 CeV!let KJIJ~ar. CcnQiz. SortgDr, Ccngiz A.kynz and Cdin Tbpi;uoglu. 

I 

AIHR<;.(J'S/ll 
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AJHJlCJ 1!121 

122. A group of up ID 20 QUSCll&ers. some holdina sticks and rodJ and wcariflg 
maW, ,were loceted oo ar around lhe llairwcll lnsldc thc ship. Ono pamtiger mndingj 
lJISidc the door was shot lhrougb the broken ponhole In lhc door by a eoldicr stiinding al 
mettc11 away on lbe bridge deck ouiside. 

123. During !he shootings on lhc ·bridge dock ind u It bllClllle apparent that a 
number of passengers ha.d booomc injurlfd, Bule.nt Y,lldhim. the Prcsidq\t of IHH and o 
of Jllincipe.I organi:urs of the flotilla, fClllOVcd h"is white shirt which w11a then ~ as a 
white flag to indica1e a surreride.r. This• does not 1ppear to have had ll1Y effect and Ii .e 
firing continued O!I the sblp, 

124.' Israeli forces moved down to the bridge dcbk and moved rapidly to take over e 
bridge room tciwerds the front of tho 3hlp. Tho doorwuy 1111d windows of the bridge roo 
came Wider- lire !!rid the captain ordered that tho ship's engines be cut. Israeli soldi ~ 

entered the" bridge room ihrough lhe dobr and broken ~indow. The crew were made lo I e 
~n ihe ground at giinpolnt. The captain remained standing but wa:s hdd at gunpoint. 

(Iv) Shoo1ings at the bow deck, the release of the ISl'ICll eoldicrs and end ofthc operation 

123. During lhc initilll fighting on the top deck three brtell soldltl'1 were Uken under 
conirol lind brought -~Ide !he ship. While Some pusc:ngm wished to ~ lhe aoldi+, 
other passengers ensured that they were ptOCeCtcd and able to r~ve rudimentary. ~';"f'I 
tttatment from doct0!$ on board. Two of"thc toldlcrs had rccc:lvcd wounds to the ~ 

. one of the Soldiers bad a superficial wound to the abdomen. c:&uted by a a4llfJI objt.ef'. 
which pcnetrated to the subculancOUS tissue. None of tbe time 11Dldlen bad recei"fd 
~injuries. ~ng to dodo111.who t:Xlll'lllncd chem. All throe IDldlas were in •1 
of shock mod ~suffering froau:um. bruiJes Uld blunt force tnumL 

126. N. the sc:riOusl>css of incidents on tbe outer decb became appamit, there w 
crowing ooncem amorlg some of tho flotilla orpnisera !hat holding the caplurcd Is i 
soldicnr ma)i have serious implic:ationl for the sccumy of all pusc:n&cn on board.'" It+ 
decided dial the soldic:ts should be released and lhey were taken co the bow of the lower 
clcclc. Once on the bow deck two of the 11Dldlcn jump:d Into the tea and were pick~ "Pi 
Israeli boa.ts. The third soldier did not jump and was l'IJ)idly joined by ls*li soliliers w 
cainc doWfl &om the top dcclc: • . . . . 
127. At least fourpasscogcn were iajun:.d on the bow<ifthe 3hlp, both before and aro d 
the time that the lsraeli soldlel'll were released. At least two passengers received woun 
from live'ilmmunhio~ while oihl:lrS received Injuries from soft b\lton chargea, including o·~ 
dootllf who was tending to injured passc.ngcn. 

128. ·· the Israeli forces suited that tho active phase of the Israeli forces operatl n 
cori~IJded rit OS 17 hoUJS.'J once the ahip was under their c:onll'OI and the three soldiers w e 
re)eised: During the 45-50 minute operaslon, nine ptaengen were killed, more .than 4 
p!WC!lgcl'S bad received serious iajurics cau:icd by live 11111munllion and 11 lllrge number f 
other passengcis had ~ved injuries caused by plastic rounds. soft bllOn charges (beeil­
bai,t} and other means . 

.. 
" II ilho IPJllUn lhal Ilic hnclJ flln:z:s wi:ro plMnlac lo a1lCr lbe ship's Cllblns ill ardu to locale I.be 

Cllccesotdlc:s: l11bis ~II) lhcTlldiel Commitlc>e on 11Allg\ltl2010. coos .Nblceoail 91tn 
tlla1 • ~ !Unc whcD the lneli fotccs spoacd the lhnlc soldias 1111 lhs bow dedc '"JD Sor08 
c:ommandcf'(.,...pcpcm&] lo rush the paseiagcn' IRll in ordcrlO locale die missing toldim..• 

n As slWled by COOS A~ in his testU-y 10 tho Twtd Cammlclec on l I A11g11$12010. 
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: Tab~· Death• offlotllla parUclpan11 

-Deorhs occ11trlng on the top deck (roof) 

•Fur/ran DoRan 

' Furkao Dog1111, a 19-year-old with dual Tur~sh·and•United States citizenship. was on. the 
central area of the top decic filming whh a small video camera when he was llrst hit with 

· live fire. J.t appears that he was lying on the deck in a conscious, or 5Cllli·cons11ious, slate 
for some time.. In.total Futican received five bullet wounds, 10 ~face, hcud, baok tbo~ra, 

: lefi leg and foot. All of lhc entry wounds were on the back of his body, except for lhe face 
wound which entered to ihe right of"his nose. According to forensic analysis, tattooin 

• BrOUDd 'the WOUOd in liis fate ihdical~ that tJ\e shot WllS delivered Bl Point blank range. 
· Furthennore, lhe tn\iectory of the wound. from'bottom to top, togetlicr with a vital abra.,ion 
· to the left shoulder that could lie consistent with the b!lllet exit point, is compatible with 
shot being received while he was lying on the ground on his back. The other wounds w~ 
not thc.resull of firing in contect, near contact or close range, but it is not otherwise: possiblj 
to determine the =act firing range.' The wowtds to the leg and foot were most likel 
received in a standihg position. . . . 
- : . ' -

Ibrahim Bi/gen , . . 

lbrahim.Pi!gen, a 60,ycar-otd Turlcish clti7.Ctl, t'tom.Si!rt in Turkey, was <in the top dee~ 
aiid w~ one of the first passengers •to be shot. He reeeived II buile1 wound to the t'.hest, thd 
trajectory o~ '!Yhich was from above and not at cl<>se range. He had a f\Jrther two bull~ 

· wounds to the right side of lhe back arid rigbt buttock, both back to frooL These wou~ 
would not have caused instant death, but he would have bled to death within a short tim 
w~thou1 medical attention. Foteflsic cvid~cc. shows that he .wa:' shot in ~side ~f the h~ 
w11h 11 soft baton round at such close prox1m1ty and that an entire bean bag and rts waddn~ 
penetrated the skull and lodged in the brain. He had a further bruise on' the right flan~ 
consi~tent with another beanbag wound. The wounds ue Consistent with the deceased 
initially being shot from soldiers OD board the helicopter above Bnd l'e(CiVing· 8 further 
w,ound·to the head while lying on tho ground, already wounded. 

Fahri Yaldiz J 
Fahri Yaldiz, ft 42-yeat-old Turkish citizen from .Adiyaman, rec1:ived five bullet wou~ 
one·to the c:hclll, one to the left leg and three to the right leg. The chest wound WM c.aus1 
by a bullet that entered near the left nipple 11!1.d hit the heen and lungs before exiting froI 
Che shoulder. 'This injury would have cau$Cd rapid death. 

Ali Heyder Bengt 
. ' 

According to the pathology report, Ali Heyder :Scngi, a 38·year·old Turkish citizen fro 
~iyartiekir, ~ived s~x bull~! wounds (one in the t'.hest, one :fn the abdomen'. one in t't 
rJght· ann, one ·m the nght- dugh and two in the left hand). One bullet lodged m the chett 
ate8. None of the wounds would have been instantly feta~ b11t d8lnage to the liver cause)l 
bleeding which woutd·have been llltal if not stemmed.~ are several wi!l'less account 
which suggest that Israeli silldic!'S shot lhe dece8sed in the back and chest at close lllll 
while he-\1-as lying on the declcas a consequence ofinitial bullet wounds. 

~ ·. ; ' . 
Deaths ()f:CUrring 011 the bridge deck, ports/de , 

Cewiel Klli~/ar · . . , · _ · j 
Cevdet Kili9lar, a 38-year-i>ld Turkish citizen from Istanbul, was on the Mavi Marmal'a, l'1 
hi~ capacity as ft photographer employed by lHH. At the. moment he was shot he w4s 
standing on the bridge deck on the port side of the ship near to the door lead mg to the maJ11 
stairw'ell and was attempting IO photograph Jsraeli soldiers on the top dei:k. According a 

MfRC/JSn1 

29 
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the pathology l"'CpOl'U, he received a smgle bullet lo his fOl'Chead between the eyc,s. . 
. bullet followed 8 horizontal 1rajec1ory which i:rossed the middle of the bl'llin from li'ont tb 
back. He would have died inslanl\y. 

, Cengiz Akyi!z and Cenglz SongQr 

, CCngiz Aky<lz. 41. from Hally 1111d Cengjz SoiigOr, '46, fr0m Izmir, bolh Tw:klsh citizen , 
were injured on the bridge dcclc. In close succession by live fll'C from above. They had 
sheltering B11d were shot as !hey attempted IO move inslde the-door leadi11g tO the atairwel . 

. Ccngiz Akyll2 received a shot !O the heed an1Vit Is 'Pf'Obablc that be died instantly. 

The paihology rei>ort.shows fuur wounds: 10th~ neck, face, chest and thigh. Cengit. Song 
re<ajved a .sl!W9 buljei, to ~he ~pper central thorax below the neck, shot from a high ang . 
~!\!ch lodged in, the tight thoracic cayity Injuring tho IJ.car1 a:id aona. Urisucceasl\Jl ctll'o 

. wen: m~dc l?r doctors insiclf the 1hlp 1o reswcitate him through hcan massage, 

~tin ro/)fUoglu 

~in To~u. a 54-yCllMlld Turldsh citizen fl'Olll Adana had been Involved In hcfpi1111 
bilng Injured pBS!lengCts inside !he ship to be 1rea1od. He was also shot clo~ to 'the door <¥1 

· the bridge dcclc. He did not die Instantly .and his wife. who was also on boa~ the ship, wils 
' with him when he died. He was shot by three .bullets. One bullet entered fiom thC top 1tje 
solt .. 1iss11es ,of the righl sJ!lc of tnc back ,of the head, exiled from the nee!> and then; 

1 entered into the thorax. ..Another bulk:' c:rtlercd lhd l.eft buttock and lodged in the ri I 
pelvis. l)ie. third cnt~ the ~·&ht groin and exited fi'om the lower back. Thcrc 
indications that the ~ictlm i:nay have: been in a crouching .ot bending position when 
wounil was sus~ine4. . ' ·. . 

Deo1hs and &Uiou.slywoundd accllrrlng ln Wlbiow!l localiOM 

N11r;Je1 Yildirlm . 
1 

, The location and clrclimstanco5 of.the shooting and death ofNccdet Yildirim, a 3l·)'ear·o d 
Twidsh citizen from Istanbul, remaln·unclear. Ho wm shot twice in the ihorax, once fro 
the front and once frooi the beck. The triijccto1)"of both bullets was from top to bottom. c 
also received bruises co11SmC11t with plastic bullet impact 

Wounding !'f Uiw S"1eymD11 SOylunu (111 a C<Jn!O) 

The serious nature of wounds to Utur Suleyman SOylcmcz, a·46-)'el!r·Old Turkish citi 
from Ankare, which include at least one bullet wound tot/le head,· have left the victim i a 
coma In an Ankara ho ital. He remains· In a critical condition wi!h •serious head In' 

(V) Treatment of injured on the Mavi Marmt1ra . . . 
129. Whilst !he lslilcli opc,etion was llill UIJ(lcr way, efforts weie made to tend 
wounded P.1155engers..inside the 1ltlp .bY otlu:r passengers, lllOO!l&St whom were around 

~ doeton, nu~ and othm wltb me~ical training. including an .ophthalmologist 
· onhopaedic s~ialist. ~rlor 10 the attack, the docton hod met and airccd to use the shi s 
• small medical room, but there was no an~ic:ipated or pn:patation fo: tlic nature of inJuo~· 

that transpired. The l~mitcd l'flcdicinc,, llt'ld Ja.ck of appropriate equipment made .It ve 
difficult to properly treat wounded pmons, partlculllJ'ly those who had received live Ii e 
injurlc,, and required immediate surgery. By the cod of the Imeli operallon morettuin thi 
p«!CN were being lre!lled inside the cabins, primarll)' In the lower dc:clt in makC3h 
surgery areas, twenty of whom were In a critiaU condition. 

· l~Q. Tho flotilla org•nize111 aod other passengers engaged in efforts ID request the JSJU!i 
forws !O provide the ncce~aiy ,trealmcnt to the wounded pc:sons. One prganlser used t 
'hip's Intercom to !:llqW:SL as1istance in Hebrew and pi:rsons also communicated dircc · 
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I~~ 
through the c:abin windows ot by placing sigN, wriltell In .English Ind Hebrew, in - I 
ship's windows. These &l:l?:mpb proved unsucccssfUI lllld It was up 10 two hours before~ 
Israeli fon:cs took out the wounded pcnons. However, the wounded were required to lcav 
ihe cabins themselves; or lakcn outside in a rough manner, without apparent concc:m for lh 
nature of their injuries and the disco.mfort ~t this would cmise. 

131. The woooded passengm were tala:i1 to' thc front ofihe top deck where they joi 
other pa.5$Cllgen injured during the opc:ration on tho top deck and where ihe bod~ 
pcrsoM killed durillg the operalion had been left. Wounded pusongera, including peiso 
s~ously injured witli fulc tire wowids, Wcfc handcuff'ed with plastic oord handcuffs, whic 
wc:-c often tied vecy tightly causing some of the Injured to lose acnsitivity In ihcir hand 
These plastic handcuffs cannot be: loosened· wllhout being cut off, but can be tightened 
Many were also stripped nalmf and then had to wait some time, possibly as long as tw 
lhtec hour$, beforcTCCciviilg medical treatment. Medical treatment was given to a num 
of wounded persons on the top deck by the Israeli forccs.16 

(vi) 

lJZ. Over SCVC13l hours the wounded pauengcrr were then a!rlilteil by Israeli fo 
helicopWS from the ship to hospitals in lsracl.t' However, some of the wounded reni • 
on board the Mavi MOTtnaTa, at least one of whom hlld iajurics c.113Cd by live ammunitioil 
and did not receive 11ppropda~ medical treatment unlll after the lhlp's alrival at the port or 
Ashdod in l11111CI many hours lam. 

Scarch llDd Initial ®taltion ofMavl Mmmara pa.uengcn 

133. AJl olher passengers on the Mtr1I Marmora weie lllc:en one by one .from the cabin 
8n:aa and onco the eXlrmal dcclc ~ and wue -.rchcd. The vut ~ority of pu~ 
includlng the sblp's captain and crew, ~ then handcufTcd with plalio handcuffs 3 
forced ID kneel on !hi: vmious decb for 30IDC houn. Somo wonten, ddQ-ly men 
penollS kom Western countries were nol b1111dcuffed, or were temporarily handcuffed 
tbcli unculred aftet a rdatively ibort paiod of time and we:te then permlt!ed to sit oo t!1f 
benches. Most of tbo3C kn«ling were dn:nchcd by watu from the blades or the hcllcoptlf 
8Dd wcre thll! also in wet clothing throughout this period lllld were very oold. Otber 
passengen exposed Oil open dcclcs rccelvcd serious sun-bum to their akin N a n:sult <ft' 
meqy hours cicposun:: medical reports ahow that at lcaat 13 panengas rcc;civcd flrst-deg::f 
bums as a consequence. During the course of the 12·hour journey to the po11 of Ashdo~ '.P 
l~rael, the passeng~ wi:re brought ins.ide the ship Wld allowed to sit on the .avail~]bl 

seating. 

134. In the proces$ of being detained, or while kneeling on the outer decks for sev I 
hours, lhtte was physical abuse of passengers by the Israeli forces, Including kiclcing im}l 
punching and bei!lg hit with the butts of.ri11es. One forclp com:spondcnt, on bo!lfd In his 
professional capacity, wu thrown ?" tho ground and kicked ~d beaten befon: bei~ 
handcuffed. The p11$Scngen were not allowed to •peak or to move and lherc were frcque~t 
instaoc:cs of verbal abuse, including derogetory soual remarks about the fem~ 
passengers. Passengers weze· denied 1CCCSS to 10!1et facilities or made to wait for feflg 
periods before being escorted ID the tollel lad then forced to use the toilet with brae i 
soldiers walching and while handcuffed. Some passCf18C13 were in l!Ctious discomfort as 
n:sult, while llthers U3Cd malccshlft rcccplaClea, auch es plu& bottles and olhen still 

,. Aa:otdinglOtbe~ ofCOOS ~IOtheTuckdCommiUeoOD II Aupst20JO, tldd 
mgcrics wee pcrfooKd O:tl4 ~ CXI bolJd lhe slllp. 

71 Also 1a:ording to the Ibo~ tatimony, 31 wounded puunscn 11114 7 ~ IJndi soldiea wcrcj 
airlifted tom ~ship utilizing "llpprulimaldy •o hdla>ptcrC1¥1Cmliom" llld ell WOllDdcd hadb:eii 
evacuated by wo 1iows. I 

I 
I 

ll 
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forced IO l.WiDatc on themselves. The Israeli forces abo employed dop and 
pmcngers received dog-bite wounds. Some wilne.saea who sulTcr from dlronlc med. 
conditions, such as diabetes or heart conditions, were not provided 8ccesJ to their rcquir 
mc:dicinc.s, wbiclt.werc taken by Israeli soldicn. 

Ill. The manner in whidJ plll!tio handc:uf'ra were attached IO the wmis or 
CllUJed severe pain md discornfon, Tberc: Wiii widespread mlll.19C o( the handcuffs by 
bnell 10ldiers who tigbl~ the plastlc handcuf& '°an extent that ceulled pain, swelling. 11 

loss of blood cin::ulr.lion in lhc h10ds nl the Ion or 1cnsitivlty In their hands and fi 
Moat peucngers who requested that lhl/ handoufTI be loosened were ignored or it rcsuJ 
in- the· handcum being furthu tightoned. A number of paucngtra arc stlll cxpcri 
medlcal,problcms rcletc:d IO the handcuffing three months !Iller and forensic reports confi 
that at lease 54 pusengera had (lleciwcd ht}urle.s, tnmsvc:nal 11brasicna end bruises, 111 

result ofhendcuffing on board the Mavl Mamora. 

(c;) Ewnts abOQl'd the Chafkllgfl' I 

I 36. Pu:iengcn end crew on the Challnrgv J, the amlllcat Ind fut est vessel in 
llotilla. were ableio witncn the fint moments of the assault on ,I.ho l./avf Marmara. Once t 
beQmc apparent lhat the latadb intended to commllldecr the shlps,·dlc dcd3ion wu 
for 1hc Chalfeng~ 1 IO llC:CC!cretc out of the fonnllion of the flotilla to allow more time 
the journali!ll aboard to lrallJmlt news of the W1&1 It to the outJide world vi a the s 
smllite lntcmd connedion, wblcb remained lo opcnilon, but a!IO in Ibo hope lha1 at l~ 
one boat roighl still be able to reach CleD. The boat wet chased by one of the Isni!li 
con'ctlt bom wlridl it was amble IO ouirun. Svenwalt, the SllltJollrd c:ngloc~ 
~DI the C2pllllo, cooccmed the Israelis mtaht rMI the boat, abut down the . 

137. The boat was inkta:pted by two lsrlell bolLt 111d a helicopter. PmK'l'lgen on 
boerd-said that at leeQ onutun grenade was launched 11 the boat by the '9raclis bc!an: th 
~c:mptcd 10 board. Passengers on the decb hid dccldcd In advance to employ passi 
rcsiJtSnOC: techniques to resist l)'mbolically the bracll 10ldlcn boadin' I.ho boat.= 
pmcl1&Cl'S SIOod unarmed 1ido-by·Sldc blodc.ing lhe palh oC the IOldim.. Soldiers 0 

fire with peintballs end rubber bullcu u they bcwded, billlrt& and Injuring one woman 
the fllcc with either a plastic: bullet °' a paintball. Another wonwt was bnilsed on ber ~ 
by Crom rubber bullets. 

138. · Once on ~. the soldien moved to like control of the fly bridge. Passeri 
obstructing access were forcibly removed. On entering the fly bridge, the soldiers wen: 
with no resistance, but a female journalist sustained bums on her 11tma from an eleetrosho 
weapon fired by an lSBCli JOldler. Witneues aald that the primary concern of the sol1dis 
seemed to be the confbcation of photographic CQlllprnenl end mediL 

139. The Passive ralstanee ofrcml by the puscngen w• met with rorce. One woui 's 
head was hit against the dcclt of the boll and then atcppcd on by en llJ'llcll JOldi • 
Pwcngas wmi hendcufred very lightly with platllc Ilea behind their t.:Jcs. whilJ. 
woman I~ in the face was left unattended. 

140. Severa.I pesscngen said lhal it was clear that the braetl t0ldicn knew who was 
board as they n:fencd to some J>llS?Cl18CfS by oamc. A plllSllclzi:d bookld rccovetcd fi a 
soldier on the Mavl Marmara. and fllmed, ldcntiflt.d apcdft0 passcngen on sevcralJ 
with names end pholognpbs, ioduding on the Clta/lotgrr I. 

141. On:i aevi member o~ thal the 10klien were very )'Ollll8. teemed m 
end rhlt wa'C inEally pooriy orpnized. SokrJCO behaved t,g81'CS1ivdy &om the ± 
towllds the pass:ngers. Pamnps were hlrldcumd with plastic tics and denied ~ID 
tho toilet. One elderly man was obliged to urlnal'C In hla dothca b«ause he - ~ 
acccss to the toilet. There was an attempt 10 forcibly eject one woman &om the boll i to 
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Republic ofTurkey 

MINISTRY OF JUSTICE 

Forensic Medicine Authority 

7 June 2010 

NUMBER: B0.3.l.ATK.0.11.00.01-101.02-38269/1596 

SUBJECT: AlffOPSY REPORT 

Name Surname 

Date of Birth 

Gender 

Republic or Turkey ID No 

Matriculation Record 

Residence 

Da.te of Finding Dead 

Place of Finding Dead 

Autopsy Requested by 

Date/Number 

: FUR.KAN DOGAN 

: 20 October 1991 

:Male 

: 600 280 161 48 

: Of USA nationality 

: 31May2010 

: Mavi Marmara Ship 

: Bakrrk!>y P'ublic Prosecution Office 

: 02 June 2010 -66833 

: Forensic Medicine Authority Morgue Specialization Of ce 

: 03 June 2010-03.40 

: A. Cemil Talasl10Qlu 

: Dr. M. Ozbay, Dr. I. Ozlln, Dr. G. Sirin, Dr. M. Akglll 

Autopsy Held At 

Autopsy Date and Time 

Public Prose<;Utor 

Doctors under Oath 

Observer : Lawyer Okan Kadir Bekta~oglu (Bar Association Regist No: 

38727) 

EXTERNAL EXAMINATION 

IL has been seen that the naked body wrapped up in a sheet and taken out of the brown en coffin 

on which there is a label numbered 3/0584, has been washed up, that it had a white plas ic label with 

some notes in Hebrew and a paper label with yellow color reading "DVI ISRAEL POLjCE - Dental 

Examination" on its left hand wrist, with red color reading "DV11SRAEL POLICE - Firgerprinted", 

with green color reading "DVI ISRAEL POLICE - Sampled for DNA", and with white folor reading 

"DVI ISRAEL POLICE - External Examination", and with blue color reading "9VI ISRAEL 

POLICE- Photographed" on his right hand wrist, and a plastic label reading "584" on hlm and that it 

had a plastic label reading "584 '' on its right ankle. 

In the examination held under scopy, a double fragment fracture of the left cruris and etallic parts 

with a diameter of 0.1-0.3 mm at that site, a metallic parl of O.tx0.3 under the skin o the left of 
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thoraic, and an oval metallic object with a diameter of 1.5-2 cm at the level of his left ankle were 

observed. 

In the circumcised male body with a fair complexion, brown eyes, short brown hair brown-red 

moustache-beard, at the age 18-20, with a height of 1.71 cm, a weight of 64 kg; it has be n observed 

that rigor mortis has passed, that livor mortis have been formed at locations of the back f body not 

subject to compression, and that ridding has started at the lower quadrants of the abdomen in the form 

of yellow green color change. 

It has been observed that 

I-There were a firearm bullet entrance wound with a diameter of 0.7 cm, with abrasion ring around 

and with flesh wound of 0.6x0.S cm 19 the frontal lower section, a flesh wound of 0.6x0 5 cm to the 

front lower section of the same, and oval powder impresses distributed at a longitudinal l xis of 7 cm 

under the right eye, 

2- There was a firearm bullet exit wound to the left frontal back in the form of+ al dime+sions 3x2.S 

cm al a distance of 1 cm to the midline., 1 
3-Th~• ""' • toa= b"ll" ~il hole''"'"'• di•md~ ofl =;,tho f<>m "'"" 15 b hi•d th• loft 

ear, and a flesh wound of 0.5 cm near the auricle, on the same line, 

4- There was a firearm bullet entrance wound on the right occipital, with a diameter ofI.8 cm with 

abrasion ring but without shot residues around, 7 cm posterior to the ear, 

5- l'here was n firearm bullet entrance wound with a diameter of0.8 cm with nbrasion rin but without 

shot residues around, at the paravertebral region aligned at 41h-5'" rib level on the mediaf line of the 

back, ! 
6- There was a firearm bullet exil wound on the right arm 1/3 lower external lateral p ane, firearm 

buUet exit wound, to the left of the cbest, in Ji.ne with the frontal armpit lino and the 5•h rib and 4xl cm 

bruise with a flesh wound under that, 

7- On the left foot, 5th finger distal interior, there was a flesh wound of 2xl due. to p ssing of the 

firearm bullet, and at the bottom of the 4•h finger to the bottom external side, in the for of a split of 

0.6 cm, a firearm bullet entrance wound without shot residues, 

2- There was a firearm bull er exit wound in the form of star-like laceraJion with a dill me r of 0. 7 cm, 

2 cm posterior to the origin of the 4'h finger of the left foot base, 

9- In left cruris lateral, 1/3 median, there was a firearm bullet entrance wound having a dirmeter of 0. 7 

cm, with abrasion ring but without shot residues around, I 
Within the left eye internal side, there were bruises on the upper and lower eyelids, there was a purple 

colored ~ru'.se_ al left c~uris 1/3 ~edium front~! side ,and internal side with a diameter of[6 cm, also. at 

left cruns distal to the internal side, upper section of internal malleol, there was a purple lored bruise 

with a diameter of 5 cm, and a flesh wound of 05x0.3 cm in the middle of the same, a also in that 

region a foreign body that might be a bullet was found under the skin through palpati n, and that a 
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purple colored bruise.of 6x4 cm on the medial left shoulder posterior side with a flesh wo nd of l cm 

in diameter at one end. 

Anal examination showed no macroscopic pathologic characteristic aparc from postmortem dillliation. 

&th hands were determined to involve black-pink-red ink stains on the palmar side. 

INTERNAL EXAMINA UON 

THE HEAD WAS OPENED: The scalp was removed. The regions under lhe fir.earm entri sunder the 

scalp was found lo have hemorrhage. Both temporal muscle groups have hemorrhage, a d an entry 

defect of the firearm bu1lel without soot, 2 cm below the lambdoid sutura to the right ipital right 

side in the calvaria, and a linear fracture line going 3 cm leftward and upward from t at point, a 

firearm bullet exit detect with external impresst:S on the outer lamina with a dimension of 

distance of l cm to the coronal sutllra in frontal left medium, that one of the fracture lin originating 

from that point goes 2 cm to the back and comes to an end, that the second goes to thef ont, that a 

fracture line generated by the entry defect of the firearm bullet no 1 and coming from the fi rearm 

bullet exit wound described in the right frontal bone comes to an end at the point of in etsection. of 

such fracture line were observed. It W"dS observed that there was a 2xl cm firearm bullet ett defect on 

the posterior left temporal bone, and a multiple fragmented fracture on the squamous bo e lhre., that 

the broken bone parts showed an elevation of 2-3 nun. 

The skull was opened using the fradure lines, the brain and cerebellum were removed, weighed ns 

l 493 gr. There are widespread subarachnoidal hemorrhage on the cerebellum surfaces am.I intense 

tissue destruction in the base of-skull and left hemisphere, and intense tissue destruction as observed 

along the firearm bullet trajectory in their sections. Widespread fracture lines were ob erved in the 

entire base of skull, with multiple fragmented fractures in the left medial cranial cavity a d the frontal 

cranial cavity. 

In examination of the orbit;i, nose and mouth cavities, no macroscopic pathologic charac ristics were 

observed apart from blood smear. 

THE CHEST WAS OPENED: Sternal valve was removed. Both lungs were found free. 00 cc blood 

was emptied from the left chest cavity. No free liquid or blood was detected in the right chest cavity. 

Pericardia! fluid of usual amount and appearance was found in the pericardia! cavity. 

The heart was resected, weighed as 285 gr. Anatomic pathology was not monitored. CorQnary arteries 

were found open. Left ventricle wall .thickness was measured 1,3 cm, right ventricle wal thickness as 

0,3 cm, aorta valve periphery as 6,8 cm, mitral valve periphery as 9 cml, pulmonary valv periphery as 

63 cm, tricuspid valve periphery as 11.7 cm. No macroscopic pathologic charact ristics were 

observed on the heart valve, cavity and wall tissues and myocardiuO) sections thereof. 

The lungs weie rcsected, the right lung was weighed as 285 gr, and the left lung 295 grl T here was a 

hole due to the passing of the firearm bullet .on the lower lobe upper posterior left lun~ and between 

upper-lower lobes to the front, ahd intense intra-tissue bleeding along the traj41ory, but no 
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:::os.·copic pathologic charactenstics were observed in the other areas of the left lung. a[d th.e right 

Macroscopic pathologic characteristics were not observed in mediastinaJ structures. 

A fracture was found due to the passing of a firearm bullet from the left 5
1
h rib frontal axilf ry line and 

left 41
h rib parave;tebral line. Jn the examination held during th. e. scopy, the tiny parl of me I observed 

near the left of thorax close to the exil wound could not be found in spite of all searches. 

lo ""ni""ioo of tho oock •«""· hy<>id booo, thyrnid ~'.'"'"' "' oock "rtobm w'"!ound inJacL 

No macroscoptc patholog,ic charactensllcs were observed m the trachea and esophagus. 

THE ABDOM~N WAS OPENED: No free fluid or blood was observed in the abdominal vity. 

100 cc semi digested food content was found in the stomach. 

The large and small intestines showed no macroscopic pathologic characteristics. 

The liver.w~s reseclt:d; weigh.ed as 1157.gr. lts surfaces wer~ smoo'.h and no macroscopif pathologic 

characteris!Jc was observed apart from the pale appearance at its secltons. 

The -Spleen was weighed 162 gr.Its surface and sections showed no macroscopi pathologic 

characteristics. 

The right kidney was weighed 141 gr, left kidney 135 gr. There are fetal lobulation on th surfaces of 

bolh kidneys, and their sections showed no macroscopic pathologic characteristics. 

The pelvis wall and soft lissue showed no macroscopic pathologic characteristic. 

The bladder was found full. 

When the left kruris was dissected, widespread hematoma and tibia as well as multiple rra,tures Qn the 

fibule covering 1/3 under cruris were found. T he tiny metal fragments detected during in l e left cruris 

could not be found despite all searches. During the external examination, when an incisi n was made. 

to the bruise site described in the left cruds distal in the external examination, one bulle with rit1ing 

marks with deformed jacket, which is partially lost, from within the muscular tissue behind the 

internal malleol. l 
The following were found out: 

Thal the firearm bullet entering from the spot described in no 1 in the external examinat n broke the 

frontal bone and entered the skull, passed through the brain tissue in its course right to lef and front to 

the back, broke the occipital bone, and left the body from the spot described in no 3 ill the external 

examination, 

That the firearm bullet entering from the spot described in no 4 in the external examinat on broke the 

occipital bone and entered the skull, passed through the brain tissue in .its course rig~t to left and 

downwar~, broke the frontal. bone, and left the bod~, . . . . I 
That the firearm bullet entering from the spot descnbed in no 5 m the external exammal! n entered the 

thoracic cavity in its course left to right, slightly downward, and back to the front, bro e the 4t1' rib 

from below the paravertebral lin.e, entered the left lung from the lower Jobe posterior superior and 
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exited al the front from the inlerlobar region, broke the 5•h rib from the left frontal axilla y line, and 

left the body, 

Thal the firearm bullet entering.at the place described in no 7 in the external examination l ft the body 

passing through sofl tissue from the spot described in no 8 in the external examination, ithout any 

bone fracture, 

That the firearm bullet entering at the spot described in no 9 in the external examina ion caused 

multiple fractures in the tibia and fibula in its course inward and downward, and remainet within the 

soft tissue at inner malleol upper section. 

On examination of the firearm bullet entrance wounds, no subcutaneous shot residue was d tected. 

Blood sample, nail sample and bone sample were taken with fTA tO be kept to do DiA profiling 

when necessary. 

Skin samp.les from the skin around the entrance wounds were sent to Physics Specializati n Office to 

seek shot residues (nitrite-nitrate) j 

2 blue colored, plastic bags stated to involve clothes were sent to Physics Specializatior Office for 

examination. 

Biopsy was made from the heart, lung, ljver, kidney, cerebeJium, peduncle and t e brain for 

histopalhological examination when necessary. 

Samples of blood, urine, fat tissue, <IS well as the stomach and intestines along with its c ntents were 

tak-en for systematic toxicological analysis. and seeking alcohol, soporific-narcotic, an~ skin wjpe 

samples were taken 10 seek explosive products; and were sent to Chemistry Specialization bmcc. 
One bullet obtained was sent to Physics Specialization Office for definition and determi.ation of the 

type of the shooting weapon. I 
In the letter by Physics Specialization Office dated 10 June 2010; it was specified tha1 the persons 

were cleaned (washed) to whom the skin and subcutaneous tissue parts of 4 boxes 382 2 (1599), 2 

boxes 38303 (1601), 2 boxes 38249 (1593), 6 boxes 38269 (1598), 5 boxes 38266 (15 7), 4 boxes 

38254 (1594), 1 box 38259 (1595), 1 box 38304 (1600), 5 boxes 38263 (l596) belong to, nd thus that 

they were returned to the Morgue Specialization Office without examination, 

In the report dated 16 June 2010 and numbered 6150 by the Physics Specializalio Office; Lhe 

following sent for examination, 

1- On the coal with a hood in gray color outside and beige color inside; 

A- One with a diameter of 0.6 cm on the back side right upper side area (12 cm below the shoulder 

seam, 14 cm to the right arm body seam), 

B- One with a size of 2x:2 cm in "T" shape at the front side left edge medium area (10 m below the 

armpit joint, 26 cm to zipper edge), 

2- On the sweat pants with the expression "ADIDAS" on the black colored left pock t; 

One with a diameter of 0.6 cm on the back side left leg lower edge external area (22 cm to the lowest 

part of the t rousers, 1.5 cm to the external side seam), 
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3- Black colored "ADIDAS" brand shoes; 

One with a diameter of 0.6 cm to the upper left end of the external s ide on the left shoe, 

4- It has been recorded in relation with the holes on the coat with hood gray outsid and beige 

inside, the sweat pants with the expression "ADIDAS" oo the black colored left pocket, a d the black 

colored shoes· with "ADIDAS" brand; and around t.he holes, 

A- In the physical examination held visually and using a magnifying glass; burn, searing nd powder 

soot WERE NOT OBSERVED, 

DETECTED, 

5- A deformed bullet with broken jacket, having a diameter of 9 mm pertained t cartndges 

produced for weapons having a diameter of 9x19 mm, 

Consequently in the examination; I 
1- It has been recorded in relation with the holes on the coat with hood gray outside and ~eige inside, 

the sweat pants with the expression "ADIDAS" on the black colored left pocket, and the black colored 

shoes with "ADIDAS" brand; and around the holes, I 
2- According to the physical and chemical findings obtained, the shots causing entraf ce holes on 

the clothes; 

A- were not fired at ranges IN CONTACT, NEAR CONTACT or CLOSE-RANGE, ljl- However, 

acwrding to the actual findings, there is no way to determine the actual firing Tange, I 
3- ?ne (1) .bullet having .a di~meter of 9 x 19 mm, have been fired from autoirultic or semi-

automallc glln with corresponding diameter and type, I 
In the report by Chemistry Specialization Office dated 15 June 2010 and numbered 02/1018269/2781; 

the su~stances of the .sought systematic were not found out. as a result of the ~ystematic · ox'.col~gital 

analysis held on the 1nternal organs, stomach and the fat tissue, there was tnmethobenz m1de rn the 

internal organs, no Ethanol and methanol methanol was found in the blood, sopor1·c-anesthetic 

substances of the sought systematic were not found out, 168.8 nglmL trimethobenzamid was found, 

soporific-anesthetic substances of the sought systematic were not found in the urine, 

Trimethobenzamide was found, explosive substances of the sought systemic (2·Amino-6- itrotoluenc; 

2,6-DNT; T~B; HMX; 4-Arnino-2,6-0inilrotoluene, ROX; Nitrobenzene, 1,2-DNB; 2, -ONT) were 

not detected in the skin wipe. 

RESULT 

The following opinions were reached: 

In view of the information and findings given above, obtained with the autopsy and exa inations held 

by lhe Morgue Specialization Office of the Forensic Medicine Authority on 03 June 10 over the 

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307546 Date; 05/03/2013 



StateDept004566

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. ·co5307546 Date: 05/03/2013 

body of FUR.KAN DOGAN, born In 1991, son of Ahmet, reported to have died in the 1· cidenl that 

occurred onboard Mavi M11rmara Ship on 31 May 2010; 

1. In the report by Chemistry Specializaiion Office; the substances of the sought systema ic were not 

found out as a result of the systematic toxicological analysis held on the internal organs, omach and 

the fat tissue, there was trimethobenzamide in the internal organs, no Ethanol and methanhl methanol 

was found in the blood, soporific-anesthetic substances of the sought systematic were no found out, 

168.'8 ng/ml trimethobenzamide was found, soporific-anesthetic substances of the sough systematic 

were not found in the urine, Trimethobenzamfde was found, expJosive substances of the sought 

systemic (2-Amino-6-Nitrotoluene; 2,6-DNT; TNB; HMX; 4-Amino-2,6-Dinitrotol ene, RDX; 

Nitrobenzene, 1,2-DNB; 2,4-DNT) were not detected in the skin wipe. 

2. According to the report by Physics Specialization Office; since it was specified that t e people to 

whom lhe skin and subcutaneous tissue samples belong to were cleaned (washed), no exa i.nation was 

held, upon rhe examination of the holes on the coat with a hood gray inside and beige outside, the 

sweat pants with the expression "ADIDAS" on the left pocket, and the black colored "ADIDAS" 

brand shoes, according to 1he physical and chemiqil findings obtained, I.he discharges causing the 

entrance holes on the clothes were not fired at ranges in contact, neat contact or close-range, howevef 

it is not possible to detennine the actual firing range, one (l) cartridge having a diameter f 9xl9 mm 

was fired from an automatic or semi-autotnalic weapon with corresponding diameter and t pe, 

3. The active ingredienl of the antieme!ic drug found. in the blood (16.8 ng/mL Trimeth benzamide) 

was not at toxic levels, bul it was at therapy level, 

4. 5 (five) firearm bullets hit the body of the person, and the injurie.s caused by the bulljts described 

in no 1, 4 and 5 in the external examination were individually lethal, and the others were t fatal, 

5. According to the firearm bullet entrance wound, skin and subcutaneous findings, it was found 

out in rhe external examination that the d.ischarges causing the wounds described in item were close, 

that the discharge constituting the wound described in no 4 was a distant range one (at a range of 35-

45 cm for short barrel weapons, and 75-100 cm for long-barrel weapons), tha t s· e the other 

discharg~ hit the sites with clothing, according to the report of the P~ysics Specializatio 

were not fired in contact, near contact or close firing range, however, il is not possible to etermine the 

actual firing range in view of the current findings; and that it is unknown whether e examined 

clothing is the top clothing of the person at the time of the incident, / 

6. From the body, 1 (one) bullet with deformed appearance, with a partially losll jacket, was 

obtained with rilling marks thereon, 

7. The death of the person is due to a wound by a firearm bulle! causing fractures o the skull, rib 

and limb bones ent.ailing iTitemal bleeding, cerebral hemorrhage, brain tissue destruction. 

Spec. Dr. Mehmet 6zbay Spec. Dr. ibrahim Ozun Dr. Gozde Sirin 
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forensic Medicine Specialist 

{Signature} 

Forensic Medicine Specialist 

{Signature} 

Forensic Medicine pecialisl 

Dr. Meral ul 

Assistant 

To: lstanbuJ Chief Public Prosecutor's Office 

Assoc. Prof. Dr. C. Haluk ince 

Head of Forensic Medicine Institution 

17 June 2010 

{Seal and Signature} 

Balorkoy Public Prosecutor 

MA/ST 

Note: The report was sent by UY AP system. 
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October 6, 2010 

The Honorable Hillary Clinton, 
Secretary of State 
United States Department of State 
2201 CStNW 
Washlllgton, DC 20037 

Dear Secretary Clinton, 

We, Americans who were aboard the three passenger ships of the Gaza flotilla 
months-ago and the father of the U.S. citiz.en killed on the Mavi Marmara, are 
the lack of any visible, active effort oo the part of any agency in our govemme to 
conduct and release an independent investigation of the lcilling of one and . on 
other Americans by a foreign military force, the Israeli commandos. We are a15'> angered 
by lack of any concerted effort by the State Department to secure our possessio s. We 
appreciate the efforts of junior and mid-level officials, but without the full wei t of the 
senior leadership of the State Department, the Israeli government will continue ignore 
our CODCeltlS. 

Although our own government has appaFCntly done nothing, the September 27, 010, 
report of the Fact Finding Mission to the Office of the United 'Nations High I 
Commissioner for Human Rights (OBCHR) revealed then: is clear evidence t U.S. 
citizen Furkan Dogan and four Turkish citizens were murdered. execution-sty! with 
gunshots to their~ by Israeli commandos and four other unanued passeng were 
killed with gunshots to other parts of their bodies. 

The l'\lport reveals that Dogan was filming with a small video came.ra on the to deck of 
the Mavi Marmara when be was shot twice in the head, once in the back. in the left leg 
and foot, at pojnt b!ank range whll~ lying on ~he ground .. The ":port says Fwkf1 ~ 
apparently been "lymg OD the deck m a conscious or sem1-consc1ous, state for i;ome time" 
before being shot in the face. The forensic evidence of"lattooing around the W.Ound in 
his face," according to the report indicates that the shot was "delivered at poin~lank 
range .. " The -report describes the forensic evidence as showing "the trajectory f the 
wound, from bottom to top, together with a vital abrasion 10 the left shoulder t could 
be consistent with the bullet i:xit point. is compatible with the shot being recei ed while 
he was lying on the ground on his back." 

We want to know if the United States bas investigatedFurkan's death, and if , what 
are the results. 

' 
' ·---------

.,, . 
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Protecting Israeli .actions, particularly the complete reliance on its reports on the cts of 
its own military at the expense of American citizens, is an absolute dereliction o the 
responsibilities of our governmenl The State Department has allied itself with ael, 
ignoring its responsibilities to its own citizens. We have been abandoned by ourf1 wn 
government. and we demand an investigation of why and how the Department o State 
and the American Embassy in Tel Aviv have totally failed in their responsibiliti to us. 

FinalJy~ if the Israeli government insists that we pay for the evennial return of o 
property, we eJq>eet that the United States government will (ieduct the costs fro 
billion given to it each year. 

Ann Wright has been authorized to sign this letter on behalf of the following erican 
citizens and the father of an American citizen 

AhinetI>ogan,fatherofFurkanDogan 

Huwaida Arraf 

Scott Hamann 

Janet Koburn 

Paul Larudee 

Iara Lee 

Fatima Mohammadi 

Joe Meadors 

Fiachra 6 Luain 

Edward Peck 

David Schmererbom 

Kathleen Sheetz 

Gene St Ong 

Ann Wright 
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CC: Inspector General 
US Department of State 
United States Department of State 
2201 CStNW 
Wash,ington, DC 20037 

CC: Michelle Berni.er-Toth 
Di.rector, Office of Ameri~ Citizens Services and Crisis Management 
United States Department of State 
2201 CStNW 
Washington, DC 20037 

CC: Jake Walles, 
Deputy Assistant Secretary 
Bureau of Near Eastem Affairs 
2201 C St NW 
Washington, DC 20037 

CC: Katherine Gallagher 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Center for Constitutional Rights 
666 Broadway 7th floor 
New York, NY 
10012 

--· · - - -- _ ... - . - --. -- - --
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Mission Permanente d'Observatlon 
de l'Organisallon de la Conference lslamlque 

•upres des Nations Unles 

[13ELEASED IN FULl:J 

Permanent Observljr Mission 
of the Organl~alton of Iha ls/alllic Conf81'ence 

to the United. N,.lions 
I 

J 

I 
I 

New York, 3 June 2010 

Statement issued hy the Organization of the Islamic Conference (OIC) broup at 
the Amhassadorial level <>n the recent illegal IstaeU military aggressiod against 

the civilian convoy of humanitarian aid ships destined for the Gaza
1
Strip 

The OTC Group strongly condemns the illegal, brutal and provocative Israeli aggres~oli carried 
out in International waters agitlnst the civilian convoy of ships that was cafry1ng vital 
humanitarii!Jl aid to be delivered by hundreds of international peace and humnn righd activists to 
the occupied and besieged Gaza Strip. The OIC Group also condelllilS in the stron~est possible 
terms the killing and injury of sc:veral civilians by the Israeli military forces that attacked the 
Turkish. vessel in the humanitarian convoy. The OIC Group conveys its deepest cobdolences to 
the fiunilies of ~ose killed in this military aggression and expresses its hopes ior the early 
recovery of the wounded. / 

I 
The OIC Group stresses that the Israeli military aggression on the civilian convoy of ships 
constitutes a flagrant violation of international law, including international b.umanit~an law and 
human rights Jaw, {Ind also constitutes an explicit act of piracy under the Uq.ited Nations 
Convention on thlil Law of the Sea. The OIC Group e,ls.o recalls in this regard General Assembly 
resc:ilution 3314 (XXTX) of 1974 on the "Definition of Aggression". The I international 
community must undertake all necessC!iy measures to hold Israel £1.Ccountable for thy perpetntion . 
of this condemnable and illegal <1ct The OIC Group joins the UN Security Council's calls made 
in the Presidential Statement of 1 June 2010, and calls upon the U~ted Nations Secr~tacy­
General to i1llmediately initiate a full, impartial, transparent, independent /and c.cedible 
investigation in conformity witl1 international standards into the Israeli military aggression and 
demands that the peipetrators of this crime to be brouBf1t to justice. I 

I 
The OIC Group further deplores the Israeli seizure of the civilian peace and1human rights 
activists, che ships ai1d the .humanitarian supplies in the civilian convoy thllt were intended for the 
Palestinian civilian popul!Ition in the Gaza Strip that continues to suffer gra,,/ely under the 
inhumane blockade that has been illegally imposed by Israel, the occupying Power, for nearly 
three years, impoverishing the Palestinian population, devastating the Palestini~' society and 
causing widespread trauma and despair. The OTC Group demands .the i cdiate and 
unconditional release of all of these detained civilians as well as of the ships seiz and calls for 
the delivery of aH of the humanitarian aid aad supplies to the Palestinian civiliah population in 
the Gaza Strip, as intended by the organizers of the convoy. The ore Group f/irther demands 
that full compensation be made, in accordance with international standards, for re loss of lives 

130 East 40th Smiel, 5th Floor, NewYork, NY !0016 
Tel: (212) 883-0140 fa:.,; (212) 883-0143 e-mail: oic@im.im 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior [ 

Reviewer 
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and injury caused to civilians by this Israeli military aggression on the humonitarian ponvoy of 
shi~s as weu as compensation for all material damages caused. I . 
The OIC Group reiterates that the Israeli blockade of the Gaza Strip constitutes/ coHective 
punishment on a massive scope and scale and is tantamount to a war crime against the: 
Palestinian people. The OTC Group reiterates its furn and unwavering demand for anf immediate 
end to this unlawful lSTaeli blockade of the Gaza Strip and the opening of all crossitjg points to 
sllow for the freedom of movement of persons and goods into and out ofthe Gaza $trip nnd to 
nllow for unfettered humanitarian access. The OIC Group appeals to the Unill::d N~ons 
Secretary-General to exert all efforts to support the suffering Palestinian people in thd Gaza Strip 
and calls for urgent action in this regard. Moreover, the OIC GroU):l calls upon all hbanitarian 
or_gan.izations, including the International Committee of tho Red Cross and the RediCreseent to 
insist on access to the besieged civilian population in Gaza, in accordance with the P,rovisions of 
international humanitarian law, and to expedite the provision of humanitarian aitl, including 
food, medical, sanitation and fuel supplies, to meet the basic needs of the population~ 

I 

The OIC Group stresses in fuis regard the urgency of the entry of all necessary hum/ulltarian and 
civilian goods to the Gaza Strip as well as the entry of reconstruction materials to iill.ow for the 
lon~ and ~justly-~e~~yed reconstruction of the homes, ~a.st:ructui:e, and institu~o1lns, incl.u~ng 
Umted Nations fac1litles that were destroyed by the Israeli occupying forces dUrl.Il~ the rruhtazy 
aggression against the Gaza Strip from December 2008 to January 2009. In this regard, the OIC 
Group also reiterates its demand for accountability lUld justice for the wu crime:!s and human 
rights violations perpetrated against the Palestinian civilian population during thnt I~raeli military 
aggression, as called for by the General Assembly and the Human Rights Council iJ follow up of 
the report of the United Nations Fa~-Finding Mission PD the <':iaza Conflict (Goldstbne Report). 

I 
The OIC Group calls upon the international community, especially the Securt' 1 Council, to 
uphold its responsil;Jilitles with regard to this serious matter in ·au its aspects. Urg t action must 
be taken to bring an end to such blatant Israeli impunity and disregard for 11 norms and 
standards of international law. Action must also be taken to bring a halt to all othet illegal Israeli 
practices against the Palestinian civilian population in the Occupies Palestiiian Territory, 
including East Jerosalem. I 
The OIC Group reaffhms the importance of continuing the strong coordination alnong the OIC, 

. f 
the Non-Aligned Movement (NAM) and the Arab Group and the need t~ continue the 
coordination mid cooperation of these groups in order to ensure comprehensive ~?llow-up of this 
serious and urgent matter, including to ensure the Ml implementation of the Security Council 
Presidential Statement of l June 2010, particularly the pUrsuit of an imp\lrtial, credible, 
trnnsparent, nnd independent international investigation in accordance with international 
stand111ds led by the United Nations Secretary-Gener!!!. j 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I 

The O!C Group reiterates its call for an end to the illeg;il Israeli occupation of the Ji'alestinian 
Territozy, including Enst Jerusalem, and all other Arab territories occupied since. 1967 tlnd for the 
realization by the Palestinian people of ~cir inalienilble right to · sclf-dete~inati9n in 1heir 
independent State of Pnlestine, with Al-Quds Al-Shareef as its capital, and the acbievpment of a 
j ust, lasting and comp~hensive peace, including a just solution. for the plight of the Palestine 
refugees in accordance General Assembly resolution 194. 

The OIC Group decides to remain seized of this matter. 

' 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
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PERMANENl' MISSION OF THE SYRIAN ARAB REPUBLIC 
TO THE UNITED NATIONS 

820 Second Ave., 15th Floor, New York, N. Y. 10017 
Tel: (212) 661-1313 
Fax: {212) 983-4439 

URGENT 

UN-2010- Nl.S-
I 
I 

New York, 4 Jurie 2010 
I 
I 

I have the honor, in my cap~city as Chair of the Organization of the Islamic tonference 
{OIC)Group in New York, to convey for your valuable consideration a statemeft that was 
endorsed on 3 June 2010 by the OIC Group at the Ambassadorial level on the recent illegal 
israell military aggression against the civilian convoy of humanitarian aid destined ~or the Gaza 
Strip. I 

I 
Please Accept, Excellency, the assurances of my highest consideration. I 

Dr. Bashar Ja~fari 
Ambassador 

Permanent RepreJentative 

His Excellency 
Mr. Claude Heller 
President of the Security Council 
United Nations 

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior 
Reviewer 

.:':~;~~J~;;~, ·, . •,/---/ t 
./ 
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The President of the securicy council preF ents . 

his compliments to the members of the Council land has 

the honour to transmit herewith, for their / 
I 

informC1.tion, a copy of a letter dated 4 June 2010 from 

. . ~ the Permanent Repres~ntative of the Syrian Arr--

Republic to the United Nations addresse~ to the 
I . 

President of the Security Council, and its enflosure. 

rREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior 
[Reviewer 
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.CHAIROF· 
TIIE COORDINATING BUREAU 

OF mE NON-ALIGNED MOVEMENT 

The Permanent Mis3ion of the Arab Republic of Egypt to the United Nations, in 
i!S capacity as Chair of the Coordinating Bureau of the Non-Aligned Movement 
(NAM CoB), presents its compliments to the Permanent Missions o~ Member States 
to the United Nations, and has the pleasure to enclose herewith a Press Release issued 
by the Chair of the Coo~dinating B\U"Cau of the Non-Aligned Movement on the Israeli 

. :military attack on the Civilian mariti.Me convoy carrying hwnanitarian assistance to 
the Gaza Strip. 

The Pennanent Mission of the Arab Republic of Egypt, in its capacity as Chair 
of the Coordinating Bureau of the Non-Aligned Movement, avails itself of this 
opportunity to renew to the Permanent Missions of Member States to the ~nited 

. N~tions the assurances of its Jrigb.est consideration. 

- Pemianent Missions of Member States 
., United.Nations 
New York 
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UN CONFIOFNTIAL 

I 

Secretary Gener 

fRELEASEp IN FUQd 

~ - I 
l's Panel of Inquiry on the 31 May 2010 Flotilla Incident 
~ . I 

METHOD OF WORK 

I 
1. The panel will receive and review copies of the national investigations into the 

incident from Israel and Turkey. I 

2. Where the panel considers that it requires further information, claritications.!or 
meetings from Israel and/or Turkey, it will make such request to the points of contaci 
designated by those States. I 

j 
3 . Where the panei considers it necessary to obtain inforrnatioR from other an;ected. 

States, it may request such information through appropriate diplomatic charnels. 
I 

4. The report and any recommendations it may contain are to be agreed by cpnsensus. 
Where the members of the panel are unable to reach agreement ar:i any eJ,ameAt sf 

. .tbe-r.epar:t Ot its recom111endatteRS, the Chair and Vice.•Chair will use their tiest efforts 
to try to secure consensus among the members of ttle panel re!}afding ti •et ele111e1 rt. 
Where, despite the best efforts of the Chair and Vice-Chair, it is not possib1e to · 
achieve consensus among the members of the panel on a particular elembnt or 
recommendation of the report, the Chair and Vice-Chair wifl agree on any f>!Jch 
element. or repommendation in the report. I 

5. The UN Secretariat will provide secretariat services to the panel and wm 'a,rrange for 
the provision of necessary administrative, logistic and security support, lnc;:luding 
transportation and accommodation. · I 

6. The Archlves and Records Management Section will provide recorc;ls-ma~agement 
support to the panel. j 

7 . The report of the panel shall be designi;ited unclassified. The panel may attach 
confidential annexes to its report. · I 

8. The panel shall take the necessary steps'to ensure that all documents a~d materials 
provided to it on the understanding of confldentlallty are marked "third pa,rty 
confidential" and that all necessary measures are taken to safeguard their 
confidentiality. 

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Revi~ 
I 
I 
l 
j 
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RELEASED IN 
FULL 

UN CONFIDENTIAL 

TERMS o: REFERENCE . . I 
The Secretary-Ge eral's Panel of Inquiry on the 31 May 2010 Flotilla l~cident @ 

Establishment of panel - I 
1. In the li,ght of the Statement of the President of the Security Council dated 11 June 

2010 (S/PRST/2010/9), the Secretary-General has establisheo a panel of Inquiry on 
the incident that occurred on 3; May 2010 off the coast or Israel. I 

~ I 
2 The panel: I 

(a) will receive and review interim and final reports of national investigatidns into the 

Incident; · ' 

(b) may request such clarifications and information as it may require from relevant 
national authorities. · I 

3. !n the light of the information so gathered, the panel will: 

(a) examine and identify the tacts, c ircumstances and context of the incidfnt; and 

(b) consider and suggest ways' of· avoiding similar incidents In the future. 

4 . The panel will prepare a report and submit it to the Secretary-Genera). 

Composition of the panel 

- I 
5. The panel, to be appointed by the S ecretary General, will be co.mposed of a Chair, a 

Vice-Chair and one member each from Israel and Turkey, with recognizer and 
relevant expertise. 

nme Frame I 

6. The panel will hold its first meeting on 10 August 2010 at United Nations I 
Headquarters in New York. It will hold such further meetings as required in order to 
submit a preliminary report by 10 November 2010. After that, it will sub.;:jit periodic 
reports until the completion of its work when it will submit its f inal report t? the 
Secretary General. ' 

Location 
I 

7. The panel will be based at Unlted Nations Headquarters in New York. 

Secretariat. 

8. The UN Secretariat will p roVide secretariat services for the pane-I. 

UN CONFIDENTIAL 

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewerj 
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jRELEASED IN PART B6] 

Simonoff, Mark A USUN 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

Classification: 

Ried, Curtis R (USUN) 
Wednesday, October 26, 2011 7:44 PM 
DiCarlo, Rosemary A (USUN); Grant, William K (USUN); Finerty, Tre a A (USUN); Simonoff, 
Mark A (USUN); Horak, Gall R (USUN); Ahmed, Salman (USUN) 
Turkey re GA resolution on flotilla 

UNCLASSIFIED 

During his speech at the Middle East debate on Monday, Apakan told the Council that Turkey w uld use "all available 
platforms to refer the matter of Israel's blockade of Gaza to the ICJ." I recently had dinner with 86 

and he said that the Turki government had 
wanted to wait for the Palestinians to resolve their membership issue before pursuing action in he GA, but they were 
now tired of waiting. He said we should expect to see a GA resolution on the flotilla/blockade in November that would 
refer the matter to the ICJ. 

Curtis R. Ried 
Political Adviser 
U.S. Mission to the United Nations 
Office 212-415-4346 Fax 212-415-4415 

This email is UNCLASSIFIED. 

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewerl 
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Simonoff, Mark A (USUN) 

From: Banos. Mariano H 
Sent: Thursday, September 30, 2010 10:35 AM 
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Martin, Julie B 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Aswad, Evelyn M; Guarin, Marc F; Pompian, Shawn M; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda 
Re: Flotilla 

Categories: Working 

HI Mark, 

Are you referring to the HRC flotilla report? We've seen the report, which was P-resented at the HF C last week, and issued 
an Intervention which called it "unbalanced." I 

From: Baumert, Kevin A 
To: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN) 
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Guarin, Marc F; Pompian, Shawn M; Dolan, JoAnn 
Sent: Thu Sep 30 10:26:28 2010 
Subject: RE: Flotilla 

Mark- looping in some others here. I would expect L/HRR, in particular, to have access to ourTPs on this. I I 
t== I 

Evelyn, Mariano -anything for USUN's use? 

Thanks, 
Kevin 

From: Slmonoff, Mark A (USUN) 
Sent: Thursday, September 30, 2010 10:15 AM 
To: Baumert, Kevin A 
Subject: Flotilla 

Kevin, 

Do you have some talkers/analysis on the legality of Israel's "blockade"? We' re getting queries µp here re whether 
disagree with the recent report (which I have not seen yet!) characterit:ing the blockade as illeg I. 

Thanks I 

Mark !REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewerl 

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
!RELEASED IN PART BS! 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Categories: 

Schaaf, Kenli A (OES) 
Thursday, September 30, 201O10:28 AM 
Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Sirnonoff, Mark A (USUN) 
Re:. Israel (update) 

Working 

We just heard from Secretariat that proposal will come up right after mid-morning coffee break. 

We shared this info with UK and Israel (we met Ady this AM, she met with coordinator). 

CAN will not/not make statement b/c of reasons you suggest. 

Thanks, 
KnE 

From: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES) 
To: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Simonoft, Mark A (USUN) 
Sent: Thu Sep 30 10:14:59 2010 
Subject: Re: Israel 

Btw, vladi (secrntariat) just told me he's not sure how this will go down. (I.e. Not sure on timing). 

UK just told me EU will unanimously oppose this (not the right place.etc). 
UK hoping they can turn this off still, such that Turkey not even table. 

AUS will make similar statement opposing. Can will not/not make statement. 

Turkey is here this AM, so perhaps he is thinking he will?? (Eu talking to turkey now) 

All for now, will keep posted. 

KnE 

From: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES) 
To: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Schaaf, Kenli A (OES) 
Sent: Thu Sep 30 10:06:20 2010 
Subject: Re: Israel 

She is talking to coordinator now. I just happened to be standing in line next to them all when sh was introduced. I will 
introduce myself when she is done 

From: Simonoff, Marl<. A (USUN) 
To: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES); Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES) 
Sent: Thu Sep 30 09:51:04 2010 
Subject: Israel 

jREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewed 
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· · Ady is heading over now to informal consultations to confer with you and to talk to the facilitate . 

As today is a Jewish holiday, Israel cannot speak into the microphone. 

Israel has asked that, when you make the flotilla intervention, you state that Israel cannot be prE sent and cannot speak 
because of the religious holiday . Our front office has OK'd your doing this. So please do that. 

Mark 

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
Simonoff, Mark A (USUN) !RELEASED IN PART BS,B~ 

From: Kim, Elizabeth AB {OES) 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Wednesday; September 29, 2010 5:46 PM 
Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Schaaf, Kenli A (OES) 
Re: Please advise-- Re: LOS mtg today 

Categories: Working 

No. Turkey hos not yet tabled. 

--- Original Message -
From: Simonett. Mark A (USUN) 
To: Schaaf. Kenli A (OES) 
Cc: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES) 
Sent: Wed Sep 29 17:45:27 2010 
Subject: RE: Please advise- Re: LOS mtg today 

Israel just called. 

Was told thal Turkey tabled the resolution. 

Was told that the US did not speak. 

Please advise on the latest ... 

Mark 

SBU 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED 

- . Original Messoge--­
From: Schoof, Kenli A (OESJ 
Sent: Wednesday. September 29. 2010 5:19 PM 
To: Simonoff. Mark A (USUN) 
Cc: Kim. Elizabeth AB (OES) 
Subject: Re: Please advise- Re: LOS mtg today 

Yes. we think it could come up 1his afternoon (that's our best guess). or 1st thing tom Drrow AM[ ___ J B 

Thanks, 
KnE 

--Original Message·--
From: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN) 
To: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES) 
Cc: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES) 
Sent: Wed Sep 29 17:09:42 20 I 0 

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewetj 
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Subject: RE: Please advise- Re: LOS mfg today 

SBU 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED-Original Message­
From: Schoof. Kenll A (OES) 
Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 5:08 .PM 
To: Simonett. Mork A (USUN) 
Cc: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES) 
Subject: Re: Please advise- Re: LOS mtg today 

We'll keep you posted. 

Thon ks, 
KnE 

- Original Message -
From: Simonoff, Mork A (USUN) 
To: Schoof. Kenli A (OES} 
Cc: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES) 
Sent: Wed Sep 29 16:35:03 2010 
Subject: RE: Please advise- Re: LOS mtg today 

Thanks! 

For my information: 

Mark 

SBU 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED 

-Original Message­
From: Schoof. Kenli A (OES) 
Sent: Wednesday, September 29. 2010 3:58 PM 
To: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Kim. Elizabeth AB (OES); Grant, William K (USUN); Simor off. Mark A {USUN); 
Donovan, James B {USUN) 
Cc: Baumert. Kevin A 
Subject: Re: Please advise-- Re: LOS mlg today 

Thanks, Barbara (and Mork). 
2 
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I_ 

We'll keep you posted. It hasn't come up yet, but prob will this afternoon. 

Thanks, 
KnE 

-· Original Message -
From: Masilko, Barbaro J (USUN) 
To: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES); Kim. Elizabeth AB (OESJ; Grant. William K (USUN); Simonoff, ~ark A (USUN); 
Donovan. James B (USUN) 
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A 
Sent: Wed Sep 29 15:51:332010 
Subject: RE: Please advise- Re: LOS mtg today 

Ghost writing for Mark Simonett -

Our sense is that we should: 

--Original Message-­
From: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES) 
Sent: Wednesday. September 29, 2010 3:28 PM 
To: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Grant. William K (USUN); Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Donov )n, James B (USUN) 
Cc: Masilko. Barbaro J (USUN): Baumert. Kevin A 
Subject: Please advise-- Re: LOS mtg today 

All, 

Secretariat just distributed text: 

76bis 
"Expresses its deep regrets for the loss of life and injuries resulting from the use of tore"" during the Israeli 
military operation in international waters against the convoy soiling to Goza and in t 1is context condemns 
those acts which resulted in the loss of 9 civilians and many wounded as expressed I ~v the Security Council 
Presidential Statement (S/PRST/2010/9) of l June 2010;" I -~, 

It prob will come up very soon. 

Thanks. 
KnE 

3 
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-· - Original Message -
From: Kim. Elizabeth AB (OES) 
To: Grant. William K (USUN); Simonoff, Mork A (USUN); Donovan. Jomes B (USUN) 
Cc: Masilko. Barbaro J (USUN); Baumert, Kevin A; Schoof. Kenli A (OES) 
Senf: Wed Sep 29 15:00:49 2010 
Subject: RE: LOS mtg today 

-
Thanks. 
Elizabeth 

-Original Message-­
From: Grant. William K (USUN) 
Sent: Wednesday. September 29. 2010 2:28 PM 
To: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Simonoff. Mork A (USUN); Donovan. James B (USUN) 
Cc: Masilko. Barbaro J (USUN} 
Subject; RE: LOS mtg today 

Mork or Jim or Elizabeth: know anything about this? 

Barbaro trying to get info from her sources 

This email is UNCLASSIFIED 

Bill Grant 
Political Minister-Counselor. U.S. Mission to the United Notions office 212- 415-4363 ()144363} 

-Original Message-
From: Masud.Husain@international.gc.ca [mailto:Mosud.Husoin@internotional.gc.cc 
Sent: Wednesday, September 29. 2010 2:15 PM 
To: Grant, William K (USUN) 
Subject: RE: LOS mtg today 

Bill 

We hove heard that Turkey may Introduce flotilla language in negotiations on the Li ~w of the Seo 
resolution today. Have you heard this? What ore you guys going to do? 

Can you give me a shout 

Cheers Masud 

Mosud Husain 
Minister-Counsellor I Ministre-conseiller 
Mission permonente du Canada 
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'permanent Mission of Canada 

Tel: ~ =1 
Cel~ I 
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Simonoff, Mark A USUN !RELEASED IN PART 85,BSj 

From: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES) 
Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 6:52 PM 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Categories: 

Masilko, BarbaraJ (USUN); Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Simonoff, Mar A (USUN) 
Baumert, Kevin A; Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Grant, William K (USU 
Re: tomrrow's LOS session 

Working 

It resumes at IOam. We will keep you posted, and like Eliz said, we hope to hove a h ads-up on when it 
will come up. As soon as we know. we will share with you. 

Thanks for your helpful rxns today. 

Best. 
KnE 

- Original Message -
From: Masilko, Barbara J (USUNJ 
To: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OESJ; Simonoff, Mork A (USUN); Schaaf. Kenli A (OES) 
Cc: Baumert. Kevin A; Germain. Ellen J (USUN); Grant William K (USUN) 
Senf: Wed Sep 29 18:39:14 20!0 
Subject: tomrrow's LOS session 

Thanks. what time does the session resume tomorrow? 

This email is UNCLASSIFIED 

-Original Message-­
From: Kim. Elizabeth AB (OES) 
Sent: Wednesday, September 29. 2010 6:36 PM 
To: Masilko, Barbaro J (USUN); Simonoff. Mark A (USUN); Schaaf. Kenli A (OES) 
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Germain. Ellen J (USUN); Grant. William K (USUN) 
Subject: Re: notes from LOS mgt? 

No worries, not tonight. We are finished for the day. Not sure if it would be tomorro or Friday but our 
guess would be tomorrow if at all. 

- Original Message --
From: Masilko, Barbara J (USUNJ 
To: Kim. Bizabeth AB (OES); Simonoff. Mark A (USUN); Schaaf. Kenli A (OES) 
Cc: Baumert. Kevin A; Germain. Ellen J (USUNJ; Grant. William K (USUN) 
Sent: Wed Sep 29 18:30:04 2010 
Subject: RE: notes from LOS mgt? 

Does that mean tonight or sometime later this week? 

This email is UNCLASSIFIED 

-Original Messoge--­
From: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES) 
Sent: Wednesday. September 29. 2010 6:29 PM 
To: Simonoff, Mark A (USUNJ; Masilko. Barbaro J (USt,JN); Schoof. Kenli A (OES) 

l 

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewerj 
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Cc: Baumert. Kevin A; Germain. Ellen J (USUN) 
Subject: Re: notes from LOS mgt? 

Turkey's proposal hos not yet been made. Coordinator does not know when if will co e up. Turkey asked 
if he could bring it up "when the time is right" which we think means they ore trying lo do consultations first. 
The Secretariat will try to give us warning of at least 30 min before ii comes up. We w II take good notes. 

- Original Message --­
From: Simonoft. Mor1: A (USUN) 
To: Masilko, Barbaro J (USUN}; Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Schoof. Kenli A (OES) 
Cc: Baumert. Kevin A; Germain. Ellen J (USUN) 
Senf: Wed Sep 29 18:03:52 2010 
Subject: RE: notes from LOS mgt? 

Also send it in writing please. 

SBU 
This email is UNCLASSIFIED 

-Original Message---
From: Masilko, Barbaro J (USUN) 
Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 6:03 PM 
To: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OESJ; Schaaf, Kenli A (OES); Slmonoft Mark A (USUN) 
Cc: Baumert. Kevin A; Germain. Ellen J (USUN)' 
Subject notes from LOS mg!? 

Mark is taldng up the issue of getting additional guidance on this issue. 

Con someone give me a brief on what happened today in the meeting (i.e. who sp ke. what was said, 
etc) either this evening or tomorrow a .m. is fine- I'm at 212-415-4190 

Thanks, 

Barbaro 

This email is UNCLASSIFIED 

---Original Message­
From: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES) 
Sent: Wednesday. September 29. 2010 4:56 PM 
To: Masilko. Barbara J {USUN): Schaaf, Kenli A (OES); Grant. William K (USUN); Simono f. Mark A (USUN); 
Donovan, James B (USUN) 
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Germain. Ellen J (USUN) 
Subject: Re: Please advise- Re: LOS mtg today 

On the margin, Turkey asked for our opinion on their text (which has not yet been in educed). I told him 
we don't think this is the ri.ght p lace for this. He said he doesn't wont to cause contra ersy, he tried lo stick 
to earlier language, and is the ANY text to which we could agree? 

Please advise. 

- Original Message -
From: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN) 
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To: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES); Kim. Elizabeth AB (OES); Grant, William K (USUN); Simonoff, t\~ark A (USUN); 
Donovan. James B (USUN) 
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A: Germain. Ellen J (USUN) 
Sent: Wed Sep 29 16:02:14 2010 
Subject: RE: Please advise-- Re: LOS mtg today 

Thanks, the UK legal advisor whom you all know (Doug Wilson) indicated the need fo internal EU 
coordination on anything before they can make a statement- that won't happen t ntil tomorrow o.m. 

I've included Ellen Germain in this emoil chain in case anything evolves this ofternoor . 

I would appreciate good notes on anything Turkey may say during Introduction of th'? text so we con use 
in sendin!;;J back to Washington. 

This email is UNCLASSIFIED 

--Original Message-­
From: Schoof, Kenli A (OES) 
Sent: Wednesday. September 29, 2010 3:58 PM 
To: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Kim. Elizabeth AB (OES); Grant, William K (USUN); Simonbff. Mark A (USUN}; 
Donovan. Jomes B {USUN) 
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A 
Subject: Re: Please advise-- Re: LOS mtg today 

Thanks, Barbaro (and Mork). 

We'll keep you posted. It hasn't come up yet, but prob will this afternoon. 

Thanks, 
KnE 

- - Original Message -
from: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN) 
To: Schaaf. Kenli A (OES); Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Grant. William K (USUN); Simonoff, Mork A (USUN); 
Donovan. James B (USUN) · 
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A 
Sent: Wed Sep 29 15:51:332010 
Subject: RE: Please odvise- Re: LOS mtg today 

Ghost writing for Mork Sirnonoff -

Our sense is that we should: 

I 
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-Original Message-­
from: Schaaf. Kenll A (OES) 
Sent: Wednesday. September 29, 2010 3:28 PM 
To: Kim. Elizabeth AB (OES): Grant. William K (USUN); Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Donovc n, James B (USUN) 
Cc: Masilko, Barbaro J {USUN): .Baumert, Kevin A 
Subject: Please advise- Re: LOS mtg today 

All. 

Secretariat just distributed text: 

76bis 
"B<presses its deep regrets for the loss of life and injuries resulting from the use of forcE during the Israeli 
military operation in international waters against the convoy soiling to Gazo and in His context condemns 
those acts which resulted in the loss of 9 civilians and many wounded as expressed ty the Security Council 
Presidential Statement (S/PRST/2010/9) of 1 June 2010:" 

It prob will come op very soon. 

Thanks. 
KnE 

-- Original Message -­
From: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES) 

I 

To: Grant, William K (USUN); Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Donovan, James B (USUN) 
Cc: Masilko. Barbara J (USUN); Baumert. Kevin A; Schaaf, Kenli A (OES) 
Sent: Wed Sep 29 r.'.:>:00:49 2010 
Subject: RE: LOS mtg today 

Thanks. 
Elizabeth 

-Original Message­
From: Grant, William K (USUN) 
Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 2:28 PM 
To: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Simonoff. Mork A (USUN); Donovan, James B (USUN} 
Cc: Masilko. Barbara J (USUN) 
Subject: RE: LOS mtg today 

Mark or Jim or Eliz<ilbeth: know anything about this? 

Barbaro trying to get info from her sources 

This email is UNCLASSIFIED 
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Bill Grant 
Political Minister-Counselor. U.S. Mission to the United Nations office 212-415-4363 (x 4363) 

-Original Message--
From: Masud.Husain@internotional.gc.ca [maillo:Masud.Husain@internationol.gc.ca] 
Sent: Wednesday, September 29. 2010 2:15 PM 
To: Grant. William K (USUN) 
Subject: RE: LOS mtg today 

Bill 

We hove heard that Turkey may introduce flotilla language in negotiations on the La of the Sea 
resolution today. Have you heard this? What are you guys going to do? 

Can you give me a shout 

Cheers Masud 

Masud Husain 
Minister-Counsellor I Ministre-consei!ler 
Mission permanente du Canada 
Permanent Mission of Canada 

~!,l I 

This email is UNCLASSIFIED 
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cLAssIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL 
Sensitive 

Page 1of2 

!RELEASED IN PARTl 
[1.4(B)!B1, 1.4(.:;...D),____J 

From: Anderson, Brooke D (USUN) 

To: 'dshapiro@nss.eop.sgov.gov' 

Subject: UN panel update. UN has given revjsed documents to Israelis. 

Sent: 7/20/2010 8:04:42 PM 
Update on UN Panel. 

Israeli DPR told me that UN's Pascoe {DPA) and O'Brien (Legal) gave him a new draft Terms 
of Reference (TOR) and Method of Work (MOW) for the panel on the Gaza flotilla incident, 
reflecting conversations that the UN had with Turkey. 

UN's message to Israel's DPR was: 

New TOR adds: 

New MOW adds: 
r~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--"·1~1 ~'----~--'---'~~~~~ 

f~.~ .. ·-· ·-,..............-. ~---------' 
Israeli DPR told UN he would send it back to capital for review -1 

I l 

B1 
1.4(8) 
1.4(0) 

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL 
Sensitive !REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewed 

Printed By: Mderson, Brooke D (USUN) 
Page 1 of2 
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, ~ ClASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL Page 2 of 2 
Ser..5itive 

Israeli DPR told me that the Israeli govenm1ent meeting that was going to happe1 last Friday 
hasn't been held yet, but that there is 1ikely to be a meeting tomorrow. He will it for 
instructions. 

Please advise if you have any thoughts or direction for me. I will be talking with Israeli DPR in 
the morning when he will share with me the reaction from Jerusalem. 

Best, 
Brooke 

Sensitivity: Sensitive 
Classification: CONFIDENTIAL 
Classified by: Brooke Anderson, Chief of Staff, Exec, USUN 
Reason: 1.4(b), (d) 
Declassify On: 2035107/20 
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